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BC Forestry Revitalization Trust 

April 15,2013 

Doug Konkin 
Deputy Minister of Forests Lands and Natural Resource Operations 
Ministry of Forests Lands and Natural Resource Operations 
3rd Floor, 1520 Blanshard Street 
P.O. Box 9352 Stn Prov Govt 
Victoria, Be V8W 9MI 

Dear Doug Konkin: 

OFFICE OF THE 
DEPUTY MINISTER 

APR 1 7 2013 
MINISTRY OF 

NATlJRAL RESOuRce OPERATIONS 

Re: The Be Forestry Revitalization Trust - 2013 - First Quarter Report 

Enclosed for your information is a copy of The Be Forestry Revitalization Trust's 2013 - First 
Quarter Report. 

Thank yOll for your continued support and involvement in the Trust to date. Please feel free to 
contact me if you would like to discuss anything in the report, or The Be Forestry Revitalization 
Trust in general. 

Eric van Soeren 
Trustee 

end 

Eric van Soeren, Trustee 
730 Walker' s Hook Road 
Salt Spring Island, Be V8K IN5 
www.bcfn.com 

Phone: 250-537-1533 
C.II,
Fax: 250-537-1534 

Email: eric@?vansoeren.net 
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Be Forestry Revitalization Trust 

Report of the Trustee as of March 31, 2013 

General 

In June 2003 the province of British Columbia established the Be Forestry Revitalization 
Trust (BCFRT) and funded it with $75,000,000. The mandate of the BCFRT was to provide 
mitigation to forest workers and replaceable contractors that were negatively impacted by 
timber reallocations resulting from the Forestry Revitalization Act (FRA). 

In April 2004 the province appointed Eric van Soeren as Trustee. Shortly after that he 
appointed a seven member Advisory Board, as required by the Trust Deed. That Board 
developed draft Forest Worker Mitigation Guidelines and Contractor Mitigation Guidelines. 

Utilizing the best estimates ofindustry, seniority estimates obtained from the IWA pension 
plan, seniority estimates obtained from contractor industry associations, and the proposed 
guidelines, the Trustee determined that the BCFRT likely required approximately 
$50,000,000 more than what was available in the BCFRT accounts, plus what the BCFRT 
was likely to earn in interest while holding mitigation funds in trust. 

The Trustee and the Advisory Board approached the province and received a commitment for 
the additional funds, so the BCFRT Advisory Board finalized the Contractor Mitigation 
Guidelines and the Forest Worker Mitigation Guidelines. The Guidelines, as well as 
extensive supporting documentation, are posted on the BCFRT website at \\'ww.bcfrt.com. 

Roll over of the BCFRT 

The original BCFRT was slated to terminate effective June 30, 2008. However, for a variety 
of reasons it was not possible to mitigate all the eligible beneficiaries of the BCFRT by then. 
Further, estimates at that time suggested that even once all the existing beneficiaries received 
mitigation, there would still be funds left in the BCFRT. Therefore, it was agreed by the 
Trustee, the Province and the Advisory Board that the BCFRT should be extended. the group 
of potential beneficiaries be expanded, and the Trustee be given limited discretion to deem 
that individuals who would not otherwise be eligible beneficiaries of the BCFRT be included. 
The Minister of Forests and Range and the Trustee signed a new Declaration of Trust, and all 
assets and obligations of the BCFRT were assumed by the new BCFRT II. A copy of the 
Declaration of Trust that created the BCFRT II is posted on the BCFRT website. The new 
trust was essentially a rollover of the original BCFRT, but with slightly expanded 
beneficiaries and no fixed termination date. Benefidaries were still limited to forest workers 
and replaceable contractors, but it also allowed for mitigation to be made available to forest 
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730 Walker's Hook Road 
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workers and replaceable contractors that might be negatively affected by other Provincial 
Government land use decisions that limit logging. 

As of the end 0[2011 all the workers and contractors had received the initial mitigation for 
which they were eligible based on the contractor and worker mitigation guidelines. 
However, there were outstanding issues with respect to income taxes assessed to contractors 
that had received mitigation payments from the BCFRT and the BCFRT II. For purposes of 
the report I will refer to both the original BCFRT and the BCFRT II as the BCFRT. 

Contractor Income Tax Liability 

There has been uncertainty about the liability for income taxes payable on mitigation amounts 
received by replaceable contractors from the BCFRT. The position of the four logging 
contractor associations in BC is that the amounts should have been received tax free , either 
because they were a windfall payment, or because they were amounts received from a personal 
trust. Others took the position that the amounts received as a result of the loss of some or all of a 
replaceable contract should be treated as a capital gain. The Canada Revenue Agency (CRA) 
took the position that all such amounts were to be taxed as income. 

The BCFRT, the Loggers for Fair Taxation, the Minister of Forests, Lands and Natural Resource 
Operations, and the Premier of Be, worked on this problem for approximately four years. As a 
result, the Province ofBC and the Advisory Board of the BCFRT agreed to increase the 
contractor mitigation payments received by replaceable contractors by an amount equal to the 
income taxes actually paid or payable on the amounts previously disbursed. In order to facilitate 
that payment, the three previous BCFRT accounts were rolled into one new Contractor 
Mitigation Account early in 2012. 

During the last quarter of 20 II letters were sent out to all contractors that received Contractor 
Mitigation funds from the BCFRT. They were invited to apply for extra mitigation in the event 
that they had paid or been assessed and not yet paid taxes on the amount(s) received. 202 
contractors (approximately 76%) responded. Of those, 8 declined to proceed because they had 
no taxable income in the year(s) they received BCFRT Contractor mitigation amounts. The 
other 24% are deemed to have accepted the payments as received and will not be considered for 
a refund of any taxes paid on the contractor mitigation amounts received. In most cases it is 
likely they were not taxable in the year of receipt of those funds, and would therefore not have 
received a refund in any case. 

To date the Canada Revenue Agency (CRA) has processed and made detenninations of the 
incremental income tax impact of the receipt of Contractor Mitigation Funds for 190 of the 194 
contractors that responded and wanted to proceed with a detennination of their eligibility for a 
refund. The eRA is in the process of detennining how much tax was assessed on the amounts 
received for the 4 remaining contractors that applied. In addition, 6 of the contractors that 
received detennination letters have disputed the amount of incremental tax the eRA has 
detennined they paid, or were assessed but have not yet paid, as a result of mitigation amounts 
received from the BCFRT. The eRA is reviewing those files. 

2 FNR-2013-00252 
Page 3



, . o o 

The most recent information I have from the eRA is that the balance of the income tax refund 
determinations will be forthcoming in the second quarter 0[2013. 

Another part of the negotiated arrangement called for Federal and Provincial Orders in Council 
to deem income tax refund amounts received from the BCFRT to be tax free, and to deem that 
there will be a remission on interest and penalties on previously unpaid taxes related to the 
original contractor mitigation amounts. The required provincial Order in Council was filed on 
November 7, 2012. The matching required Federal Order in Council was filed on January 16, 
2013. As a result, the BCFRT was able to start making disbursements in the first quarter of 2013 

Account Balances as at March 31, 2013 

Account Balances 
2011 Contractor Mitigation Account 
Administration Account 
Contractor Mitigation Account 
Forest Worker Mitigation Account 

Total market value of BCFRT accounts 

Distributions to Beneficiaries to date 
Contractor Mitigation 
Contractor Income Tax Refunds 
Forest Worker Mitigation 
Transferred to the Coast Sustainability Trust 

Total Distributions to Beneficiaries 

Total available funds plus distributions 

Administration Account 

$6,204,138 
o 
o 
Q 

$6.204,138 

$70,748,591 
$1,438,127 

$43,079.279 
$2,767,714 

$118,033,711 

$124,237,849 

When the BCFRT was created, $5,000,000 was allocated to administration. Most of the 
administration expenses of the BCFRT were covered by the interest earned on the 
Administration Account balance, so the initial principal was reduced by approximately 
$560,000. The Administration Account balance of approximately $4,440.000 was 
transferred to the new 2011 Contractor Income Tax Relief Account in January 2012. 

Contractor Mitigation Account 

The BCFR T provided contractor mitigation related to 317 affected contracts to 267 different 
contractors for a total cost to the BCFRT of $70,748,591. All replaceable contractors that 
were affected by the implementation of the FRA received the full mitigation for which they 
were eligible under the Contractor Mitigation Guidelines. The balance of approximately 
$744,000 in the Contractor Mitigation Account was i:ransferred to the new 2011 Contractor 
Mitigation Account in January 2012. 
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Forest Worker Mitigation Account 

The BCFRT provided funding for the severance of 848 workers negatively affected by the 
FRA, for a total cost to the BCFRT of $43,079,279. All employees known to have heen 
affected by the FRA received their BCFRT supported severance. The balance of 
approximately $2,525,000 in the Forest Worker Mitigation Account was transferred to the 
new 2011 Contractor Mitigation Account in January 2012. 

Mitigation of the Negative Impacts of Ecosystem Based Management on Haida Gwaii. 

During a February 2011 BCFRT Advisory Board meeting it was agreed that the BCFRT 
would cost share with the Coast Sustainability Trust (CST) to provide mitigation to workers 
and replaceable contractors that were impacted by the implementation of Ecosystem Based 
Management (EBM) on Haida Gwaii. The fonnulas used to detennine the amount of 
mitigation were the same as used in the earlier BCFRT mitigation payments. Payments have 
heen made through the CST, with the BCFRT providing half the required funds. 

As of March 31, 2013, $2,767,714 has heen transferred to the CST to provide matching funds 
for worker and contractor mitigation. Also as of March 31,2013, a1135 affected workers and 
10 of 11 affected contractors have received all their mitigation amounts. 

Adequacy of Funds 

The final cost of making contractors whole for income taxes assessed and paid or assessed 
and still not paid on the contractor mitigation amounts they received is still not known. The 
best estimate at this time is approximately $9.0 million. The agreement with the province is 
that all existing funds in the BCFRT accounts will be first applied to compensate the 
contractors for taxes paid or payable. Once the BCFRT funds are depleted, the province will 
replenish the BCFRT as required to meet the additional obligations to the contractors and the 
administration costs of the Trust. The best estimate at this time is that the province will be 
asked to provide an additional $1.5 Million to the BCFRT to allow it to meet this obligation. 

Looking Ahead 

The second quarter 0[2013 will likely include the following activity: 

I. The Trustee will continue to work with the eRA on the final 10 outstanding 
contractors to detennine whether a tax refund or payment of taxes on their behalf by 
the BCFRT is forthcoming. 

2. Where agreement is achieved, the trustee will enter into funding agreements with the 
relevant contractors and either pay them directly or, at their direction, pay the amount 
owing directly to the CRA or some combination of the above. 

Eric van Soeren, Trustee 
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Be Forestry Revitalization Trust 

January 15,2013 

Doug Konkin 
Deputy Minister of Forests Lands and Natural Resource Operation 
Ministry of Forests Lands and Natural Resource Operations 
3" Floor, 1520 Blanshard Street 
P.O. Box 9352 Stn Prov Govt 
Victoria, Be V8W 9MI 

Dear Doug Konkin: 

200- £O/C;UD5F 

(6LF~\) 

OFFICE OFTHE 
DEPUTY MINISTER 

JAN 1 7 2013 
INISTRYQf 
SOURCE OPERATIONS 

Re: The Be Forestry Revitalization Tr sf - 2012 Fourth Quarter Report 

Enclosed for your information is a copy of1 e Be Forestry Revitalization Trust's 2012 Fourth 
Quarter Report. 

Thank you for your continued support d involvement in the Trust to date. Please feel free to 
contact me if you would like to disc s anything in the report, or The Be Forestry Revitalization 
Trust in general. 

Eric van Soeren 
Trustee 

encl. 

Eric van Soeren, Trustee 
730 Walker's Hook Road 
Salt Spring Island, Be V8K INS 
www.bcfit.com 

Phone: 250-537-l533 
Cell: 
Fax: 250-537-1534 

Email: eric@.lvansoeren.net 
FNR-2013-00252 
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Be Forestry Revitalization Trust 

Report of the Trustee as of December 31, 2012 

General 

In June 2003 the province of British Columbia established the Be Forestry Rev~talization 
Trust CBCFRT) and funded it with $75,000,000. The mandate of the BCFRT was to provide 
mitigation to forest workers and replaceable contractors that were negatively impacted by 
timber reallocations resulting from the Forestry Revitalization Act (FRA). 

In April 2004 the province appointed Eric van Soeren as Trustee. Shortly after \hat he 
appointed a seven member Advisory Board, as required by the Trust Deed. That Board 
developed draft Forest Worker Mitigation Guidelines and Contractor Mitigation Guidelines. 

Utilizing the best estimates of industry. seniority estimates obtained from the IW A pension 
plan, seniority estimates obtained from contractor industry associations. and the proposed 
guidelines, the Trustee detennined that the BCFRT likely required approximate?, 
$50,000,000 more than what was available in the BCFRT accounts, plus what tlje BCFRT 
was likely to earn in interest while holding mitigation funds in trust. 

The Trustee and the Advisory Board approached the province and received a corrnitment for 
the additional funds, so the BCFRT Advisory Board finalized the Contractor Mitigation 
Guidelines and the Forest Worker Mitigation Guidelines. The Guidelines, as w~1I as 
extensive supporting documentation, are posted on the BCFRT website at www.bcfrt.com. 

Roll over of the BCFRT 

The original BCFRT was slated to tenninate effective June 30, 2008. However, for a variety 
of reasons it was not possible to mitigate all the eligiole beneficiaries of the BC~RT by then. 
Further, estimates at that time suggested that even once all the existing benefici~es received 
mitigation, there would still be funds left in the BCFRT. Therefore, it was agre~d by the 
Trustee. the Province and the Advisory Board that the BCFRT should be extend~d. the group 
of potential beneficiaries be expanded, and the Trustee be given limited discretit' n to deem 
that individuals who would not otherwise he eligible heneficiaries of the BCFR he included. 
The Minister of Forests and Range and the Trustee signed a new Declaration of I rust, and all 
assets and obligations of the BCFRT were assumed by the new BCFRT II. A cqpy of the 
Declaration of Trust that created the BCFRT II is posted on the BCFRT website~ The new 
trust was essentially a rollover of the original BCFRT, but with slightly expanded 
beneficiaries and no fixed tennination date. Beneficiaries were still limited to forest workers 
and replaceable contractors, but it also allowed for mitigation to be made available to forest 

i 
Eric van Soeren, Trustee 
730 Walker's Hook Road 
Salt Spring Island, B.C. V8K IN5 
www.bcfrt.com 

i Phone: 250·537·1533 
Cell: 
Fax: 250-537-1534 

Email: eric(a:lvansoeren.net 
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workers and replaceable contractors that might be negatively affected by other Provincial 
Government land use decisions that limit logging. 

As of the end of2011 all the workers and contractors had received the initial mitigation for 
which they were eligible based on the contractor and worker mitigation guidelines. 
However, there were outstanding issues with respect to income taxes assessed to contractors 
that had received mitigation payments from the BCFRT. 

Contractor Income Tax Liability 

There has been Wlcertainty about the liability for income taxes payable on mitigation amounts 
received by replaceable contractors from the BCFRT. The position of the four logging 
contractor associations in Be is that the amounts should have been received tax free, either 
because they were a windfall payment, or because they were amounts received from a personal 
trust. Others took the position that the amounts received as a result of the loss of some or all of a 
replaceable contract should be treated as a capital gain. The Canada Revenue Agency (CRA) 
took the position that all such amounts were to be taxed as income. 

The BCFRT, the Loggers for Fair Taxation, the Minister of Forests, Lands and Natural Resource 
Operations, and the Premier of BC. worked on this problem for approximately four years. As a 
result, the Province ofBC and the Advisory Board oftbe BCFRT have agreed to increase the 
contractor mitigation payments received by replaceable contractors by an amount equal to the 
income taxes actually paid or payable on the amounts previously disbursed. In order to facilitate 
that payment, the three previous BCFRT accounts were rolled into one new Contractor 
Mitigation Account early in 2012. 

During the last quarter of 20 11 letters were sent out to all contractors that received Contractor 
Mitigation funds from the BCFRT or the BCFRT II. Those letters invited the contractors to 
apply for extra mitigation in the event that they had paid taxes on the previous amount(s) 
received. To date 202 contractors (approximately 76%) have responded. Of those, 8 declined to 
proceed because they had no taxable income in the year(s) they received BCFRT Contractor 
mitigation amounts. The other 24% are deemed to have accepted the payments as received and 
will not be considered for a refund of any taxes paid on the contractor mitigation amounts 
received. In most cases it is likely they were not taxable in the year of receipt of those funds, and 
would therefore not have received a refund in any case. 

To date the Canada Revenue Agency (CRA) has processed and made determinations of the 
incremental income tax impact of the receipt of Contractor Mitigation Funds for 174 of the 194 
contractors that responded and wanted to proceed with a detennination of their eligibility for a 
refund. The CRA is in the process of determining how much tax was assessed on the amounts 
received for the balance of the contractors that applied. 

The most recent information I have from the eRA is that the balance of the income tax refund 
determinations will be forthcoming in the first quarter of 20 13. 
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Another part of the negotiated arrangement called for Federal and Provincial Orders in Council 
to deem income tax refund amounts received from the BCFRT to be tax free, and to deem that 
there will be a remission on interest and penalties on previously unpaid taxes related to the 
original contractor mitigation amounts. The required provincial Order in Council was filed on 
November 7, 2012. The matching required Federal Order in Council is expected to be filed on 
January 16,2013. If that happens, the BCFRT will be able to start making disbursements in the 
first quarter of 20 13 

Account Balances as at December 31, 2012 

Account Balances 
2011 Contractor Mitigation Account 
Administration Account 
Contractor Mitigation Account 
Forest Worker Mitigation Account 

Total market value of BCFRT accounts 

Distributions to Beneficiaries to date 
Contractor Mitigation 
Contractor Income Tax Refunds 
Forest Worker Mitigation 
Transferred to the Coast Sustainability Trust 

Total Distributions to Beneficiaries 

Total available funds plus distributions 

Administration Account 

$7,699,399 
o 
o 
Q 

$7,699,399 

$70,748,591 
$0 

$43,079,279 
$2,767,714 

$116,595,584 

$124,294,983 

When the BCFRT was created. $5.000,000 was allocated to administration. To date. most of 
the administration expenses of the BCFRT were covered by the interest earned on the 
Administration Account balance. so the initial principal was reduced by approximately 
$560,000. The Administration Account balance of approximately $4,440,000 was 
transferred to the new 2011 Contractor Income Tax Relief Account in January 2012. 

Contractor Mitigation Account 

The BCFRT has provided contractor mitigation related to 317 affected contracts to 267 
different contractors for a total cost to the BCFRT of$70,748,59l. All replaceable 
contractors that were affected by the implementation of the FRA have now received the full 
mitigation for which they were eligible under the Contractor Mitigation Guidelines. The 
balance of approximately $744.000 in the Contractor Mitigation Account was transferred to 
the new 2011 Contractor Mitigation Account in January 2012. 
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Forest Worker Mitigation Account 

The BCFRT has provided funding for the severance of 848 workers negatively affected by 
the FRA, for a total cost to the BCFRT of$43,079,279. All employees known to have been 
affected by the FRA have now received their BCFRT supported severance. The balance of 
approximately $2,525,000 in the Forest Worker Mitigation Account was transferred to the 
new 2011 Contractor Mitigation Account in January 2012. 

Mitigation of the Negative Impacts of Ecosystem Based Management on Haida Gwaii. 

During a February 2011 BCFRT Advisory Board meeting it was agreed that the BCFRT 
would cost share with the Coast Sustainability Trust (CSn to provide mitigation to workers 
and replaceable contractors that were impacted by the implementation of Ecosystem Based 
Management (EBM) on Haida Gwaii. The formulas used to determine the amount of 
mitigation were he the same as used in the earlier BCFRT mitigation payments. Payments 
have been made through the CST, with the BCFRT providing half the required funds. 

As of December 31, 2012, $2,767,714 has been transferred to the CSTto provide matching 
funds for worker and contractor mitigation. Also as of December 31, 2012, all 35 affected 
workers and 10 of 11 affected contractors have received all their mitigation amounts. 

Adequacy of Funds 

The final cost of making contractors whole for income taxes assessed on the contractor 
mitigation amounts they received is still not known. The best estimate at this time is 
approximately $9.1 to $9.6 million. The agreement with the province is that all existing 
funds in the BCFR T accounts will be first applied to compensate the contractors for taxes 
paid or payable. Once the BCFRT funds are depleted. the province will replenish the 
BCFR T as required to meet the additional obligations to the contractors and the 
administration costs of the Trust. 

Looking Ahead 

The first quarter of2013 will likely include the following activity: 

1. The Trustee will continue to work with the CRA to detennine whether or not the final 
20 contractors that have not yet been processed have income taxes paid or payable 
related to the contractor mitigation amounts, and if so, how much. 

2. Where agreement is achieved on the income taxes to be reimbursed, the trustee will 
enter into funding agreements with the relevant contractors and either pay them 
directly or, at their direction, pay the amount owing directly to the eRA or some 
combination of the above. 

Eric van Soeren, Trustee 
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The Coast Sustainability Trust II 
Eric van Soeren, Trustee 

Phone: 250-537-1533 
Cell: 
Fax: 250-537-1534 
Email: eric@vansoeren.net 730 Walker's Hook Road 

Salt Spring Island, B.c. V8K I 

July 15, 2012 CUff: _.-!.~~;.!..P-!k. ___ _ 

Honourable Steve Thomson JUU 02612 

Minister of Forests, Lands and Natural Resource ~~:~;:~~IMiO"," Rei'"",," 
Ministry afForests, Lands and Natural Resource U O DM o ADM 
P,O, Box 9049 Stn Prov Govt 0 I f & F,'I. 0 Ph",. Call 
Victoria, BC, V8W 9E2 

o Reply Oirect no 

Honourable Steve Thomson: 

Re: The Coast Sustainability Trust II (CST II) - 2012 Second Quarter Report 

Enclosed for your information is a copy of the CST II - 2012 Second Quarter Report. 

Thank you for your continued support and involvement in the CST II. Please feel free to contact 
me if you would like to discuss anything in the report, or the CST II in general. 

Yours truly, 

Eric van SaereD 
Trustee 

ene!. 
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OThe Coast Sustain ability Qst II 

Report of the Trustee as of June 30, 2012 

General 

The Province of British Columbia created the Coast Sustainability Trust (CST) in 2002 to mitigate the 
negative effects on workers, contractors and communities, including First Nations of: 

1. provincial government decisions related to the Land and Resource Management Plan process; 
and 

2. the implementation of Ecosystem Based Management (EBM) 

in the Central Coast, North Coast, Queen Charlotte Islands! Haida Gwaii, Comox Strathcona Regional 
District and the Regional District of Mount Waddington. In June 2007 the CST was rolled over into 
the CST II. 

CST II Account Balances and Distributions 

As of June 30, 2012 the CST II balances and distributions were as follows: 

Account Balances 
Community Matching Fund Account 

EBM Adaptive Management Account 

EBM Matching Fund Account 

Landscape Reserve Planning Account 

Total available funds 

Distributions to beneficiaries to date 
Forest Worker Severance LRMP process 

EBM 

Contractor Mitigation LRMP process 

EBM 
Community Matching Funds 

EBM Adaptive Management Sub-trust 

EBM Land Use Planning Sub-trust 
ESAMDAP Sub-trust 

EBM Training 

EBMWG Sub-trust 

Landscape Reserve Planning Sub-trust 

Total Distributions to beneficiaries 

Total available funds plus distributions 

$4,251 ,463 
$689,73 1 

$1,465021 

$17,730 

$6,423,945. 

$2,933,857 

$2,155,976 

$10,749,764 

$2,878,258 
$16,334,036 

$1,241 

$209,068 

$132,486 

$45,595 

$1,633,855 

$735,000 

$37,809,136 

$44,233,081 

In addition to the original $35,000,000 given to the CST, five other sub-trusts of the CST and CST II 
were funded by the province. Further, the BC Forestry Revitalization Trust (BCFRD agreed to 
provide matching funds to allow for the mitigation of workers and contractors in Haida Gwaii that were 

I 
FNR-2013-00252 
Page 13



impacted by the imPlemeQon of EBM. Unused funds in the EB~d Use Planning and 
ESAMDAP sub-trusts were rolled into the EBMWG sub-trust, and unused funds in the EBMWG sub­
trust were rolled into the EBM Adaptive Management sub-trust. These five sub-trusts combined have 
received a total of$3,373,320 from the Province ofBC. During 2011 the BCFRT advanced 
$2,767,714 to the CST to help fund the EBM Matching Fund Account. Income to date from 
investments of the CST has exceeded total administration expenses by $3.1 million. There was no need 
to use any of the capital of the CST to fund its administration. lbis allows over $4.2 million more than 
originally planned to go to beneficiaries. 

Community Marching Fund Account 

When the CST Community Matching Fund started operations, the Advisory Board agreed that 
decisions related to specific initiatives in the communities should be made at the local level as opposed 
to by the broader Advisory Board. Five Regional Steering Committees (RSCs) were fonned. They are 
the Central Coast, Comox Strathcona, Mount Waddington, the North Coast, and Queen Charlotte 
IslandsIHaida Gwaii. Significant progress has been made to date with all five RSCs. 

Leverage of CST Community Matching Funds 

Each of the five RSCs had been allocated $4,100,000 to use towards developing Regional Economic 
Development Strategies and to support individual initiatives that fit those strategies, As of June 30, 
2012, funding has been and remains approved for a total of242 projects. An additional 31 projects 
were approved but were subsequently abandoned by the applicant for a variety of reasons and did not 
receive CST funding. The main reason for applicants abandoning their projects was an inability to 
source matching funds or other fonns of financing. 

The total commitment from the CST is $18,218,205, for projects worth a total of$171,463,757. On 
average a total of $9.41 goes into approved projects for each $1.00 of CST funds committed. 

Regional 
Steering 

Committee 

Central Coast 

ComOl( 
Strathcona 

Mount 
Waddington 

North Coast 

QCI Haida Gwaii 

Total: 

Status of Community Matching Fund funding requests 
As at JUDe 30 2012 

Amount 
Number 

Amount Rejected Amount 0' 
Total Requested by CST or still under Approved 

Project Size of CST abandoned consideration Projects 
by 

applicant by CST 

$21 ,549,771 $6,081,397 $3,029,832 $62.500 58 

$58 731,292 $14149419 $9.899.585 $0 47 

$113,249,880 $10502 162 $6 t33 732 $718431 5t 

$68,296,148 $9,562,498 $5.433.39~ $750,000 35 

$52,224,666 $7,518.026 $3.192,086 $225,940 5t 

$314,051,757 $47,813,501 $27,688,426 $1,756,871 I 242 

2 

Amount Amount 

approved dlaburved 

by CST by CST 

$2,989,265 $2.989,265 

$4,099,833 $3763.083 

$3.650 000 $3,332354 

$3,379107 $2968583 

$4,100,000 $3,280,751 

$18,218,205 $16,334,036 
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The preceding table shows the total value of the requests for assistance, and the progress in approving 
funding for each oftbe RSCs. As of June 30, 2012, Funding Agreements were being negotiated with 
proponents of the most recently approved projects. 

Types uf Projects Approved for Community Matching Fund Assistance 

In order to stimulate economic activity, each RSC considers and approves projects that fit into the 
strategic priorities of their area or, ifno formal strategic priorities have been developed, projects that 
clearly fall into the range of initiatives that likely will be included. The types of projects vary to some 
extent by the chosen strategic direction of each RSC. Following is a table that shows the type of 
projects approved for CST funding support: 

Types of projects approved for CST Funding 

Amount Nature of Approved Project 

Regional Total approved 
Steering Project Size by CST Agriculture Aquaculture Forestry Infra· Planning Tourism 

Committee & NTFPs & Drocessina structure 

Central 
Coast $14,260,826 $2,989,265 $30,834 $597,090 $130,854 $951,276 $525,366 $753,845 

Comox 
Strathcona $32,972,754 $4,099,833 $12,500 $1,137,000 $0 $824,000 $190,500 $1 ,935,833 

Mount 
Waddington $43,969,443 $3,650,000 $91,400 $292 ,111 $15,000 $1 ,457,976 $39,500 $1 ,754,012 

North Coast $34,331,409 $3,379,107 $0 $630,120 $50,000 $746,838 $24,750 $1 ,927,399 

QCI Haida 
Gwaii $45929325 $4,100 000 $200549 $274060 $162398 $1 806 016 $165232 $1 491 745 

Total: $171,463,757 $18,218,205 $335,283 $2,930,381 $358,252 $5,786,106 $945,348 $7,862,835 

Percent of Approved Amounts 1.8% 16.1% 2.0% 31 .8% 5.2% 43.2% 

On the North Coast and in the Mount Waddington, Comox and Strathcona Regional Districts the 
highest concentration of project approvals relate to the enhancement of tourism opportunities, with an 
emphasis on eco and cultural tourism. Examples are the construction or renovation of First Nations 
Big Houses and carving sheds, construction of First Nations owned tourist accommodation in Haida 
Gwaii, Kitamaat and Klemtu, support for tourism associations on the Central Coast, Northern 
Vancouver Island and Haida Gwaii, production of an Art Route brochure in Haida Gwaii, assistance to 
the Haida in the construction of a cultural center and a totem pole carving project, assistance to the 
Kwakiutl in a resort upgrade, assistance to the Bella Coola Valley Museum to help make it an even 
better attraction, funding for self directed walking tours in Campbell River and the Comox Valley, a 
mountain Sports Centre and an outdoor wilderness centre at Mount Washington, bear watching 
operations in Phillips Arm for the Kwiakah First Nation and in the Orford River Estuary for the 
Homa1co First Nation, and the promotion of movie film sites in northern Vancouver Island. In 
aggregate, 43.2% of CST funding has gone to assist tourism related projects. 
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Infrastructure improvemeOare another primary focus, and the biQ one in the Central Coast and 
Haida Gwaii. Some are aimed at enhancing tourism, such as adding an interpretive garden, salt water 
aquarium and movable webcams to the Visitor Information Centre in Queen Charlotte, creating or 
improving destination hiking or mountain biking trails, establishing a waterfront trail in Prince Rupert, 
construction of RV and campground facilities, construction of an all season all weather boat ramp in 
Campbell River, improving the dock at Holberg and upgrading the seaplane ramp in Seal Cove. Prince 
Rupert and improving cruise ship terminals, docks and harbours. Other projects enhance industrial or 
commercial opportunities, such as an industrial park in Port Alice, building a new town square in the 
Village of Queen Charlotte, or assistance in creating an Economic Development Zone on Quinsam 
Indian Reserve 12 in Campbell River. The Central Coast RSC voted to contribute $35,000 to a Central 
Coast Business Enterprise and Visitor Centre, $302,500 towards a project that provides Broadband 
Internet to the communities on the Central Coast, and $400,000 to help the Oweekeno acquire road 
building and maintenance equipment and barge facilities that would have been lost to them on the 
withdrawal of West em Forest Products from their area. Funding was also approved to assist in the 
installation of Broadband Internet in seven Northern Vancouver Island communities. In aggregate, 
31.8% orCST funding has gone to assist infrastructure related projects. 

A third focus is shellfish aquaculture and processing. The Comox Strathcona and Mount Waddington 
RSCs jointly elected to help fund a Shellfish Industry Investment Attraction Initiative promoted by the 
Vancouver Island Economic Developers Association (VIEDA). This was expanded to assist in 
attracting investment for shellfish processing. Support was given to the BC Shellfish Growers 
Association to help it with a business and market development initiative. The Homalco First Nation 
received a grant to assist it in developing a scallop fanning venture. The Central Coast, North Coast 
and Queen Charlotte Islands - Haida Gwaii RSCs agreed to support a combined North Coast - Skeena 
First Nations Stewardship Society and Turning Points Initiative Society application for assistance in 
developing a coast wide shellfish aquaculture initiative. The Central Coast RSC has also provided 
support to the Heiltsuk Nation Shellfish Co-operative. and the North Coast RSC has provided funding 
to assist in performing Biotoxin studies. On Haida Gwaii, the Skidegate and the Old Massett Haida 
have received funding to help in training shellfish fann workers at two pre-commercial pilot projects. 
The Comox Strathcona RSC has also agreed to help the Komox First Nation in its plans to build a new 
shellfish processing facility. In aggregate, 16.1 % of CS r funding has gone to assist aquaculture and 
processing related projects. 

The CST also supports the development of non timber torest products. In Northern Vancouver Island 
this has taken the form of the Wild Island Food Co-operative, while the Queen Charlotte IslandslHaida 
Gwaii RSC approved funding to a Co-op that initially pursued vacuum drying of chanterelle 
mushrooms. 

To date, CST funding has been fairly evenly split, with 51.7% of funding going to First Nations 
sponsored initiatives, and 48.3% going to civic community sponsored initiatives. In fact, a significant 
number of initiatives related to shellfish aquaculture. tourism, planning and broadband internet 
installations were joint initiatives between First Nations and civic communities. 

Employment Impact of CST Funding 

Following is a table which displays the employment impact of CST funding. The numbers are based 
on a combination of infonnation submitted in the original applications, quarterly reporting as the 
project proceeded, and results of a survey taken of recipients of CST funding after the projects were 
completed. Numbers shown are actual employment or contract positions and have not been reduced to 
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full time equivalents. SP~jObS were not included as, espeCiallQthe case of tourism, the 
provision of high speed internet and long range planning, they are very difficult to estimate. 

Full time Part time Full time Part time 
Jobs Jobs Jobs Jobs 

Regional Steering while while when when 
Committee Project Project Project Project 

Active Active Completed Completed 

Central Coast 26 133 244 263 

Comox Strathcona B4 246 202 207 

Mount Waddington 82 245 179 200 

North Coast 116 120 85 37 

Qel Haida Gwaii 204 229 103 112 

Total: 512 973 813 81' 

Ecosystem Based Management Matching Fund Account 

The purpose of the EBM Matching fund is to help mitigate the negative impacts of the implementation 
of Ecosystem Based Management on forest workers, contractors and both civic and First Nations 
Communities in the CST operating area. 

In a May 18.2010 meeting the Advisory Board of the BC Forestry Revitalization Trust (BCFRT) 
agreed to consider the possibility of providing matching funds to the CST EBM Matching Fund to 
allow workers and replaceable contractors on Haida Gwaii to receive mitigation for the negative 
impacts ofEBM on them. A letter was sent out to the three major licensees on Haida Gwaii asking 
them to submit proposals for worker and contractor mitigation. 

In a February 23, 2011 meeting of the BCFRT Advisory Board it was agreed that the BCFRT would 
provide the requested matching funds. The expected cost of that mitigation was $5.2 million, with half 
coming from the CST, and half from the BCFRT. That number was revised to $5,535,428. To date 10 
of 11 replaceable contractors and al135 of the employees that were identified as having been negatively 
impacted by the implementation ofEBM on Haida Gwaii have received mitigation, with total 
mitigation paid out to date of$5,034,234. The BCFRT has advanced $2,767,714 in matching funds to 
support the payments made to date and the estimate of the still outstanding payments. 

In a June 9, 201 1 CST II Advisory Board meeting it was agreed that up to $200,000 per RSC could be 
used to match with industry, First Nations andlor civic communities to provide training for people that 
want to enter the harvesting side of the forest industry. To date three training initiatives worth 
$175.267 have been approved, and funding of$45,595 has been disbursed to date, The Trustee has 
also had discussions with several other contractors, First Nations and licensees that plan to develop 
training programs specific to the needs of their operations, and the employees they have or intend to 
hire. 
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EBM Adaptive Management sub·trnst 

Effective March 31,2009 a new sutrtrust caned the EBM Adaptive Management sub trust was created. 
It was seeded with $500 from the EBMWG subtrust, and received a further $575,000 from the Ministry 
of Agriculture and Lands during the second quarter of 2009. Its goal is to invest in the Central Coast, 
North Coast and the Haida Gwaii plan areas by: 

I. funding the successful implementation and management of an Adaptive Management program 
that supports the goals of Ecosystem Based Management, 

2. funding projects in an Annual Work Plan approved by the Joint Land and Resource Forum, and 
3. investing in and supporting Adaptive Management, Ecosystem Based Management, and other 

specific uses as directed by the donor. 

To date, only minor meeting related and administrative expenses have been incurred by this sutrtrust. 
No disbursements were made during this quarter. 

Landscape Reserve Planning sub·trust 

Also effective March 31, 2009, a second new sub·trust called the Landscape Reserve Planning (LRP) 
sub-trust was established, It received a total of $750,000 from the Ministry of Agriculture and Lands in 
the second quarter of2009. Its purpose is to support the First Nations represented by the Nanwakolus 
Council, the Coastal First Nations, and the Tsimshian Stewardship Committee in Landscape Reserve 
Planning. To date disbursements of$735,OOO have been made to those groups out of this fund. 

Looking Ahead 

During the third quarter of2012, I expect the following activity in CST II: 

• Funding requests will continue to be received and evaluated by the three RSCs that still have 
uncommitted funds. 

• Funding Agreements for Community Matching Fund projects win continue to be signed and 
further disbursements will be made. 

• The EBM Adaptive Management sub-trust will become operational. 
• Further mitigation payments for replaceable contractors negatively impacted by the 

implementation ofEBM on Haida Gwaii will be made from the EBM Matching Fund. 
• Forest worker training programs will be developed by industry and First Nations and be funded 

by the CST. 

Eric van Soeren 

Trustee 
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BC Forestry Revitalization 

July 15,2012 

Doug Konkin 
Deputy Minister of Forests Lands and Natural Resource Operations 
Ministry of Forests Lands and Natural Resource Operations 
3" Floor, 1520 Blanshard Street 
P.O. Box 9525 Stn Prov Govt 
Victoria, BC V8W 9C3 

Dear Doug Konkin: 

OFRCE OF THE 
DEPUlY MINISTER 

JUl 24 2012 

Re: The BC Forestry Revitalization Trust - 2012 Second Quarter Report 

Enclosed for yOUT infonnation is a copy of The BC Forestry Revitalization Trust's 2012 Second 
Quarter Report. 

Thank. you for your continued support and involvement in the Trust to date. Please feel free to 
contact me if you would like to discuss anything in the report, or The Be Forestry Revitalization 
Trust in general. 

Eric van Soeren 
Trustee 

eocl. 

Eric van Soeren, Trustee 
730 Walker's Hook Road 
Salt Spring Island, Be V8K INS 
www.bcfrt.com 

Phone: 250-537-\533 
Cell:
Fax: 250·537·1534 

Email: eric(a)vansoeren.net 
FNR-2013-00252 
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Be Forestry Revitalization Trust 

Report ofthe Trustee as of June 30, 2012 

General 

In June 2003 the province of British Columbia established the BC Forestry Revitalization 
Trust (BCFRT) and funded it with $75,000,000. The mandate of the BCFRT was to provide 
mitigation to forest workers and replaceable contractors that were negatively impacted by 
timber reallocations resulting from the Forestry Revitalization Act (FRA). 

In April 2004 the province appointed Eric van Soeren as Trustee. Shortly after that he 
appointed a seven member Advisory Board. as required by the Trust Deed. That Board 
developed draft Forest Worker Mitigation Guidelines and Contractor Mitigation Guidelines. 

Utilizing the best estimates of industry. seniority estimates obtained from the IW A pension 
plan, seniority estimates obtained from contractor industry associations, and the proposed 
guidelines, the Trustee detennined that the BCFRT likely required approximately 
$50.000,000 more than what was available in the BCFRT accounts, plus what the BCFRT 
was likely to earn in interest while holding mitigation funds in trust. 

The Trustee and the Advisory Board approached the province and received a commitment for 
the additional funds, so the BCFRT Advisory Board finalized the Contractor Mitigation 
Guidelines and the Forest Worker Mitigation Guidelines. The Guidelines. as well as 
extensive supporting documentation. are posted on the BCFRT website at www.bcfrt.com. 

Roll over of tbe BCFRT 

The original BCFRT was slated to tenninate effective June 30, 2008. However, for a variety 
of reasons it was not possible to mitigate all the eligible beneficiaries of the SCFRT by then. 
Further, estimates at that time suggested that even once all the existing beneficiaries received 
mitigation, there would still be funds left in the BCFRT. Therefore, it was agreed by the 
Trustee, the Province and the Advisory Board that th~ BCFRT should be extended, the group 
of potential beneficiaries be expanded, and the Trustee be given limited discretion to deem 
that individuals who would not otherwise be eligible beneficiaries of the BCFRT be included. 
The Minister of Forests and Range and the Trustee signed a new Declaration of Trust, and all 
assets and obligations of the BCFRT were assumed by the new BCFRT II. A copy of the 
Declaration of Trust that created the BCFRT II is posted on the BCFRT website. The new 
trust was essentially a rollover of the original BCFRT, but with slightly expanded 
beneficiaries and no fixed tennination date. Beneficiaries were still limited to forest workers 
and replaceable contractors, but it also allowed for mitigation to be made available to forest 

Eric van Soeren, Trustee 
730 Walker's Hook Road 
Salt Spring Island, B.C. V8K IN5 
www.bcfrt.com 

Phone: 250·537·1533 
Cell: 
Fax: 250-537-1534 

Email: eric@lvansoeren.net 
FNR-2013-00252 
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workers and replaceable contractors that might be negatively affected by other Provincial 
Government land use decisions that limit logging. 

As of the end 0[2011 all the workers and contractors had received the initial mitigation for 
which they were eligible based on the contractor and worker mitigation guidelines. 
However, there were outstanding issues with respect to income taxes assessed to contractors 
that had received mitigation payments from the BCFRT. 

Contractor Income Tax Liability 

There has been uncertainty about the liability for income taxes payable on mitigation amounts 
received by replaceable contractors from the BCFRT. The position of the four logging 
contractor associations in Be is that the amounts should have been received tax free, either 
because they were a windfall payment, or because they were amounts received from a personal 
trust. Others took the position that the amounts received as a result of the loss of some or all of a 
replaceable contract should be treated as a capital gain. The Canada Revenue Agency (CRA) 
took the position that all such amounts were to be taxed as income. 

The BCFRT, the Loggers for Fair Taxation. the Minister of Forests, Lands and Natural Resource 
Operations, and the Premier ofBC, worked on this problem for approximately four years. As a 
result, the Province ofBC and the Advisory Board of the BCFRT have agreed to increase the 
contractor mitigation payments received by replaceable contractors by an amount equal to the 
income taxes actually paid or payable on the amounts previously disbursed. In order to facilitate 
that payment, the three previous BCFRT accounts were rolled into one new Contractor 
Mitigation Account early in 2012. 

During the last quarter of2011 letters were sent out to all contractors that received Contractor 
Mitigation funds from the BCFRT or the BCFRT TI. Those letters invited the contractors to 
apply for extra mitigation in the event that they had paid taxes on the previous amount(s) 
received. To date 202 contractors (approximately 76%) have responded. Of those, 8 declined to 
proceed because they had no taxable income in the year(s) they received BCFRT Contractor 
mitigation amounts. The other 24% are deemed to have accepted the payments as received and 
will not be considered for a refund of any taxes paid on the contractor mitigation amounts 
received. In most cases it is likely they were not taxable in the year of receipt of those funds, and 
would therefore not have received a refund in any case. 

To date the Canada Revenue Agency (CRA) has processed and made determinations of the 
incremental income tax impact of the receipt of Contractor Mitigation Funds for 108 of the 194 
contractors that responded and wanted to proceed with a determination of their eligibility for a 
refund. The CRA is in the process of determining how much tax was assessed on the amounts 
received for the balance of the contractors that applied. 

The most recent information I have from the CRA is that more determinations will be 
forthcoming early in the third quarter of2012, and that the required supporting Order in Council 
documentation will be available during the summer of2012. 
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Account Balances as at June 30, 2012 

Account Balances 
2011 Contractor Mitigation Account 
Administration ACCOWlt 
Contractor Mitigation Account 
Forest Worker Mitigation Account 

Total market value of BCFRT accounts 

Distributions to Beneficiaries to date 
Contractor Mitigation 
Forest Worker Mitigation 
Transferred to the Coast Sustainability Trust 

Total Distributions to Beneficiaries 

Total available funds plus distributions 

Administration Account 

$7,681 ,485 
o 
o 
Q 

$7,681,485 

$70,748,591 
$43,079,279 
$2,767,714 

$116,595,584 

$124,277,069 

When the BCFRT was created, $5,000,000 was allocated to administration. To date, most of 
the administration expenses of the BCFRT were covered by the interest eamed on the 
Administration Account balance, so the initial principal was reduced by approximately 
$560,000. The Administration Account balance of approximately $4,440,000 was 
transferred to the new 2011 Contractor Income Tax Relief Account in January 2012. 

Contractor Mitigation Account 

The BCFRT has provided contractor mitigation related to 317 affected contracts to 267 
different contractors for a total cost to the BCFRT of $70,748,591. All replaceable 
contractors that were affected by the implementation of the FRA have now received the full 
mitigation for which they were eligible under the Contractor Mitigation Guidelines. The 
balance of approximately $744,000 in the Contractor Mitigation Account was transferred to 
the new 2011 Contractor Mitigation Account in January 2012. 

Forest Worker Mitigation Account 

The BCFRT has provided funding for the severance of848 workers negatively affected by 
the FRA, for a total cost to the BCFRT of$43,079,279. All employees known to have been 
affected by the FRA have now received their BCFRT supported severance. The balance of 
approximately $2,525,000 in the Forest Worker Mitigation Account was transferred to the 
new 2011 Contractor Mitigation Account in January 2012. 
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Mitigation of the Negative Impacts of Ecosystem Based Management on Haida Gwaii. 

During a February 2011 BCFRT Advisory Board meeting it was agreed that the BCFRT 
would cost share with the Coast Sustainability Trust (CST) to provide mitigation to workers 
and replaceable contractors that are negatively impacted by the implementation of Ecosystem 
Based Management (EBM) on Haida Gwaii. The formulas used to determine the amount of 
mitigation would be the same as were used in the earlier BCFRT mitigation payments. The 
estimated cost of mitigation is $5,535,428. Payments will be made through the CST, with 
the BCFR T providing half the required funds. 

As of June 30, 2012, $2,767,714 has been transferred to the CST to provide matching funds 
for worker and contractor mitigation. Also as of June 30. 2012, all 35 affected workers and 
all but 1 of the II affected contractors have received their mitigation amounts. 

Adequacy of Funds 

The cost of making contractors whole for income taxes assessed on the contractor mitigation 
amounts they received is still not known. The best estimate at this time is approximately $11 
to $14 million. The agreement with the province is that all existing funds in the BCFR T 
accounts will be first applied to compensate the contractors for taxes paid or payable. Once 
the BCFRT funds are depleted, the province will replenish the BCFRT as required to meet 
the additional obligations to the contractors and the administration costs of the Trust. 

Looking Ahead 

The third quarter of2012 will likely include the following activity: 

1. The trustee will continue to work with the feaeral and provincial governments on the 
details of the repayment of taxes paid, and the mechanism for the extinguishments of 
penalties and interest on unpaid amounts. 

2. The Trustee will continue to work with the CRA to determine whether or not the 
contractors have income taxes paid or payable related to the contractor mitigation 
amounts, and if so, how much. 

3. Where agreement is achieved on the income taxes to be reimbursed, the trustee will 
enter into funding agreements with the relevant contractors and either pay them 
directly or, at their direction, pay the amount owing directly to the CRA or some 
combination of the above. 

Eric van Soeren 
Trustee 
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The Coast Sustain ability Trust II 
Eric van Soeren, Trustee 

730 Walker's Hook Road 
Salt Spring Island, B.C. V8K INS 

April 15,2011 

Honourable Steve Thomson 
Minister of Forests, Lands and Natural Resource Operations 
Ministry of Forests, Lands and Natural Resource Operations 
P.O. Box 9049 Stn Prov Govt 
Victoria, BC, V8W 9E2 

Honourable Steve Thomson: 

Phone: 250-537-1533 
Cell: 
Fax: 250-537-1534 
Emai l: eric@vansoeren.net 
www.coastsustainabilitytrust.com 

Re: The Coast Sustainability Trust II (CST II) - 2011 First Quarter Report 

Enclosed for your infonnation is a copy of the CST II - 2011 First Quarter Report. 

Thank you for your continued support and involvement in the CST II . Please feel free to contact 
me if you would like to discuss anything in the report, or the CST II in general. 

Yours truly, 
MINISTER OF FORESTS, lANDS 

& NATURAL RESOURCE OPERATIONS 

RECEIVED 
APi< Z I 2011 

OMinister CJOM 

[JADM 
[J~1y Direct 

.mI. FUe 
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o The Coast Sustainabiiity ~ust II 

Report of the Trustee as of March 31, 2011 

GeDeral 

The Province of British Columbia created the Coast Sustainability Trust (CST) in 2002 to mitigate the 
negative effects on workers, contractors and communities, including First Nations of: 

I. provincial government decisions related to the Land and Resource Management Plan process; 
and 

2. the implementation of Ecosystem Based Management (EBM) in the: 

1. Central Coast; 
2. North Coast; 
3. Queen Charlotte Islands! Haida Gwaii; 
4. Comox Strathcona Regional District; and 
5. Regional District of Mount Waddington. 

The CST was initially funded with $25,000,000 directed to mitigate forest workers and contractors (the 
Mitigation Fund), and $10,000,000 directed to communities and mitigation related to the 
implementation cfEBM (the Matching Fund). Any undisbursed funds in the Mitigation fund were 
required by the CST Trust Deed to be rolled into the Matching Fund as of March 31, 2005. At that 
time $12,258,170 was rolled into the Matching Fund. 

The Trust Deed that created the CST stipulated that it was to tenninate on March 31, 2007, and that the 
Trustee then had two years to determine what to do with any remaining funds in the CST. The original 
intention was to disburse all matching funds to eligible beneficiaries by that time, but on March 31 , 
2007, there was still over $20 million in the Matching Fund account. Roughly $6 million had been 
committed to specific projects, but over $14 million had not. 

In anticipation of the termination of the CST, all the Advisory Board and Regional Steering Committee 
members. as well as all First Nations, organized communities and Regional Districts that were potential 
beneficiaries of the CST, were asked to comment on the disposition of remaining CST funds. The 
unanimous response was that the CST should be rolled over into a new trust that mirrored the existing 
trust, with only a few suggestions for minor changes. 

The Advisory Board decided to roll the CST into the Coast Sustainability Trust II (CST Il). CST II 
assumed all the assets and liabilities of the CST, retained the governance structure of the CST, and kept 
the Matching Fund Guidelines. The main differences are that the Regional Steering Committees now 
have the ability to increase the CST II commitment to anyone project to as much as $250,000 instead 
of the previous $100,000 maximum and, in order to help small communities, the CST II may contribute 
up to 75% of the first $50,000 in a project's cost, instead of the previous 50/50 minimum requirement, 
for all community matching fund projects. 

Given that the CST Il assumed all the assets and liabilities of the CST, and given many partially funded 
Community Matching Fund projects were transferred to the CST II, activity reporting for the CST II 
Community Matching Fund includes CST activity: 
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OCST II Account Balances and Dist2ions 

As of March 31, 2011 the CST II balances and distributions were as follows: 

Account Balances 
Community Matching Fund Account 

EBM Adaptive Management Account 

EBM Matching Fund Account 

Landscape Reserve Planning Account 

Total available funds 

Distributions to beneficiaries to dafe 
Forest Worker Severance 

Contractor Mitigation 

Community Matching Funds 

EBM Adaptive Management Sub-trust 

EBM Land Use Planning Sub-trust 

ESAMDAP Sub-trust 

EBMWG Sub-trust 

Landscape Reserve Planning Sub-trust 

Total Distributions to beneficiaries 

Total available funds plus distributions 

$4,929,654 

$674,901 

$5,646,407 

$17,967 

$11 ,268,929 

$2,933,857 

$10,749,764 

$13,933,812 

$1 ,241 

$209,068 

$132,486 

$1,633,855 

$735,000 

$30,329,083 

$41,598,012 

[n addition to the original $35,000,000 given to the CST, five other sub-trusts of the CST and CST II 
were funded by the province. Unused funds in the EBM Land Use Planning and ESAMDAP sub-trusts 
were rolled into the EBMWG sub-trust, and unused funds in the EBMWG sub-trust were rolled into the 
EBM Adaptive Management sub-trust. The Landscape Reserve Planning sub-trust was also created 
effective March 31, 2009. These five sub-trusts combined have received a total of $3,373,320. Income 
to date from investments of the CST and now the CST II has exceeded total administration expenses by 
over $3.2 million. There was no need to use any of the capital of the CST to fund its administration. 
This allows over $4.3 million more than originally planned to go to beneficiaries. 

Community Matching Fund Account 

When the CST Community Matching Fund started operations; the Advisory Board agreed that 
decisions related to specific initiatives in the communities should be made at the local level as opposed 
to by the broader Advisory Board. Five Regional Steering Committees (RSCs) were formed. They are 
the Central Coast, Comox Strathcona, Mount Waddington, the North Coast, and Queen Charlotte 
IslandsIHaida Gwaii. Significant progress has been made to date with all five RSCs. 

Leverage of CST Community Matching Funds 

Before this quarter, the five RSCs had been allocated $3,700,000 to use towards developing Regional 
Economic Development Strategies and to support individual initiatives that fit those strategies. This 
quarter an additional $400,000 was allocated to each RSC for that purpose. Most of those funds will be 
transferred over from the EBM Matching Funds during the second quarter. As of the end of March 
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20 II, funding has been aQmains approved for a total of 226 pr2s. An additional 25 projects 
were approved hut were subsequently abandoned by the applicant for a variety of reasons and did not 
receive CST funding. The main reason for applicants abandoning their projects was an inability to 
source matching funds or other fonns of financing. 

The total commitment from the CST is $17,006,063, for projects worth a total of$126,343,087. 
Therefore, on average a total of$7.43 goes into approved projects for each $1.00 of CST funds 
committed. 

Following is a table that shows the total value of the requests for assistance, and the progress in 
approving funding for each of the RSCs. As of March 31 , 2011 , Funding Agreements were being 
negotiated with proponents of the most recently approved projects. 

Regional Steering 

Committee 

Central Coast 

Comox Strathcona 

Mount Waddington 

North Coast 

QCI Haida Gwaii 

Total: 

Status of Community Matching Fund funding requests 
As at March 31,2011 

Amount 
Number 

Amount Rejected Amount of 
Total Requested by CST or still under Approved 

Project Size of CST abandoned consideration Projects 
by 

applicant by CST 

$21 ,349,771 $5,956,397 $2,597,633 $540,000 57 

$58,212 ,046 $14,008,419 $8,766,491 $1 ,393,594 42 

$107,361 ,177 $9,583,517 $4,697,905 $1,179,726 49 

$45,934.660 $8,257,201 $4,344,730 $658,639 32 

$47,328,481 $6,314,436 $2,315,190 $470,000 48 

$280,186,135 $44,119,969 $22.721 .948 $4,241,959 226 

Amount 

approved 
by CST 

$2,818,764 

$3,698,333 

$3,705,887 

$3,253,833 

$3,529,246 

$17,006,063 

Types of Projects Approved for Community Matching Fund Assistance 

Amount 

disbursed 
by CST 

$2,346,765 

$3,519,396 

$2 .748,693 

$2,493,448 

$2,825,510 

$13.933.812 

In order to stimulate economic activity, each RSC considers and approves projects that fit into the 
strategic priorities of their area or, if no fonnal strategic priorities have been developed, projects that 
clearly fall into the range of initiatives that likely will be included. The types of projects vary to some 
extent by the chosen strategic direction of each RSC. Following is a table that shows the type of 
projects approved for CST funding support: 
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Qypes of projects approved for CST Q,diDg 

Amount Nature of Approved Project 

Regional Total approved 

Steering Project Size by CST Agriculture Aquaculture Forestry 1"""- Planning Tourism 

• Committee &NTFPs nrocessinn structure 

Central Coast $1 2,160,826 $2,818,764 $53,116 $352,090 $99,604 $920,026 $528,366 $865,562 

Comox Strathcona $28,908,243 53,698,333 $12.500 $1 ,037,000 $0 $542,500 $190,500 $1,915,833 

Mount Waddington $31 ,116,910 $3,705,887 $91 ,400 $354,188 $15,000 $1 ,562,411 $39,500 $1,643,387 

North CO<Ist $15,270,427 $3,253,833 $0 $630,120 $50,000 $741,261 $24.750 $1,807,702 

QCI Halda Gwaii $38,886,681 $3,529,246 $207,559 $366,030 $227,398 $1,451 016 $165,232 $1 ,112,011 

Total: $126,343,087 $17,006,063 $364,575 $2,739,428 $392,002 $5,217,214 $948,348 $7,344,496 

Percent of Annroved Amounts 2.1% 16.1% 2.3% 30.7% 5.6% 43.2% 

On the North Coast and in the Mount Waddington, Comox and Strathcona Regional Districts the 
highest concentration of project approvals relate to the enhancement of tourism opportunities, with an 
emphasis on eco and cultural tourism. Examples are the construction or renovation of First Nations 
Big Houses and carving sheds, support for tourism associations on the Central Coast, Northern 
Vancouver Island and Haida Gwaii, production ofan Art Route brochure in Haida Gwaii, assistance to 
the Hruda in the construction of a cultural center and a totem pole carving project, assistance to the 
Kwakiutl in a resort upgrade, assistance to the Bella Coola Valley Musewn to help make it an even 
better attraction, funding for self directed walking tours in Campbell River and the Comox Valley, a 
mountain Sports Centre and an outdoor wilderness centre at Mount Washington, bear watching 
operations in Phillips Ann for the Kwiakah First Nation ar.d in the Orford River Estuary for the 
Homalco First Nation, and the promotion of movie film sites in northern Vancouver Island. In 
aggregate, 43.2% of CST funding has gone to assist tourism related projects. 

Infrastructure improvements are another primary focus, and the biggest one in the Central Coast and 
Haida Gwaii. Some are aimed at enhancing tourism, such as adding an interpretive garden, salt water 
aquariwn and movable webcams to the Visitor Information Centre in Queen Charlotte, creating or 
improving destination hiking or mountain biking trails, establishing a waterfront trail in Prince Rupert, 
construction ofRV and campground facilities, construction ofan all season all weather boat ramp in 
Campbell River, improving the dock at Holberg and upgrading the seaplane ramp in Seal Cove, Prince 
Rupert and improving cruise ship tenninals. docks and harbours. Other projects enhance industrial or 
commercial opportunities, such as an industrial park in Port Alice, building a new town square in the 
Village of Queen Charlotte, or assistance in creating an Economic Development Zone on Quinsam 
Indian Reserve 12 in Campbell River. The Central Coast RSC voted to contribute $35,000 to a Central 
Coast Business Enterprise and Visitor Centre, $302,500 towards a project that provides Broadband 
Internet to the communities on the Central Coast, and $400,000 to help the Oweekeno acquire road 
building and maintenance equipment and barge facilities that would have been lost to them on the 
withdrawal of Western Forest Products from their area. Funding was also approved to assist in the 
installation of Broadband Internet in seven Northern Vancouver Island communities. In aggregate, 
30.6% of CST funding has gone to assist infrastructure related projects. 
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A third focus is shellfish aquaculture and processing. The Comox Strathcona and Mount Waddington 
RSCs jointly elected to help fund a Shellfish Industry Investment Attraction Initiative promoted by the 
Vancouver Island Economic Developers Association (VIEDA). This was expanded to assist in 
attracting investment for shellfish processing. Support was given to the Be Shellfish Growers 
Association to help it with a business and market development initiative. The Homalco First Nation 
received a grant to assist it in developing a scallop fanning venture. The Central Coast, North Coast 
and Queen Charlotte Islands - Haida Gwaii RSCs agreed to support a combined North Coast - Skeena 
First Nations Stewardship Society and Turning Points Initiative Society application for assistance in 
developing a coast wide shellfish aquaculture initiative. The Central Coast RSC has also provided 
support to the Heiltsuk Nation Shellfish Co-operative, and the North Coast RSC has provided funding 
to assist in performing Biotoxin studies. On Haida Gwaii, the Skidegate and the Old Massett Haida 
have received funding to help in training shellfish farm workers at two pre-commercial pilot projects. 
In aggregate, 16.4% of CST funding has gone to assist aquaculture and processing related projects. 

The CST also supports the development of non timber forest products. In Northern Vancouver Island 
this has taken the form of the Wild Island Food Co-operative, while the Queen Charlotte IslandsIHaida 
Gwaii RSC approved funding to a Co-op that will initially pursued vacuum drying of chanterelle 
mushrooms, and is now branching into other edible products. 

To date, CST funding has been fairly evenly split, with 52.2% of funding going to First Nations 
sponsored initiatives, and 47.8% going to civic community sponsored initiatives. In fact, a significant 
number of initiatives related to shellfish aquaculture, tourism, plarming and broadband internet 
installations were joint initiatives between First Nations and civic communities. 

Employment Impact of CST Funding 

Following is a table which displays the employment impact of CST funding. The numbers are based 
on a combination of information submitted in the original applications, quarterly reporting as the 
project proceeded, and results of a survey taken of recipients of CST funding after the projects were 
completed. Numbers shown are actual employment or contract positions and have not been reduced to 
full time equivalents. Spin off jobs were not included as, especially in the case of tourism, the 
provision of high speed internet and long range planning, they are very difficult to estimate. 

Full time Part time Full time Part time 
Jobs Jobs Jobs Jobs 

Regional Steering while while when when 
Committee Project Project Project Project 

Active Active Completed Completed 

Central Coast 26 127 184 2t3 

Comox Strathcona 83 222 202 206 

Mount Waddinnton 69 223 176 t89 

North Coast 93 107 75 31 

QCI Haida Gwaii 163 219 84 94 

Total: 454 .9. 721 733 
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Ecosystem Based Management Matching Fund Account 

Upon the roll-over of funds from the CST to the CST II, the Advisory Board directed that $5,000,000 
within the CST Matching Fund Account remain segregated from the Community Matching Fund 
Account, so a separate account named the EBM Matching Fund was established. The purpose of the 
EBM Matching fund is to help mitigate the negative impacts of the implementation of Ecosystem 
Based Management on the forest workers, contractors and both civic and First Nations Communities in 
the CST operating area. This account has heen donnant since the roll-over and the only activity has 
been growth through interest on the invested funds. As of March 31 , 2011 the EBM Matching Fund 
Account had a value 0[$5.646 million. 

Because EBM was not projected to he fully implemented until March 31, 2009, none of those funds 
could be disbursed before then. In the December 2, 2008 CST Advisory Board meeting, a decision was 
made to not release those funds until at least June 2009, as it was felt by the Board that the implications 
of the implementation ofEBM would be better understood later in 2009. Since that time the CST 
Trustee has been working with Ministry of Forests, Lands and Natural Resource Operations staff to try 
to detennine the projected impact of the implementation ofEBM on workers and contractors so that an 
allocation of available funds can be made between workers, contractors and communities. In a May 
18,2010 meeting the Advisory Board of the BC Forestry Revitalization Trust (BCFRT) agreed to 
consider the possibility of providing matching funds to the EBM Matching Fund to allow workers and 
contractors on Haida Gwaii to receive mitigation for the negative impacts ofEBM on them. A letter 
was sent out to the three major licensees on Haida Gwaii asking them to submit proposals for worker 
and contractor mitigation. 

In a meeting of the BCFRT Advisory Board on February 23, 20 11 it was agreed that the BCFRT would 
provide matching funds to the CST to allow for mitigation to the workers and contractors on Haida 
Gwaii that have heen negatively impacted by the implementation ofEBM. The expected cost of that 
mitigation is $5.2 million, with half coming from the CST, and half from the BCFRT. The CST 
Trustee is working with the contractors, licensees and workers on Haida Gwaii to finn up those 
numbers, and to try to make the mitigation payments in the second quarter of2011. 

Also during the February 23, 2011 Advisory Board meeting it was agreed that up to $200,000 per RSC 
could be used to match with industry, First Nations and/or civic communities to provide entry level 
training for people that want to enter the harvesting side of the forest industry. Details of the type of 
projects that might he considered will he developed in the second quarter of 20 II. 

EBM Adaptive Management sub-trust 

Effective March 31 , 2009 a new sub-trust called the EBM Adaptive Management sub trust was created. 
It was seeded with $500 from the EBMWG subtrust. and received a further $575,000 from the Ministry 
of Agriculture and Lands during the second quarterof2009. Its goal is to invest in the Centra) Coast, 
North Coast and the Haida Gwaii plan areas by: 

I. funding the successful implementation and management of an Adaptive Management program 
that supports the goals of Ecosystem Based Management, 

2. funding projects in an Annual Work Plan approved by the Joint Land and Resource Forum, and 
3. investing in and supporting Adaptive Management, Ecosystem Based Management, and other 

specific uses as directed by the donor. 

To date, only minor meeting related and administrative expenses have been incurred by this sub-trust. 
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Landscape Reserve Planning sub-trust 

Also effective March 31, 2009, a se~ond new sub-trust called the Landscape Reserve Planning (LRP) 
sub-trust was established. It received a total of $750,000 from the Ministry of Agriculture and Lands in 
the second quarter 0[2009. Its purpose is to support the First Nations represented by the Nanwakolus 
Council, the Coastal First Nations, and the Tsimshian Stewardship Committee in Landscape Reserve 
Planning. To date disbursements 0[$735,000 have been made to those groups out of this fund. 

Looking Ahead 

During the second quarter 0[2011, I expect the following activity in CST II: 

• Funding requests will continue to be received and evaluated by the five RSCs. 
• Funding Agreements for Community Matching Fund projects will continue to be signed in the 

five RSC areas, and further disbursements will be made. 
• The EBM Adaptive Management sub-trust will become operational. 
• Mitigation payments for worker and contractors negatively impacted by the implementation of 

EBM on Haida Gwaii will be made from the EBM Matching Fund. 
• Guidelines will be developed for the entry level forestry worker training matching fund. 

Eric van Soeren 

Trustee 
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BC Forestry Revitalization Trust 

April 15, 20 11 

Honourable Steve Thomson 
Minister of Forests Lands and Natural Resource Operations 
Ministry of Forests Lands and Natural Resource Operations 
P.O. Box 9049 Sin Prov Govt 
Victoria, Be 
V8W 9E2 

Dear Minister Thomson: 

MINISTER OF FORESTS lANDS 
• NATURAL RESOURCE OftliAOONS 

RECEIVED 
APR 2 1 2011 

OMinister QOM 

[JAOM 

[JReplyDnd 

.rnro File 

Re: The Be Forestry Revitalization Trust - 2011 First Quarter Report 

Enclosed for your infonnation is a copy of The Be Forestry Revitalization Trust's 20 11 First 
Quarter Report. 

Thank yOll for your continued support and involvement in the Trust to date. Please feel free to 
contact me if you would like to discuss anything in the report. or The Be Forestry Revitalization 
Trust in general. 

Eric van Soeren 
Trustee 

encl. 

Eric van $oeren, Trustee 
730 Walker's Hook Road 
Salt Spring Island, BC V8K IN5 
www.bcfrt.com 

Phone: 250·537· 1533 
Cell: 
Fax: 250·537·1 534 

Emai l: eric@.lvansoeren.net 
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BC Forestry Revitalization Trust 

Report of the Trustee as of March 31, 2011 

General 

In March 2003 the province of British Columbia established the Be Forestry Revitalization 
Trust (BCFRT) and funded it with $75,000,000. The mandate of the BCFRT was to provide 
mitigation to forest workers and replaceable contractors that are negatively impacted by 
timber reallocations resulting from the Forestry Revitalization Act (FRA). 

In April 2004 the province appointed Eric-van Soeren as Trustee. Shonly after that he 
appointed a seven member Advisory Board, as required by the Trust Deed. That Board 
developed draft Forest Worker Mitigation Guidelines and Contractor Mitigation Guidelines. 

Utilizing the best estimates of industry, seniority estimates obtained from the IWA pension 
plan, seniority estimates obtained from contractor industry associations, and the proposed 
guidelines, the Trustee determined that the BCFRT likely required approximately 
$50,000,000 more than what was available in the BCFRT accounts, plus what the BCFRT 
was likely to eam in interest while holding mitigation funds in trust. 

The Trustee and the Advisory Board approached the province and received a commitment for 
the additional funds, so the BCFRT Advisory Board finalized the Contractor Mitigation . 
Guidelines and the Forest Worker Mitigation Guidelines. The Guidelines, as well as 
extensive supporting documentation. are posted on the BCFRT website at www.bcfrt .com. 

Roll over of the BCFRT 

The original BCFRT was slated to terminate effective March 31 . 2008. However. for a 
variety of reasons it was not possible to mitigate all the eligible beneficiaries of the BCFRT 
by that time. Further, estimates at that time suggested that even once all the existing 
beneficiaries received mitigation, there would still be funds left in the BCFRT. Therefore, it 
was agreed by the Trustee, the Province and the Advisory Board members that the BCFRT 
should be extended. the group of potential beneficiaries be expanded, and the Trustee be 
given limited discretion to deem that individuals who would not otherwise be eligible 
beneficiaries of the BCFRT be included. The Minister of Forests and Range and the Trustee 
signed a new Declaration of Trost, and all assets and obligations of the BCFRT were 
assumed by the new BCFRT II. A copy of the Declaration of Trust that created the BCFRT 
II is posted on the BCFRT website. The new trust is essentially a rollover of the original 
BCFRT, but with slightly expanded beneficiaries and no fixed tennination date. It also 
allows for mitigation to be made available to workers and replaceable contractors that might 
be negatively affected by other Provincial Government land use decisions that limit logging. 

• 

Eric van Soeren, Trustee 
73 0 Walker's Hook Road 
Salt Spring Island, B.C. V8K IN5 
www.bcfrt.com 

Phone: 250-537·1533 
Cell: 
Fax: 250-537-1534 

Email: eric(ii}vansoeren.net 
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Account Balances as at March 31,2011 

Account Balances 
Administration Account 
Contractor Mitigation Account 
Forest Worker Mitigation Account 

Total market value of BCFRT accounts 

Distributions to Beneficiaries to date 
Contractor Mitigation 
Forest Worker Mitigation 

Total Distributions to Beneficiaries 

Total available funds plus distributions 

Administration Account 

$4,468,352 
$1,478,885 
$4,590,614 

$10,537,851 

$70,667,966 
$43,079,279 

$113,747,245 

$124,285,096 

When the BCFRT was created, $5,000,000 was allocated to administration. To date, most of 
the administration expenses of the BCFRT have been covered by the interest earned on the 
Administration Account balance, so the initial principal has been reduced by approximately 
$530,000. A significant portion of the Administration Account will be able to be transferred 
to one of the Mitigation Accounts at a later date, and on an as needed basis. 

Contractor Mitigation Account 

The principle used for contractor mitigation is that contractors who lost their replaceable 
contracts as a result of Forestry Revitalization Act (FRA) restructuring received mitigation 
that approximates what the contract might reasonably have been worth at the time it was 
reduced or eliminated. This was usually based on a per cubic metre value, but contracts that 
were based on some other measure were treated accordingly. A detailed description of the 
calculation that was used is contained in the Contractor Mitigation Guidelines. 

As of March 31, 2011, Forestry Revita1ization Proposals (FRPs) have been presented and 
accepted by the affected contractors, or the default condition of proportionate reduction has 
been imposed, for all the reallocated volwne in the Province. Also as of March 31 , 2011, 
$70,667,966 had been paid in contractor mitigation related to 317 affected contracts. No 
more contractor mitigation payments related to loss of vohune because of the FRA are 
expected, but as much as $150,000 in redundant equipment premium payments may still 
have to be made. 

Forest Worker Mitigation Account 

The principle used for forest worker mitigation was that workers who were severed by a 
Licensee or Replaceable Contractor because of FRA restructuring received severance from 
their ex-employer, and that severance was he funded by the BCFRT. The Advisory Board 
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felt it was fair that all employees who lost-their jobs as a result of FRA restructuring be 
treated the same. Because the Steelworkers' (previously IWA) contract mandates that 
employees affected by a pennanent logging camp closure receive severance of 1 0 regular 
days pay per year of service, plus 1 O/12ths of a regular day's pay per completed month of 
service, that standard was used. The detailed calculation and discussion appears in the Forest 
Worker Mitigation Guidelines, and can be found on the BCFRT website. 

The BCFRT has provided funding for the severance of848 workers, for a total cost to the 
BCFRT of$43,079,279. The average severance per employee was significantly higher than 
originally projected. It is $50,801 as opposed to an estimate of $39,828 because a 
disproportionate amount of the severed workers worked for licensees on the coast, and they 
tended to be crews with above average seniority. However, the number of severed 
employees, especially in the interior, was lower than projected. All workers known to have 
been affected by the Forestry Revitalization Act have now received their BCFRT supported 
severance. 

Adeq uaey of Funds 

During a February 2011 BCFRT Advisory Board meeting it was agreed that the BCFRT 
would cost share with the Coast Sustainability Trust (CST) to provide mitigation to workers 
and replaceable contractors that are negatively impacted by the implementation of Ecosystem 
Based Management (EBM) on Haida Gwaii. The fonnulas used to detennine the amount of 
mitigation would be the same as were used in the earlier BCFRT mitigation payments. The 
estimated cost of mitigation was $5.2 million, of which the BCFRT would pay half Work is 
ongoing with the licensees, contractors, Wlion and workers to detennine the actual amounts 
to be paid. Payments will be made through the CST, with the BCFRT providing half the 
required funds. 

In the above mentioned meeting it was also agreed that the BCFRT would work with the 
provincial and federal governments to cause any income taxes paid by replaceable 
contractors on mitigation payments for loss of contract volume or redundant equipment to be 
refunded to the contractors through the BCFRT. A verbal agreement on the above was 
reached between the federal and provincial govenunents, including an agreement that any 
taxes on those refund payments and any interest or penalties related to non payment of the 
original taxes was to be waived. Work on that initiative is ongoing, but finalizing the details 
has been delayed pending the upcoming federal election. 

In addition to the above, an unknown but likely significant number of contractors and 
workers are expected to be affected by the upcoming implementation of EBM on the Central 
Coast, North Coast and Haida Gwaii. Mitigation of those workers and contractors is a 
pennitted use of the BCFRT funds. 

It now appears that between the offer to assist with the mitigation of the current impacts of 
EBM on Haida Gwaii, the attempt to provide tax reIiefto the contractors, and mitigation to 
workers and contractors to be affected by future implementation ofEBM, there may be 
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insufficient funds remaining in the BCFRT. The Advisory Board now feels that the $10 
million that was held back in the original funding for the BCFRT will be required, and it will 
request its release. 

Looking Ahead 

The second quarter 0[2011 will likely include the following activity: 

1. The BCFRT Trustee will continueJo work with the Loggers for Fair Tax Treatment 
(LFFTT), and the provincial and the federal governments to try to finn up the verbal 
agreement to provide tax relief to the contractors who received BCFRT assistance. 

2. The Trustee will work with the workers, contractors and the union on Haida Gwaii to 
finalize mitigation payments related to the loss of contracts and employment because 
of the implementation of EBM 

3. The Trustee and Advisory Board will try to meet with the Minister of Forests, Lands 
and Natural Resource Operations to get a release of the $10,000,000 that was 
previously withheld from the BCFRT. 

Eric van Soeren 
Trustee . 
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Be Forestry Revitalization Trust 

April 15. 2012 

Doug Konkin 
Deputy Minister of Forests Lands and Natural Resource Operations 
Ministry of Forests Lands and Natural Resource Operations 
3"' Floor. 1520 Blanshard Street 
P.O. Box 9525 Stn Prov Govt 
Victoria. BC V8W 9C3 

Dear Doug Konkin: 

OffiCE oFTHE 
DEPUTY MINISTER 

APR 1 8 2012 
MINISTRY OF 

NATURAl RESOuRce OPERATIONS 

Re: The Be Forestry Revitalization Trust - 2012 First Quarter Report 

Enclosed for your infonnation is a copy of The Be Forestry Revitalization Trust's 2012 First 
Quarter Report. 

Thank you for your continued support and involvement in the Trust to date. Please feel free to 
contact me if you would like to discuss anything in the report, or The Be Forestry Revitalization 
Trust in general. 

Yours truly, 

L/i//~L 
Eric van Soeren 
Trustee 

encl. 

Eric van Soeren, Trustee 
730 Walker's Houk Road 
Salt Spring Island, Be V8K IN5 
www.bcfrt.com 

Phone: 250-537- 1533 
Cell:
Fax: 250-537- 1534 

Email: eric@}vansoeren.net 
FNR-2013-00252 
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Be Forestry Revitalization Trust 

Report of the Trustee as of March 31, 2012 

General 

In March 2003 the province of British Columbia established the Be Forestry Revitalization 
Trust (BCFRT) and funded it with $75,000,000. The mandate of the BCFRT was to provide 
mitigation to forest workers and replaceable contractors that were negatively impacted by 
timber reallocations resulting from the Forestry Revitalization Act (FRA). 

In April 2004 the province appointed Eric van Soeren as Trustee. Shortly after that he 
appointed a seven member Advisory Board. as required by the Trust Deed. That Board 
developed draft Forest Worker Mitigation Guidelines and Contractor Mitigation Guidelines. 

Utilizing the best estimates of industry, seniority estimates obtained from the lWA pension 
plan, seniority estimates obtained from contractor industry associations, and the proposed 
guidel ines, the Trustee dt::knnined that the BCFRT likely required approximately 
$50,000,000 more than what was available in the BCFRT accounts, plus what the BCFRT 
was likely to earn in interest while holding mitigation funds in trust. 

The Trustee and the Advisory Board approached the province and received a commitment fo r 
the additional funds, so the BCFRT Advisory Board finalized the Contractor Mitigation 
Guidelines and the Forest Worker Mitigation Guidelines. The Guidelines, as well as 
extensive supporting documentation, are posted on the BCFRT website at \\'\\'\\'.bcfrt.com. 

Roll over of the BCFRT 

The original BCFRT was slated to terminate effective March 31, 2008. However, for a 
variety of reasons it was not possible to mitigate all the eligible beneficiaries of the BCFRT 
by then. Further, estimates at that time suggested that even once all the existing beneficiaries 
received mitigation, there would still be funds left in the BCFRT. Therefore, it was agreed 
by the Trustee, the Province and the Advisory Board that the BCFRT should be extended, the 
group of potential beneficiaries be expanded, and the Trustee be given limited discretion to 
deem that individuals who would not otherwise be eligible beneficiaries of the BCFRT be 
included. The Minister of Forests and Range and the Trustee signed a new Declaration of 
Trust, and all assets and obligations of the BCFRT were assumed by the new DeFRT IT . A 
copy of the Declaration of Trust that created the BCFRT II is posted on the BCFRT website. 
The new trust was essentially a rollover of the original BCFRT, but with slightly expanded 
beneficiaries and no fixed termination date . Beneficiaries were still limited to forest workers 
and replaceable contractors, but it also allowed for mitigation to be made available to forest 

Eric van Soeren, Trustee 
730 Walker'S Hook Road 
Salt Spring Island, B.C. V8K IN5 
www.bcfu.com 

Phone: 250-537-1533 
Cell:
Fax: 250-537-1534 

Email: eric@}vansoeren.net 
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workers and replaceable contractors that might be negatively affected by other Provincial 
Government land use decisions that limit logging. 

As of the end 0[20 11 all the workers and contractors had received the initial mitigation for 
which they were eligible based on the contractor and worker mitigation guidelines. 
However, there were outstanding issues "lith respect to income taxes assessed to contractors 
that had received mitigation payments from the BCFRT. 

Contractor Income Tax Liability 

There has been uncertainty about the liability fo r income taxes payable on mitigation amounts 
received by replaceable contractors from the BCFRT. The position ofthe-four logging 
contractor associations in Be is that the amounts should have been received tax free, either 
because they were a windfall payment, or because they were amounts received from a personal 
trust. Others took the position that the amounts received as a result of the loss of some or all of a 
replaceable contract should be treated as a capital gain. The Canada Revenue Agency (CRA) 
took the position that all such amounts were to be taxed as income. 

The BCFRT, the Loggers for Fair Taxation, the Minister of Forests, Lands and Natural Resource 
Operations, and the Premier of BC, have been working on this problem for approximately four 
years. As a result, the Province of Be and the Advisory Board of the BCFRT have agreed to 
increase the contractor mitigation payments received by replaceable contractors by an amount 
equal to the income taxes paid or payable on the amounts previously disbursed. In order to 
faci li tate that payment, the three previous BCFRT accounts were rolled into one new Contractor 
Mitigation Account early in 2012. 

During the last quarter of 20 II letters were sent out to all contractors that received Contractor 
Mitigation funds from the BCFRT or the BCFRT II. Those letters invited the contractors to 
apply for extra mitigation in the event that they had paid taxes on the previous amount(s) 
received. To date 201 contractors (approximately 75%) have responded within the required time 
frame . The other 25% are deemed to have accepted the payments as received and will not be 
considered for a refund of any taxes paid on the contractor mitigation amounts received. In most 
cases it is likely they were not taxable in the year of receipt of those funds, and would therefore 
not have received a refund in any case. 

To date the Canada Revenue Agency has processed and made detenninations of the incremental 
income tax impact of the receipt of Contractor Mitigation Funds for 63 of the 201 contractors 
that responded. It is in the process of detennining how much tax was assessed on the amOlmts 
received for the balance of the contractors that applied for a tax refund. 

The most recent infonnation I have from the eRA is that more detenninations will be 
forthcoming early in the second quarter of 20 12, but the required supporting Order in Council 
documentation will not be available until the summer 0[ 2012. 
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Account Balances as at March 31, 2012 

Account Balances 
2011 Contractor Mitigation Account 
Administration Account 
Contractor Mitigation Account 
Forest Worker Mitigation Account 

Total market value of BCFRT accounts 

Distributions to Beoefidaries to date 
Contractor Mitigation 
Forest Worker Mitigation 
Transferred to the Coast Sustainability Trust 

Total Distributions to Beneficiaries 

Total available funds plus distributions 

Administration Account 

o 

$7,677,543 
o 
o 
Q 

$7,677,543 

$70,748,591 
$43,079,279 

$2,767,714 
$116,595,584 

$124,273,127 

When the BCFRT was created, $5,000,000 was allocated to administration. To date, most of 
the administration expenses of the BCFRT were covered by the interest earned on the 
Administration Account balance, so the initial principal was reduced by approximately 
$560,000. The Administration Account balance of approximately $4,440,000 was 
transferred to the new 2011 Contractor Income Tax Relief Account in January 2012. 

Contractor Mitigation Account 

The BCFRT has provided contractor mitigation related to 317 affected contracts to 267 
different contractors for a total cost to the BCFRT of $70, 748,591. All replaceable 
contractors that were affected by the implementation of the FRA have now received the full 
mitigation for which they were eligible under the Contractor Mitigation Guidelines. The 
balance of approximately $744,000 in the Contractor Mitigation Account was transferred to 
the new 2011 Contractor Mitigation Account in January 2012. 

Forest Worker Mitigation Account 

The BCFRT has provided funding for the severance of 848 workers negatively affected by 
the FRA, for a total cost to the BCFRT of$43,079,279. All employees known to have been 
affected by the FRA have now received their BCFRT supported severance. The balance of 
approximately $2,525,000 in the Forest Worker Mitigation Account was transferred to the 
new 2011 Contractor Mitigation Account in January 2012. 
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Mitigation of the Negative Impacts of Ecosystem Based Management on Haida Gwaii. 

During a February 2011 BCFRT Advisory Board meeting it was agreed that the BCFRT 
would cost share with the Coast Sustainability Trust (CST) to provide mitigation to workers 
and replaceable contractors that are negatively impacted by the implementation of Ecosystem 
Based Management (EBM) on Haida Gwaii. The formulas used to determine the amount of 
mitigation would be the same as were used in the earlier BCFRT mitigation payments. The 
estimated cost of mitigation is $5,535,428. Payments will be made through the CST, with 
the BCFRT providing half the required funds. 

As of March 3 1,2012, $2,767,714 has been transferred to the CST to provide matching funds 
for worker and contractor mitigation. Also as of March 31, 2012, all 35 affected workers and 
all but 1 of the 11 affected contractors have received their mitigation amounts. 

Adeq uacy of Funds 

The cost of making contractors whole for income taxes assessed on the contractor mitigation 
amounts they received is still not known. The best estimate at this time is approximately $13 
to $15 million. The agreement with the province is that all existing funds in the BCFRT 
accounts will be first applied to compensate the contractors for taxes paid or payable. Once 
the BCFRT funds are depleted, the province will replenish the BCFRT as required to meet 
the additional obligations to the contractors and the administration costs of the Trust. 

Looking Ahead 

The second quarter of2012 will likely include the following activity: 

1. The trustcc will continue to work with the fcderal and provincial governments on the 
details of the repayment of taxes paid, and the mechanism for the extinguishments of 
penalties and interest on unpaid amounts. 

2. The Trustee will continue to work with the CRA to determine whether or not the 
contractors have income taxes paid or payable related to the contractor mitigation 
amounts, and if so, how much. 

3. Where agreement is achieved on the income taxes to be reimbursed, the trustee will 
enter into funding agreements with the relevant contractors and either pay them 
directly or, at their direction, pay the amount owing directly to the CRA or some 
combination of the above. 

Eric van Soeren 
Trustee 
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Be Forestry Revitalization Trust 

-

Jaouary 15,2012 

Doug Konkin 
Deputy Minister of Forests Lands and Natural Resource Operations 
Ministry of Forests Lands and Natural Resource Operations 
3" Floor, 1520 Blanshard Street 
P.O. Box 9525 Sin Prov Govt 
Victoria, BC V8W 9C3 

Dear Doug Konkin: 

,/ 
./ 

,~ 

OFFICE OF THE 
DEPUTY MINISTER 

JAN 2 0 2012 
MINISTRY OF 

NATURAL RESOURCE OPERATIONS 

/' 
./ 

Re: The BC Forestry Revi~alizatioD Tru,st - 2011 Fourth Quarter Report 

Enclosed for your infonnation is a copy of The BC Forestry Revita1ization Trust's 2011 Fourth 
Quarter Report. ." 

Thank you for your continued support and involvement in the Trust to date. Please feel free to 
contact me if you would like to dtst uss anything in the report, or The Be Forestry Revitalization 
Trust in general. 

./ 
Yours truly, / / 

L/v~ /~ 
Eric van Soere 
Trustee 

encl. 

Eric van Soeren, Trustee 
730 Walker's Hook Road 
Salt Spring Island, Be V8K IN5 
www.bcfrt.com 

-

Phone: 250-537-1533 
Cell:
Fax: 250-537-1534 

Email: eric@!vansoeren.net 
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BC Forestry Revitalization Trust 

Report of the Trustee as of December 31, 2011 

General 

In March 2003 the province of British Colwnbia established the Be Forestry Revitalization 
Trust (BCFRT) and funded it with $75,000,000. The mandate of the BCFRT was to provide 
mitigation to forest workers and replaceable contractors that are negatively impacted by 
timber reallocations resulting from the Forestry Revitalization Act (FRA). 

In April 2004 the province appointed Eric van Soeren as Trustee. Shortly after that he 
appointed a seven member Advisory Board, as required by the Trust Deed. That Board 
developed draft Forest Worker Mitigation Guidelines and Contractor Mitigation Guidelines. 

Utilizing the best estimates of industry, seniority estimates obtained from the IW A pension 
plan, seniority estimates obtained from contractor industry associations, and the proposed 
guidelines, the Trustee determined that the BCFRT likely required approximately 
$50,000,000 more than what was available in the BCFRT acconnlS, plus what the BCFRT 
was likely to earn in interest while holding mitigation funds in trust. 

The Trustee and the Advisory Board approached the province and received a conunitment for 
the additional funds, so the BCFRT Advisory Board finalized the Contractor Mitigation 
Guidelines and the Forest Worker Mitigation Guidelines. The Guidelines, as well as 
extensive supporting documentation, are posted on the BCFRT website at www.bcfrt.com. -

Roll over of the BCFRT 

The original BCFRT was slated to tenninate effective March 31 , 2008. However, for a 
variety of reasons it was not possible to mitigate all the eligible beneficiaries oftbe BCFRT 
by that time. Further, estimates at that time suggested that even once all the existing 
beneficiaries received mitigation, there would still be funds left in the BCFRT. Therefore, it 
was agreed by the Trustee, the Province and the Advisory Board members that the BCFRT 
should be extended, the group of potential beneficiaries be expanded, and the Trustee be 
given limited discretion to deem that individuals who would not otherwise be eligible 
beneficiaries ofthe BCFRT be included. The Minister of Forests and Range and the Trustee 
signed a new Declaration of Trust, and all assets and obligations of the BCFRT were 
assumed by the new BCFRT II. A copy of the Declaration of Trust that created the BCFRT 
II is posted on the BCFRT website. The new trust was essentially a rollover of the original 
BCFRT, but with slightly expanded beneficiaries and no fixed termination date. 
Beneficiaries were still limited to ff7rest workers and replaceable contractors, but it also 
allowed for mitigation to be made available to forest workers and replaceable contmctors that 

Eric van Soeren, Trustee 
730 Walker's Hook Road 
Salt Spring Island, B.C. V8K IN5 
www.bcfrt.com 

Phone: 250-537-1533 
Cell:
Fax: 250-537-1534 

Email: eric@}vansoeren.net 
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might be negatively affected by other Provincial Government land use dec.isions that limit 
logging. 

Account Balances as at December 31, 2011 

Account Balances 
Administration Account 
Contractor Mitigation ACCOW1t 
Forest Worker Mitigation Account 

Total market value of BCFRT accounts 

Distributions to Beneficiaries to date 
Contractor Mitigation 
Forest Worker Mitigation 
Transferred to the Coast Sustainability Trust 

Total Distributions to Beneficiaries 

Total available funds plus distributions 

Administration Account 

$4,439,855 
$743,744 

$2,524,953 
$7,708,552 

$70,748,591 
$43,079,279 

$2,767,714 
$116,595,584 

$124,304,136 

When the BCFRT was created, $5,000,000 was allocated to administration. To date, most of 
the administration expenses of the BCFRT have been covered by the interest earned on the 
Administration Account balance, so the initial principal has been reduced by approximately 
$560,000. All of the Administration Account will be transferred to a new Contractor Income 
Tax Relief Account in January 2012. 

Contractor Mitigation Account 

As of December 31, 2011, $70,748,59\ had been paid in contractor mitigation related to 317 
affected contracts. All replaceable contractors that were affected by the implementation of 
the FRA have now received the full mitigation for which they were eligibl~ under the 
Contractor Mitigation Guidelines. 

Forest Worker MitigatioD AccouDt 

The BCFRT has provided funding wr the severance of848 workers negatively affected by 
the FRA, for a total cost to the BCFRT of$43,079,279. All employees known to have been 
affected by the FRA have now received their BCFRT supported severance. 

Mitigation of the Negative Impacts of Ecosystem Based Management on Haida Gwaii. 

During a February 2011 BCFRT Advisory Board meeting it was agreed that the BCFRT 
would cost share with the Coast Sustainability Trust (CST) to provide mitigation to workers 
and replaceable contractors that are negatively impacted by the implementation of Ecosystem 
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Based Management (EBM) on Haida Gwaii. The fonnulas used to detennine the amount of 
mitigation would be the same as were used in the earlier BCFRT mitigation payments. The 
estimated cost of mitigation is $5,535.428. Payments will be made through the CST, with 
the BCFRT providing half the required funds. 

As of December 31. 2011 , $2,767,714 has been transferred to the CST to provide matching 
funds for worker and contractor mitigation. Also as of December 31, 2011, all 35 affected 
workers and all but 1 of the 11 affected contractors have received their mitigation amounts. 

Contractor Income Tax Liability 

There has been uncertainty about the liability for income taxes payable on mitigation amounts 
received by replaceable contractors from the BCFRT. The position of the four logging 
contractor associations in Be is that the amounts should have heen received tax free, either -because they were a windfall payment, or because they were amounts received from a personal 
trust. Others took the position that the amounts received as a result of the loss of some or all ofa 
replaceable contract should be treated as a capital gain. The Canada Revenue Agency (CRA) 
took the position that all such amounts were to be taxed as income. 

The BCFRT, the Loggers for Fair Taxation, the Minister of Forests, Lands and Natural Resource 
Operations, and the Premier of BC, have been working on this problem for approximately four 
years. As a result, the Province ofBC and the Advisory Board of the BCFRT have agreed to 
increase the contractor mitigation payments received by replaceable contractors by an amount 
equal to the income taxes paid or payable on the amounts previously disbursed. 

During the last quarter of2011letters were sent out to all contractors that received Contractor 
Mitigation funds from the BCFRT or the BCFRT II. Those letters invited the contractors to 
apply for extra mitigation in the event that they had paid taxes on the previous amount(s) 
received. To date approximately 50% have responded, and the Canada Revenue Agency is in the 
process of detennining how much tax they were assessed on the amounts received. 

Adequacy of Funds 

The cost of making contractors whole for income taxes assessed on the contractor mitigation 
amounts they received is still not known. The best estimate at this time is approximately $15 
to $18 million. The agreement with the province is that all existing funds in the BCFR T 
accounts will be first applied to compensate the contractors for taxes paid or payable. Once 
the BCFRT funds are depleted, the province will replenish the BCFRT as required to meet 
the additional obligations to the contractors and the administration costs of the Trust. 
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Looking Ahead 

The first quarter 0[2012 will likely include the following activity: 

1. As part of the agreement with the provincial government. all funds in the three 
currently existing accounts will be swept into a contractor income tax relief account. 

2. The trustee will continue to work with the federal and provincial governments on the 
details of the repayment of taxes paid, and the mechanism for the extinguishments of 
penalties and interest on unpaid amounts. 

3. The Trustee will work with the eRA to determine whether or not the contractors have 
income taxes paid or payable related to the contractor mitigation amounts, and if so, 
how much. 

4. Where agreement is achieved on the income taxes to be reimbursed, the trustee will 
enter into funding agreements with the relevant contractors and either pay them 
directly, at their direction, pay the amoWlt owing directly to the eRA or some 
combination of the above. 

Eric van Soeren 
Trustee 
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BC Forestry Revitaliz . 

CUFF: 

October 15.2011 
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ZOCs-2Q 1;X1 051'"" 
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OCT 262011 

Honourable Steve Thomson 0 Minister ReSpOOse 0 OM 
Minister of Forests Lands and Natural Resource Ope ~~/y Direct 0 I 0 ADM 
Ministry of Forests Lands and Natural Resource Oper 11 '0 & File 0 Phone Call 

P.O. Box 9049 Stn Prov Govt I 'il' C'!?\51 
Victoria, Be 
V8W9E2 

Dear Minister Thomson: 

Re: The BC Forestry Revitalization Trust - 2011 Third Quarter Report 

Enclosed for your infonnation is a copy of The Be Forestry Revitalization Trust's 20 11 Third 
Quarter Report. 

Thank you for your continued support and involvement in the Trust to date. Please feel free to 
contact me if you would like to discuss anything in the report, or The Be Forestry Revitalization 
Trust in general. 

Eric van Soeren 
Trustee 

eoc!. 

Eric van Soeren, Trustee 
730 Walker's Hook Road 
Salt Spring Island, Be V8K INS 
www.bcfrt.com 

, ISTER OF FORESTS, LANDS 
ATURAI RESOURCE OPERATIONS 

RECEIVED 
UL I l ~ LUil 

DMinister OOM QReply Direct 

OADM ~f;le 

Phone: 250-537-1533 
Cell:
Fax: 250-537-1534 

Email: eric@)vansoeren.nel 
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BC Forestry Revitalization Trust 

Report ofthe Trustee as of September 30, 2011 

General 

In March 2003 the province of British Columbia established the Be Forestry Revitalization 
Trust (BCFRT) and funded it with $75,000,000. The mandate of the BCFRT was to provide 
mitigation to forest workers and replaceable contractors that are negatively impacted by 
timber reallocations resulting from the" Forestry Revitalization Act (FRA). 

In April 2004 the province appointed Eric van Soeren as Trustee. Shortly after that he 
appointed a seven member Advisory Board, as required by the Trust Deed. That Board 
developed draft Forest Worker Mitigation Guidelines and Contractor Mitigation Guidelines. 

Utilizing the best estimates of industry, seniority estimates obtained from the IWA pension 
plan, seniority estimates obtained from contractor industry associations, and the proposed 
guidelines, the Trustee detennined that the BCFRT likely required approximately 
$50,000,000 more than what was available in the BCFRT accounts, plus what the BCFRT 
was likely to earn in interest while holding mitigation funds in trust. 

The Trustee and the Advisory Board approached the province and received a commitment for 
the additional funds, so the BCFRT Advisory Board finalized the Contractor Mitigation 
Guidelines and the Forest Worker Mitigation Guidelines. The Guidelines, as well as 
extensive supporting documentation, are posted on the BCFRT website at www.bcfrt.com. 

Roll over of Ihe BCFRT 

The original BCFRT was slated to tenninate effective March 31, 2008. However, for a 
variety of reasons it was not possible to mitigate all the eligible beneficiaries of the BCFRT 
by that time. Further, estimates at that time suggested that even once all the existing 
beneficiaries received mitigation, there would still be funds left in the BCFRT. Therefore, it 
was agreed by the Trustee, the Province and the Advisory Board members that the BCFRT 
should be extended, the group of potential beneficiaries be expanded, and the Trustee be 
given limited discretion to deem that individuals who would not otherwise be eligible 
beneficiaries of the BCFRT be included. The Minister of Forests and Range and the Trustee 
signed a new Declaration of Trust, and all assets and obligations ofthe BCFRT were 
assumed by the new BCFRT II. A copy of the Declaration of Trust that created the BCFRT 
II is posted on the BCFRT website. The new trust is essentially a rollover of the original 
BCFRT, but with slightly expanded beneficiaries and no fixed tennination date. 
Beneficiaries are still limited to Forest workers and replaceable contractors, but it also allows 

Eric van Soeren, Trustee 
730 Walker's Hook Road 
Salt Spring Island, B.C. V8K IN5 
www.bcfrt.com 

Phone: 250~537·1533 
Cell: 
Fax: 250·537~1534 

Email: eric@}vansoeren.net 
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for mitigation to be made available to workers and replaceable contractors that might be 
negatively affected by other Provincial Government land use decisions that limit logging. 

Account Balances as at September 30, 2011 

Account Balances 
Administration Account 
Contractor Mitigation Account 
Forest Worker Mitigation Account 

Total market value of BCFRT accounts 

Distributions to Beneficiaries to date 
Contractor Mitigation 
Forest Worker Mitigation 
Transferred to the Coast Sustainability Trust 

Total Distributions to Beneficiaries 

Total available funds plus distributions 

Administration Account 

$4,483,371 
$741,413 

$2,516,918 
$7,741,702 

$70,748,591 
$43,079,279 

$2,767,714 
$116,595,584 

$124,336,286 

When the BCFRT was created, $5,000,000 was allocated to administration. To date, most of 
the administration expenses of the BCFRT have been covered by the interest earned on the 
Administration Account balance, so the initial principal has been reduced by approximately 
$520,000. A significant portion of the Administration Account willlJe able to be transferred 
to a new Contractor Income Tax: Relief Account that is in the process of being established. 

Contractor Mitigation Account 

As of September 30, 2011, $70,748,591 had been paid in contractor mitigation related to 317 
affected contracts. All replaceable contractors that were affected by the implementation of 
the FRA have now received the full mitigation for which they were eligible under the 
Contractor Mitigation Guidelines. 

Forest Worker Mitigation Account 

The BCFRT has provided funding for the severance of 848 workers negatively affected by 
the FRA, for a total cost to the BCFRT of $43.079,279. All employees known to have been 
affected by the FRA have now received their BCFRT supported severance. 

Mitigation of the Negative Impacts of Ecosystem Based Management on Haida Gwaii. 

During a February 2011 BCFRT Advisory Board meeting it was agreed that the BCFRT 
would cost share with the Coast Sustainability Trust (CST) to provide mitigation to workers 
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and replaceable contractors that are negatively impacted by the implementation of Ecosystem 
Based Management (EBM) on Haida Gwaii. The fonnulas used to detennine the amount of 
mitigation would be the same as were used in the earlier BCFRT mitigation payments. The 
estimated cost of mitigation is $5,535,428 million, of which the BCFRT will pay half. 
Payments will be made through the CST, with the BCFRT providing half the required funds. 

As of September 30, 2011, $2,767,714 has been transferred to the CST to provide matching 
funds for worker and contractor mitigation. Also as of September 30, 2011, all 35 affected 
workers and all but 2 of the 11 affected contractors have received their mitigation amounts. 

Contractor Income Tax Liability 

There has been uncertainty about the liability for income taxes payable on mitigation amounts 
received by replaceable contractors from the BCFRT. The position of the four logging 
contractor associations in BC is that the amounts should be received tax free, either because they 
were a windfall payment, or because they were amounts received from a personal trust. Others 
took the position that the amounts received as a result of the loss of some or all of a replaceable 
contract should be treated as a capital gain. The Canada Revenue Agency (CRA) took the 
position that all such amounts were to be taxed as income. 

The BCFRT, the Loggers for Fair Taxation, the Minister of Forests, Lands and Natural Resource 
Operations, and the Premier ofBC, have been working on this problem for approximately four 
years. As a result, the Province ofBC and the Advisory Board of the BCFRT have agreed to 
increase the contractor mitigation payments received by replaceable contractors by an amount 
equal to the income taxes paid or payable on the amounts previously disbursed. 

Adequacy of Funds 

The cost of making contractors whole for income taxes assessed on the contractor mitigation 
amounts they received is not known. The best estimate at this time is approximately $15 to 
$18 million. The agreement with the province is that all existing funds in the BCFRT 
accounts will be first applied to compensate the contractors for taxes paid or payable. Once 
the BCFRT funds are depleted, the province will replenish the BCFRT as required to meet 
the additional obligations to the contractors and the administration costs of the Trust. 

Looking Ahead 

The fourth quarter of2011 will likely include the following activity: 

1. As part of the agreement with the provincial government, all funds in the three 
currently existing accounts will be swept into a contractor income tax relief account. 

2. The trustee will continue to work with the federal and provincial governments on the 
details of the repayment of taxes paid, and the mechanism for the extinguishments of 
penalties and interest on unpaid amounts. 
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3. The Trustee will contact all the contractors that received contractor mitigation 
amounts from the BCFRT to request the infonnation required to detennine whether or 
not they have taxes paid or payable related to the contractor mitigation amounts. 

4. The Trustee will work with the eRA to detennine whether or not the contractors have 
income taxes paid or payable related to the contractor mitigation amounts, and if so, 
how much. 

5. Where agreement is achieved on the income taxes to be reimbursed, the trustee will 
enter into funding agreements with the relevant contractors and either pay them 
directly or, at their direction. pay the amount owing directly to the eRA. 

6. The Trustee will work with the remaining contractors on Haida Gwaii to finalize 
mitigation payments related to the loss of contracts because of the implementation of 
EBM. 

Eric van Soeren 
Trustee 
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As of June 30, 2009, the BCFRT had provided funding for the severance of 845 workers, for 
a total cost to the BCFRT 0[$42,723,092. The average severance per employee to date is 
signi ficantly IUgher than originally projected ($50,735 as opposed to an estimate of $39,828). 
The average is high because a disproportionate amount of the severed workers worked for 
licensees on the coast, and they tended to be crews with above average seniority. Also, it is 
now clear that the total number of severed employees, especially in the interior, was lower 
than projected. A surplus of at least $20,000,000 was previously expected in the Employee 
Mitigation Account to deal with employee severance according to the Guidelines. This was 
moved to the Contractor Mitigation Account to cover the shortfal l in that Account. It now 
appears there could still be approximately $4.5 million more in the Forest Worker Mitigation 
account than will be required. These fimds will be made available at the di scretion of the 
Advisory Board to provide mitigation for 'other forest workers and replaceable contractors 
that have been or will be negatively impacted by provincial government land use decisions. 

Looking Ahead 

The third quarter 0[2009 will likely include the following activity: 

t. Contractors and workers affected by the Teal Jones Forestry Revitalization Plan 
(FRP) will finally be able to receive their mitigation. 

2. Contractor Mitigation payments will continue to be made to other replaceable 
contractors who lost some or all of their contracts as a result of the FRA. 

3. The BCFRT Trustee wiU continue to meet with licensee and contractor industry 
associations and organized labour, as well as with individual licensees, contractors, 
worker groups and their advisors, on an as needed basis, to ensure that the mitigation 
process progresses as smoothly, quickly and efficiently as possible. 

4. The Trustee will meet with the Advisory Board to discuss how best to use the 
increased flexibility afforded in providing mitigation to workers and replaceable 
contractors that are affected by government Jand use decisions that have negative 
impacts on harvesting opportunities. 

Eric van Soeren 
Trustee 
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Be Forestry Revitalization Trust 

October 15, 2009 

Dana Hayden 
Deputy Minister of Forests and Range 
Ministry of Forests and Range 
3" Floor, 1520 Blanshard Street 
P.O. Box 9525 Stn Prov Govt 
Victoria, BC V8W 9C3 

Dear Dana Hayden: 

Re: The BC Forestry Revitalization Trust - 2009 Third Quarter Report 

Enclosed for your information is a copy of The Be Forestry Revitalization Trust's 2009 Third 
Quarter Report. 

Thank you for your continued support and involvement in the Trust to date. Please feel free to 
contact me if you would like to discuss anything in the report, or The Be Forestry Revitalization 
Trust in general. 

Yours truly, 

.J J/ 
L'/I/~/r~ 

Eric van Soeren 
Trustee 

eDcl. 

Eric van Soeren, Trustee 
730 Walker's Hook Road 
Salt Spring Island, Be V8K IN5 
www.bctrt.com 
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DUE DATE : =-===::-:::::= 
DDRAFT REPLY§bEPlY DIRECT 
OFNA 0 FYI~;c:.;~IL=E:..-___ , 

Phone: 250-537-\533 
Cell
Fax: 250-537- 1534 

Email: eric(aJvansoeren.net 
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Be Forestry Revitalization Trust 

Report of tbe Trustee as of September 30, 2009 

General 

In March 2003 the province of British Columbia established the Be Forestry Revitalization 
Trust (BCFRT) and funded it with $75,000,000. The mandate of the BCFRT was to provide 
mitigation to forest workers and replaceable contractors that are negatively impacted by 
timber reallocations resulting from the Forestry Revitalization Act (FRA). 

In April 2004 the province appointed Eric van Soeren as Trustee. Shortly after that he 
appointed a seven member Advisory Board, as required by the Trust Deed. That Board 
developed draft Forest Worker Mitigation Guidelines and Contractor Mitigation Guidelines. 

Utilizing the best estimates of industry, seniority estimates obtained from the IWA pension 
plan, seniority estimates obtained from contractor industry associations, and the proposed 
guidelines, the Trustee detennined that the BCFRT likely required approximately 
$50,000,000 more than what was available in the BCFRT accounts, plus what the BCFRT 
was likely to eam in interest while holding mitigation funds in trust. 

The Trustee and the Advisory Board approached the province and received a commitment for 
the additional funds, so the BCFRT Advisory Board finalized the Contractor Mitigation 
Guidelines and the Forest Worker Mitigation Guidelines. The Guidelines, as well as 
extensive supporting documentation, are posted on the BCFRT website at www.bcfrt.com. 

Roll over of the BCFRT 

The original BCFRT was slated to terminate effective March 3 t, 2008. However, for a 
variety of reasons it was not possible to mitigate all the eligible beneficiaries of the BCFRT 
by that time. Further. estimates at that time suggested that even once all the existing 
beneficiaries receive mitigation. there would still be funds left in the BCFRT. Therefore, it 
was agreed by the Trustee, the Province and the Advisory Board members that the BCFRT 
should be extended. the group of potential beneficiaries be expanded, and the Trustee be 
given limited discretion to deem that individuals who would not otherwise be eligible 
beneficiaries of the BCFRT be included. The Minister of Forests and Range and the Trustee 
signed a new Declaration of Trust. and all assets and obligations of the BCFRT were 
assumed by the new BCFRT II. A copy of the Declaration of Trust that created the BCFRT 
II is posted on the BCFRT website. The new trust is essentially a rollover of the original 
BCFRT, but with slightly expanded beneficiaries and no fixed termination date. It also 
allows for mitigation to be made available to workers and replaceable contractors that might 
be negatively affected by future land use decisions. 

Eric van Soeren, Trustee 
730 Walker's Hook Road 
Salt Spring Island, s.c. V8K 1 N5 
www.bcfTt.com 

Phone: 250·537·1533 
Cell:
Fax: 250·537·1534 

Email: eric@}vansoeren.net 
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Account Balances HS at September 30, 2009 

Account Balances 
Administration Account 
Contractor Mitigation Account 
Forest Worker Mitigation Account 
Funds held in reserve by Ministry of Forests and Range 

Total market value of BCFRT accounts 

Distributions to Beneficiaries to date 
Contractor Mitigation 
Forest Worker Mitigation 

Total Distributions to Beneficiaries ' 

Total available funds plus distributions 

Administration Account 

$4,535,936 
$3,216,853 
$4,814,686 

$10,000,000 
$22,567,475 

$68,878,418 
$42,723,092 

$111,601,510 

S134,I68,985 

When the BCFRT was created, $5,000,000 was allocated to administration. To date, most of 
the administration expenses of the BCFRT have been covered by the interest earned on the 
Administration Account balance, so the initial principal has been reduced by approximately 
$460,000. A significant portion of the Administration Account will be able to be transferred 
to one of the Mitigation Accounts at a later date, and on an as needed basis. 

Contractor Mitigation Account 

The principle used for contractor mitigation is that contractors who lost their replaceable 
contracts as a result of Forestry Revitalization Act (FRA) restructuring received mitigation 
that approximates what the contract might reasonably have been worth at the time it was 
reduced or eliminated. This was usually based on a per cubic metre value, but contracts that 
were based on some other measure were treated accordingly. A detailed description of the 
ea1culation that was used is contained in the Contractor Mitigation Guidelines. 

As of September 30, 2009, Forestry Revitalization Proposals (FRPs) have been presented and 
accepted by the affected contractors, or the default condition of proportionate reduction has 
been imposed, for all the reallocated volume in the Province. The long standing dispute 
between Teal Jones and its major contractor has now been resolved, so mitigation of the 
affected workers and contractors can proceed. 

As of September 30, 2009, $68,878,418 had been paid in contractor mitigation related to 303 
affected contracts. Discussions are underway with other replaceable contractors whose 
contracts have been or may be reduced or eliminated. Approximately 23 more contractor 
mitigation payments should be made in 2009 or early 20 I O. 
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Several coastal contractors and a group of interior contractors felt that the Contractor 
Mitigation Guidelines do not fairly compensate them for the value of their lost contracts. 
The Advisory Board has reviewed aU the claims that were made. The view of the Advisory 
Board is that only two contractors have been able to substantiate their claims. One exception 
was a heU-logging contract that had a per cubic metre rate substantially higher than the rate 
paid for conventional logging. The other was a conventional stump to dump contractor that 
worked in an area that provided unusually high profits. Both contractors were mitigated 
using a rate above the cap. 

The Be Ombudsman's office reviewed the claim of five interior contractors that felt they 
should receive a larger payout and found it to be without merit. All of those contractors 
have now accepted mitigation as detennined by the Contractor Mitigation Guidelines. 

There were two cases where replaceable hauling contractors were able to demonstrate that, in 
their area, recent anns length sales of hauling contracts had been at a rate slightly higher than 
what the mitigation fonnula generated. Slightly higher compensation payments were made 
than would have been made based strictly on the fonnula. 

As of September, 2009, contractor compensation payments, plus revised estimates based on 
pending flpplications, appear to be approximately 12.1 %, or $7. 7S million, above the 
originally projected amounts. This is partially because a higher than projected proportion of 
replaceable contractors appear to be leaving the industry, partially because there will be some 
cost to the BCFRT related to stranded assets, and partially because redundant equipment 
payments are turning out to be higher than projected. Also, two licensees were able to get 
Ministerial Exemptions to allow them to eliminate more replaceable contractors than the 
original cap on replaceable contract eliminations would have allowed. These extra contractor 
costs will be balanced because it is now clear that employee severances will be lower than 
originally projected. In order to cover the higher than expected contractor mitigation cost, 
$20,000,000 was moved from the Forest Worker Mitigation Account to the Contractor 
Mitigation Account. Based on current estimates, there are sufficient funds in the Contractor 
Mitigation Account to cover all outstanding expected contractor mitigation costs. 

Forest Worker MitigatioD Account 

The principle being used for forest worker mitigation is that workers who are severed by a 
Licensee or Replaceable Contractor because of FRA restructuring will receive severance 
from their ex-employer, and that severance will be funded by the BCFRT. The Advisory 
Board felt it was fair that all workers who lose their jobs as a result of FRA restructuring be 
treated the same. Because the Steelworkers' (previously IWA) contract mandates that 
employees affected by a permanent logging camp closure receive severance of 10 regular 
day's pay per year of service, plus 1 0/121hs of a regular day's pay per completed month of 
service, that standard was used. The detailed calculation and discussion appears in the Forest 
Worker Mitigation Guidelines, and can be found on the BCFRT website. 

3 FNR-2013-00252 
Page 56



o o 
As of September 30, 2009, the BCFRT had provided funding for the severance of 845 
workers, for a total cost to the BCFRT 0[$42,723,092. The average severance per employee 
to date is significantly higher than originally projected ($50,735 as opposed to an estimate of 
$39,828). The average is high because a disproportionate amount of the severed workers 
worked for licensees on the coast, and they tended to be crews with above average seniority. 
Also, it is now clear that the total number of severed employees, especially in the interior, 
was lower than projected. A surplus of at least $20,000,000 was previously expected in the 
Employee Mitigation Account to deal with employee severance according to the Guidelines. 
This was moved to the Contractor Mitigation Account to coveT the shortfall in that Account. 
It now appears there could still be approximately $4.5 million more in the Forest Worker 
Mitigation account than will be required. These fWlds win be made available at the 
discretion of the Advisory Board to provide mitigation for other forest workers and 
replaceable contractors that have been or will be negatively impacted by provincial 
government land use decisions. 

Looking Ahead 

The fourth quarter of2009 will likely include the following activity: 

I. The remaining contractors and workers affected by the Teal Jones Forestry 
Revitalization Plan (FRP) will finally be able to receive their mitigation. 

2. Contractor Mitigation payments will continue to be made to other replaceable 
contractors who lost some or all of their contracts as a result of the FRA. 

3. The BCFRT Trustee will continue to meet with licensee and contractor industry 
associations and organized labour, as well as with individual licensees, contractors, 
worker groups and their advisors, on an as needed basis, to ensure that the mitigation 
process progresses as smoothly, quickly and efficiently as possible. 

4. The Trustee will meet with the Advisory Board to discuss how best to use the 
increased flexibility afforded in providing mitigation to workers and replaceable 
contractors that are affected by government land use decisions that have negative 
impacts on harvesting opportunities. 

Eric van Soeren 
Trustee 
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Be Forestry Revitalization Trust 

July 15,2009 

Dana Hayden 
Deputy Minister afForests and Range 
Ministry of Forests and Range 
3" Floor, 1520 B1anshard Street 
P.O. Box 9525 Stn Prov Govt 
Victoria, BC V8W 9C3 

Dear Dana Hayden: 

MINISTRY OF PORelT!.r, DMO 
Rlal'Vlu 

DMR~" (h IO"!(" 

JUL 1 52009 I 
C/tJ?? :' 

DUE DATE: ~~==~~~:: 
ODRAFT REpLY RePLY DIRECT 
OfNA ' OFvt FILE 

Re: The BC Forestry Revitalization Trust - 2009 Second Quarter Report 

Enclosed for your infonnation is a copy of The Be Forestry Revitalization Trust's 2009 Second 
Quarter Report. 

Thank you for your continued support and involvement in the Trust to date. Please feel free to 
contact me if you would like to discuss anything in the report, or The Be Forestry Revitalization 
Trust in general. 

Yours truly, 

Lu~L 
Eric van Saeren 
Trustee 

enc!. 

Eric van Soeren, Trustee 
730 Walker's Hook Road 
Salt Spring Island, Be V8K INS 
www.bcfrt.com 

, . 
.', ! 

. ~ . I 

. . \ " . . . ) - ," 

; " 

, . 

Phone: 2S0-S37-\533 
Cell : 
Fax: 250-537-1534 

Email: eric~vansoeren.net 
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Be Forestry Revitalization Trust 

Report of the Trustee as of June 30, 2009 

General 

In March 2003 the province of British Columbia established the Be Forestry Revitalization 
Trust (BCFRT) and funded it with $75,000,000. The mandate of the BCFRT was to provide 
mitigation to forest workers and replaceable contractors that are negatively impacted by 
timber reallocations resulting from the Forestry Revitalization Act (FRA). 

In April 2004 the province appointed Eric van Soeren as Trustee. Shortly after that he 
appointed a seven member Advisory Board. as required by the Trust Deed. That Board 
developed draft Forest Worker Mitigation Guidelines and Contractor Mitigation Guidelines. 

Utilizing the best estimates of industry, seniority estimates obtained from the IW A pension 
plan, seniority estimates obtained from contractor industry associations, and the proposed 
guidelines, the Trustee detennined that the BCFRT likely required approximately 
$50,000,000 more than what was available in the BCFRT accounts, plus what the BCFRT 
was likely to earn in interest while holding mitigation funds in trust. 

The Trustee and the Advisory Board approached the province and received a commitment for 
the additional funds, so the BCFRT Advisory Board finalized the Contractor Mitigation 
Guidelines and the Forest Worker Mitigation Guidelines. The Guidelines, as well as 
extensive supporting documentation, are posted on the BCFRT website at www.bcfrt.com. 

Roll over of tbe BCFRT 

The original BCFRT was slated to terminate effective March 31 , 2008. However, for a 
variety of reasons it was not possible to mitigate all the eligible beneficiaries of the BCFRT 
by that time. Further, estimates at that time suggested that even once all the existing 
beneficiaries receive mitigation, there would still be funds left in the BCFRT. Therefore, it 
was agreed by the Trustee, the Province and the Advisory Board members that the BCFRT 
should be extended, the group of potential beneficiaries be expanded, and the Trustee be 
given limited discretion to deem that individuals who would not otherwise be eligible 
beneficiaries of the BCFRT be included. The Minister of Forests and Range and the Trustee 
signed a new Declaration of Trust, and all assets and obligations of the BCFRT were 
assumed by the new BCFRT II. A copy of the Declaration of Trust that created the BCFRT 
II is posted on the BCFRT website. The new trust is essentially a rollover of the original 
BCFRT, but with slightly expanded beneficiaries and no fixed termination date. It also 
allows for mitigation to be made available to workers and replaceable contractors that might 
be negatively affected by future land use decisions. 

Eric van Soeren, Trustee 
730 Walker's Hook Road 
Salt Spring Island, B.C. V8K INS 
www.bcfit.com 

Phone: 250-537-1 533 
Cell: 
Fax: 250-537-1 534 

Email: eric@vansoeren.net 
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Account Balances as at June 30, 2009 

Account Balances 
Administration Account 
Contractor Mitigation Account 
Forest Worker Mitigation Account 
Funds held in reserve by Ministry afForests and Range 

Total market value of BCFRT accounts 

Distributions to Beneficiaries to date 
Contractor Mitigation 
Forest Worker Mitigation 

Total Distributions to Beneficiaries 

Total available funds plus distributions 

Administration Account 

o 

$4,512,700 
$3,888,586 
$4,807,575 

$10,000,000 
$23,208,861 

$68,189,640 
$42,723,092 

$110,912,732 

$134,121,584 

When the BCFRT was created, $5,000,000 was allocated to administration. To date, most of 
the administration expenses of the BCFRT have been covered by the interest earned on the 
Administration Account balance, so the initial principal has been reduced by approximately 
$487,000. A significant portion of the Administration Account will be able to be transferred 
to one of the Mitigation Accounts at a later date, and on an as needed basis. 

Contractor: Mitigation Account 

The principle used for contractor mitigation is that contractors who lost their replaceable 
contracts as a result of Forestry Revitalization Act (FRA) restructuring received mitigation 
that approximates what the contract might reasonably have been worth at the time it was 
reduced or eliminated. This was usually based on a per cubic metre value, but contracts that 
were based on some other measure were treated accordingly. A detailed description of the 
calculation that was used is contained in the Contractor Mitigation Guidelines. 

As of June 30, 2009, Forestry Revitalization Proposals (FRPs) have been presented and 
accepted by the affected contractors, or the default condition of proportionate reduction has 
been imposed, for all the reallocated volume in the Province. The long standing dispute 
between Teal Jones and its major contractor has now been resolved, so mitigation of the 
affected workers and contractors can proceed. 

As of June 30, 2009, $68,189,640 had been paid in contractor mitigation related to 301 
affected contracts. Discussions are underway with other replaceable contractors whose 
contracts have been or may be reduced or eliminated. Approximately 25 more contractor 
mitigation payments should be made in 2009. 
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Several coastal contractors and a group of interior contractors felt that the Contractor 
Mitigation Guidelines do not fairly compensate them for the value of their lost contracts. 
The Advisory Board has reviewed all the claims that had been made. The view of the 
Advisory Board is that only two contractors have been able to substantiate their claims. One 
exception was a heli-Iogging contract that had a per cubic metre rate substantially higher than 
the rate paid for conventional logging. The other was a conventional stump to dump 
contractor that worked in an area that provided unusually high profits, Both contractors were 
mitigated using a rate above the cap. 

The Be Ombudsman's office reviewed the claim of five interior contractors that felt they 
should receive a larger payout and found it to be without merit. All of those contractors 
have now accepted mitigation as determined by the Contractor Mitigation Guidelines. 

There were two cases where replaceable hauling contractors were able to demonstrate that, in 
their area, recent anns length sales of hauling contracts had been at a rate slightly higher than 
what the mitigation fonnula generated. Slightly higher compensation payments were made 
than would have been made based strictly on the formula. 

As of June, 2009, contractor compensation payments, plus revised estimates based on 
pending applications, appear to be approximately 12.6%, or $8,0 million, above the 
originally projected amounts. This is partially because a higher than projected proportion of 
replaceable contractors appear to be leaving the industry, partially because there will be some 
cost to the BCFRT related to stranded assets, and partially because redundant equipment 
payments are turning out to be higher than projected. Also, two licensees were able to get 
Ministerial Exemptions to allow them to eliminate more replaceable contractors than the 
original cap on replaceable contract eliminations would have allowed. These extra contractor 
costs will be balanced because it is now clear that employee severances will be lower than 
originally projected. In order to cover the higher than expected contractor mitigation cost, 
$20,000,000 was moved from the Forest Worker Mitigation Account to the Contractor 
Mitigation Account. Based on current estimates, there are sufficient funds in the Contractor 
Mitigation Account to cover all outstanding expected contractor mitigation costs. 

Forest Worker Mitigation Account 

The principle being used lor forest worker mitigation is that workers who are severed by a 
Licensee or Replaceable Contractor because ofFRA restructuring will receive severance 
from their ex-employer, and that severance will be funded by the BCFRT. The Advisory 
Board felt it was fair that all workers who lose their jobs as a result ofFRA restructuring be 
treated the same. Because the Steelworkers' (previously IWA) contract mandates that 
employees affected by a pennanent logging camp closure receive severance of 1 0 regular 
day' s pay per year of service. plus 101121hs ofa regular day's pay per completed month of 
service, that standard was used. The detailed calculation and discussion appears in the Forest 
Worker Mitigation Guidelines, and can be found on the BCFRT website. 
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Be Forestr:y Revitalization Trust 

April 15, 2009 

John Dyble 
Deputy Minister of Forests and Range 
Ministry of Forests and Range 
3rd Floor, 1520 BJanshard Street 
P.O. Box 9525 Stn Prav Govt 
Victoria, BC V8W 9C3 

Dcar John Dyble, 

Re: The BC Forestry Revitalization Trust - 2009 First Quarter Report 

Enclosed for your information is a copy of The Be Forestry Revitalization Trust's 2009 First 
Quarter Report. 

Thank you for your continued support and involvement in the Trust to date. Please feel free to 
contact me if you would like to discuss anything in the report, or The Be Forestry Revitalization 
Trust in general. 

Eric van Soeren 
Trustee 

end 

Eric van Soeren, Trustee 
730 Walker's Hook Road 
Salt Spring Island, Be V8K INS 
www.bcfrt.com 

APR 17 2009 

Deputy Minister's Office 
Executive 

Phone: 250·537-1533 
Cell:
Fax: 250-537-1 534 

Email: eric~ .. ansoeren .net 
FNR-2013-00252 
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Be Forestry Revitalization Trust 

Report of the Trustee as of March 31, 2009 

General 

In March 2003 the province of British Columbia established the BC Forestry Revitalization 
Trust (BCFRT) and funded it with $75,000,000. The mandate ofthe BCFRT was to provide 
mitigation to forest workers and replaceable contractors that are negatively impacted by 
timber reallocations resulting from the Forestry Revitalization Act (FRA). 

In April 2004 the province appointed Eric van Soeren as Trustee. Shortly after that he 
appointed a seven member Advisory Board. as required by the Trust Deed. That Board 
developed draft Forest Worker Mitigation Guidelines and Contractor Mitigation Guidelines. 

Utilizing the best estimates of industry, seniority estimates obtained from the IWA pension 
plan, seniority estimates obtained from contractor industry associations, and the proposed 
guidelines, the Trustee determined that the BCFRT likely required approximately 
$50,000,000 more than what was available in the BCFRT accounts, plus what the BCFRT 
was likely to eam in interest while holding mitigation funds in trust. 

The Trustee and the Advisory Board approached the province and received a commitment for 
the additional funds, so the BCFRT Advisory Board finalized the Contractor Mitigation 
Guidelines and the Forest Worker Mitigation Guidelines. The Guidelines, as well as 
extensive supporting documentation, are posted on the BCFRT website at ww¥,r.bcfrt.com. 

Roll over of tbe BCFRT 

The original BCFRT was slated to tenninate effective March 31, 2008. However, for a 
variety of reasons it was not possible to mitigate all the eligible beneficiaries of the BCFRT 
by that time. Further, estimates at that time suggested that even once all the existing 
beneficiaries receive mitigation, there would still be funds left in the BCFRT. Therefore, it 
was agreed by the Trustee, the Province and the Advisory Board members that the BCFRT 
should be extended, the group of potential beneficiaries be expanded, and the Trustee be 
given limited discretion to deem that individuals who would not otherwise be eligible 
beneficiaries of the BCFRT be included. The Minister of Forests and Range and the Trustee 
signed a new Deciaration of Trust, and all assets and obligations of the BCFRT were 
assumed by the new BCFRT II. A copy of the Declaration of Trust that created the BCFRT 
II is posted on the BCFRT website. The new trust is essentially a rollover of the original 
BCFRT, but with slightly expanded beneficiaries and no fixed tennination date. It also 
allows for mitigation to be made available to workers and replaceable contractors that might 
be negatively affected by future land use decisions. 

Eric van Soeren, Trustee 
730 Walker's Hook Road 
Salt Spring Island, B.C. V8K IN5 
www.bcfrt.com 

Phone: 250-537-1533 
Cell: 
Fax: 250-537-1534 

Emai l: eric@lvansoeren. net 
FNR-2013-00252 
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Account Balances as at March 31, 2009 

Account Balances 
Administration Account 
Contractor Mitigation Account 
Forest Worker Mitigation Account 
Funds held in reserve by Ministry of Forests and Range 

Total market value of DCFRT accounts 

Distributions to Beneficiaries to date 
Contractor Mitigation 
Forest Worker Mitigation 

Total Distributions to Beneficiaries 

Total available funds plus distributions 

Administration Account 

$4,494,421 
$5,599,619 
$5,910,002 

$10,000,000 
$26,004,042 

$66,448,185 
$41,612,435 

$108,060,620 

$134,064,662 

When the BCFRT was created, $5,000,000 was allocated to administration. To date, most of 
the administration expenses of the BCFRT have been covered by the interest earned on the 
Administration Account balance, so the initial principal has been reduced by approximately 
$505,000. A significant portion of the Administration Account will be able to be transferred 
to one of the Mitigation Accounts at a later date, and on an as needed basis . 

Contractor Mitigation Account 

The principle used for contractor mitigation is that contractors who lost their replaceable 
contracts as a result of Forestry Revitalization Act (FRA) restructuring received mitigation 
that approximates what the contract might reasonably have been worth at the time it was 
reduced or eliminated. This was usually based on a per cubic metre value, but contracts that 
were based on some other measure were treated accordingly. A detailed description of the 
calculation that was used is contained in the Contractor Mitigation Guidelines. 

As of March 31,2009, Forestry Revitalization Proposals (FRPs) have been presented for 
99.9% of the reallocated volume in the Province. The last date for submitting an FRP was 
July 31, 2006, so the replaceable contracts of the licensee that did not submit a FRP were 
subject to proportionate reduction. The Coastal FRP submitted by Teal Jones was rejected 
by its contractors, as was a revised FRP. This necessitated an extension of the mandate of 
the BCFRT, so that the workers and contractors that are ultimately negatively impacted by 
the Teal Jones AAC reduction can receive appropriate mitigation. The dispute between Teal 
Jones and its major contractor has now been resolved, so mitigation of the affect workers and 
contractors will proceed in the second quarter of2009. 
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As of March 31, 2009, $66,448,185 had been paid in contractor mitigation related to 295 
affected contracts. Discussions are underway with other replaceable contractors whose 
contracts have been or may be reduced or eliminated. Approximately 30 more contractor 
mitigation payments should be made in 2009. 

Several coastal contractors and a group of interior contractors felt that the Contractor 
Mitigation Guidelines do not fairly compensate them for the value of their lost contracts. 
The Advisory Board has reviewed all the claims that had been made. The view of the 
Advisory Board is that only two contractors have been able to substantiate their claims. One 
exception was a heli-logging contract that had a per cubic metre rate substantially higher than 
the rate paid for conventional logging. The other was a conventional stump to dump 
contractor that worked in an area that provided unusually high profits. Both contractors were 
or are in the process of being mitigated using a rate above the cap. 

The Be Ombudsman's office reviewed the claim of five interior contractors that felt they 
should receive a larger payout and found it to be without merit. All of those contractors 
have now accepted mitigation as detennined by the Contractor Mitigation Guidelines. 

There were two cases where replaceable hauling contractors were able to demonstrate that, in 
their area, recent arms length sales of hauling contracts had been at a rate slightly higher than 
what the mitigation fonnula generated. Slightly higher compensation payments were made 
than would have been made based strictly on the formula. 

As of March 31, 2009, contractor compensation payments, plus revised estimates based on 
pending applications, appear to be approximately 11.2%, or $7.1 million, above the 
originally projected amounts. This is partially because a higher than projected proportion of 
replaceable contractors appear to be leaving the industry, partially because there will be some 
cost to the BCFRT related to stranded assets, and partially because redundant equipment 
payments are turning out to be higher than projected. Also, two licensees were able to get 
Ministerial Exemptions to allow them to eliminate more replaceable contractors than the 
original cap on replaceable contract eliminations would have allowed. These extra contractor 
costs will be balanced because it is now clear that employee severances will be lower than 
originally projected. In order to cover the higher than expected contractor mitigation cost, 
$20,000,000 was moved from the Forest Worker Mitigation Account to the Contractor 
Mitigation Account. Based on current estimates, there are sufficient funds in the Contractor 
Mitigation Account to cover all outstanding expected contractor mitigation costs. 

Forest Worker Mitigation Account 

The principle being used for forest worker mitigation is that workers who are severed by a 
Licensee or Replaceable Contractor because of FRA restructuring will receive severance 
from their ex-employer, and that severance will be funded by the BCFRT. The Advisory 
Board felt it was fair that all workers who lose their jobs as a result ofFRA restructuring be 
treated the same. Because the Steelworkers' (previously IWA) contract mandates that 
employees affected by a permanent logging camp closure receive severance of 1 0 regular 
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day ' s pay per year of service. plus IOllihs of a regular day's pay per completed month of 
service, that standard was used. The detailed calculation and discussion appears in the Forest 
Worker Mitigation Guidelines, and can be found on the BCFRT website. 

As of March 31,2009, the BCFRT had provided funding for the severance of 828 workers, 
for a total cost to the BCFRT of$4I,612,435. The average severance per employee to date is 
significantly higher than originally projected ($50,257 as opposed to an estimate of $39,828). 
The average is high because a disproportionate amount of the severed workers worked for 
licensees on the coast, and they tended to be crews with above average seniority. Also, it is 
now clear that the total number of employees to be severed, especially in the interior, will be 
lower than projected. A surplus of at least $20,000,000 was originally expected in the 
Employee Mitigation Account to deal with employee severance according to the Guidelines. 
This was moved to the Contractor Mitigation Account to cover the shortfall in that Account. 
It now appears there could still be approximately $4.3 million more in the Forest Worker 
Mitigation account than will be required. These funds will be made available at the 
discretion of the Advisory Board to provide mitigation for other forest workers and 
replaceable contractor:) that have been or wi ll be negatively impacted by provincial 
government land use decisions. 

Looking Ahead 

The second quarter of 2009 will likely include the following activity: 

1. Contractors and workers affected by the Teal Jones Forestry Revitalization Plan will 
finally be able to receive their mitigation. 

2. Contractor Mitigation payments will continue to be made to other replaceable 
contractors who lost some or all of their contracts as a result of the FRA. 

3. Severance payments will continue to be made to forest workers for some of the above 
replaceable contractors. 

4. The BCFRT Trustee will continue to meet with licensee and contractor industry 
associations and organized labour, as well as with individual licensees, contractors, 
worker groups and their advisors, on an as needed basis, to ensure that the mitigation 
process progresses as smoothly, q~ickly and efficiently as possible. 

5. The Trustee will meet with the Advisory Board to discuss how best to use the 
increased flexibility afforded in providing mitigation to workers and replaceable 
contractors that are affected by government land use decisions that have negative 
impacts on harvesting opportunities. 

Eric van Soeren 
Trustee 
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Be Forestry Revitalization Trust 

April 15, 2009 

Honourable Pat Bell 
Minister of Forests and Range 
Ministry of Forests and Range 
P.O. Box 9049 8tn Prov Govt 
Victoria, Be 
V8W 9E2 

Dear Minister Bell: 

- MINISTRY OF FORESTS AND RANGE 
CORRESPONDENCE SERVICES 

RECEIVED 
CUff ,. _~\G2.c~O'd.!..:\ ""=52--__ 

APR 2 2 2009 

DUE DATE' ________ -:::--

OADM a REftY DlRECl 
a t.IN oRAfl REPlY DOEP 0 PHONE RESPONSE o fIlA 0 INfO &- flU 

Re: The BC Forestry Revitalization Trust - 2009 First Quarter Report 

Enclosed for your infonnation is a copy of The Be Forestry Revitalization Trust's 2009 First 
Quarter Report. 

Thank yo u for your continued support and involvement in the Trust to date. Please feel free to 
contact me if you would like to discuss anything in the report, or The Be Forestry Revitalization 
Trust in general. 

Eric van Soeren 
Trustee 

encl. 

Eric van Soeren, Trustee 
730 Walker's Hook Road 
Salt Spring Island, Be V8K IN5 
www.bcfrt.com 

MINISTER OF FORESTS AND RANGE 
RECEIVED 

APR 1 6 l009 

Phone: 250-537-1533 
Cell
Fax: 250-537-1534 

Email: eric@;lvansoeren.net 
FNR-2013-00252 
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BC Forestry Revitalization Trust 

Report of the Trustee as of March 31, 2009 

General 

In March 2003 the province of British Columbia established the Be Forestry Revitalization 
Trust (BCFRT) and funded it with $75,000,000. The mandate of the BCFRT was to provide 
mitigation to forest workers and replaceable contractors that are negatively impacted by 
timber reallocations resulting from the Forestry Revitalization Act (FRA). 

In April 2004 the province appointed Eric van Soeren as Trustee. Shortly after that he 
appointed a seven member Advisory Board. as required by the Trust Deed. That Board 
developed draft forest Worker Mitigation Guidelines and Contractor Mitigation Guidelines. 

Utilizing the best estimates of industry, seniority estimates obtained from the IWA pension 
plan, seniority estimates obtained from contractor industry associations, and the proposed 
guidelines, the Trustee detennined that the BCFRT likely required approximately 
$50,000,000 more than what was available in the BCFRT accounts, plus what the BCFRT 
was likely to earn in interest while holding mitigation funds in trust. 

The Trustee and the Advisory Board approached the province and received a commitment for 
the additional funds, so the BCFRT Advisory Board finalized the Contractor Mitigation 
Guidelines and the Forest Worker Mitigation Guidelines. The Guidelines, as well as 
extensive supporting documentation, are posted on the BCFRT website at \vv.'W.hcfrt.com. 

Roll over of tbe BCFRT 

The original BCFRT was slated to tenninate effective March 31, 2008. However, for a 
variety of reasons it was not possible to mitigate all the eligible beneficiaries of the BCFRT 
by that time. Further, estimates at that time suggested that even once all the existing 
beneficiaries receive mitigation, there would still be funds left in the BCFRT. Therefore, it 
was agreed by the Trustee, the Province and the Advisory Board members that the BCFRT 
should be extended, the group of potential beneficiaries be expanded, and the Trustee be 
given limited discretion to deem that individuals who would not otherwise be eligible 
beneficiaries of the BCFRT be included. The Minister of Forests and Range and the Trustee 
signed a new Declaration of Trust, and all assets and obligations of the BCFRT were 
assumed by the new BCFRT II. A copy of the Declaration of Trust that created the BCFRT 
II is posted on the BCFRT website. The new trust is essentially a rollover of the original 
BCFRT, but with slightly expanded beneficiaries and no fixed tennination date. It also 
allows for mitigation to be made available to workers and replaceable contractors that might 
be negatively affected by future land use decisions. 

Eric van Soeren, Trustee 
730 Walker's Hook Road 
Salt Spring Island, B.c. V8K IN5 
www.bcfrt.com 

Phone: 250-537-1533 
Cell: 
Fax: 250~537· 1 534 

Email: eric@?vansoeren.net 
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Account Balances as at March 31, 2009 

Account Balances 
Administration Account 
Contractor Mitigation Account 
Forest Worker Mitigation Account 
Funds held in reserve by Ministry afForests and Range 

Total market value of BCFRT accounts 

Distributions to Beneficiaries to date 
Contractor Mitigation 
Forest Worker Mitigation 

Total Distributions to Beneficiaries 

Total available funds plus distributions 

Administration Account 

o 

$4,494,421 
$5,599,619 
$5,910,002 

$10,000,000 
$26,004,042 

$66,448,185 
$41,612,435 

$ J 08,060,620 

$134,064,662 

When the BCFRT was created, $5,000,000 was allocated to administration. To date, most of 
the administration expenses of the BCFRT have been covered by the interest earned on the 
Administration Account balance. so the initial principal has been reduced by approximately 
$505,000. A significant portion of the Administration Account will be able to be transferred 
to one of the Mitigation Accounts at a later date, and on an as needed basis. 

Contractor Mitigation Account 

The principle used for contractor mitigation is that contractors who lost their replaceable 
contracts as a result of Forestry Revitalization Act (FRA) restructuring received mitigation 
that approximates what the contract might reasonably have becn worth at the timc it was 
reduced or eliminated. This was usually based on a per cubic metre value, but contracts that 
were based on some other measure were treated accordingly. A detailed description of the 
calculation that was used is contained in the Contractor Mitigation Guidelines. 

As of March 31, 2009, Forestry Revitalization Proposals (FRPs) have been presented for 
99.9% of the reallocated volume in the Province. The last date for submitting an FRP was 
July 31,2006, so the replaceable contracts of the licensee that did not submit a FRP were 
subject to proportionate reduction. The Coastal FRP submitted by Teal Jones was rejected 
by its contractors, as was a revised FRP. This necessitated an extension of the mandatc of 
the BCFRT, so that the workers and contractors that are ultimately negatively impacted by 
the Teal Jones AAe reduction can receive appropriate mitigation. The dispute between Teal 
Jones and its major contractor has now been resolved, so mitigation of the affect workers and 
contractors will proceed in the second quarter of2009. 
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As of March 31 , 2009, $66,448,185 had been paid in contractor mitigation related to 295 
affected contracts. Discussions are underway with other replaceable contractors whose 
contracts have been or may be reduced or eliminated. Approximately 30 more contractor 
mitigation payments should be made in 2009. 

Several coastal contractors and a group of interior contractors felt that the Contractor 
Mitigation Guidelines do not fairly compensate them for the value of their lost contracts. 
The Advisory Board has reviewed all the claims that had been made. The view of the 
Advisory Board is that only two contractors have been able to substantiate their claims. One 
exception was a heli-Iogging contract that had a per cubic metre rale substantially higher than 
the rale paid for conventional logging. The other was a conventional stump to dump 
contractor that worked in an area that provided unusually high profits. Both contractors were 
or are in the process of being mitigated using a rate above the cap. 

The BC Ombudsman's office reviewed the claim of five interior contractors that felt they 
should receive a larger payout and found it to be without merit. All of those contractors 
have now accepted mitigation as detennined by the Contractor Mitigation Guidelines. 

There were two cases where replaceable hauling contractors were able to demonstrate that, in 
their area, recent anns length sales of hauling contracts had been at a rate slightly higher than 
what the mitigation fonnula generated. Slightly higher compensation payments were made 
than would have been made based strictly on the fonnula. 

As of March 31 , 2009, contractor compensation payments, plus revised estimates based on 
pending applications, appear to be approximately 11 .2%, or $7.1 million, above the 
originally projected amounts. This is partially because a higher than projected proportion of 
replaceable contractors appear to be leaving the industry, partially because there will be some 
cost to the BCFRT related to stranded assets, and partially because redundant equipment 
payments are turning out to be higher than projected. Also, two licensees were able to get 
Ministerial Exemptions to a1low them to eliminate more replaceable contractors than the 
original cap on replaceable contract eliminations would have allowed. These extra contractor 
costs will be balanced because it is now clear that t!mployee severances will be lower than 
originally projected. In order to cover the higher than expected contractor mitigation cost, 
$20,000,000 was moved from the Forest Worker Mitigation Account to the Contractor 
Mitigation Account. Based on current estimates. there are sufficient funds in the Contractor 
Mitigation Account to cover all outstanding expected contractor mitigation costs. 

Forest Worker Mitigation Account 

The principle being used for forest worker mitigation is that workers who are severed by a 
Licensee or Replaceable Contractor because of FRA restructuring will receive severance 
from their ex-employer. and that severance will be funded by the BCFRT. The Advisory 
Board felt it was fair that all workers who lose their jobs as a result of FRA restructuring be 
treated the samc. Because the Steelworkers' (previously IWA) contract mandates that 
employees affected by a pennanent logging camp closure receive severance of 10 regular 

3 
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day's pay per year of service, plus 1 011 i hs of a regular day' s pay per completed month of 
service, that standard was used. The detailed calculation and discussion appears in the Forest 
Worker Mitigation Guidelines, and can be found on the BCFRT website. 

As of March 31, 2009, the BCFRT had provided funding for the severance of828 workers, 
for a total cost to the BCFRT of $41 ,612,435. The average severance per employee to date is 
significantly higher than originally projected ($50,257 as opposed to an estimate of$39,828). 
The average is high because a disproportionate amount of the severed workers worked for 
licensees on the coast, and they tended to be crews with above average seniority. Also, it is 
now clear that the total number of employees to be severed, especially in the interior, will be 
lower than projected. A surplus of at least $20,000,000 was originally expected in the 
Employee Mitigation AccOlUlt to deal with employee severance according to the Guidelines. 
This was moved to the Contractor Mitigation Account to cover the shortfall in that Account. 
It now appears there could still be approximately $4.3 million more in the Forest Worker 
Mitigation account than will be required. These funds will be made available at the 
discretion of the Advisory Board to provide mitigation for other forest workers and 
replaceable contractors that have been or will be negatively impacted by provincial 
government land use decisions. 

Looking Abead 

The second quarter of 2009 will likely include the following activity: 

1. Contractors and workers affected by the Teal Jones Forestry Revitalization Plan will 
finally be able to receive their mitigation. 

2. Contractor Mitigation payments will continue to be made to other replaceable 
contractors who lost some or all of their contracts as a result of the FRA. 

3. Severance payments will continue to be made to forest workers for some of the above 
replaceable contractors. 

4. The BCFRT Trustee will continue to meet with licensee and contracfor industry 
associations and organized labour. as well as with individual licensees. contractors, 
worker groups and their advisors, on an as needed basis, to ensure that the mitigation 
process progresses as smoothly, quickly and efficiently as possible. 

s. The Trustee will meet with the Advisory Board to discuss how best to use the 
increased flexibility afforded in providing mitigation to workers and replaceable 
contractors that are affected by government land use decisions that have negative 
impacts on harvesting opportunities. 

Eric van Soeren 
Trustee 
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Be Forestry Revitalization Trust 

January 15, 2009 

Doug Konkin 
Deputy Minister of Forests and Range 
Ministry afForests and Range 
3" Floor, 1520 Blan,hard Street 
P.O. Box 9525 SIn Prov Govt 
Victoria, BC V8W 9C3 

Dear Doug Konkin. 

Re: The Be Forestry Revitalization Trust - 2008 Fourth Quarter Report 

Enclosed for your infonnation is a copy of The Be Forestry Revitalization Trust' s 2008 Fourth 
Quarter Report. 

Thank you for your continued support and involvement in the Trust to date. Please feel free to 
contact me if you wou ld li ke to discuss anything in the report, or The Be Forestry Revitalization 
Trust in general. 

Yours truly, 

Lff/e_f~ 
Eric van Sacren 
Trustee 

encl. 

Eric van Soeren, Trustee 
730 Walker's Hook Road 
Salt Spring Island, Be V8K INS 
www.bcfrt.com 

MtNISTRY OF FORESTS. DMO 
RECEIVEDI' 

DMRL# II B<O L/b 
JAN 202009 

DUE DATE, --==:-:-::::::::; 
DORAFT REPLY DREPLY DIRECT 
D FNA DFYI D FILE 

Phone: 250·537· 1533 
Cell: 
Fax: 250·537· 1534 

Email: eric@;!vansoeren.net 
FNR-2013-00252 
Page 73

s.22



c o 

Be Forestry Revitalization Trust 

Report of the Trustee as of December 31, 2008 

General 

In March 2003 the province of British Columbia established the Be Forestry Revitalization 
Trust (BCFRT) and funded it with $75,000,000. The mandate of the BCFRT was to provide 
mitigation to forest workers and replaceable contractors that arc negatively impacted by 
timber reallocations resulting from the Forestry Revitalization Act (FRA). 

In April 2004 the province appointed Eric van Soeren as Trustee. Shortly after that he 
appointed a seven member Advisory Board. as required by the Trust Deed. That Board 
developed draft Forest Worker Mitigation Guidelines and Contractor Mitigation Guidelines. 

Utilizing the best estimates of industry, seniority estimates obtained from the IW A pension 
plan, seniority estimates obtained from contractor industry associations, and the proposed 
guidelines, the Trustee determined that the BCFRT likely required approximately 
$50,000,000 more than what was available in the BCFRT accounts, plus what the BCFRT 

_ was likely to earn in interest while holding mitigation funds in trust. 

The Trustee and the Advisory Board approached the province and received a commitment for 
the additional funds, so the BCFRT Advisory Board finalized the Contractor Mitigation 
Guidelines and the Forest Worker Mitigation Guidelines. The Guidelines, as well as 
extensive supporting documentation, are posted on the BCFRT website. 

Roll over of the BCFRT 

The original BCFRT was slated to terminate effective March 31 , 2008. However, for a 
variety of reasons it was not possible to mitigate all the e ligible beneficiaries of the BCFRT 
by that time. Further, estimates at that time suggested that even once all the existing 
benefic iaries receive mitigation, there would still be funds left in the BCFRT. Therefore, it 
was agreed by the Trustee, the Province and the Advisory Board members that the BCFRT 
should be extended, the group of potential beneficiaries be expanded, and the Trustee be 
given limited discretion to deem that individuals who would not otherwise be eligible 
beneficiaries of the BCFRT be included. The Minister of Forests and Range and the Trustee 
signed a new Declaration of Trust, and all assets and obligations of the BCFRT were 
assumed by the new BCFRT II. A copy of the Declaration of Trust that created the BCFRT 
II is posted on the BCFRT website at www.bcfrt.com. The new trust is essentially a rollover 
of the original BCFRT, but with slightly expanded beneficiaries and no fixed termination 
date. It also allows for mitigation to be made available to workers and replaceable 
contractors that might be negatively affected by future land use decisions. 

Eric van Soeren, Trustee 
730 Walker's Hook Road 
Salt Spring Island, B.C. V8K 1 N5 
www.bcfu.com 

Phone: 250-537-1533 
Cell: 
Fax: 250-537- 1534 

Email: eric@;!vansoeren.net 
FNR-2013-00252 
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Account Balances as at December 31, 2008 

Account Balances 
Administration Account 
Contractor Mitigation Account 
Forest Worker Mitigation Account 
Funds held in reserve by Ministry of Forests and Range 

Total market value of BCFRT accounts 

Distributions to Beneficiaries to date 
Contractor Mitigation 
Forest Worker Mitigation 

Total Distributions to Beneficiaries 

Total available funds plus distributions 

Administration Account 

$4,540,553 
$6,404,831 
$5,986,038 

$10,000,000 
$26,931,422 

$65,626,410 
$41,520,101 

$107,146,511 

$\34,077,933 

When the BCFRT was created, $5,000,000 was allocated to administration. To date, most of 
thc administration expenses of the BCFRT have been covered by the interest earned on the 
Administration Account balance, so the initial principal has been reduced by approximately 
$460,000. A significant portion of the Administration Account will be able to be transferred 
to one of the Mitigation Accounts at a later date, and on an as needed basis. 

Contractor Mitigation Account 

The principle used for contractor mitigation is that contractors who lost their replaceable 
contracts as a result of Forestry Revitalization Act (FRA) restructuring received mitigation 
that approximates what the contract might reasonably have been worth at the time it was 
reduced or eliminated. This was usually based on a per cubic metre value, but contracts that 
were based on some other measure were treated accordingly. A detailed description of the 
calculation that was used is contained in the Contractor Mitigation Guidelines. 

As of December 31 2008, Forestry Revitalization Proposals (FRPs) have been presented for 
99.9% of the reallocated volume in the Province. The last date for submitting an FRP was 
July 31 , 2006, so the replaceable contracts of the licensee that did not submit a FRP were 
subject to proportionate reduction. The Coastal FRP submitted by Teal Jones was rejected 
by its contractors, as was a revised FRP. This necessitated an extension of the mandate of 
the BCFRT, so that the workers and contractors that are ultimately negatively impacted by 
the Teal Jones AAe reduction can receive appropriate mitigation. Council for Teal Jones 
suggests it may be a year or more before the issue is resolved. The issue has recently been 
complicated by the fact that the main opponent to the Teal Jones FRA was Hayes Forest 
Services, and it is under Companies Creditors Arrangement Act protection. A negotiated 

- settlement between Teal Jones and Hayes Forest Services, its major replaceable contractor. 

'-

2 FNR-2013-00252 
Page 75



--

o o 
may resolve the issue in a more timely manner. In the meantime, a December BCFRT 
Advisory Board meeting authorized the Trustee to commence mitigation of the other Teal 
Jones replaceable contractors. 

As of December 31,2008, $65,626,410 had been paid in contractor mitigation related to 295 
affected contracts. Discussions are undern.ay with other replaceable contractors whose 
contracts have been or may be reduced or eliminated. Approximately 30 more contractor 
mitigation payments should be made early in 2009. 

Several coastal contractors and a group of interior contractors felt that the Contractor 
Mitigation Guidelines do not fairly compensate them for the value of their lost contracts. 
The Advisory Board has reviewed all the claims that had been made. The view of the 
Advisory Board is that only two contractors have been able to substantiate their claims. One 
exception was a heli-Iogging contract that had a per cubic metre rate substantially higher than 
the rate paid for conventional logging. The other was a conventional stump to dump 
contractor that worked in an area that provided unusually high profits. Both contractors were 
mitigated using a rate above the cap. 

The Be Ombudsman's office reviewed the claim oftive interior contractors that felt they 
should receive a larger payout and found it to be without merit. All of those contractors 
have now accepted mitigation as determined by the Contractor Mitigation Guidelines. 

There were two cases where replaceable hauling contractors were able to demonstrate that in 
their area, recent arms length sales of hauling contracts had been at a rate slightly higher than 
what the mitigation fonnula generated. Slightly higher compensation payments were made 
than would have been made based strictly on the formula. 

As of December 31 , 2008. contractor compensation payments, plus revised estimates based 
on pending applications. appear to be approximately 12.8%, or $8.1 million, above the 
originally projected amounts. This is partially because a higher than projected proportion of 
replaceable contractors appear to be leaving the industry, partially because there will be some 
cost to the BCFRT related to stranded assets, and partially because redundant equipment 
payments are turning out to be higher than projected. Also, two licensees were able to get 
Ministerial Exemptions to allow them to eliminate more replaceable contractors than the 
original cap on replaceable contract eliminations would have allowed. These extra contractor 
costs will be balanced because it is now clear that employee severances will be lower than 
originally projected. In order to cover the higher than expected contractor mitigation cost, 
$20,000,000 was moved from the Forest Worker Mitigation Account to the Contractor 
Mitigation Account. Based on current estimates, there are sufficient funds in the Contractor 
Mitigation Account to cover all outstanding expected contractor mitigation costs . 

Forest Worker Mitigation Account 

The principle being used for forest worker mitigation is that workers who are severed by a 
- Licensee or Replaceable Contractor because of FRA restructuring will receive severance -
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from their ex-employer, and that severance will be funded by the BCFRT. The Advisory 
Board felt it was fair that all workers who lose their jobs as a result of FRA restructuring be 
treated the same. Because the Steelworkers' (previously IWA) contract mandates that 
employees affected by a permanent logging camp closure receive severance of 10 regular 
day's pay per year of service. plus I Oil 2'hs ofa regular day's pay per completed month of 
service, that standard was used. The detailed calculation and discussion appears in the Forest 
Worker Mitigation Guidelines, and can be found on the BCFRT website. 

As of December 31, 2008, the BCFRT had provided funding for the severance of827 
workers, for a total cost to the BCFRT 0[$41,520,101. The average severance per employee 
to date is significantly higher than originally projected ($50,284) as opposed to an estimate of 
$39,828}. The average is high because a disproportionate amount of the severed workers 
worked for licensees on the coast, and they tended to be crews with above average seniority. 
Also, it is now clear that the total number of employees to be severed, especially in the 
interior, will be lower than projected. A surplus of at least $20,000,000 was originally 
expected in the Employee Mitigation Account to deal with employee severance according to 
the Guidelines. This was moved to the Contractor Mitigation Account to cover the shortfall 
in that Account. It now appears there could still be approximately 4.7 million dollars more in 
the Forest Worker Mitigation account than will be required. These funds will be made 
available at the di scretion of the Advisory Board to provide mitigation for other forest 
workers and replaceable contractors that have been or will be negatively impacted by 
provincial government land use decisions. 

Looking Ahead 

The first quarter 0[2009 will likely include the following activity: 

I. Contractor Mitigation payments will continue to be made to replaceable contractors 
who lost some or all of their contracts as a result of the FRA. 

2. Severance payments will continue to be made to forest workers for some of the above 
licensees, and some o~ their replaceable contractors. 

3. The BCFRT Trustee will continue 10 meet with licensee and contractor industry 
associations and organized labour, as well as with individual licensees, contractors, 
worker groups and their advisors, on an as needed basis, to ensure that the mitigation 
process progresses as smoothly, quickly and efficiently as possible. 

4. The Trustee will meet with the Advisory Board to discuss how best to use the 
increased flexibility afforded in providing mitigation to workers and replaceable 
contractors that are affected by government land use decisions that have negative 
impacts on harvesting opportunities. 

Eric van Soeren 
- Trustee 

'-' 
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BC Forestry Revitalization Trust 

J 0\~ 
~15,2008 

Doug Konkin 
Deputy Minister of Forests and Range 
Ministry of Forests and Range 
3rd Floor, 1520 Blanshard Street 
P.O. Box 9525 Stn Prov Govt 
Victoria, BC V8W 9C3 

Dear Doug Konkin, 

MINISTRY OF FORESTS. DMO 
RICIIVID 

DMRL# _:..:.11...;.'1-..;..'1...;.1-.008 __ _ 

JUl 232008 

DUE DATE : 
ODRAFT REPLY DREPLY DIRECT 
DFNA 0 FYI r;JmE 

Re: The BC For stry Revitalization Trust - 2008 Second Quarter Report 

Enclosed for your i onnation is a copy of The Be Forestry Revitalization Trust's 2008 Second 
Quarter Report. 

Thank yOll for UT continued support and involvement in the Trust to date. Please feel free to 
contact me if ou would like to discuss anything in the report, or The Be Forestry Revitalization 
Trust in ge ral. 

Eric van Soeren 
Trustee 

eDcl. 

Eric van Soeren, Trustee 
730 Walker's Hook Road 
Salt Spring Island, Be V8K IN5 
www.bcfit.com 

Phone: 250-537- 1533 
Cell: 
Fax: 250-537-1534 

Email: eric(Q)vansoeren .net 
FNR-2013-00252 
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BC Forestry Revitalization Trust 

Report of the Trustee as of June 30, 2008 

General 

In March 2003 the province of British Columbia established the BC Forestry Revitalization 
Trust (BCFRT) and funded it with $75,000,000. The mandate of the BCFRT is to provide 
mitigation to forest workers and replaceable contractors that arc negtltivcly impacted by 
timber reallocations resulting from the Forestry Revitalization Act (FRA). 

In April 2004 the province appointed Eric van Saeren as Trustee. Shortly after that he 
appointed a seven member Advisory Board, as required by the Trust Deed. That Board 
developed draft Forest Worker Mitigation Guidelines and Contractor Mitigation Guidelines. 

Utilizing the best estimates of industry, seniority estimates obtained from the IWA pension 
plan, seniority estimates obtained from contractor industry associations, and the proposed 
guidelines, the Trustee detennined that the BCFRT likely required approximately 
$50;000,000 more than what was available in the BCFRT accounts, plus what the BCFRT 
was likely to earn in interest while holding mitigation funds in trust. 

The Trustee and the Advisory Board approached the province and received a commitment for 
the additional funds, so the BCFRT Advisory Board finalized the Contractor Mitigation 
Guidelines and the Forest Worker Mitigation Guidelines. The Guidelines, as well as 
extensive supporting documentation, are posted on the BCFRT website. 

Account Balances as at June 30, 2008 

Account Balances 
Administration Account 
Contractor Mitigation Account 
Forest Worker Mitigation Account 
Funds held in reserve by Ministry of Forests and Range 

Total market value of BeFRT accounts 

Distributions to Beneficiaries to date 
Contractor Mitigation 
Forest Worker Mitigation 

Total Distributions to Beneficiaries 

Total available funds plus distributions 

Eric \fan Soeren, Trustee 
730 Walker's Hook Road 
Salt Spring Island, B.C. V8K IN5 
www.bcfrt.com 

$4,593,53 I 
$8,915,453 
$6,504,476 

$10,000,000 
$30,013,460 

$62,993,092 
$40,892,617 

$ 103,885,709 

$133,899,169 

Phone: 250-537-1533 
Cell :
Fax: 250-537-1 534 

Email: eric@}\fansoeren.net 
FNR-2013-00252 
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Administration Account 

When the BCFRT was created, $5,000,000 was allocated to administration. To date, most of 
the administration expenses of the BCFRT have been covered by the interest earned on the 
Administration Account balance, so the initial principal has been reduced by approximately 
$400,000. A significant portion of the Administration Account will be able to be transferred 
to one of the Mitigation Accounts at a later date, and on an as needed basis. 

Contractor Mitigation Account 

The principle being used for contractor mitigation is that contractors who lose their 
replaceable contracts as a result of Forestry Revitalization Act (FRA) restructuring will 
receive mitigation that approximates what the contract might reasonably have been worth at 
the time it was reduced or eliminated. Generally. this will be based on a per cubic metre 
value, but contracts that were calculated based on some other measure will be treated 
accordingly. A detailed description of the calculation to be used is contained in the 
Contractor Mitigation Guidelines. 

As of June 30, 2008, Forestry Revitalization Proposals (FRPs) have been presented for 
99.9% of the reallocated volume in the Province. The last date for submitting a FRP was 
July 31, 2006, so the replaceable contracts of the licensee that did not submit a FRP are 
subject to proportionate reduction. The Coastal FRP submitted by Teal Jones was rejected 
by its contractors, as was a revised FRP. The court decision is being appealed, and council 
for Teal Jones suggests it may be a year or more before the issue is resolved. This 
necessitated an extension of the mandate of the BCFRT, so that the workers and contractors 
that are ultimately negatively impacted by the Teal Jones AAC reduction can receive 
appropriate mitigation. 

Also as of June 3D, 2008, $62,993,092 had been paid in contractor mitigation related to 283 
affected contracts. Discussions are underway with other replaceable contractors whose 
contracts have been or may be reduced or eliminated. Therefore, many more contractor 
mitigation payments should be made during 2008. It appears approx imately 326 contracts 
will be reduced or eliminated as a result of the Forestry Revitalization Act timber 
reallocation. 

Several coastal contractors and a group of interior contractors felt that the Contractor 
Mitigation Guidelines do not fairly compensate them for the value of their lost contracts. 
The Advisory Board has reviewed all but one of the claims that had been made. The view of 
the Advisory Board to date is that only one contractor has been able to substantiate its claim 
that the formula or the cap used in the Contractor Mitigation Guidelines is not appropriate. 
The only exception was a heli-logging contract that had a per cubic metre rate substantially 
higher than the rate paid for conventional logging. That contractor was mitigated using a rate 
above the cap. The Be Ombudsman's office has also reviewed the claim of the interior 
contractors and found it to be without merit. AI! of those contractors have nuw accepted 
mitigation as determined by the Contractor Mitigation Guidelines. 
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There were two cases where replaceable hauling contractors were able to demonstrate that in 
their area, recent arms length purchases and sales of hauling contracts had been at a rate 
slightly higher than what the mitigation fonnula generated. In those two cases, slightly 
higher compensation payments were made than would have been made based strictly on the 
formula. However, this increased payment was contemplated in the Contractor Mitigation 
Guidelines. One remaining Coastal Contractor believes it should receive larger mitigation 
payments than the formula and cap will allow. A business valuer has been retained to review 
its claim. The report and claim will be considered at a future Advisory Board meeting. 

As of June 30, 2008, contractor compensation payments, plus revised estimates based on 
applications to that date, appear to be approximately 10.9%, or $6.9 million, above the 
originally projected amounts. This is partially because a higher than projected proportion of 
replaceable contractors appear to be leaving the industry, partially because there will be some 
cost to the BCFRT related to stranded assets, and partially because redundant equipment 
payments are turning out to be higher than projected. Also, two licensees were able to get 
Ministerial Exemptions to allow them to eliminate more replaceable contractors than the 
original cap on replaceable contract eliminations would have allowed. These extra contractor 
costs will be balanced because it is now clear that employee severances will be lower than 
originally projected. In order to cover the higher than expected contractor mitigation cost, 
$20,000,000 was moved from the Forest Worker Mitigation Account to the Contractor 
Mitigation Account. 

Forest Worker Mitigation Account 

The principle being used for forest worker mitigation is that workers who are severed by a 
Licensee or Replaceable Contractor because of FRA restructuring will receive severance 
from their ex-employer. and that severance will be funded by the BCFRT. The Advisory 
Board felt it was fair that all workers who lose their jobs as a result of FRA restructuring be 
treated the same. Because the Steelworkers' (previously TWA) contract mandates that 
employees affected by a permanent logging camp closure receive severance of 10 regular 
day's pay per year of service, plus 1011 i hs of a regular day's pay per completed month of 
service, that standard was used. The detailed calculation and discussion appears in the Forest 
Worker Mitigation Guidelines, and can be found on the BCFRT website. 

As of June 30, 2008, the BCFRT had provided funding for the severance of 809 workers, for 
a total cost to the BCFRT of$40,892,617. The average severance per employee to date is 
significantly higher than originally projected ($50,643) as opposed to an estimate of 
$39,828). The average is high because a disproportionate amount of the severed workers 
worked for licensees on the coast, and they tended to be crews with above average seniority. 
Also, it is now clear that the total number of employees to be severed, especially in the 
interior, will be lower than projected. A surplus of at least $20,000,000 was expected in the 
Employee Mitigation Account to deal with employee severance according to the Guidelines. 
This was moved to the Contractor Mitigation Account to cover the shortfall in that Account. 
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Roll over of the BCFRT 

The original BCFRT was slated to tenninate effective March 3 1, 2008. However, for a 
variety of reasons, including those mentioned above. it was not possible to mitigate all the 
eligible beneficiaries of the BCFRT by that time. Further, current estimates suggest that even 
once all the existing beneficiaries receive mitigation, there would still be funds left in the 
BCFRT. Therefore, it was agreed by the Trustee, the Province and the Advisory Board 
members that the BCFRT should be extended, the group of potential beneficiaries be 
expanded, and the Trustee be given limited discretion to deem that individuals who would 
not otherwise be eligible beneficiaries of the BCFRT be included. The Minister of Forests 
and Range and the Trustee signed a new Declaration ofTmst, and all assets and obligations 
of the BCFRT were assumed by the new BCFRT II . A copy of the Declaration ofTrust that 
created the BCFRT II will be posted on the BCFRT website at www.bcfrt.com. The new 
trust is essentially a roll over of the original BCFRT, but with slightly expanded beneficiaries 
and no fixed termination date. It also allows for mitigation to be made available to workers 
and contractors that might be negatively affected by future land use decisions. 

Looking Ahead 

The third quarter of2008 will likely include the following activity: 

I. Contractor Mitigation payments will continue to be made to replaceable contractors 
who lost some or all of their contracts as a result of those FRPs. 

2. Severance payments will continue to be made to forest workers for some of the above 
licensees, and some of their replaceable contractors. 

3. The BCFRT Trustee will continue to meet with licensee and contractor industry 
associations and organized labour, as well as with individual licensees, contractors, 
worker groups and their advisors on an as needed basis, to ensure that the mitigation 
process progresses as smoothly, quickly and efficientl y as possible. 

4 . The Trustee will meet with the Advisory Board to discuss how best to use the 
increased flexibility afforded in providing mitigation to workers and contractors that 
are affected by government land use decisions that have negative impacts on 
harvesting opportunities. 

Eric van Soeren 
Trustee 
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Gillis, Shelli FOR:EX 

Subject: FW: Be Forestry Revitalization Trust - 2008 Second Quarter Report 

-----Original Message-- - - -
From : eric@vansoeren . net [mail to:eric@vansoeren.net) 
Sent : Thursday, July 24 , 2008 8 :2 1 AM 
To : Gillis , Shelli FOR :EX 
Subject : Re : Be Forestry Revitalization Trust - 2008 Second Quarter Report 

Shelli , Looks li ke I ran i nto a find and replace problem . I sent the same cover letter to 
ten people , but on l y the one to the Minister had the correct July 15 , 2008 date . At least 
t hey all mention that this is the second quarter r epor t, so that find and change did work , 
since the April 15 letter referred to the fi r s t quarte r report . Thanks for the head s 
up . Eric van Soerenphone : 250- 537- 1S33fax: 250 - 537 - 1S34email : eric@vansoeren.net--- On 
Wed, 7/23/08 , Gill i ~, Shelli FOR : EX <Shelli . Gi 11is@gov .bc . ca> wrote : > From : Gilli~ , Shelli 
FOR:EX <Shelli . Gillis@gov.bc . ca» Subject : BC Forestry Revitalization Trust - 2008 Second 
Quar t er Report> To : eric@vansoeren . net> Da t e: Wednesday , July 23 , 2008 , 3 : 10 PM> Hi Eric,> 
> I was as ked to f i nd out from you if the cover page f or the> letter we> received today 
(accompanied by the Report of the Trustee as> of June> 30th) should still have the wr itten 
date of April 15/08 as> the report> from May also did? > > Than ks!> > Shelli Gillis> 
Receptionist> Deputy Minister ' s Office> Minist r y of Forests and Range> 3rd Floor, 1520 
B1anshard St . > Victoria , Be V8W 3K2> > Ph : (250) 387 - 4809 Fax: (250) 953- 3687 
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April 15, 2008 

Dear Doug Konkin, 

Re: The BC Forestry Revitalization Trust - 2008 First Quarter Report 

Enclosed for your infonnation is a copy of The Be Forestry Revitalization Trust's 2008 First 
Quarter Report. 

Thank you for your continued support and involvement in the Trust to date. Please feel free to 
contact me if you would like to discuss anything in the report, or The Be Forestry Revitalization 
Trust in general. 

Yours truly, 

~//~L 
Eric van Soeren 
Trustee 

enc!. 

Eric van Soeren, Trustee 
730 Walker's Hook Road 
Salt Spring Island, Be V8K IN5 
www.bcfrt.com 

Phone: 250-537-1 533 
Cell: 
Fax: 250-537- 1534 

Email: eric(a)vansoeren.net 
FNR-2013-00252 
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BC Forestry Revitalization Trust 

Report of the Trustee as of March 31,2008 

General 

In March 2003 lhe province of British Columbia established the BC Forestry Revitalization 
Trust (BCFRT) and funded it with $75,000,000. The mandate ofthe BCFRT is to provide 
mitigation to forest workers and replaceable contractors that are negatively impacted by 
timber reallocations resulting from the Forestry Revitalization Act (FRA). 

In April 2004 the province appointed Eric van Soeren as Trustee. Shortly after that he 
appointed a seven member Advisory Board, as required by the Trust Deed. That Board 
developed draft Forest Worker Mitigation Guidelines and Contractor Mitigation Guidelines. 

Utilizing the best estimates of industry, seniority estimates obtained from the IWA pension 
plan, seniority estimates obtained from contractor industry associations, and the proposed 
guidelines, the Trustee detennined that the BCFRT likely required approximately 
$50,000,000 more than what was available in the BCFRT accounts, plus what the BCFRT 
was likely to eam in interest while holding mitigation funds in trust. 

The Trustee and the Advisory Board approached the province and received a commitment for 
the additional funds, so the BCFRT Advisory Board finalized the Contractor Mitigation 
Guidelines and the Forest Worker Mitigation Guidelines. The Guidelines, as well as 
extensive supporting documentation, are posted on the BCFRT website. 

Account Balances as at March 31, 2008 

Account Balances 
Administration Account 
Contractor Mitigation Account 
Forest Worker Mitigation Account 
Funds held in reserve by Ministry of Forests and Range 

Total market value of BCFRT accounts 

Distributions to Beneficiaries to date 
Contractor Mitigation 
Forest Worker Mitigation 

Total Distributions to Beneficiaries 

Total available funds plus distributions 

Eric van $oeren, Trustee 
6705 London Drive 
Delta, B.C. V4K 4W7 
www.hcfrt.com 

$4,608,596 
$9,891,815 
$6,818,655 

$10,000,000 
$31,319,066 

$63,8 I 5, 168 
$40,545,975 

$104,361,143 

$135,680,209 

Phone: 604-940-0850 
Cell: 
Fax: 604-940-0858 

Email: eric@lvansoeren.net 
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Administration Account 

When the BCFRT was created, $5,000,000 was allocated to administration. To date, most of 
the administration expenses of the BCFRT have been covered by the interest earned on the 
Administration Account balance, so the initial principal has been reduced by approximately 
$400,000. A significant portion of the Administration Account will be able to be transferred 
to one of the Mitigation Accounts at a later date, and on an as needed basis. 

Contractor Mitigation Account 

The principle being used for contractor mitigation is that contractors who lose their 
replaceable contracts as a result of Forestry Revitalization Act (FRA) restructuring will 
receive mitigation that approximates what the contract might reasonably have been worth at 
the time it was reduced or eliminated. Generally, thi s will be based on a per cubic metre 
value, but contracts that were calculated based on some other measure will be treated 
accordingly. A detailed description of the calculation to be used is contained in the 
Contractor Mitigation Guidelines. 

As of March 31, 2008, Forestry Revitalization Proposals (FRPs) have been presented for 
99.9% of the reallocated volwne in the Province. The last date for submitting a FRP was 
July 31 , 2006, so the replaceable contracts of the licensee that did not submit a FRP are 
subject to proportionate reduction. The Coastal FRP submitted by Teal Jones was rejected 
by its contractors, as was a revised FRP. The court decision is being appealed, and council 
for Teal Jones suggests it may be a year or more before the issue is resolved. This 
necessitated an extension of the mandate of the BCFRT, so that the workers and contractors 
that are ultimately negatively impacted by the Teal Jones AAC reduction can receive 
appropriate mitigation. 

Also as of March 31, 2008, $63,815,168 had been paid in contractor mitigation related to 275 
affected contracts. Discussions arc underway with other replaceable contractors whose 
contracts have been or may be reduced or eliminated. Therefore, many more contractor 
mitigation payments should be made during 2008. It appears approximately 327 contracts 
will be reduced or eliminated as a result of the Forestry Revitalization Act timber 
reallocation. 

Several coastal contractors and a group of interior contractors felt that the Contractor 
Mitigation Guidelines do not fairly compensate them for the value of their lost contracts. 
The Advisory Board has reviewed all but one of the claims that had been made. The view of 
the Advisory Board to date is that only one contractor has been able to substantiate its claim 
that the fonnula or the cap used in the Contractor Mitigation Guidelines is not appropriate. 
The only exception was a heli·logging contract that had a per cubic metre rate substantially 
higher than the rate paid for conventional logging. That contractor was mitigated using a rate 
above the cap. The BC Ombudsman's office has also reviewed the claim of the interior 
contractors and found it to be without merit. All of those contractors have now accepted 
mitigation as detennined by the Contractor Mitigation Guidelines. 
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There were two cases where replaceable hauling contractors were able to demonstrate that in 
their area, recent arms length purchases and sales of hauling contracts had been at a rate 
slightly higher than what the mitigation formula generated. In those two cases, slightly 
higher compensation payments were made than would have been made based strictly on the 
formula. However, this increased payment was contemplated in the Contractor Mitigation 
Guidelines. One remaining Coastal Contractor believes it should receive larger mitigation 
payments than the formula and cap will allow. A business valuer has been retained to review 
its claim. The report and claim will be considered at a future Advisory Board meeting. 

As of March 31, 2008, contractor compensation payments, plus revised estimates based on 
applications to that date, appear to be approximately 10.7%, or $6.8 million, above the 
originally projected amounts. This is partially because a higher than projected proportion of 
replaceable contractors appear to be leaving the industry, partially because there will be some 
cost to the BCFRT related to stranded assets, and partially because redundant equipment 
payments are turning out to be higher than projected. Also, two licensees were able to get 
Ministerial Exemptions to allow them to eliminate more replaceable contractors than the 
original cap on replaceable contract eliminations would have allowed. These extra contractor 
costs will be balanced because it is now clear that employee severances will be lower than 
originally projected. In order to cover the higher than expected contractor mitigation cost, 
$20,000,000 was moved from the Forest Worker Mitigation Account to the Contractor 
Mitigation Account. 

Forest Worker Mitigation Account 

The principle being used for forest worker mitigation is that workers who are severed by a 
Licensee or Replaceable Contractor because of FRA restructuring will receive severance 
from their ex-employer, and that severance will be funded by the BCfRT. The Advisory 
Board felt it was fair that all workers who lose their jobs as a result of FRA restructuring be 
treated the same. Because the Steelworkers' (previously IWA) contract mandates that 
employees affected by a permanent logging camp closure receive severance of 10 regular 
day' s pay per year of service, plus 1 OI12'hs of a regular day' s pay per completed month of 
service, that standard was used. The detailed calculation and discussion appears in the Forest 
Worker Mitigation Guidelines, and can be found on the BCFRT website. 

As of March 31, 2008, the BCFR T had provided funding for the severance of 805 workers, 
for a total cost to the BCFRT of $40,545,975. The average severance per employee to date is 
significantly higher than originally projected ($50,368) as opposed to an estimate of 
$39,828). The average is high because a disproportionate amount of the severed workers 
worked for licensees on the coast, and they tended to be crews with above average seniority. 
Also, it is now clear that the total number of employees to be severed, especially in the 
interior, will be lower than projected. A surplus of at least $20,000,000 was expected in the 
Employee Mitigation Account to deal with employee severance according to the Guidelines. 
This was moved to the Contractor Mitigation Account to cover the shortfall in that Account. 
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Roll over of the BCFRT 

The original BCFRT was slated to tenninate effective March 3 t. 2008. However, for a 
variety of reasons, including those mentioned above, it was not possible to mitigate a1l the 
eligible beneficiaries of the BCFRT by that time. Further, current estimates suggest that even 
once all the existing beneficiaries receive mitigation, there would still be funds left in the 
BCFRT. Therefore, it was agreed by the Trustee, the Province and the Advisory Board 
members that the BCFRT should be extended, the group of potential beneficiaries be 
expanded, and the Trustee be given limited discretion to deem that individuals who would 
not otherwise be eligible beneficiaries of the BCFRT be included. The Minister afForests 
and Range and the Trustee signed a new Declaration of Trust, and all assets and obligations 
of the BCFRT were a<;sumed by the new BCFRT II. A copy of the Declaration of Trust that 
created the BCFRT II will be posted on the BCFRT website at wwv.'.bcfrt.com. The new 
trust is essentially a roll over of the original BCFRT, but with slightly expanded beneficiaries 
and no fixed termination date. It also allows for mitigation to be made available to workers 
and contractors that might be negatively affected by future land use decisions. 

Looking Ahead 

The second quarter of 2008 will likely include the following activity: 

I. Contractor Mitigation payments will continue to be made to replaceable contractors 
who lost some or all of their contracts as a result of those FRPs. 

2. Severance payments will continue to be made to forest workers for some of the above 
licensees, and some of their replaceable contractors. 

3. The BCFRT Trustee will continue to meet with licensee and contractor industry 
associations and organized labour, as well as with individual licensees, contractors, 
worker groups and their advisors on an as needed basis, to ensure that the mitigation 
process progresses as smoothly, quickly and efficiently as possible. 

4. The Trustee will meet with the Advisory Board 10 di scuss how best to use the 
increased flexibility afforded in providing mitigation to workers and contractors that 
are affected by government land use decisions that have negative impacts on 
harvesting opportunities. 

Eric van Soeren 
Trustee 
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Be Forestry Revitalization Trust 

February 29, 2008 

Doug Konkin 
Deputy Minister of For ts and Range 
Ministry of Forests (t Range 
3'" Floor, 1520 BI shard Street 
P.O. Box 9525 n PrOy GOyt 

Victoria, BC 8W 9C3 

Dear Doug Konkin, 

MIN!STRY OF FORESTS, DMO 
RiECEIVED 

DMRL# 1\ '--SZb 

MAR 1 1 2008 
(lLiJ~€ L 

DUE DATE: 

DORAFT REPLY o REPLY DIRECT 
. OFNA OFYI ~ILE 

Re: The BC Forestry Revitalization Trust - 2007 Annual Report 

Enclosed for your information is a copy of The Be Forestry Revitalization Trust's 2007 Annual 
Report. 

Thank you for your continued support and involvement in the Trust to date. Please feel free to 
contact me if you would like to discuss anything in the report, or The Be Forestry Revitalization 
Trust in general. 

Yours truly, 

fr.~~y~ 
Eric van Soeren 
Trustee 

cocl. 

Eric van Socren, Trustee 
tj705 London Drive 
Delta, H.C. V4K 4W7 
www.bcfrt.com 

Phone: 604-940-0850 
Cell; 604-3 18-6259 
Frue 604-940-0858 

Email: eric@vansoeren.nel 
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Be Forestry Revitalization Trust 

Report of the Trustee 

In March 2003 the province of British Columbia established the Be Forestry Revitalization 
Trust (BCFRT) and funded it with $75,000,000. The mandate of the BCFRT is to provide 
mitigation to forest workers and replaceable contractors that are negatively impacted by 
timber reallocations resulting from the Forestry Revitalization Act. 

In April 2004 the province appointed Eric van Soeren as Trustee. Shortly after that he 
appointed a seven member Advisory Board, as required by the Trust Deed. Advisory Board 
membership as of year-end was as follows: 

John Allan, Board Member representing the Council afForest Industries 
Jim Girvan, Board Member representing the Truck Loggers Association 
Monty Mearnes, Board Member representing the United Steelworkers of 

America - IW A Council 
Tim Menning, Board Member representing the Interior Logging 

Association, the Central Interior Loggers Association and the North 
West Logging Association 

David Morel, Board Member representing the Ministry of Forests and 
Range 

Darrel Wong, Board Member representing the United Steelworkers of 
America - rw A COWlcil 

Rick Jeffrey, Board Member representing the Coast Forest Products 
Association 

During 2004 the Advisory Board developed draft forest worker and contractor mitigation 
guidelines. In order to develop an estimate of the cost of those guidelines, the Trustee polled 
all the major licensees that were to lose some of their allowable annual cut. They were asked 
to provide their best estimate of the effect of the timber reallocation on their workers, their 
contractors, and their contractors' workers. The Trustee received a 100% response rate from 
Coastal licensees, and a 90% response rate in the Interior. The main reason for the lower 
response in the Interior was the lack of a response from New Skeena, which was involved in 
bankruptcy proceedings. 

Utilizing the best estimates of industry, seniority estimates obtained from the JW A pension 
pla~ seniority estimates obtained from contractor industry associations, and the proposed 
guidelines, the Trustee anived at an estimated cost of delivering the proposed guidelines. 
Based on that estimate, the Trustee detennined that the BCFRT required approximately 
$50,000,000 more than what was available in the BCFRT accounts as of December 31, 2004, 
plus what the BCFRT would likely earn in interest while holding mitigation funds in trust. 

The Trustee and the Advisory Board approached the province to attempt to get sufficient 
extra funds to allow the draft mitigation guidelines to be finalized. On January 21, 2005 the 
Premier made a public commitment to ask the BC Legislature to approve the required extra 
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$50,000,000. On February 22, 2005 the legislature approved the request. Of that amount, 
$40,000,000 was transferred to the BCFRT, and $10,000,000 has been held back by the 
Ministry of Forests and Range pending confinnation that the funds will be required. 
Therefore, the draft guidelines were finalized . 

Significant mitigation payments have been made as of December 31 . 2007. Based on the 
Forestry Revitalization Proposals (FRPs) and related mitigation applications received to date, 
it is clear that contractor mitigation costs and employee mitigation costs per severed 
employee arc higher than originally expected. However, the total number of severed 
employees is significantly lower than originally expected. A combination of reasonable 
investment returns, lower than expected administration costs, and lower than expected total 
severance costs have more than compensated for higher than expected contractor mitigation 
costs . 

Therefore, as ofthe end of 2007, the Trustee believes the funds already in the BCFRT will be 
sufficient to make future required mitigation payments based on the Contractor and Worker 
Mitigation Guidelines, and it will not be necessary to draw down on the $10,000,000 that has 
been committed to the BCFRT by the Ministry of Forests and Range. 

Administration Account 

When the BCFRT was created, $5 million was allocated to administration. To date, 
administration expenses of the BCFRT have been slightly more than the interest eanned by 
the Administration Account, so the initial principal has only been reduced to $4.6 million. It 
appears likely that a portion of the Administration Account will be able to be transferred to 
one of the Mitigation Accounts at a later date, and on an as needed basis. 

Contractor Mitigation Account 

The principle being used for contractor mitigation is that contractors who lose their 
replaceable contracts as a result of Forestry Revitalization Act (FRA) timber reallocation will 
receive mitigation that approximates what the contract might reasonably have been worth at 
the time it was reduced or eliminated. Generally, this will be based on a per cubic metre 
value, but contracts that were calculated based on some other measure will be treated 
accordingly. A detailed description of the calculation to be used is in the Contractor 
Mitigation Guidelines, which can be found by following the links to Contractor Mitigation 
Guidelines on the BCFRT website at www.bcfrtcom. 

As of December 31 , 2007, the holders of 262 replaceable contracts had been partially or 
completely compensated for the loss of their replaceable contractual rights. Total contractor 
compensation paid out as of December 31 , 2007 was $60,879,740 . 

Forest Worker Mitigation Account 

The principle being used for forest worker mitigation is that workers who are severed 
because ofFRA timber reallocation will receive severance paid to them by their employer, 

FNR-2013-00252 
Page 92



-.. 
-.. 
-.. 
-.. 
-
.. 
-.. 
-.. 
-----.. .. .. 
-.. 
.. 
-
-.. 
.. 
-

, 

o o 
but funded by the BCFRT. The Advisory Board felt it was fair that all employees of 
licensees and replaceable contractors who lose their jobs as a result ofFRA timber 
reallocation be treated the same. Because the Steelworkers (previously rw A) contract 
mandates that employees affected by a permanent logging camp closure receive severance of 
10 regular days pay per year of service, plus 10/12'" ofa regular day's pay per completed 
month of service, that standard was used. The detailed calculation and discussion appears in 
the Forest Worker Mitigation Guidelines, which can be fOWld by following the links to 
Forest Worker Mitigation Guidelines on the BCFRT website at www.hcfi1.com. 

As of December 31, 2007, severance payments had heen made to 802 forest workers, at a 
total cost to the BCFRT of$40,470,806. 

Termination of the Be Forestry Revitalization Trust 

The Trust Deed that created the Be Forestry Revitalization Trust calls for the termination of 
the Trust by March 31, 2008. However, approximately 60 contractors and an unknown 
number of employees still need to be dealt with. Of those, mitigation for 14 replaceable 
contractors cannot be resolved yet because the Forestry Revitalization Proposal that relates to 
them is being disputed and is before the courts. Several of the other replaceable contractors 
are either having difficulty obtaining the information required to value their claim, dispute 
the amounts they would receive based on the Contractor Mitigation Guidelines. or simply 
have not applied yet for themselves or their ex-employees. Therefore, the Trustee hopes to 
essentially roll the Trust over so the outstanding beneficiaries can apply and receive 
appropriate mitigation. and the various disputes can be resolved. The Trustee is in 
discussions with the BCFRT Advisory Board and Ministry of Forests and Range stafrlo try 
to complete the roll over before the tennination of the Trust. 
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BC FORESTRY REVITALIZATION TRUST 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2007 

SCHROEDER & ASSOCIA TFS, ChanerN Accownams 
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BC FORESTRY REVIT ALlZA nON TRUST 

INDEX TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Auditors' Report 

Statement of Financial Position 

Statement of Net Assets 

Statement of Receipts and Expenditures 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Schedule of Marketable Securities 

Schedule of Funds 

SCHROEDER 8; ASSOCIATES, Chartered AccounWIIS 

Exhibit A 

Exhibit B 

Exhibit C 

Exhibit D 

Exhibit E 

Schedule 1 
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Exhibit A 

To the Trustee 
BC Forestry Revitalization Trust 

AUDITORS' REPORT 

We have audited the statement of financial position of Be Forestry Revitalization Trust 
as at December 31, 2007, and the statements of receipts and expenditures and net assets 
for the year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Trustee. 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing 
standards. Those standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. 
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting 
principles used and significant estimates made by the Trustee, as well as evaluating the 
overall financial statement presentation. 

In our opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of the Trust as at December 31, 2007 and its receipts and expenditures 
for the year then ended in accordance 'with Canadian generally accepted accounting 
principles. 

Vancouver, B.C. 
February 19, 2008 

~ 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

Suite 320 . Airport SqIlllTC, 1200 West 13rd Avenue, Vancouver, B.C. V6P 6G5 Tel: 604-267-7200 Fa>I: 604-267-7262 E-mail: mail@SChroederandassoeiates.ca 

·Incoroorated Professional 
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BC FORESTRY REVITALIZATION TRUST 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2007 

ASSETS 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash - note 6 
Marketable securities - at cost - Schedule I 
Interest receivable 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES 

CURRENT LIABILITY 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

FUND BALANCES 

NET ASSETS 
Administration FWld - Schedule 2 
Contractor Mitigation Fwd - Schedule 2 
Forest Worker Mitigation Fund - Schedule 2 

TOTAL NET ASSETS 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

APPROVED BY TIlE TRUSTEE 

_,6,L~~=z--"",;p.",,,,,,,-=~=,,=~,,"------ Trustee 

S 

$ 

S 

$ 

Exhibit B 

2007 

24,622 
21,848,308 

386J51 

22,259,281 

27,044 

27,044 

4,587,331 
10,909,749 

6,735,157 

22,232,237 

22,259,281 

The accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and notes are an integt'tll part of these financial statements. 

SCHROEDER & ASSOCIATES, Chartered Accountams 
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$ 15,280 
40,541 ,923 

452,555 

$ 41,009,758 

$ 43,994 

43,994 

4,582,340 
6,722,901 

29,660,523 

40,965,764 

$ 41,009,758 
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BC FORESTRY REVITALIZATION TRUST 

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 

FOR TIlE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007 

EXCESS OF RECEIPTS OVER EXPENDITURES $ 

.. NON-OPERATING TRANSACTIONS 
Disbursements to beneficiaries -.. 

- NET ASSETS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR .. 
NET ASSETS AT END OF YEAR ~ -.. 

.. 
-.. 
-.. 
-.. 
-... 
-... 
-.. 
-.. 
-
-.. 

Exhibit C 

2007 

1,043,214 

(19,776,741) 

(I9,776,741) 

40,965,764 

22,232,237 

- The accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and notes are an integral pan of these financial statements. .. SCHROEDER & ASSOC lATES. Chartem1 AcoountaDts 

~ 

$ 2,019,777 

(50,929,750) 

(50,929,750) 

89,875,737 

$ 40,965,764 
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INTEREST RECElPTS - note 4(b) 

EXPENDITURES - IlQle 4(c) 
Administratioll fees 
Audit fees 
Dank charges and interest 
GST expense 
Legal fees 
Office 
Project analysis 
Travel and entertainment 
Trustee fees 

n 
BC FORESTRY REVITALIZATION TRUST 

STATEMENT OF RECEIPTS AND EXPENDITURES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER)). 2007 

Administrntion Contractor Forest Worker 
Fund Mit igation Fund Mitigation Fund 

1 197,363 S 685,184 ,,-I _~3",5",4,,,84,,9 

383 
17,4(1() 

200 1,355 455 
10,726 
4,121 
1,322 

11,61)7 
713 

145,840 

192,372 1,355 455 

EXCESS OF RECEIPTS OVER EXPENDITURES 1 4,9!JI 1 683,829 ~$ _~3g5~4,,"39::l4 

Thc""companying summary ofsi8J"ifi~"'u aorounl;ng policies and notes arc an ;nl~gral pM! ~fthese fin.nd.1 , tat<menL. 

ExhibilD 

2007 2006 
Total Tolal 

$ 1,237.396 1 2,388,90 1 

383 900 
17,400 31,750 

2,010 3,375 
10,726 22,298 

4,121 4,990 
1,322 1,283 

11,667 26,S33 
713 1,675 

145,840 276,320 

194,182 369,\24 

! 1,043,214 j 2,019,777 
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BC FORESTRY REVITALIZATION TRUST 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2007 

1. PURPOSE OF THE TRUST 

Exhibit E 

The Be Forestry Revitalization Trust (the "Trust") was established by Deed of Trust dated March 17,2003 
(the 'Trust Deed"). Pursuant to Bill 28-2003, the Forestry Revitalization Act, the Ministry of Forests of the 
Province of British Columbia made a payment of $75,000,000 to settle the Trust (the "First Payment"). On 
February 22, 2005, the Government of the Province of British Columbia passed legislation to make an additional 
contribution of $50,000,000 to the Trust (the "Second Payment"), to increase the funds available for distribution 
to $125,000,000. A portion of $40,000,000 of the second payment was received during a prior year. The 
remaining amount is held by the Government of the Province of British Columbia until such a time as the Trust 
requires the funds. The funds are to be used to mitigate adverse financial impacts suffered by certain workers 
and replaceable contractors as a result of restructuring of the forestry sector and harvesting operations within 
British Columbia, arising out of reductions under the Forestry Revitalization Act of harvesting rights available to 
licensees under the Forest Act . 

2. BENEFICIARIES OF THE TRUST 

The beneficiaries of the Trust are: 

(a) certain workers (unemployed forestry workers and retraining forestry workers as defmed in subparagraph 
2.02(2)(a) and (b) of the Trust Deed); and 

(b) certain contractors (as defmed in subparagraph 2.02(2)(c) of the Trust Deed) who hold a replaceable 
contract within the meaning of the Timber Harvesting Contract and Subcontract Regulation of the Forest 
Act . 

3. DURATION OF THE TRUST 

Subject to a possible extension of up to two years the Trust will terminate on the earlier of: 

(a) March 31, 2008; and 

(b) any date on which there is no remaining Trust property. 

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

(a) Fund AccOlUlting 

The Be Forestry Revitalization Trust employs fund accounting, using the accrual method of accounting for 
transactions. The Trust's assets are subject to the restrictions contained in the Trust Deed and are to be used 
only for the specified purposes. The Trust comprises the following funds: 

(i) Administration Fund 

In accordance with the Trust Deed, $5 million of the First Payment was allocated to the Administration 
Fund to meet administration expenses for the duration of the Trust. 

Pursuant to recommendations by the Advisory Board, the Trustee may transfer funds from time to time 
from the Administration Fund to the other two funds to the extent that the transferred amounts are in 
excess of anticipated administrative expenses of the Trust. Any such transfers cannot be reversed. 

SCHROEDER & ASSOCIATES, Cbart~ AccowrtanU 
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BC FORESTRY REVITALIZATION TRUST 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007 

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, conI ~ 

(ii) Contractor Mitigation Fund 

Exhibit E 

In accordance with the Trust Deed, $23 million of the First Payment was allocated to the Contractor 
Mitigation Fund. 

This fund is to be used to provide mitigation to certain replaceable contractors for reductions in their 
contract volumes resulting from the reduction ill the harvesting rights of certain licensees under the 
Forestry Revitalization Act; 

Pursuant to recommendations by the Advisory Board, the Trustee may transfer funds from time to time 
between the Contractor Mitigation Fund and the Forest Worker Mitigation Fund . 

(iii) Forest Worker Mitigation Fund 

In accordance with the Trust Deed. $47 million of the First Payment was allocated to the Forest Worker 
Mitigation Fund. 

This fund is to be used to provide mitigation to certain forestry workers who ceased to be employed by 
certain licensees or replaceable contractors as a result of reductions in the harvesting rights of certain 
licensees under the Forestry Revitalization Act . 

Pursuant to reconunendations by the Advisory Board, the Trustee may transfer funds from time to time 
between the Contractor Mitigation Fund and the Forest Worker Mitigation Fund. 

(b) Revenue Recognition and Allocation 

Investment income is recorded as received or receivable, if the amount to be received can be reasonably 
estimated and collection is reasonably assured . 

All income earned in respect of funds held in a mitigation fund shall bc income of that mitigation fund and 
form part of the capital of that fund. 

All income earned in any fiscal year in respect of funds held in the Administration Fund (net of any 
applicable taxes) will first be used to pay administrative expenses for the fiscal year. The remainder, if any, 
shall be added to the other two funds on a pro-rata basis as defined in the Trust Deed. 

(c) Expenditures Allocation 

In accordance with the Trust Deed, all expenditures are to be paid out of the Administration Fund. 

(d) Use of Assumptions and Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements, in conformity with Canadian generally accepted accounting 
principles, requires the Trustee to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the 
financial statements and accompanying disclosures. Although these estimates are based on the Trustee's 
knowledge of current events and actions the Trust may undertake in the future, actual results may differ 
from the estimates. 

SCHROEDER &: ASSOC IATES, Charto:red Ac<xIuma olS 
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BC FORESTRY REVITALIZATION TRUST 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR TIlE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007 

5. STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

Exhibit E 

These fInancial statements do not include a statement of cash flows as the information is readily available from 
the fmancial statements, and would not provide additional useful information . 

6. CASH 

Cash 

7. INCOME TAXES 

Administration 
Fund 

$ 23.500 

Contractor Forest Worker 
Mitigation Fund Mitigation Fund 

$ 630 $ 492 s 

2007 
Total 

24,622 $ 

2006 
Total 

15,280 

The Trustee is of the opinion that the Trust is either a non-profit organization for income tax purposes or a public 
body perfonning a function of government. Under either definition, the Trust's income would not be subject to 
income taxes. 

During a prior year, an appeals officer of the Canada Revenue Agency (the "CRA") requested certain infonnation 
regarding the purpose of the Trust and indicated verbally that she concurred with the Trustee's opinion. During 
the year, the Trustee received a notice of assessment confmning that the Trust is not subject to Income Taxes. 

8. GOODS AND SERVICES TAXES 

The Trustee has received advice from the CRA that the Trust will not be able to recover any Input Tax Credits. 

9. FAIR VALUE AND CREDIT RISK 

The carrying value of investments and liabilities reflected in the balance sheet approximate their respective fair 
values. The Trust does not have a significant concentration of credit risk. 

10. COMMITMENTS 

In accordance with the Trust deed. all funds must be disbursed to beneficiaries by March 31. 2008 pursuant to the 
purpose of the Trust and the guidelines prepared by the Trustee and approved by the Advisory Board. Any 
amounts remaining at that time are to be transferred to a person, organization or association whose objectives are 
compatible with the distribution objectives of the Trust. However, no amounts may be transferred to the 
Government of the Province of British Columbia . 

SCHROEDER &. ASSOCIATEs,. Clwtered AccountlDts 
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BC FORESTRY REVITALIZATION TRUST 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2007 

11. SUFFICIENCY OF FUNDS 

Exhibit E 

During a prior year, the Trustee and Advisory Board developed Forest Worker Mitigation Guidelines and 
Contractor Mitigation Guidelines. Based on those guidelines the Trustee regularly updates calculations of the 
expected atnOlUlts required to make mitigation payments to eligible workers and replaceable contractors in 
accordance with the purpose of the Trust. These calculations are based on certain assumptions and on 
infonnation and estimates provided by affected licensees and contractors. 

The Trustee is satisfied that the funds currently available will permit the Trust to fulfill its expected obligations 
under the Forest Worker and Contractor Mitigation Guidelines, without the need to draw down on the last 
$10,000,000 of the Second Payment. 

12. SUBSEQUENT EVENT 

The Trust is not expected to be able to compensate all beneficiaries before March 31, 2008. Accordingly. the 
Trustee intends to solicit the approval of the Advisory Board and government representatives to continue the 
Trust under similar guidelines to the existing Trust. 

SCHROEDER &. ASSOCIATES. Qwtercd N;coumantS 
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Government of Canada Treasury Bill 
Face Value $150,000 
Due March 8, 2007 

Government of Canada Treasury Bill 
Face Value $1,589,000 
Due July 12, 2007 

Franchise II Trust Discount Note 
Face Value $50,000 
Due January 3, 2007 

Royal Bank BA 
Face Value $1,094,000 
Due May 22, 2007 

CmCBA 
Face Value $\,8 12,000 
Due May 18, 2007 

Government of Canada Treasury Bill 
Face Value $1,114,000 
Due January 25, 2007 

Government of Canada Treasury Bill 
Face Value $2,220,000 
Due February 22,2007 

n 
BC FORESTRY REVITALIZATION TRUST 

SCHEDULE OF MARKET ABLE SECURITIES 

FOR TH E YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007 

Administration Contractor Forest Worker 
Fund Mitigation Fund Mitigation Fund 

$ $ $ 

f. The accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

SCHROEDER" ASSOCIATES, Chart=d Accountanlll 
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Schedule I 

2007 
Total 

$ 

2006 
Total 

148,372 

1,550,781 

49,629 

1,072,366 

1,775,767 

1,083,691 

2, 152,572 

FNR-2013-00252 
Page 104



, 
, 
1 

t 

r 
[ 

r 
r 
l 
, 
1 

[ 

[ 

[ 

I 
I 
l 
f 

• n 

carried Jotward 

National Bank of Canada Discount Note 
Face Value $1,112,000 
Due March 7, 2007 

Res Province of Saskatchewan 
Face Value $848,000 
Due March 9, 2007 

Res Canada Housing Trust 
Face Value $589,000 
Due March 15, 2007 

CPN Province of Quebec 
Face Value $886,000 
Due April 1, 2007 

Govermnent of Canada Treasury Bill 
Face Value $2,2 13,000 
Due February 8, 2007 

Government of Canada Treasury Bill 
Face Value $3,000,000 
Due May 3, 2007 

() 
BC FORESTRY REVITALIZATION TRUST 

SCHEDULE OF MARKET ABLE SECURITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007 

Administration Contractor Forest Worker 
Fund Mitigation Food Mitigation Fund 

The accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and notes arc an integral part of these financial statements. 

SCHROEDER" ASSOCIATES. Clw1e~ ACCOOlltants 

Schedule 1 

2007 
Total 

2006 
Total 

7,833,178 

1,089,133 

821 ,846 

567,751 

866,778 

2,170,092 

2,949,627 
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Govenunent of Canada Treasury Bill 
Face Value $3,000,000 
Due July 12, 2007 

Government of Canada Treasury Bill 
Face Value $3,000,000 
Due August 9, 2007 

CIBCBA 
Face Value $39,000 
Due January 3, 2007 

Bank of Nova Scotia Discount Note 
Face Value $983,000 
Due January 3, 2007 

RES Province of Ontario 
Face Value $1,163,700 
Due March 8, 2007 

Res Canada Housing Trust 
Face Value $4,809,000 
Due March 15, Z007 

() 
BC FORESTRY REVITALIZATION TRUST 

SCHEDULE OF MARKET ABLE SECURITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2007 

Administration Contractor Forest Worker 
Fund Mitigation Fund Mitigation Fund 

l The accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

SCHROEDER'" ASSOCIAn:s, Chartered Accoontants 

Schedule 1 

2007 
Total 

2006 
Total 

16,298,405 

2,927,844 

2,919,423 

38,866 

960,471 

1,134,052 

4,663,229 
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Royal Bank Discount Note 
Face Value $2,902,000 
Due April 5, 2007 

National Bank of Canada SA 
Face Value $2,609,000 
Due April 10, 2007 

FirstBank SA 
Face Value $2,079,000 
Due April 16, 2007 

Citibank N.A Discount Note 
Face Value $2,04 1,000 
Due May 29, 2007 

Res Province of Saskatchewan 
Face Value S2,231,500 
Due September 6, 2007 

National Bank of Canada SA 
Face Value $1,626,000 
Due January 7, 2008 

n () 
BC FORESTRY REYITALIZA TION TRUST 

SCHEDULE OF MARKETABLE SECURITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007 

Administration 
Fund 

1,589,795 

Contractor 
Mitigation Fund 

Forest Worker 
Mitigation Fund 

The accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

SCHROEDER & ASSOCIATES, Chart.ted AccOUl1tants 

Schedule 1 

2007 
Total 

1,589,795 

2006 
Total 

28,942,296 

2,843,113 

2,555,309 

2,036,645 

1,999,641 

2,164,919 
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PRN Canada Housing Trust No.1 
FaceValue $1, 113,700 
Due March 15, 2008 

CDN Imperial Bank ofConunerce BA 
Face Value $1,897,000 
Due May 28, 2008 

Royal Bank of Canada BA 
Face Value $1,224,000 
Due February 5, 2008 

CIBC mc 
Face Value $580,000 
Due March 5, 2008 

Bank of Nova Scotia 
Discount Note 
Face Value $493 ,000 
Due March 6, 2008 

RES Province of Ontario 
Face Value $2,975,300 
Due March 8, 2008 

n 
BC FORESTRY REVITALIZATION TRUST 

SCHEDULE OF MARKETABLE SECURITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007 

Administration 
Fund 

Contractor Forest Worker 
Mitigation Fund Mitigation Fund 

1,589,795 

1,099,346 

1,8 14,141 

1,209,449 

580,000 

483,352 

2,897,264 

The accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

SCHROEDER & ASSOCIATES, Chart.red Ae<:owuru 

Schedule 1 

2007 
Total 

1,589,795 

1,099,346 

1,814,141 

1,209,449 

580,000 

483,352 

2,897,264 

2006 
Total 

40,541 ,923 
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RES Province of British Columbia 
FaceValue $1,591,800 
Due June 9, 2008 

National Bank of Canada SA 
Face Value 1,500,000 
Due January 3, 2008 

JPMorgan Chase Bank 
Discount Note 
Face Value $356,000 
Due January 4, 2008 

Nestle Capital Canada 
Discount Note 
Face Value $262,000 
Due January 15, 2008 

Royal Bank of Canada BA 
Face Value $1,906,000 
Due February 22, 2008 

Res Province of Ontario 
Face Value $2,742,735 
Due March 8, 2008 

n 
BC FORESTRY REVITALIZATION TRUST 

SCHEDULE OF MARKETABLE SECURITIES 

FOR TIlE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007 

Administration 
Fund 

Contractor 
Mitigation Fund 

Forest Worker 
Mitigation Fund 

4,503,282 5,110,065 

1,563,152 

1,454,367 

351,630 

259,507 

1,837,022 

2,669,309 

The accompanying summary of significant accounting policics and notes are an integral part ofthcse financial statements. 

SCHROEDER & ASSOCIATES, CNrtered Ae<:O\lnlanls 

Schedule 1 

2007 
Total 

9,673,347 

1,563,152 

1,454,367 

351,630 

259,507 

1,837,022 

2,669,309 

2006 
Total 

40,541,923 
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Pm Canada Housing Trust 
Face Value $1,004,850 
Due March 15,2008 

Royal Bank of Canada BA 
Face Value $46,000 
Due March 24, 2008 

( ) 

Res Province of New Brunswick 
Face Value $1,324,000 
Due June 2, 2008 

RES Province of Manitoba 
Face Value $578,800 
Due June 2, 2008 

Goe Treasury Bill 
Face Value $1 ,154,840 
Due March 8, 2007 

Marketable Securities 

n 
BC FORESTRY REVITALIZATION TRUST 

SCHEDULE OF MARKETABLE SECURITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007 

Administration 
Fund 

4,503,282 

Contractor Forest Worker 
Mitigation Fund Mitigation Fund 

6,571,835 6,733,217 

993,702 

45,461 

1,282,694 

563,277 

1,154,840 

Schedule 1 

2007 
Total 

17,808,334 

993,702 

45,461 

1,282,694 

563,277 

1,154,840 

2006 
Total 

40,541,923 

$ 4,503,282 $ 10,611,809 $ 6,733,217 $ 21,848,308 $ 40,541,923 

The accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Balance, beginning afyear 

Disbursements to beneficiaries 

Excess of receipts over expenditures 

Interfund reallocation 

Balance, end of year 

() 
BC FORESTRY REVITALIZATION TRUST 

SCHEDULE OF FUNDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007 

Administration Contractor Forest Worker 
Fund MitigatiQl).Xl!mi Mitigation FWld 

$ 4,582,340 $ 6,722,901 $ 29,660,523 

(16,496,981) (3,279,760) 

4,991 683,829 354,394 

20,000,000 (20,000,000) 

$ 4,587.331 $ 10,909,749 $ 6,735,157 

The accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

SCHROEDER .. ASSOCIATES, Cbartered Accountant.! 

Schedule 2 

2007 2006 
Total Total 

$ 40,965,764 $ 89,875,737 

(19,776,741) (50,929,750) 

1,043,214 2,019,777 

S 22,232,237 $ 40,965,764 
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Be Forestry Revitalization Trust 

January 15,2008 

Doug Konkin 
Deputy Mi . ster of Forests and Range 
Minis f Forests and Range 
3m r, 1520 Blanshard Street 
P. . Box 9525 Stn Pray Govt 
Victoria, BC V8W 9C3 

Dear Doug Konkin, 

MINISTRY OF FORESTS, OMO 
RECEIVED 

OMRL# ,'5 
JAN, 1 8 2008~ ''1 

C-,,-o$ 
DUE DATE, 
DDRAfT REPLY D,REPLY DIRECT 
OfNA D FYI E;lFILE , 

Re: The Be Forestry Revitalization Trust - 2007 Fourth Quarter Report 

Enclosed for your information is a copy of The Be Forestry Revitalization Trust's 2007 Fourth 
Quarter Report, 

Thank you for your continued support and involvement in the Trust to date. Please feel free to 
contact me if you would like to discuss anything in the report, or The Be Forestry Revitalization 
Trust in general. 

Eric van Soeren 
Trustee 

encl. 

Eric van Soeren, Trustee 
6705 London Drive 
Detla, B.C. V4K 4W7 
www.bcfrt.com 

Phone: 604-940-0850 
Cell: 
Fax: 604-940-0858 

Email: eric@vansoeren.net 
FNR-2013-00252 
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Be Forestry Revitalization Trust 

Report of the Trustee as of December 31, 2007 

General 

In March 2003 the province of British Columbia established the Be Forestry Revitalization 
Trust (BCFRT) and funded it with $75,000,000. The mandate of the BCFRT is to provide 
mitigation to forest workers and repl aceable contractors that are negatively impacted by 
timber reallocations resulting from the Forestry Revitali zation Act (FRA). 

In April 2004 the province appointed Eric van Soeren as Trustee. Shortly after that he 
appointed a seven member Advisory Board, as required by the Trust Deed. That Board 
developed draft Forest Worker Mitigation Guidelines and Contractor Mitigation Guidelines. 
In order to develop an estimate of the cost of those guidelines, the Trustee polled all the 
major licensees that were to lose some of their allowable annual cut. They were asked to 
provide their best estimate of the effect of the timber reallocation on their workers, their 
contractors, and their contractors' workers. The Trustee received a 100% response rate from 
Coastal licensees, and a 90% response rate from the Interior licensees. The main reason for 
the lower response in the Interior was the lack of a response from New Skeena, which was 
involved in bankruptcy proceedings. 

Utilizing the best estimates of industry, seniority estimates obtained from the IW A pension 
plan, seniority estimates obtained from contractor industry associations, and the proposed 
guidelines, the Trustee arrived at an estimated cost of delivering the proposed guidelines. 
Based on that estimate, the Trustee detennined that the BCFRT likely required 
approximately $50,000,000 more than what was available in the BCFRT accounts, plus what 
the BCFRT was likely to earn in interest whi le holding mitigation funds in trust. 

The Trustee and the Advisory Board approached the province to attempt to obtain sufficient 
extra funds to allow the draft mitigation guidelines to be finalized. As of March 31, 2005, 
the province had agreed to the request for additional funds, and had received approval from 
the legislature to provide those funds to the BCFRT. 

Based on the commitment from the province for the additional funds, the Contractor 
Mitigation Guidelines and the Forest Worker Mitigation Guidelines were finalized by the 
BCFRT Advisory Board. The Guidelines, as well as extensive supporting documentation, 
are posted on the BCFRT website. 

In early April 2005 the BCFRT received a $40.000.000 cash injection. The outstanding 
$10,000,000 in committed fu nds has not yet been advanced, and will be held by the province 
until the need for the additional funds is confirmed. 

Eric van Soeren, Trustee 
6705 London Drive 
Delta, B.C. V4K 4W7 
www.bcfrt.com 

Phone: 604-940-0850 
Cell: 
Fax: 604-940-0858 

Email : eric@vansoeren.net 
FNR-2013-00252 
Page 113

s.22



o o 
Account Balances 

As of December 31, 2007. the market value of the BeFRT accounts and distribution to 
beneficiaries was as follows: 

Account Balances 

Administration Account 
Contractor Mitigation Account 
Forest Worker Mitigation Account 
Funds held in reserve by Ministry of Forests and Range 

Total market value of BCFRT accounts 

Distributions to Beneficiaries to date 

Contractor Mitigation 
Forest Worker Mitigation 

Total Distributions to Beneficiaries 

Total available funds plus distributions 

Administration Account 

$4,605,826 
$10,839,163 

$6,814,987 
$10,000,000 
$32,259,976 

$60,879,740 
$40,470.586 

$101,350,326 

$133,610,302 

When the BCFRT was created, $5,000,000 was allocated to administration. To date, most of 
the administration expenses of the BCFRT have been covered by the interest earned on the 
Administration Account balance, so the ini tial principal has been reduced by approximately 
$400,000. It is likely a significant portion of the Administration Account will be able to be 
transferred to one of the Mitigation Accounts at a later date, and on an as needed basis. 

Contractor Mitigation Account 

The principle being used for contractor mitigation is that contractors who lose their 
replaceable contracts as a result of Forestry Revitalization Act (FRA) restructuring will 
receive mitigation that approximates what the contract might reasonably have been worth at 
the time it was reduced or eliminated. Generally, this will be based on a per cubic metre 
value, but contracts that were calculated based on some other measure will be treated 
accordingly. A detailed description of the calculation to be used is contained in the 
Contractor Mitigation Guidelines. These Guidelines are posted on the BCFRT website. 

As of December 31, 2007, Forestry Revitalization Proposals (FRPs) have been presented for 
99.9% of the reallocated volume in the Province. The last date for submitting a FRP was 
July 31, 2006, so the replaceable contracts of the licensee that did not submit a FRP are 
subject to proportionate reduction. The Coastal FRP submitted by Teal Jones was rejected 
by its contractors, as was a revised FRP. The court decision is being appealed, and council 
for Teal Jones suggests it may be a year or more before the issue is resolved. This will 

2 
FNR-2013-00252 
Page 114



o o 
necessitate an extension of the mandate of the BCFRT, so that the workers and contractors 
that are ultimately negatively impacted by the Teal Jones AAC reduction can receive 
appropriate mitigation. 

Also as of December 31, 2007, $60,879,740 had been paid in contractor mitigation related to 
262 affected contracts. Discussions are underway with other replaceable contractors whose 
contracts have been or may be reduced or eliminated. Therefore, many morc contractor 
mitigation payments will be made during 2008. It appears approximately 323 contracts will 
be reduced or eliminated as a result of the Forestry Revitalization Act timber reallocation. 

Several coastal contractors and a group of interior contractors felt that the Contractor 
Mitigation Guidelines do not fairly compensate them for the value of their lost contracts. 
The Advisory Board has reviewed all but one of (he claims that had been made. The view of 
the Advisory Board to date is that only one contractor has been able to substantiate its claim 
that the formula or the cap used in the Contractor Mitigation Guidelines is not appropriate. 
The only exception was a heli-logging contract that had a per cubic metre rate substantially 
higher than the rate paid for conventional logging. That contractor was mitigated using a rate 
above the cap. The BC Ombudsman's office has also reviewed the claim of the interior 
contractors and found it to be without merit. All of those contractors have now accepted 
mitigation as determined by the Contractor Mitigation Guidelines . 

There were two cases where replaceable hauling contractors were able to demonstrate that in 
their area, recent arms length purchases and sales of hauling contracts had been at a rate 
slightly higher than what the mitigation fonnula generated. In those two cases, slightly 
higher compensation payments were made than would have been made based strictly on the 
formula. However, thi s increased payment was contemplated in the Contractor Mitigation 
Guidelines. One remaining Coastal Contractor believes it should receive larger mitigation 
payments than the formula and cap will allow. A business valuer has been retained to review 
its claim. The report and claim will be considered at a future Advisory Board meeting. 

As of December 3 1, 2007, contractor compensation payments, plus revised estimates based 
on applications to that date, appear to be approximately 11.9%, or $7.6 million, above the 
originally projected amounts. This is partially because a higher than projected proportion of 
replaceable contractors appear to be leaving the industry, partially because there will be some 
cost to (he BCFRT related 10 stranded assets, and partially because redundant equipment 
payments are turning out to be higher than projected. Also, two licensees were able to get 
Ministerial Exemptions to allow them to eliminate morc replaceable contractors than the 
original cap on replaceable contract eliminations would have allowed. These extra contractor 
costs will be balanced because it is now clear that employee severances will be lower than 
originally projected. In order to cover the higher than expected contractor mitigation cost, 
$20,OOO,OOOwas moved [Tom the Forest Worker Mitigation Account to the Contractor 
Mitigation Account. 
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Forest Worker Mitigation Account 

The principle being used for forest worker mitigation is that workers who are severed by a 
Licensee or Replaceable Contractor because of FRA restructuring will receive severance 
from their ex-employer, and that severance will be funded by the BCFRT. The Advisory 
Board felt it was fair that all workers who lose their jobs as a result of FRA restructuring be 
treated the same. Because the Steelworkers' (previously IW A) contract mandates that 
employees affected by a pennanent logging camp closure receive severance of 10 regular 
day' ." pay per year of service. plus 101 I 21lls of a regular day's pay per completed month of 
service, that standard was used. The detailed calculation and discussion appears in the Forest 
Worker Mitigation Guidelines, and can be found on the BCFRT website. 

As of December 31, 2007, the BCFRT had provided funding for the severance of 802 
workers, for a total cost to the BCFRT of $40,470,806. The average severance per employee 
to date is significantly higher than originally projected ($50,565) as opposed to an estimate of 
$39,828). The average is high because a disproportionate amount of the severed workers 
worked for licensees on the coast. and they tended to be crews with above average seniority. 
Also, it is now clear that the total number of employees to be severed, especially in the 
interior, will be lower than projected. A surplus of at least $20,000,000 was expected in the 
Employee Mitigation Account to deal with employee severance according to the Guidelines. 
This was moved to the Contractor Mitigation Account to cover the shortfall in that Account. 

Looking Ahead 

The fi rst quarter of 2008 will likely include the [allowing activity: 

I. Contractor Mitigation payments will continue to be made to replaceable contractors 
who lost some or all of their contracts as a result of those FRPs. 

2. Severance payments will continue to be made to forest workers for some of the above 
licensees, and some of their replaceable contractors. 

3. The BCFRT Trustee will continue to meet with licensee and contractor industry 
associations and organized labour, as well as with individual licensees, contractors, 
worker groups and their advisors on an as needed basis, to ensure that the mitigation 
process progresses as smoothly, quickly and efficiently as poss ible. 

4 . The Trustee will arrange to have the mandate of the BCFRT extended so that as yet 
unresolved mitigation payments can be settled. 

Eric van Soeren 
Trustee 
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Be Forestry Revitalization Trus 

October 15, 2007 

Doug Konkin ~ 
Deputy Minister of Forest d Range 
Ministry of Forests an ange I\. to 
3" Floor, 1520 Bl ard Street \~ 
P.O. Box 9525 S Prov Govt 
Victoria, BC 8W 9C3 

Dear g Konkin, 

r.4INI~TRY OF F6RElifS ""0 R ECElli.1i "., .. 
DMRL# /09@ 

• OCT f9~ 
OAt>?G ." 

ODRAFT REPLY 
OFNA OF,Y1 

REPLY DIRECT 
FILE 

Re: The Be Forestry Revitalization Trust - 2007 Third Quarter Report 

Enclosed for your information is a copy of The Be Forestry Rev itali zation Trust's 2007 Third 
Quarter Report. 

Thank you for your contin ued support and involvt::ment in the Trust to dale. Please feel free to 
contact me if you would like to discuss anything in the report, or The Be Forestry Revitalization 
Trust in general. 

Yours truly, 

Eric van Soeren 
Trustee 

eocl. 

Eric van Soeren, Trustee 
6705 London Drive 
Delta, B.C. V4K 4W7 
www,bern,eom 

Phone: 604-940-0850 
Cell : 
Fax: 604-940-0858 

Email : erie@vansoeren.net 
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Be Forestry Revitalization Trust 

Report of the Trustee as of September 30, 2007 

General 

In March 2003 the province of British Columbia established the Be Forestry Revitalization 
Trust (BCFRT) and funded it with $75,000,000. The mandate of the BCFRT is to provide 
mitigation to forest workers and replaceable contractors that are negatively impacted by 
timber reallocations resulting from the Forestry Revitalization Act (FRA). 

In April 2004 the province appointed Eric van Soeren as Trustee. Shortly after that he 
apPointed a seven member Advisory Board, as required by the Trust Deed. That Board 
developed draft Forest Worker Mitigation Guidelines and Contractor Mitigation Guidelines. 
In order to develop an estimate of the cost of those guidelines, the Trustee polled all the 
major licensees that were to lose some of their allowable annual cut. They were asked to 
provide their best estimate of the effect of the timber reallocation on their workers, their 
contractors, and their contractors ' workers. The Trustee received a 100% response rate from 
Coastal licensees, and a 90% response rate from the Interior licensees. The main reason for 
the lower response in the Interior was the lack of a response from New Skeena, which was 
involved in bankruptcy proceedings. 

Utilizing the best estimates of industry, seniority estimates obtained from the IWA pension 
plan, seniority estimates obtained from contractor industry associations, and the proposed 
guidelines. the Trustee arrived at an estimated cost of delivering the proposed guidelines. 
Based on that estimate, the Trustee determined that the BCFRT likely required 
approximately $50,000,000 more than what was available in the BCFRT accounts, plus what 
the BCFRT was likely to earn in interest while holding mitigation funds in trust. 

The Trustee and the Advisory Board approached the province LO attempt ro obtain sufficient 
extra funds to allow the draft mitigation guidelines to be finalized. As of March 31, 2005, 
the province had agreed to the request for additional funds, and had received approval from 
the legislature to provide those funds to the BCFRT. 

Based on the commitment from the province for the additional funds, the Contractor 
Mitigation Guidelines and the Forest Worker Mitigation Guidelines were finalized by the 
BCFRT Advisory Board. The Guidelines, as well as extensive supporting documentation, 
are posted on the BCFRT website. 

In earl y April 2005 the BCFRT received a $40,000.000 cash injection. The outstanding 
$10,000,000 in committed funds has not yet been advanced, and will be held by the province 
until the need for the additional funds is confirmed. 

Eric van Soeren, Trustee 
6705 London Drive 
Delta, B.C. V4K 4W7 
www.bcfrt.com 

Phone: 604-940-0850 
Cell:
Fax: 604-940-0858 

Email: eric@vansoeren.nel 
FNR-2013-00252 
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Account Balances 

As of September 30. 2007, the market value of the BCFRT accounts and distribution to 
beneficiaries was as follows: 

Account Balances 

Admin istration Account 
Contractor Mitigation Account 
Forest Worker Mitigation Account 
Funds held in reserve by Ministry of Forest'i and Range 

Total market value of BCFRT accounts 

Distributions to Beneficiaries to date 

Contractor Mitigation 
Forest Worker Mitigation 

Total Distributions to Beneficiaries 

Total available funds plus distributions 

Administration Account 

$4,598,409 
$14,101,404 

$6,746,467 
$10,000,000 
$35,446,280 

$57,497,379 
$40,464,387 
$97,961,766 

$133,408,046 

When the BCFRT was created, $5,000,000 was allocated to administration. To date, most of 
the adminislration expenses of the BCFRT have been covered by the interest earned on the 
Administration Account balance, so the initial principal has been reduced by approximately 
$400,000. It is likely a sign ificant portion of the Administration Account wi ll be able to be 
transferred to one of the Mitigation Accounts at a later date, and on an as needed basis. 

Contractor Mitigation Account 

The principle being used for contractor mitigation is that contractors who lose their 
replaceable contracts as a result of Forestry Revitalization Act (FRA) restructuring will 
receive mitigation that approximates what the contract might reasonably have been worth at 
the time it was reduced or eliminated. Generally, this will be based on a per cubic metre 
value, but contracts that were calculated based on some other measure will be treated 
accordingly. A detai led description of the calculation to be used is contained in the 
Contractor Mitigation Guidelines. These Guidel ines are posted on the BCFRT website . 

As of September 30,2007, Forestry Revitalization Proposals (FRPs) have been presented for 
99.9% of the reallocated volume in the Province. The last date for submitting a FRP was 
July 31, 2006, so the replaceable contracts of the licensee that did not submit a FRP are 
subject to proportionate reduction. The Coastal FRP submitted by Teal Jones was rejected 
by its contractors, as was a revised FRP. The court decision is being appealed, and counci l 
for Teal Jones suggests it may be up to a year before the issue is resolved. This may 
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necessitate an extension of the mandate of the BCFRT, so that the workers and contractors 
that are ultimately negatively impacted by the Teal Jones AAC reduction can receive 
appropriate mitigation. 

Also as of September 30,2007, $57,497,379 had been paid in contractor mitigation related to 
250 affected contracts. Discussions are underway with other replaceable contractors whose 
contracts have been or may be reduced or eliminated. Therefore, many more contractor 
mitigation payments will be made during 2007. It appears approximately 322 contracts will 
be reduced or elimi nated as a result of the Forestry Revitali zation Act timher reallocation. 

Several coastal contractors and a group of interior contractors felt that the Contractor 
Mitigation Guidelines do not fairly compensate them for the value of their lost contracts. 
The Advisory Board has reviewed all but one of the claims that had been made. The view of 
the Advisory Board to date is that onl y one contractor has been able to substantiate its claim 
thar the formula or the cap used in the Contractor Mitigation Guidelines is not appropriate. 
The only exception was a heli-logging contract that had a per cubic metre rate substantiall y 
higher than the rate paid for conventional logging. That contractor was mitigated using a rate 
above the cap. The BC Ombudsman's office has also reviewed the claim of the interior 
contractors and found it to be wi thout merit. All of those contractors have now accepted 
mitigation as determined by the Contractor Mitigation Guidelines. 

There have now been two cases where replaceable hauling contractors were able to 
demonstrate that in their area, recent arms length purchases and sales of hauli ng contracts 
had been at a rate slightly higher than what the mitigation fonnula generated. In those two 
cases, slightly higher compensation payments were made than would have been made based 
strictly on the formu la. However, this increased payment was contemplated in the Contractor 
Mitigation Guidelines. One remaining Coastal Contractor believes it should receive larger 
mitigation payments than the formula and cap will allow. A business valuer has been 
retained to review its claim. The report and claim will be considered at a fu ture Advisory 
Board meeting. 

As of September 30, 2007, contractor compensation payments, plus revised estimates based 
on applications to that date. appear to be approximately 12.2%. or $7.8 million. above the 
originall y projected amounts. This is partially because a higher than projected proportion of 
replaceable contractors appear to be leaving the industry, partially because there will be some 
cost to the BCFRT related to stranded assets, and partially because redundant equipment 
payments are turning out to be higher than projected. Also, two licensees were able to get 
Ministerial Exemptions to allow them to el iminate more replaceable contractors than the 
original cap on replaceable contract eliminations would have allowed. These extra contractor 
costs will likely be balanced because it is now clear that employee severances will be lower 
than originall y projected. In order to cover the higher than expected contractor mitigation 
cost, $20,000,000 has been moved from the Forest Worker Mitigation Accoun t to the 
Contractor Mitigation Account. 
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Forest Worker Mitigation Account 

The principle being used for forest worker mitigation is that workers who are severed by a 
Licensee or Replaceable Contractor because of FRA restructuring will receive severance 
from their ex-employer, and that severance will be funded by the BCFRT. The Advisory 
Board felt it was fair that all workers who lose their jobs as a result of FRA restructuring be 
treated the same. Because the Steelworkers' (previously IW A) contract mandates that 
employees affected by a permanenllogging camp closure receive severance of 10 regular 
day's pay per year of service, plus 1011 t hs of a regular day' s pay per completed month of 
service, that standard was used. The detailed calculation and discussion appears in the Forest 
Worker Mitigation Guidelines, and can be found on the BCFRT website. 

As of September 30, 2007, the BCFRT had provided funding for the severance of 802 
workers, for a lotal cost to the BCFRT of $40,464,387. The average severance per employee 
to date is significantly higher than originally projected ($50,454 as opposed to an estimate of 
$39,828). The average is high because a disproportionate amount of the severed workers 
worked for licensees on the coast, and they tended to be crews with above average seniority. 
Also, to date it appears the total number of employees to be severed, especially in the 
interior, will be lower than projected. Therefore, a surplus of at least $20,000,000 is 
expected in the Employee Mitigation Account to deal with employee severance according to 
the Guidelines. This has been moved to the Contractor Mitigation Account to cover the 
shortfall in that Account. 

Looking Ahead 

The fourth quarter of 2007 will likely include the following activity: 

I . Contractor Mitigation payments will continue to be made to replaceable contractors 
who lost some or all of their contracts as a resul t of those FRPs. 

2. Severance payments will continue to be made to forest workers for some of the above 
licensees, and some of their replaceable contractors. 

3. The BCFRT Trustee will continue to meet with licensee and contractor industry 
associations and organized labour, as well as with individual licensees, contractors, 
worker groups and their advisors on an as needed basis, to ensure that the mitigation 
process progresses as smoothly, quickly and efficiently as possible. 

Eric van Soeren 
Trustee 
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La~nceJ.crroves 

Groves Consulting Services 
Business # 13829 1463 RTOOOI 
WorkSafe # 532037 
13200,55AAvenue 
Surrey, BC 
V3X3B3 

TRY OF FORESTS. DMO 
RECEIVED 

DMRl# lOSE') 

OCT 04 2007 
~~;C!tASE: 

DUE DATE: ~~~~~~~ 
DORAFT REPLY OR PLY DIRECT • 
DFNA OF,YI LE M ~ 

INVOICE NO. 2007-09 Next Invoice Date: D~mber 31, 2007 
~-~ 

September 30, 2007 

Be Forestry Revitalization Trust 
6705 London Drive, 
Delta, BC 
V4K4W7 

Attn: Eric van SoereD, Trustee 

RE: Miti2ation Due to 20% Take Back by Fo .... try Revitalization Act 

Mitigation due as a direct result of total Joss of an eleven year, full time day rate contract 
as per detailed submission dated December 15, 2005. 

BCFRT Severance Mitigation Calculation: S37,200.00 

INVOICE TERMS 
• Payable within 30 days of receipt. 
• 2.0% per month interest on overdue accounts 

Signed: 

Cc: Doug Konkin. Deputy Minister. Ministry of Forests and Range 

Tim Menning, Advisory Board Member, BCFRT 
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De DUg Konkin , 
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BC Forestry Revitalization Trust 

DMRLff tO,;8 =to __ 
APR i b 2007 

Re: The Be Forestry Revitalization Trust - 2007 First Quarter Report 

Enclosed for your information is a copy of The Be Forestry Revitalization Trust's 2007 First 
Quarter Report. 

Thank you for your continued support and involvement in the Trust to date. Please feel free to 
contact me if you would like to discuss anything in the report, or The Be Forestry Revitalization 
Trust in general. 

Eric van Saeren 
Trustee 

end 

. .' 

Eric van Soeren, Trustee 
6705 London Drive 
Delta, B.C. V4K 4W7 
www.bcfrt.com 

Phone: 604-940-0850 
Cell: 
Fax: 604-940-0858 

Email: eric@vansoeren.nel 
FNR-2013-00252 
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Be Forestry Revitalization Trust 

Report of the Trustee as of March 31, 2007 

General 

In March 2003 the province of British Columbia established the Be Forestry Revitalization 
Trust (BCFRT) and funded it with $75,000,000. The mandate of the BCFRT is to provide 
mitigation to forest workers and replaceable contractors that are negatively impacted by 
timber reallocations resulting from the Forestry Revitalization Act (FRA). 

In April 2004 the province appointed Eric van Soeren as Trustee. Shortly after that he 
appointed a seven member Advisory Board, as required by the Trust Deed. That Board 
developed draft Forest Worker Mitigation Guidelines and Contractor Mitigation Guidelines. 
In order to develop an estimate of the cost of those guidelines, the Trustee polled all the 
major licensees that were to lose some of their allowable annual cut. They were asked to 
provide their best estimate of the effect of the timber reallocation on their workers, their 
contractors, and their contractors' workers. The Trustee received a 100% response rate from 
Coastal licensees, and a 90% response rate from the Interior licensees. The main reason for 
the lower response in the Interior was the lack of a response from New Skeena, which was 
involved in bankruptcy proceedings. 

Utilizing the best estimates of industry, seniority estimates obtained from the IW A pension 
plan, seniority estimates obtained from contractor industry associations, and the proposed 
guidelines, the Trustee arrived at an estimated cost of delivering the proposed guidelines. 
Based on that estimate, the Trustee estimated that the BCFRT required approximately 
$50,000,000 more than what was available in the BCFRT accounts, plus what the BCFRT 
was likely to earn in interest while holding mitigation funds in trust. 

The Trustee and the AdviSOry Board approached the province to attempt to obtain sufficient 
extra funds to allow the draft mitigation guidelines to be finalized. As of March 31, 2005, 
the province had agreed to the request for additional funds, and had received approval from 
the legislature to provide those funds to the BCFRT. 

Based on the commitment from the province for the additional funds, the Contractor 
Mitigation Guidelines and the Forest Worker Mitigation Guidelines were finalized by the 
BCFRT Advisory Board. The Guidelines, as well as extensive supporting documentation, 
are posted on the BCFRT website. 

In early April 2005 the BCFRT received a $40,000,000 cash injection. The outstanding 
$10,000,000 in committed funds has not yet been advanced, and will be held by the province 
until the need for the additional funds is confinned. 

Eric van Soeren, Trustee 
6705 London Drive 
Delta, B.C. V4K 4W7 
www.bcfrt.com 

Phone: 604-940-0850 
Cell: 
Fax: 604-940-0858 

Email: eric@vansocrcn.net 
FNR-2013-00252 
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Account Balances 

As of March 31, 2007, the market va1ue of the BCFRT accounts and distribution to 
beneficiaries was as follows: 

Account Balances 

Administration Account 
Contractor Mitigation Account 
Forest Worker Mitigation Account 
Funds held in reserve by Ministry of Forests and Range 

Total market value of BCFRT accounts 

Distributions to Beneficiaries to date 

Contractor Mitigation 
Forest Worker Mitigation 

Total Distributions to Beneficiaries 

Total available funds plus distributions 

Administration Account 

$4,590,016 
$20,631,334 

$9,551,528 
$10,000,000 
$44,772,878 

$50,644,658 
$37,471,487 
$88,116,145 

$132,889,023 

When the BCFRT was created, $5,000,000 was allocated to administration. To date, most of 
the administration expenses of the BCFRT have been covered by the interest earned on (he 
Administration Account balance, so the initial principal has been reduced by approximately 
$410,000. It is likely a significant portion of the Administration Account will be able to be 
transferred to one of the Mitigation Accounts at a later date, and on an as needed basis, 

Contractor Mitigation Account 

The principle being used for contractor mitigation is that contractors who lose their 
replaceable contracts as a result of Forestry Revitali zation Act (FRA) restructuring will 
receive mitigation that approximates what the contract might reasonably have been worth at 
the time it was reduced or eliminated. Generally. this will be based on a per cubic metre 
value, but contracts that were calculated based on some other measure will be treated 
accordingly. A detailed description of the calculation to be used is comained in [he 
Contractor Mitigation Guidelines. These Guidelines are posted on the BCFRT website. 

As of March 3 1, 2007, Forestry Revitalization Proposals (FRPs) have been presented for 
99.9% of the reallocated volume in the Province. The last date for submitting a FRP was 
July 31, 2006, so the replaceable contraclS of the licensee that did not submit a FRP will be 
subject to proportionate reduction. The Coastal FR.P submitted by Teal Jones was rejected 
by its conU'actors, as was a revised FR.P. The Supreme Court declined to rule on the FRP, so 
a mediator will review that FRP, hopefully in the second quarter of 2007. 
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Also as of March 31, 2007, $50,644,658 had been paid in contractor mitigation related to 206 
affected contracts. Discussions are underway with many other replaceable contractors whose 
contracts have been or may be reduced or eliminated. Therefore, many more contractor 
mitigation payments will be made during 2007. It appears approximately 320 contracts will 
be reduced or eliminated as a result of the Forestry Revitalization Act timber reallocation. 

Several coastal contractors and a group of interior contractors have suggested that the 
Contractor Mitigation Guidelines do not fairly compensate them for the value of their lost 
contracts. The Advisory Board has reviewed all hut one of the claims that had been made. 
The view of the Advisory Board is that only one contractor has been able to substantiate its 
claim that the formula or the cap used in the Contractor Mitigation Guidelines is not fair. 
The only exception was a heli-Iogging contract that had a per cubic metre rate substantially 
higher than the rate paid for conventional logging. That contractor was mitigated using a rate 
above the cap. The BC Ombudsman's office has reviewed the claim of the interior 
contractors and found it to be without merit. All of those contractors have now accepted 
mitigation as determined by the Contractor Mitigation Guidelines. 

While the Trustee and the AdviSOry Board remain open to considering special cases, no 
change to the previously approved Contractor Mitigation Guidelines has been made with 
respect to calculating the value of lost contract volume. The Advisory Board continues to 
accept the proposition that in some rare cases it may be necessary to compensate replaceable 
contractors for stranded assets. Discussions are underway with two contractors whose camps 
have been made redundant because of their loss of fibre appurtenant to the camp. 

There have now been two cases where replaceable hauling contractors were able to 
demonstrate that in their area, recent arms length purchases and sales of hauling contracts 
had been at a rate slightly higher than what the mitigation formula generated. In those two 
cases, slightly higher compensation payments were made than would have been made based 
strictly on the formula. However, this increased payment was contemplated in the Contractor 
Mitigation Guidelines. One remaining Coastal Contractor believes he should receive larger 
payouts than the formula and cap will allow. His claim will be considered at a future 
Advisory Board meeting. 

As of March 31, 2007, contractor compensation payments, plus revised estimates based on 
applicalions to t1Iat date, appear to be approx.imalely 12.5%, or $8.0 million, above the 
originally projected amounts. This is partially because a higher than projected proportion of 
replaceable contractors appear to be leaving the industry, parlially because there will be some 
cost to the BCFRT related to stranded assets, and partially because redundant equipment 
payments are turning out to be higher than projected. Also, two licensees were able to get 
Ministerial Exemptions to allow them to eliminate more replaceable contractors than the 
original cap on replaceable contract eliminations would have allowed. These extra contractor 
costs will likely be balanced because it is now clear that employee severances will be lower 
than originally projected. In order to cover the higher than expected contractor mitigation 
cost, $20,000,000 has been be moved from the Forest Worker Mitigation Account to the 
Contractor Mitigation Account. 

3 
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Forest Worker Mitigation Account 

The principle being used for forest worker mitigation is that workers who are severed by a 
Licensee or Replaceable Contractor because of FRA restructuring will receive severance 
from their ex-employer, and that severance will be funded by the BCFRT. The Advisory 
Board felt it was fair that all workers who lose their jobs as a result of FRA restructuring be 
treated the same. Because the Steelworkers' (previously IW A) contract mandates that 
employees affected by a permanent logging camp closure receive severance of 10 regular 
day's pay per year of service, plus 10/ 12lhs of a regular day's pay per completed month of 
service, that standard was used. The detailed calculation and discussion appears in the Forest 
Worker Mitigation Guidelines, and can be found on the BCFRT website. 

As of March 3 1,2007, the BCFRT had provided funding for the severance of 760 workers, 
for a total cost to the BCFRT of $37,471,487. The average severance per employee to date is 
significantly higher than originally projected ($49,721 as opposed to an estimate of $39,828). 
The average is high because a disproportionate amount of the severed workers worked for 
licensees on the coast, and they tended to be crews with above average seniority. Also, to 
date it appears the total number of employees to be severed, especially in the interior, will be 
lower than projected. Therefore, there will be a surplus of approximately $20,000,000 in the 
BCFRT to deal with employee mitigation according to the Guidelines. This has been moved 
to the Contractor Mitigation Account to cover the shortfall in that Account. 

Looking Ahead 

The second quarter of 2007 will likely include the following activity: 

1. Notification will be received on the few FRPs that will be implemented on coastal 
and interior licensees for which the BCFRT has not yet received documentation. 

2. The disputes involving the revised Teal Jones coastal FRP may be resolved, and 
compensation can start to be offered to the affected contractors and their employees. 

3. Contractor Mitigation payments will continue to be made to replaceable contractors 
who lost some or all of their contracts as a result of those FRPs. 

4. Severance payments will continue to be made to forest workers for some of the above 
licensees , and some of their replaceable contractors. 

5. The BCFRT Trustee will continue to meet with licensee and contractor industry 
associations and organized labour, as well as with individual licensees, contractors, 
worker groups and their advisors on an as needed basis, to ensure that the mitigation 
process progresses as smoothly. quickly and efficiently as possible. 

Eric van Soeren, Trustee 
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2006 Annual Report 

Trustee 
Eric van Soeren 

FNR-2013-00252 
Page 128



-
• 

.. 
.. 
---
-
----.. 
-.. 
-
-
.. 
-.. .. 
• .. .. 
.. .. 
-.. 
.. 

• 
C' 

Be Forestry Revitalization Trust 

Report of the Trustee 

In March 2003 the province of British Columbia established the Be Forestry Revitalization 
Trust (BCFRT) and funded it with $75,000,000. The mandate of the BCFRT is to provide 
mitigation to forest workers and replaceable contractors that are negatively impacted by 
timber reallocations resulting from the Forestry Revitalization Act. 

In Apri12004 the province appointed Eric van Soeren as Trustee. Shortly after that he 
appointed a seven member Advisory Board, as required by the Trust Deed. Advisory Board 
membership as of year-end was as follows: 

John Allan, Board Member representing the Council efForest Industries 
Jim Girvan, Board Member representing the Truck Loggers Association 
Monty Meames, Board Member representing the United Steelworkers of 

America - IW A Council 
Tim Menning, Board Member representing the Interior Logging 

Association, the Central Interior Loggers Association and the North 
West Logging Association 

David Morel, Board Member representing the Ministry of Forests and 
Range 

Darrel Wong, Board Member representing the United Steelworkers of 
America - IW A Council 

Rick Jeffrey, Board Member representing the Coast Forest Products 
Association 

During 2004 the Advisory Board developed draft forest worker and contractor mitigation 
guidelines. In order to develop an estimate of the cost of those guidelines, the Trustee polled 
all the major licensees that were to lose some of their allowable annual cut. They were asked 
to provide their best estimate of the effect of the timber reallocation on their workers, their 
contractors, and their contractors' workers. The Trustee received a 100% response rate from 
Coastal licensees, and a 90% response rate in the Interior. The main reason for the lower 
response in the Interior was the lack of a response from New Skeena. which was involved in 
bankruptcy proceedings . 

Utilizing the best estimates of industry, seniority estimates obtained from the IW A pension 
plan, seniority estimates obtained from contractor industry associations, and the proposed 
guidelines, the Trustee arrived at an estimated cost of delivering the proposed guidelines. 
Based on that estimate, the Trustee estimated that the BCFRT required approximately 
$50,000,000 more than what was available in the BCFRT accounts as of December 31, 2004, 
plus what the BCFRT would likely earn in interest while holding mitigation funds in trust. 

The Trustee and the Advisory Board approached the province to attempt to get sufficient 
extra funds to allow the draft mitigation guidelines to be finalized. On January 21, 2005 the 
Premier made a public commibnent to ask the Be Legislature to approve the required extra 
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$50,000,000. On February 22, 2005 the legislature· approved the request. Of that amount, 
$40,000,000 was transferred to the BCFRT, and $\0,000,000 has been held back by the 
Ministry afForests and Range pending confinnation that the funds will be required. 
Therefore, the draft guidelines were finalized. 

Significant mitigation payments have been made as of December 31, 2006. Based on the 
Forestry Revitalization Proposals (FRPs) and related mitigation applications received to date, 
it is clear that contractor mitigation costs and employee mitigation costs per severed . 
employee will be higher than originally expected. However, the total number of severed 
employees will likely he lower than originally expected. It may still be necessary to draw on 
some of the $10,000,000 that has been committed to the BCFRT by the Ministry ofForests 
and Range, but a combination of reasonable investment returns, lower than expected 
administration costs, and lower than expected total severance costs have more than 
compensated for higher than expected contract mitigation costs. 

Therefore, as of the end of 2006, the Trustee believes the funds in the BCFRT, will be / 
sufficient to make future required mitigation payments based on the Contractor and Worker 
Mitigation Guidelines. 

Administration Account 

When the BCFRT was created, $5 million was allocated to administration. To date, 
administration expenses of the BCFRT have been slightly more than the interest earned by 
the Administration Account, so the initial principal has only been reduced to $4.6 million. It 
appears likely that a portion of the Administration Account will be able to be transferred to 
one of the Mitigation Accounts at a later date, and on an as needed basis. 

Contractor Mitigation Account 

The principle being used for contractor mitigation is that contractors who lose their 
replaceable contracts as a result 'ofForestry Revitalization Act (FRA) timber reallocation will 
receive mitigation that approximates what the contract might reasonably have been worth at 
the time it was reduced or eliminated. Generally. this will be based on a per cubic metre 
value, but contracts that were calculated based on some other measure will be treated 
accordingly. A detailed description of the calculation to be used is in the Contractor 
Mitigation Guidelines, which can be found by following the links to Contractor Mitigation 
Guidelines on the BCFRT website at www.bcfrt.oom. 

As of December 31, 2006, the holders of 186 replaceable contracts had been partially or 
completely compensated for the loss of their replaceable contractual rights. Total contractor 
compensation paid out as of December 31 , 2006 was $44,405,374. 

Forest Worker Mitigation Account 

.. The principle being used for forest worker mitigation is that workers who are severed 
because ofFRA timber reallocation will receive severance paid to them by their employer, -

-
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but funded by the BCFRT. The Advisory Board felt it was fair that all workers who lose 
their jobs as a result of FRA timber reallocation be treated the same. Because the 
Steelworkers (previously IW A) contract mandates what employees that are affected by a 
permanent logging camp closure receive severance of 10 regular days pay per year of 
service, plus 10112'" of a regular day's pay per completed month of service, that standard 
was used. The detailed calculation and discussion appears in the Forest Worker Mitigation 
Guidelines, which can be found by following the links to Forest Worker Mitigation 
Guidelines on the BCFRT website at www.hcfrt.com. 

As of December 31 , 2006, severance payments had been made to 754 forest workers, at a 
total cost to the BCFRT of $37,190,728. 

Looking Abead 

As ofDecerober 31, 2006, Forestry Revitalization Proposals (FRPs) had been prepared 
andlor implemented for 100% of the volume affected by the Forestry Revitalization Act. 
The FRP for one licensee is being disputed, so no progress can be made on contractor or 
employee mitigation related to that FRP until it is resolved, either through the courts or 
arbitration. 

In some cases, FRPs extended replaceable contracts to December 31 , 2006 or later, so no 
contractor or employee mitigation applications have come in from those files. In addition, a 
significant number of contractors have not yet applied for mitigation payments, even though 
they are eligible. It is likely that most of those applications will come in and be dealt with 
during 2007. 
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THE BC FORESTRY REVITALIZATION TRUST 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2006 

SCHROEDER &: ASSOCIA TES, ~ AccowWu>IS 
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Exhibit A 

To the Trustee 
The BC Forestry Revitalization Trust 

AUDITORS'REPORT 

We have audited the statement of financial position of The Be Forestry Revitalization 
Trust as at December 31 , 2006, and the statements of receipts and expenditures and net 
assets for the year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the 
Trustee. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing 
standards. Those standards require that we plan and perfonn an audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. 
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting 
principles used and significant estimates made by the Trustee, as well as evaluating the 
overall financial statement presentation. 

In our opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of the Trust as at December 31, 2006 and its receipts and expenditures 
for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting 
principles . 

Vancouver, B.C. 
February 19, 2007 

~ 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

Suite320-AirponSquare, 1200Wr:st 73rd .... venue, Vancouver,B.c. V6P6GS Td: 604--267-7200 Fax: 604--267.7262 E-mo.il: nWJ@schroed=rubs$ociates.ca 
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THE BC FORESTRY REVITALIZATION TRUST 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2006 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash - note 6 
Marketable securities - at cost - Schedule 1 
Interest receivable 

TOTAL ASSETS 

CURRENT LIABILITY 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

NET ASSETS 
Administration Fund - Schedule 2 
Contractor Mitigation Fund - Schedule 2 
Forest Worker Mitigation Fund - Schedule 2 

TOTAL NET ASSETS 

ASSETS 

LIABILITIES 

FUND BALANCES 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

APPROVED ~ THE TRUSTEE 

__ ~£""""--/~<1"·c<hLY;..,e",,,,,,,,,,,,,~~=£:<-<-u-=,,,,,~ Trustee 

S 

S 

$ 

~ 

Exhibit B 

2006 ~ 

15,280 $ 5,059 
40,541,923 88,331,685 

452,555 1,571,645 

41,009,758 $ 89,908,389 

43,995 .. $ __ ",32""6,,,5<=2 

43,995 32,652 

4,582,339 4,772,653 
6,722,901 43,020,858 

29,660,523 42,082,226 

40,965,763 89,875,737 

41,009,758 ~ 89,908,389 

The accompanying sununary of significant accounting policies and notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Exhibit C 

THE BC FORESTRY REVITALIZATION TRUST 

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006 

EXCESS OFRECEUTS OVER EXPEND1TURES 

NON-OPERATING TRANSACTIONS 
Settlement of Trust 
Disbursements to beneficiaries 

NET ASSETS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 

NET ASSETS AT END OF YEAR 

S 

~ 

~ 

2,019,776 

(50,929,750) 

(50,929,750) 

89,875,737 

40il965a763 

The accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

SCHROEDER II: ASSOCIATES, Oarttred AccoumaIIU 

1lW: 

$ 2,393,900 

40,000,000 
(30,666,352) 

9,333,648 

78,148,189 

~ 89,875,737 
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INTEREST RECEIPTS - note 4(b) 

EXPENDITURES - note 4(c) 
Administration fees 
Advisory board meeting costs 
Audit fees 
Bank charges and interest 
GST expense 
Legal fees 
Office 
Project analysis 
Travel and entertainment 
Trustee fees 

( ' " , n 

TIlE BC FORESTRY REVITALIZATION TRUST 

STATEMENT OF RECEIPTS AND EXPENDITURES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006 

Administration Contractor Forest Worker 
Fund Mitigation Fund Mitigation FWld 

Exhibit D 

2006 
Total 

$ 175,635 $ 950,806 $ 1.262,459 S 2,388,900 

900 

31 ,750 
200 2,285 

22,298 
4,990 
1,283 

26,533 
1,675 

276.320 

365.949 2,285 

900 

31,750 
890 3,375 

890 

22,298 
4,990 
1,283 

26,533 
1,675 

276,320 

369,124 

2005 

I!llill 

$ 2,700.138 

7, 175 
65 

20,795 
1,395 

19,850 
9,362 

719 
16,067 
3,290 

227,520 

306.238 

EXCESS OF RECEIPTS OVER EXPENDITURES $ (190,314) $ 948.521 $ 1.261.569 $ 2,019,776 $ 2.393.900 

The accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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THE BC FORESTRY REVITALIZATION TRUST 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2006 

L PURPOSE OF THE TRUST 

Exhibit E 

The Be Forestry Revitalization Trust (the "Trust") was established by Deed of Trust dated March 17, 2003 
(the "Trust Deed"). Pursuant to Bill 28-2003, the Forestry Revitalization Act, the Ministry of Forests of the 
Province of British Columbia made a payment of $75,000,000 10 settle the Trust (the "First Payment"). On 
February 22, 2005, the Government of the Province of British Columbia passed legislation to make an additional 
contribution of $50,000,000 to the Trust (the "Second Payment"), to increase the funds available for distribution 
to $125,000,000. A portion of $40,000,000 of the second payment was received during the prior year. The 
remaining amount is held by the Government of the Province of British Columbia Wltil such a time as the Trust 
requires the funds. The funds are to be used to mitigate adverse fmanci~ impacts suffered by certain workers 
and replaceable contractors as a result of restructuring of the forestry sector and harvesting operations within 
British Columbia, arising out of reductions under the Forestry Revitalization Act of harvesting rights available to 
licensees under the Forest Act . 

2. BENEFICIARlES OF THE TRUST 

The beneficiaries of the Trust are: 

(a) certain workers (unemployed forestry workers and retraining forestry workers as defined in subparagraph 
2.02(2)(a) and (b) of the Trust Deed); and 

(b) certain contractors (as defmed in subparagraph 2.02(2)(c) of the Trust Deed) who hold a replaceable 
contract within the meaning of the Timber Harvesting Contract and Subcontract Regulation of the Forest 
Act. 

3. DURATION OF THE TRUST 

Subject to a possible extension of up to two years the Trust will terminate on the earlier of: 

(a) March31,2008; and 

(b) any date on which there is no remaining Trust property . 

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

(a) Fund Accounting 

The Be Forestry Revitalization Trust employs fund accoWlting, using the accrual method of accounting for 
transactions. The Trust's assets are subject to the restrictions contained in the Trust Deed and are to be used 
only for the specified purposes. The Trust comprises the following funds: 

(i) Administration Fund 

In accordance with the Trust Deed, $5 million of the First Payment was allocated to the Administration 
Fund to meet administration expenses for the duration of the Trust. 

Pursuant to recommendations by the Advisory Board, the Trustee may transfer funds from time to time 
from the Administration Fund to the other two funds to the extent that the transferred amounts are in 
excess of anticipated administrative expenses of the Trust. Any such transfers cannot be reversed. 

SCHROEDER 4< ASSOCIATES. Cbancml A<:counUWI5 
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THE BC FORESTRY REVITALIZATION TRUST 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006 

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, cont~ 

(ii) Contractor Mitigation Fund 

Exhibit E 

In accordance with the Trust Deed, $23 million of the First Payment was allocated to the Contractor 
Mitigation Fund. 

This fund is to be used to provide mitigation to certain replaceable contractors for reductions in their 
contract volwnes resulting from the reduction in the harvesting rights of certain licensees under the 
Forestry Revitalization Act; 

Pursuant to recommendations by the Advisory Board, the Trustee may transfer funds from time to time 
between the Contractor Mitigation Fund and the Forest Worker Mitigation Fund. See note 12, 
Subsequent Event. 

(iii) Forest Worker Mitigation Fund 

In accordance with the Trust Deed, $47 million oftbe First Payment was allocated to the Forest Worker 
Mitigation Fund. 

This fund is to be used to provide mitigation to certain forestry workers who ceased to be employed by 
certain licensees or replaceable contractors as a result of reductions in the harvesting rights of certain 
licensees under the Forestry Revjtalization Act. 

Pursuant to recommendations by the Advisory Board, the Trustee may transfer funds from time to time 
between the Contractor Mitigation Fund and the forest Worker Mitigation Fund. See note 12, 
Subsequent Event. 

(b) Revenue Recognition and Allocation 

Investment income is recorded as received or receivable, if the amount to be received can be reasonably 
estimated and collection is reasonably assured. 

All income earned in respect of funds held in a mitigation fund shall be income of that mitigation fund and 
form part of the capital of that fund. 

All income earned in any fiscal year in respect of funds held in the Administration Fund (net of any 
applicable taxes) will first be used to pay administrative ex.penses for the fiscal year. The remainder, if any, 
shall be added to the other two funds on a pro-rata basis as defined in the Trust Deed . 

(c) Expenditures Allocation 

In accordance with the Trust Deed, all expenditures are to be paid out of the Administration Fund . 

(d) Use of Assumptions and Estimates 

The preparation of fmancial statements, in conformity with Canadian generally accepted accounting 
principles, requires the Trustee to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the 
fmancial statements and accompanying disclosures. Although these estimates are based on the Trustee's 
knowledge of clUTent events and actions the Trust may undertake in the future, actual results may differ 
from the estimates . 
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THE BC FORESTRY REVITALIZATION TRUST 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006 

5. STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

Exhibit E 

These financial statements do not include a statement of cash flows as the information is readily available from 
the financial statements, and would not provide additional useful information. 

6. CASH 
Administration Contractor Forest Worker 

Fund Mitigation Food Mitigation Fund 

Cash $ 13,516 $ 914 $ 850 

7. INCOME TAXES 

2006 
I!!!!! 

15,280 $ 

2005 
Total 

5,059 

The Trustee is of the opinion that the Trust is either a non-profit organization for income tax purposes or a public 
body perfonning a function of government. Under either definition, the Trust's income would not be subject to 
income taxes. 

During the prior year, an appeals officer of the Canada Revenue Agency (the "CRA") requested certain 
information regarding the purpose of the Trust and indicated verbally that she concurred with the Trustee's 
opinion. During the year, the Trustee received a notice of assessment confmning that the Trust is not subject to 
Income Taxes. 

8. GOODS AND SERVICES TAXES 

The Trustee has received advice from the CRA that the Trust will not be able to recover any Input Tax Credits. 

9. FAlRVALUEANDCREDITRISK 

The carrying value of investments and liabilities reflected in the balance sheet approximate their respective fair 
values. The Trust does not have a significant concentration of credit risk . 

10. COMMITMENTS 

In accordance with the Trust deed, all funds must be disbursed to beneficiaries by March 31, 2008 in accordance 
with the purpose of the Trust and the guidelines prepared by the Trustee and approved by thc Advisory Board. 
Any amounts remaining at that time are to be transferred to a person, organization or 3.."sociation whose 
objectives are compatible with the distribution objectives of the Trust. However, no amounts may be transferred 
to the Government of the Province of British Columbia. 
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THE BC FORESTRY REVITALIZATION TRUST 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006 

1 L SUFFICIENCY OF FUNDS 

Exhibit E 

During a prior year, the Trustee and Advisory Board developed Forest Worker Mitigation Guidelines and 
Contractor Mitigation Guidelines. Based on those guidelines the Trustee regularly updates calculations of the 
expected amounts required to make mitigation payments to eligible workers and replaceable contractors in 
accordance with the purpose of the Trust. These calculations are based on certain asswnptions and on 
infonnation and estimates provided by affected licensees and contractors. 

The Trustee and the Advisory Board are satisfied that the funds of $125,000,000 available subsequent to the 
receipt of the Second Payment will pennit the Trust to fulfil its expected obligations under the Forest Worker and 
Contractor Mitigation Guidelines. 

12. SUBSEQUENT EVENT 

At a meeting on January 23, 2007, the Trustee and Advisory Board decided to transfer $20,000,000 from the 
Forest Worker Mitigation Fund to the Contractor Mitigation Fund. The Trustee advised that actual Contractor 
Mitigation costs exceeded initial estimates, while actual Forest Worker Mitigation costs were less than initial 
estimated atnOlUltS. 

SCHROEDER &: ASSOCIATES. CharterN Ac<:owltanIS 
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Franchise Trust ON 
Face Value SSO,OOO 
Due January 4, 2006 

Govenunent of Canada Treasury Bill 
Face Value $1,997,000 
Due March 6, 2006 

CPN Province of Ontario 
Face Value $2,800,000 
Due June 2, 2006 

Franchise Trust DN 
Face Value S2,000,OOO 
Due January 4, 2006 

cmCBA 
Face Value $1 ,000,000 
Due January 13,2006 

RES Province of Ontario 
Face Value $2,332,000 
Due January 19, 2006 

Government of Canada Treasury Bill 
Face Value $2,000,000 
Due February 23,2006 

f ) I ' ) 

THE BC FORESTRY REVITALIZATION TRUST 

SCHEDULE OF MARKETABLE SECURITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006 

Administration Contractor Forest Worker 
Fund Mitigation Fund Mitigation Fund 

$ $ $ 

The !KX':ornpanying summary of significant accounting policies and notes are an integral part oflhese financial statements. 

SCHROEDEk" ASSOCIATES. Ctwtered~" 
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Schedule I 

2006 
I2!!! 

$ 

2005 
Total 

49,850 

1,974,901 

2,637,323 

1,989,524 

992,760 

2,291,388 

1,970,150 
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Government of Canada Treasury Bill 
Face Value $2,000,000 
Due March 23, 2006 

cmCBA 
Face Value $2,000,000 
Due April 17, 2006 

Government of Canada Treasury Bill 
Face Value SII ,443,OOO 
Due April 20, 2006 

Government of Canada Treasury Bill 
Face Value S2,OOO,OOO 
Due April 20, 2006 

Government of Canada Treasury Bill 
Face Value S2,OOO,OOO 
Due May 4, 2006 

Government of Cunada Treasury Bill 
Face Value SI,922,000 
Due May 18, 2006 

" I ( ' ) 

THE BC FORESTRY REVITALIZATION TRUST 

SCHEDULE OF MARKETABLE SECURITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2006 

Administration Contractor Forest Worker 
Fund Mitigation Fund Mitigation Fund 

The accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and notes arc an integral part of these financial statements. 

SCHROI:DEfl" ASSOCIA Tts, ct.1c:m:I Aoc:ouDlaPlt 

Schedule I 

2006 

!2!!! 
2005 
Total 

11 ,905,896 

1,965,492 

1,968,838 

11 ,149,670 

1,960,984 

1,968,150 

1,879,962 

FNR-2013-00252 
Page 143



, 

f 

L 

r~ 

L 

r 

r 
L 

r 
l 

, 
r 

l 

carried forward 

Government of Canada Treasury Bill 
Face Value $776,000 
Due May 18,2006 

emeBA 
Face Value $768,000 
Due May 18, 2006 

Govcnuncnt of Canada Treasury Bill 
Face Value $1,2 18,000 
Due May 18, 2006 

Government of Canada Treasury Bill 
Face Value $1,691,000 
Due May 18, 2006 

RES Province of Manitoba 
Face Value $1,637,000 
Due June 5, 2006 

emeBA 
Face Value $1,288,000 
Due June 16, 2006 

, 
1 

( ) 

THE Be FORESTRY REVITALIZATION TRUST 

SCHEDULE OF MARKETABLE SECURITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2006 

Administration 
Fund 

Contractor Forest Worker 
Mitigation Fund Mitigation Fund 

The accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

SCHROEDER &; ASSOCIATES, Clwtered A~ooontants 

Schedule 1 

2006 
Total 

2005 
Total 

32,798,992 

761,314 

753,537 

1,195,592 

1,660,237 

1,599,598 

1,261,644 
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carried forward 

Govenunent of Canada Treasury Bill 
Face Value $1,108,000 
Due July 13,2006 

Royal Bank BA 
Face Value $185,000 
Due August 4, 2006 

Govcnunent of Canada Treasury Bill 
Face Value $2,000,000 
Due August 10, 2006 

Government of Canada Treasury Bill 
Face Value $2,000,000 
Due September 7, 2006 

RES Province of Manitoba 
Face Value $817,000 
Due September 7, 2006 

CIBCBA 
Face Value $1,287,000 
Due October 5, 2006 

, ( ) 

THE BC FORESTRY REVITALIZATION TRUST 

SCHEDULE OF MARKETABLE SECURITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006 

Administration Contractor Forest Worker 
Fund Mitigation FWld Mitigation Fund 

The accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

SCHROf.:Of.:R '" ASSOCIATF,S, Clwtcred Ac~ 

Schedule 1 

2006 
Total 

2005 
Total 

40,030,914 

1,082,786 

179,651 

1,951,842 

1,946,054 

795,749 

1,248,510 
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carried forward 

RES Province of Ontario 
Face Value $5,477,000 
Due January 19, 2006 

, 

Government of Canada Treasury Bill 
Face Value $1,012,000 
Due January 3, 2006 

RES Province of Ontario 
Face Value $5,094,000 
Due January 19,2006 

RES Province of Ontario 
Face Value $1,000,000 
Due January 19, 2006 

Government of Canada Treasury Bill 
Face Value $2,307,000 
Due February 23, 2006 

RES Province of Ontario 
Face Value $3,407,000 
Due March 8, 2006 

, ( ') 

THE BC FORESTRY REVITALIZATION TRUST 

SCHEDULE OF MARKETABLE SECURITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006 

Administration Contractor Forest Worker 
Fund Mitigation Fund Mitigation Fund 

The accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

SCIIROEDER.& ASSOCIATES, ChatlcrW A~ 

Schedule 1 

2006 

Th!!! 
2005 
Total 

47,235,506 

5,352,754 

1,010,877 

4,999,491 

985,824 

2,281,584 

3,312,193 
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RES Province of Ontario 
Face Value $1,396,000 
Due March 8, 2006 

RES Province of Ontario 
Face Value $830,000 
Due March 8, 2006 

Govenunent of Canada Treasury Dill 
Face Value $5,131,000 
Due April 20, 2006 

I'" "'\ 

Govenunent of Canada Treasury Bill 
Face Value $807,000 
Due May 18, 2006 

CPN Province of Ontario 
Face Value $5,437,000 
Due June 2, 2006 

PRN Province of New Brunswick 
Face Value $2,000,000 
Due June 19,2006 

() 

THE BC FORESTRY REVITALIZATION TRUST 

SCHEDULE OF MARKETABLE SECURITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006 

Administration Contractor Forest Worker 
Fund Mitigation Fund Mitigation Food 

The accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

SCHROEDER'" ASSOClATES,Chartmd ACW<UUanlS 

Schedule 1 

2006 

Th!!! 
2005 
Total 

65,178,229 

1,376,622 

818,656 

4,999,472 

791,803 

5,114,455 

1,962,428 

FNR-2013-00252 
Page 147



r 
l 

r 
L 

, 
l 

r , 

L 

( 

[ 

J 

carried forward 

Government of Canada Treasury Bill 
Face Value $864,000 
Due July 13,2006 

RES Province of Ontario 
Face Value $1,552,000 
Due July 24, 2006 

Government of Canada Treasury Bill 
Face Value $647,000 
Due August 10, 2006 

RES Government of Canada 
Face Value $5,546,000 
Due December 1. 2006 

Government of Canada Treasury Bill 
Face Value $150,000 
Due March 8, 2007 

Government of Canada Treasury Bill 
Face Value $1,589,000 
Due July 12, 2007 

\ ( ) 

THE BC FORESTRY REVITALIZATION TRUST 

SCHEDULE OF MARKET ABLE SECURITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006 

Administration Contractor Forest Worker 
Fund Mitigation Fund Mitigation Fund 

148,372 

1,550,781 

t The accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

SCIIROEDER &I ASSOC IA TE5. Chartered ACC<lw.tants 

Schedule I 

2006 

l:Q!!! 

148,372 

1,550,781 

2005 
Total 

80,241,665 

844,339 

1,500,045 

631,431 

5,114,205 
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Franchise U Trust Discount Note 
Face Value $50,000 
Due January 3, 2007 

Royal Bank BA 
Face Value $1,094,000 
Due May 22, 2007 

CIBC BA 
FaceValue $ 1,812,000 
Due May 18, 2006 

Government of Canada Treasury Bill 
Face Value SI, l14,OOO 
Due January 25, 2007 

Government of Canada Treasury Bill 
Face Value $2,220,000 
Due February 22, 2007 

( I 

National Bank of Canada Discount Note 
Face Value $1,112,000 
Due March 7. 2007 

( ) 

THE BC FORESTRY REVITALIZATION TRUST 

SCHEDULE OF MARKETABLE SECURITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDEO OECEMBER 31. 2006 

Administration Contractor Forest Worker 
Fund Mitigation Fund Mitigation Fund 

1,699, 153 

49,629 

1,072,366 

1,775,767 

1,083,69 1 

2,152,572 

1,089,133 

The accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

SCHROI:DER 41: ASSOCIATES, ChM1c1cd Acc:ounwIIi 

Schedule 1 

2006 
I!!!!! 

1,699,153 

49,629 

1,072,366 

1,775,767 

1,083,691 

2,152,572 

1,089,133 

2005 
~ 

88,331,685 
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Res Province of Saskatchewan 
Face Value $848,000 
Due March 9, 2007 

Res Canada Housing Trust 
Face Value $589,000 
Due March 15, 2007 

ePN Province of Quebec 
Face Value $886,000 
Due April I, 2007 

Government of Canada Treasury Bill 
Face Value $2,213,000 
Due February 8, 2007 

Government of Canada Treasury Bill 
Face Value $3,000,000 
Due May 3, 2007 

Government of Canada Treasury Bill 
Face Value $3,000,000 
Due July 12,2007 

, ( ) 

THE BC FORESTRY REVITALIZATION TRUST 

SCHEDULE OF MARKETABLE SECURITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2006 

Administration 
Fund 

Contractor Forest Worker 
Mitigation FWld Mitigation Food 

4,596,915 4,325,396 

821,846 

567,751 

866,778 

2,170,092 

2,949,627 

2,927,844 

The accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

SCHROEDER &. ASSOCIATES, Cllart=<l ACcounWlls 

Schedule 1 

2006 
Total 

8,922,311 

821,846 

567,751 

866,778 

2,170,092 

2,949,627 

2,927,844 

2005 
Total 

88,331,685 
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carried forward 

Government of Canada Treasury Bill 
Face Value $3,000,000 
Due August 9, 2007 

cmcBA 
Face Value $39,000 
Due January 3, 2007 

Bank of Nuva Scolia DiSCOWlt Note 
Face Value $983,000 
Due January 3, 2007 

RES Province of Ontario 
Face Value $1,163,700 
Due March 8, 2001 

Res Canada Housing Trust 
Face Value $4,809,000 
Due March 15, 2007 

Royal Bank: Discount Note 
Face Value $2,902,000 
Due AprilS, 2007 

\ ( ) 

THE BC FORESTRY REVITALIZATION TRUST 

SCHEDULE OF MARKETABLE SECURITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006 

Administration Contractor Forest Worker 
Fund Mitigation Fund Mitigation Fund 

4,596,915 6,581,771 8,047,563 

2,919,423 

38,866 

960,477 

1,134,052 

4,663,229 

2,843,113 

The 300lmpanying summary of significant accounting policies and notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

SCHROEDER &. ASSOCIATES, Charte",d AcCQUll_ 

Schedule 1 

2006 
Total 

19,226,249 

2,919,423 

38,866 

960,477 

1,134,052 

4,663,229 

2,843,113 

2005 
Total 

88,331,685 

FNR-2013-00252 
Page 151



f 

r 

[ 

[ 
, 

[ 

[ 

r 
[ , 
[ 

l 
, 

• 
• 

carried fOlWard 

National Bank of Canada BA 
Face Value $2,609,000 
Due April 10, 2007 

FirstBank BA 
Face Value $2,079,000 
Due April 16, 2007 

Citibank N.A Discount Note 
Face Value $2,041,000 
Due May 29, 2007 

Res Province of Saskatchewan 
Face Value $2,231,500 
Due September 6, 2007 

MARKETABLE SECURITIES 

( I ( ) 

THE BC FORESTRY REVITALIZATION TRUST 

SCHEDULE OF MARKETABLE SECURITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006 

Administration Contractor Forest Worker 
Fund Mitigation Fund Mitigation Fund 

4,596,915 6,581,771 20,606,723 

2,555,309 

2,036,645 

1,999,641 

Schedule I 

2006 
Total 

31,785,409 

2,555,309 

2,036,645 

1,999,641 

2,164,919 2,164,919 

2005 
Total 

88,331,685 

$ 4,596,915 $ 6,581.771 $ 29,363,237 $ 40,541,923 $ 88,331,685 

The accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and notes are an integral part oflhese financial statements. 
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Balance, beginning of year 

Settlement oftrust 

Disbursements to beneficiaries 

Excess of receipts over expenditures 

( ) 

THE BC FORESTRY REVITALIZATION TRUST 

SCHEDULE OF FUNDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006 

Schedule 2 

Administration Contractor Forest Worker 2006 
FWld Mitigation Fund Mitigation FWld Total 

S 4,772,653 $ 43,020,858 $ 42,082,226 S 89,875,737 

(37,246,478) (13,683,272) (50,929,750) 

(190,314) 948.521 1.261.569 2,019,776 

2005 
Total 

$ 78,148,189 

40,000,000 

(30,666,352) 

2.393.900 

Balance, end of year $ 4.582.339 $ 6.722.901 $ 29.660,523 $ 40,965.763 $ 89,875,737 

The accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Be Forestry Revitalization Tn~~_ 

Jul y 11 ,2007 

Doug Konkin 
Deputy Minister of Forests and Range 
Ministry of Forests and Range 
3'" Floor, 1520 Blanshard Street 
P.O. Box 9525 Stn Prov Govt 
Victoria, BC V8W 9C3 

Dear Doug Konkin, 

I MINIS J RV OF FORESTS. DMO 
RECEIVED 

DMRLHlo7.5% 
flJl JUL 1 7 2007 I 

r> ~~!CLA 
DUE DATE: 

j DORAFT REPLY 
L~~ ____ ~.~FY~I~~~ ____ ~ 

Re: The BC Forestry Revitalization Trust - 2007 Second Quarter Report 

Enclosed for your information is a copy of The Be Forestry Revitalization Trust's 2007 Second 
Quarter Report. 

Thank you for your continued support and involvement in the Trust to date. Please feel free to 
contact me if you would like to discuss anything in the report, or The Be Forestry Revitalization 
Trust in general. 

Yours truly, 

Lg//u--J~ 
Eric van Saeren 
Trustee 

enc!. 

Eric van Soeren, Trustee 
6705 London Drive 
Delta, B.c' V4K 4W7 
www.bcfrt.com 

Phone: 604-940-0850 
Cell:
Fax: 604-940-0858 

Email: eric@vansoeren.net 
FNR-2013-00252 
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Be Forestry Revitalization Trust 

Report of the Trustee as of June 30, 2007 

General 

In March 2003 the province of British Columbia established the Be Forestry Revitalization 
Trust (BCFRT) and funded it with $75,000,000. The mandate of the BCFRT is to provide 
mitigation to forest workers and replaceable contractors that are negatively impacted by 
timber reallocations resulting from the Forestry Revitalization Act (FRA). 

In April 2004 the province appointed Eric van Soeren as Trustee. Shortly after that he 
appointed a seven member Advisory Board, as required by the Trust Deed. That Board 
developed draft Forest Worker Mitigation Guidelines and Contractor Mitigation Guidelines. 
In order to develop an estimate of the cost of those guidelines, the Trustee polled all the 
major licensees that were to lose some of their allowable annual cut. They were asked to 
provide their best estimate of the effect of the timber reallocation on their workers, their 
contractors, and their contractors' workers. The Trustee received a 100% response rate from 
Coastal licensees, and a 90% response rale from the Interior licensees. The main reason for 
the lower response in the Interior was the lack of a response from New Skeena, which was 
involved in bankruptcy proceedings. 

Utilizing the best estimates of industry, seniority estimates obtained from the IW A pension 
plan, seniority estimates obtained from contractor industry associations, and the proposed 
guidelines, the Trustee arrived at an estimated cost of delivering the proposed guidelines. 
Based on that estimate, the Trustee determined that the BCFRT likely required 
approximately $50,000,000 more than what was available in the BCFRT accounts, plus what 
the BCFRT was likely to earn in interest while holding mitigation funds in trust. 

The Trustee and the Advisory Board approached the province to attempt to obtain sufficient 
extra funds to allow the draft mitigation guidelines to be finalized. As of March 31, 2005, 
the province had agreed to the request for additional funds, and had received approval from 
the legislature to provide those funds to the BCFRT. 

Based on the commitment from the province for the additional funds, the Contractor 
Mitigation Guidelines and the Forest Worker Mitigation Guidelines were finalized by the 
BCFRT Advisory Board. The Guidelines, as well as extensive supporting documentation, 
are posted on the BCFRT website. 

In early April 2005 the BCFRT received a $40,{)()(),000 cash injection. The outstanding 
$ 10,000,000 in committed funds has not yet been advanced, and will be held by the province 
until the need for the additional funds is confirmed, 

Eric van Soeren, Trustee 
6705 London Drive 
Delta, S.c. V4K 4W7 
www.bcfrt.com 

Phone: 604-940-0850 
Cell: 
Fax: 604-940-0858 

Email: eric@vansoeren.net 
FNR-2013-00252 
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Account Balances 

As of June 30, 2007, the market value of the BCFRT accounts and distribution to 
beneficiaries was as follows: 

Account Balances 

Administration Account 
Contractor Mitigation Account 
Forest Worker Mitigation Account 
Funds held in reserve by Ministry of Forests and Range 

Total market value of BCFRT accounts 

Distributions to Beneficiaries to date 

Contractor Mitigation 
Forest Worker Mitigation 

Total Distributions to Beneficiaries 

Total available funds plus distributions 

Administration Account 

$4,582,596 
$15,420,980 

$9,156,390 
$ 10,000,000 
$39,159,966 

$56,013,224 
$37,960,052 
$93,973,276 

$133,133,242 

When the BCFRT was created, $5,000,000 was allocated to administration. To date, most of 
the administration expenses of the BCFRT have been covered by the interest earned on the 
Administration Account balance, so the initial principal has been reduced by approximately 
$417,000. It is likely a significant portion of the Administration Account will be able to be 
transferred to one of the Mitigation Accounts at a later date, and on an as needed basis. 

Contractor Mitigation Account 

The principle being used for contractor mitigation is that contractors who lose their 
replaceable contracts as a result of Forestry Revitalization Act (FRA) restructuring will 
receive mitigation that approximates what the contract might reasonably have been worth at 
the lime it was reduced or eliminated. Generally. this will be based on a per cubic metre 
value, but contracts that were calculated based on some other measure will be treated 
accordingly. A detailed description of the calculation to be used is contained in the 
Contractor Mitigation Guidelines. These Guidelines are posted on the BCFRT website. 

As of June 30, 2007, Forestry Revitalization Proposals (FRPs) have been presented for 
99.9% of the reallocated volume in the Province. The last date for submitting a FRP was 
July 31, 2006, so the replaceable contracts of the licensee that did not submit a FRP will be 
subject to proportionate reduction. The Coastal FRP submitted by Teal Jones was rejected 
by its contractors, as was a revised FRP. The Supreme Court declined to rule on the FRP, so 
a mediator will review that FRP, hopefully in the third quarter of 2007. 

2 
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Also as of June 30, 2007, $56,013,224 had been paid in contractor mitigation related to 236 
affected contracts. Discussions are underway with many other replaceable contractors whose 
contracts have heen or may be reduced or eliminated. Therefore, many more contractor 
mitigation payments will be made during 2007. It appears approximately 32 1 contracts wi ll 
be reduced or eliminated as a result of the Forestry Revitalization Act timber reallocation. 

Several coastal contractors and a group of interior contractors have suggested that the 
Contractor Mitigation Guidelines do not fairly compensate them for the value of their lost 
contracts. The Advisory Board has reviewed all but one of the claims that had been made. 
The view of the Advisory Board is that only one contractor has been able to substantiate its 
claim that the formula or the cap used in the Contractor Mitigation Guidelines is not fair. 
The only exception was a heli-Iogging contract that had a per cubic metre rate substantially 
higher than the rate paid for conventional logging. That contractor was mitigated using a rate 
above the cap. The BC Ombudsman's office has reviewed the claim of the interior 
contractors and found it to be without merit. All of those contractors have now accepted 
mitigation as detennined by the Contractor Mitigation Guidelines. 

While the Trustee and the Advisory Board remain open to considering special cases, no 
change to the previously approved Contractor Mitigation Guidelines has been made with 
respect to calculating the value of lost contract volume. The Advisory Board continues to 
accept the proposition that in some rare cases it may be necessary to compensate replaceable 
contractors for stranded assets. Discussions are underway with two contractors whose camps 
have been made redundant because of their loss of fibre appurtenant to the camp. 

There ha ve now been 1 wo cases where replaceable hauling contractors were able to 
demonstrate that in their area, recent anns length purchases and sales of hauling contracts 
had been at a rate slightly higher than what the mitigation formula generated. In those two 
cases, slightly higher compensation payments were made than would have been made based 
strictly on the formula. However, thi s increased payment was contemplated in the Contractor 
Mitigation Guidelines. One remaining Coastal Contractor believes he should receive larger 
payouts than the formula and cap will allow. His claim will be considered at a future 
Advisory Board meeting. 

As of June 30, 2007, contractor compensation payments, plus revised estimates based on 
applications to that date, appear to be approximately 12.7%, or $8.1 million, above the 
originally projected amounts. This is partially because a higher than projected proportion of 
replaceable contractors appear to be leaving the industry, partially because there will be some 
cost to the BCFRT related to stranded assets, and partially because redundant equipment 
payments are turning out to be higher than projected. Also, two licensees were able to get 
Ministerial Exemptions to allow them to eliminate more replaceable contractors than the 
original cap on replaceable contract eliminations would have allowed. These extra contractor 
costs will likely be balanced because it is now clear that employee severances will be lower 
than originally projected. In order to cover the higher than expected contractor mitigation 
cost, $20,000,000 was moved from the Forest Worker Mitigation Account to the Contractor 
Mitigation Account. 

3 
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Forest Worker Mitigation Account 

The principle being used for forest worker mitigation is that workers who are severed by a 
Licensee or Replaceable Contractor because of FRA restructuring will receive severance 
from their ex-employer. and that severance wi ll be funded by the BCFRT. The Advisory 
Board fell it was fair that all workers who lose their jobs as a result of FRA restructuring be 
treated the same. Because the Steelworkers' (previously rw A) contract mandates that 
employees affected by a pennanent logging camp closure receive severance of 10 regular 
day's pay per year of service, plus 10/12!hS of a regular day 's pay per completed month of 
service, that standard was used. The detailed calculation and di scussion appears in the Forest 
Worker Mitigation Guidelines, and can be found on the BCFRT website. 

As of June 30, 2007, the BCFRT had provided funding for the severance of 773 workers, for 
a total cost to the BCFRT of $37,960,052. The average severance per employee to date is 
significantly higher than originally projected ($49, 107 as opposed to an estimate of $39,828). 
The average is high because a disproportionate amount of the severed workers worked for 
licensees on the coast, and they tended to be crews with above average seniority. Also, to 
date it appears the total number of employees to be severed, especially in the interior, will be 
lower than projected. Therefore, a surplus of at least $20,000,000 is expected in the 
Employee Mitigation Account to deal with employee severance according to the Guidelines. 
This has been moved to the Contractor Mitigation Account to cover the shortfall in that 
Account. 

Looking Abead 

The third quarter of 2007 will likely include the following activity: 

I. The disputes involving the revised Teal Jones coastal FRP may be resolved, and 
compensation can start to be offered to the affected contractors and their employees. 

2. Contractor Mitigation payments will continue to be made to replaceable contractors 
who lost some or all of their contracts as a result of those FRPs. 

3. Severance payments wi ll continue to be made to forest workers for some of the above 
licensees. and some of their replaceable contractors. 

4. The BCFRT Trustee will continue to meet with licensee and contractor industry 
associations and organized labour, as wen as with individual licensees, contractors, 
worker groups and their advi sors on an as needed basis, to ensure that the mitigation 
process progresses as smoothly, quickly and efficiently as possible. 

Eric van Soeren 
Trustee 

4 
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Be Forestry Revitalization Trust 

January 15,2007 

Doug Konkin 

(\~ 
f d. 

C}L, yO f~ 
Deputy Minister of For ts and Range 
Min istry of Forests d Range 
3rd Floor, 1520 8 nshard Street 
P.O. Box 9525 tn Pr~y Govt 
Victoria, B V8W 9C3 

Dear D ug Kookin, 

( -..-\..\ ... 

R The Be Forestry Revitalization Trust - 2006 Fourth Quarter Report 

Enclosed for your infonnation is a copy of The Be Forestry Revitali zation Trust's 2006 Fourth 
Quarter Report . 

Thank yu u for your continued support and involvement in the Trust to date. Please fcel free to 
contact me if you would like to di scuss anything in the report, or The Be Forestry Revitali zation 
Trust in genera l. 

Yours truly, 

Lv/~~ 
Eric van Soeren 
Trustee 

encl. 

Eric van Soeren, Trustee 
670.5 London Dri vc 
Delta, B.C. V4K 4W7 
www.bcfrt.com 

_._---.:::::-:====-=-:--, 
MINISTRY OF FORESTS, DMO 

KIiiCEIVED 
DMRl#J£J-.!iLfIQ 

JAN 1 9 2007 

DUE DAn: : 
II DDRAFT REPLY DREPlY DIRECT 

DFNA O FYI DFllE 
.. _----_._ -_._---' 

Phone: 604-940·0850 
Cell: 
Fax: 604-940·0858 

Email: eric@vansoeren.net 
FNR-2013-00252 
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Be Forestry Revitalization Trust 

Report of the Trustee as of December 31, 2006 

General 

In March 2003 the province of British Columbia established the Be Forestry Revitalization 
Trust (BCFRT) and fu nded it with $75,000,000. The mandate of the BCFRT is to provide 
mitigation to fore~t workers and replaceable contractors that are negatively impacted by 
timber reallocations resulting from the Forestry Revital ization Act (FRA). 

In Apri l 2004 the province appoi nted Eric van Soeren as Trustee. Shortly after that he 
appointed a seven member Advisory Board, as required by the Trust Deed. That Board 
developed draft Forest Worker Mitigation Guidelines and Contractor Mitigation Guidelines. 
In order to develop an estimate of the cost of those guidelines, the Trustee polled all the 
major li censees that were to lose some of their allowable annual cut. They were asked to 
provide their best estimate of the effect of the timber reallocation on their workers, their 
contractors, and their contractors' workers. The Trustee received a 100% response rate from 
Coastal licensees. and a 90% response rate from the Interior licensees. The main reason for 
the lower response in the Interior was the lack of a response from New Skeena, which was 
involved in bankruptcy proceedings. 

Utilizing the best est imates of industry, seniority estimates obtained from the IWA pension 
plan, seniority estimates obtained from contractor industry associations, and the proposed 
gu idelines, the Trustee arrived at an estimated cost of delivering the proposed guidelines. 
Based on that estimate, the Trustee estimated that the BCFRT req ui red approximately 
$50,000,000 more than what was available in the BCFRT accounts, plus what the BCFRT 
was likely to earn in interest whi le holding mitigation funds in trust. 

The Trustee and the Advisory Board approached the province to attempt to obtain sufficient 
cxtra funds to allow the draft mitigation guidelines to be finalized. As of March 31 , 2005, 
the province had agreed to the request for additional funds. and had rece ived approval from 
the legislature to provide those fu nds to the BCFRT. 

Based on the commitment from the province for the additional funds, the Contractor 
Mitigation Guiddim:s and the Furest Wurker Mitigatiun G uidelines wen: finalized by the 
BCFRT Advisory Board. The Guidelines , as wcll as extensivc supporting documentation, 
are posted on the BCFRT website. 

In earl y April 200S the BCFRT received a $40,000,000 cash injection. The outstanding 
$10,000,000 in committed funds has not yet been advanced, and wi ll be held by the province 
unti l the need for the additional funds is confinned. 

Eric van Soeren. Trustee 
6705 London Drive 
Delta,8.C. V4K 4W7 
www.bc frt.com 

Phone: 604-940-0850 
Cell: 
Fax: 604-940-0858 

Email: eric@vansoeren.net 
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Account Balances 

As of December 31, 2006. the market value of the Be FRT accounts and distribution to 
beneficiaries was as follows: 

Account Balances 

Administration Account 
Contractor Mitigation Account 
Forest Worker Mitigation Account 
Funds held in reserve by Mini stry of Forests and Range 

Total market value of BCFRT accounts 

Distributions to Beneficiaries to date 

Contractor Mitigation 
Forest Worker Mitigation 

Total Distributions to Beneficiaries 

Total available funds plus distributions 

Administration Account 

$4,623,274 
$6,72 1,119 

$29,642,619 
$10,000,000 
$50,987,012 

$44,405,047 
$37, 190,287 
$81,595,334 

$132,582,346 

When the BCFRT was created. $5,000,000 was allocated to administration. To dale, most of 
the admi nistrat ion expenses of the BCFRT have been covered by the imerest earned on the 
Administration Account balance, so the ini tial principal has been reduced by approximately 
$380,000. It is likely a significant portion of the Administration Account will be able to be 
transferred to one of the Mitigation Accounts at a later date, and on an as needed basis. 

Contractor Mitigation Account 

The principle being used for contractor mitigation is that contractors who lose their 
replaceable contracts as a result of Forestry Revitali zation Act (FRA) restructuri ng will 
receive mitigation that approximates what the contract might reasonably have been worth at 
the time: it was reduced or eliminated. Generally, thi s wi ll be based on a per cubic metre 
va lue, but contracts that were calculated based on some other measure will be treated 
accordingly. A detail ed description of the calculation to be used is contained in the 
Contractor Mitigation Guidelines. These Guideli nes are posted on the BCFRT website. 

As of December 3 1, 2006, Forestry Revitalization Proposals (FRPs) have been presented for 
99.9% of the reallocated volume in the Province. The last dale for submitting a FRP was 
July 31, 2006. so the replaceable contracts of the licensee that did not submit a FRP wi ll be 
subject to proportionate reduction. The FRP for Timberwest was withdrawn, so that will 
likely result in a proportionate reduction. The FRP submitted by Teal Jones was rejected by 
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its con tractors, as was a revised FRP. The Supreme Court and a mediator are expected to 
review that FRP in the first quarter of 2007. 

Also as of December 3 1,2006, $44,405,047 had been paid in contractor mitigation related to 
186 affected contracts. Discussions are underway with many other replaceable contractors 
whose contracts have been or may be reduced or eliminated. Therefore, many more 
contractor mitigation payments wi ll be made during 2007. It appears over 310 contracts will 
be reduced or eli mi nated as a result of the Forestry Revitalization Act timber reallocation. 

Several coastal contractors and a group of interior contractors have suggested that the 
Contractor Mitigation Guidelines do not fairly compensate them for the value of their lost 
con tracts. The Advisory Board has reviewed some of the claims that had been made. To 
date, the view of' [he Advisory Board is that the comractors have nOi been able to substanti ate 
their claims that the formu la or the cap used in the Contractor Mitigation Guidelines is unfair. 
The BC Ombudsman's offi ce reviewed the claim of the interior contractors and found it to be 
wi thout merit. All of those contractors have now accepted mitigation as determined by the 
Contractor Mit igation Guideline~ . 

Whi le the Trustee and the Advisory Board remai n open to considering special cases, no 
change to the previously approved Contractor Mitigation Guidelines has been made with 
respect to calculating the value of lost contract volume. However. the Advisory Board has 
accepted the propos ition that in some rare cases it may be necessary to compensate 
replaceable contractors for stranded assets. Discussions are underway with two con tractors 
whose camps have been made redundant because of their loss of fibre appurtenant to the 
camp. In addi tion, there have now been two cases where replaceable hauling contractors 
were able to demonstrate that in their area, recent arms length purchases and sales of hauling 
contracts had been at a rate sligh tl y higher than what the mitigation formu la generated. In 
those two cases, slightly higher compensation payments were made than would have been 
made based strictly on the fo rmula. However, this increa~ed payment was contemplated in 
the Contractor Mitigation Guidelines. Several other Coastal Contractors believe they should 
receive larger payoLits than the formula and cap wi ll allow, and have developed presentations 
for consideration at the January 2007 Advisory Board meeti ng. 

As of December 31. 2006. contractor compensation payments. plus revised estimates based 
on applications to that date , appear to be approximately 12.0%, or $7 .6 mi llion, above the 
originall y projected amou nls. Redundant equipment payments are turning out to be higher 
than projected. This is partially because a higher than projected proportion of replaceable 
con tractors appear to be leaving the industry, and partially because there will likely be some 
cost to the BCFRT related to stranded assets. Also, two licensees were able to get Ministerial 
Exemptions to allow them (0 eliminate more replaceable contractors than the original cap on 
replaceable contract eliminations would have allowed. These extra contractor costs will 
likely be balanced because it is now clear that employee severances will be lower than 
origi nally projected. In order to cover the higher than expected contractor Mitigation cost, 
$20,000,000 will have to be moved from the Forest Worker Mitigation Account to the 
Contractor Mitigat ion Acco'un l. 
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Forest Worker Mitigation Account 

The principle being used for fores t worker mitigatio n is that workers who are severed by a 
Licensee or Replaceable Contractor because of FRA rest ructuring will receive severance 
from their ex-employer. and that severance will be funded by the BCFRT. The Advisory 
Board fe lt it was fair that all workers who lose their jobs as a result of FRA restructuring be 
treated the same. Because the Steelworkers' (previously IW A) contract mandates that 
employees affected by a pennanent logging camp closure receive severance of 10 regu lar 
day's pay per year of service, plus IO/ 12lhs of a regular day's pay per completed month of 
service, that standard was used. The detailed calculat ion and di scussion appears in the Forest 
Worker Mitigation Guidelines. and can be found o n the BCFRT website. 

As of December 3 1,2006. the BCFRT had provided funding for the severance of 754 
workers, for a total cost to the BCFRT of $37, 190,287. The average severance per employee 
to date is significantly higher than originally projected ($49 ,324 as opposed to an es timate of 
$39,828). The average is like ly high because a disproportionate amount of the severed 
workers worked for licensees on the coast, and they tended to be crews with above average 
seniority. Also, to date it appears the total number of employees to be severed, especiall y in 
the interior, wi ll be lower than proj ec ted. Therefore, it appears there will be a surplus of 
approx imately $20,000,000 in the BCFRT 10 deal wi th employee mi tigation according to the 
Guidelines. This should be moved to the Contractor Mitigation Account to cover the 
shortfall in that Account. 

Looking Ahead 

The fi rst quarter of 2007 wi ll likely include the following acti vity: 

l. Notification will be received on the few FRPs that will be implemented on coastal 
and interior licensees fo r which the BCFRT has not yet received documentation. 

2. The dispu tes involving the rev ised Teal Jones coastal FRP may be resolved, and 
compensation can start to be offered to the affected contractors and their employees. 

3. Contractor Mitigation payments wi ll continue to be made to replaceable contractors 
who lost some or all of their contracts as a result of those FRPs. 

4. Severance payments will continue to be made to fores t workers for some of the above 
licensees, and some of thei r replaceab le contractors. 

5. The BCFRT Trustee will continue to meet wi th li censee and contractor industry 
associations and organized labour, as well as wi th individual licensees, contractors, 
worker groups and their advisors on an as needed basis, to ensure that the mitigati on 
process progresses as smoothly, quickl y and efficiently as poss ible. 

Eric van Soeren, Trustee 
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Be Forestry Revitalization Trust 
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.10 .. ~ ~ MINISTRY OF FORESTS. DMO October 9, 2006 
I" ,:p-" RECEIVED 

Doug Konkin C,«-;"'t-I\ DMRL# Cj i 5 .:2 ;:;J 
Deputy Minis of Forests and Range -!O" "'. OCT 1 2 2006 
Ministry 0 orests and Range 1"'J.t 
3rd Flo ,1520 Blanshard Street 
P,O oX 9525 Stn Prov Govt 

ctona, BC Y8W 9C3 

Dear Doug Konkln, 

DUE DATE: ~~~~~~=:== 
ODRAFT REPLY CjREPLY DIRECT 
OFNA OFYI )2ltILE'l:::>ro.'" 

Re: The Be Forestry Revitalization Trust - 2006 Third Quarter Report 

, Q 

Enclosed for your information is a copy of The Be Forestry Revitalization Trust's 2006 Third 
Quarter Report. 

Thank you for your continued support and involvement in the Trust to date. Please feel free to 
contact me if you would like to discuss anything in the report, or The Be Forestry Revi tal ization 
Trust in general. 

Yours truly, 

L//!/~1~ 
Eric van Soeren 
Trustee 

encl. 

Eric van Soeren, Trustee 
6705 London Drive 
Oclta, S.c. V4K 4W7 
www.bcfn.com 

Phone: 604-940-0850 
Cell: 
Fax: 604-940-0858 

Email: eric@vansoeren.net 
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Be Forestry Revitalization Trust 

Report of the Trustee as of September 30, 2006 

General 

In March 2003 the province of British Columbia established the Be Forestry Revitalization 
Trust (BCFRT) and funded it with $75,000,000. The mandate of the BCFRT is to provide 
mitigation to forest workers and replaceable contractors that are negatively impacted hy 
timber reallocations resulting from the Forestry Revitali zation Act (FRA). 

In April 2004 the province appointed Eric van Soefen as Trustee. Shortly after that he 
appointed a seven member Advisory Board, as required by the Trust Deed. That Board 
developed draft Forest Worker Mitigation Guidelines and Contractor Mitigation Guidelines. 
In order to develop an estimate of the cost of those guidelines, the Trustee polled all the 
major licensees that were to lose some of their allowable annual cut. They were asked to 
provide their best estimate of the effect of the timber reallocation on their workers, their 
contractors, and their contractors' workers. 'l'he Trustee received a 100% response rate from 
Coastal licensees, and a 90% response rate from the Interior licensees. The main reason for 
the lower response in the Interior was the lack of a response from New Skeena, which was 
involved in hankruptcy proceedings . 

Utilizing the best estimates of industry, seniority estimates obtained from the IWA pension 
plan, seniority estimates obtained from contractor industry associations, and the proposed 
guidelines, the Trustee arrived at an estimated cost of delivering the proposed guidelines. 
Based on that estimate, the Trustee estimated that the BCFRT required approximately 
$50,000,000 more than what was available in the BCFRT accounts, plus what the BCFRT 
was likely to earn in interest while holding mitigation funds in trust. 

The Trustee and the Advisory Board approached the province to attempt to obtain sufficient 
extra funds to allow the draft mitigation guidelines to be finalized. As of March 31, 2005, 
the province had agreed to the request for additional funds, and had received approval from 
the legislature to provide those funds to the BCFRT. 

Based on the commitment from the province for the additional funds, the Contractor 
Mitigation Guidelines and the Forest Worker Mitigation Guidelines were finalized by the 
BCFRT Advisory Board. The Guidelines, as well as extensive supporting documentation, 
are posted on the BCFRT website. 

In early April 2005 the BCFRT received a $40,000,000 cash injection. The outstanding 
$10,000,000 in committed funds has not yet been advanced, and will be held by the province 
until the need for the additional funds is confirmed. 

Eric van $oeren, Trustee 
6705 London Drive 
Delta, s.c. V4K 4W7 
www.bcfrLcom 

Phone: 604-940-0850 
Cell: 
Fax: 604-940-0858 

Email: eric@vansocrcn.nel 
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Account Balances 

As of September 30, 2006, the market value of the BCFRT accounts and distribution to 
beneficiaries was as follows: 

Account Balances 

Administration Account 
Contractor Mitigation Account 
Forest Worker Mitigation Account 
Funds held in reserve by Ministry of Forests and Range 

Total market value of BCFRT accounts 

Distributions to Beneficiaries to date 

Contractor Mitigation 
Forest Worker Mitigation 

Total Distributions to Beneficiaries 

Total available funds plus distributions 

Administration Account 

$4,649,228 
$22,900,822 
$30,4 14,066 
$10,000,000 
$67,964,116 

$28,069,665 
$36,130,668 
$64,200,333 

$132,164,449 

When the BCFRT was created, $5,000,000 was allocated to administration. To date, most of 
the administration expenses of the BCFRT have been covered by the interest earned on the 
Administration Account balance, so the initial principal has been reduced by approximately 
$350,000. It is li kely a significant portion of the Administration Account will be able to be 
transferred to one of the Mitigation Accounts at a later date, and on an as needed basis. 

Contractor Mitigation Account 

The principle being used for contractor mi tigation is that con tractors who lose their 
replaceable conLracts as a result of Forestry Revitali zation Act (FRA) restructuring will 
receive mitigation that approximates what the contract might reasonably have been worth at 
the time it was reduced or eliminated. Generally, thi s will be based on a per cubic metre 
value, but contracts that were calculated based on some other measure wi ll be Lreated 
accordingly. A detai led description of the calculation to be used is contained in the 
Contractor Mitigation Guidelines. These Guidel ines are posted on the BCFRT website. 

As of September 30, 2006, Forestry Revitalization Proposals (FRPs) have been presented for 
96.7% of the reallocated volume in the Interior, and 100% of the reallocated volume on the 
Coast. The last date fo r submitting a FRP was July 3 1, 2006, so the replaceable contracts of 
any licensees that did not submit a FRP will be subject to proportionate reduction. The FRP 
submitted by Teal Jones was rejected by its contractors, as was a revised FRP. A mediator is 
expected to review that FRP in the fourth quarter of 2006. 
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Also as of September 30,2006, $28,069,665 had been paid in contractor mitigation related to 
142 affected contracts. Discuss ions are underway with numerous other replaceable 
contractors whose contracts have been or may be reduced or eliminated. Therefore, many 
more contractor mitigation payments will likeJy be made throughout the balance of 2006. At 
present it appears over 300 contracts wi ll be reduced or eliminated as a result of the Forestry 
Rev italization Act timber reallocation. 

Several coastal contractors and a group of interior contractors have suggested that the 
Contractor Mitigation Guidelines do not fairly compensate them for the value of their lost 
contracts. The Advisory Board has reviewed some of the claims that had been made. To 
date, the view of the Advisory Board is that the contractors have not been able to substantiate 
their claims that the formula or the cap used in the Contractor Mitigation Guidelines is unfair. 

While the Trustee and the Advisory Board remain open to considering special cases, no 
change to the previously approved Contractor Mitigation Guidelines has been made with 
respect to calculating the value of lost contract volume. The Advisory Board has accepted 
the proposition that in some rare cases it may be necessary to compensate replaceable 
contractors for stranded assets. Discussions are underway with two contractors whose camps 
have been made redundant because of their loss of fibre appurtenant to the camp. In addition, 
there have now been two cases where replaceable hauling contractors were able to 
demonstrate that in their area, recent arms length purchases and sales of hauling contracts 
had been at a rate slightly higher than what the mitigation formula generated. In those two 
cases, slightly higher compensation payments were made than would have been made based 
strictly on the formula. However, this increased payment was contemplated in the Contractor 
Mitigation Guidelines. 

As of September 30, 2006, contractor compensation payments, plus revised estimates based 
on applications to that date, appear to be approximately 11.7%. or $7.5 million, above the 
originally projected amounts. Redundant equipment payments are turning out to be higher 
than projected. This is partially because a higher than projected proportion of replaceable 
contractors appear to be leaving the industry. and partially because there will likely be some 
cost to the BCFRT related to stranded assets. Also. two li censees were able to get Ministerial 
Exemptions to allow them to eliminate more replaceable contractors than the anginal cap on 
replaceable con tract eliminations would have allowed. These extra costs may be balanced 
because it appears employee severances may be lower than originally projected. If that 
happens, surplus funds from the Forest Worker Mitigation Account may be moved to the 
Contractor Mitigation Account. 

Forest Worker Mitigation Account 

The principle being used for forest worker mitigation is that workers who are severed by a 
Licensee or Replaceable Contractor because of FRA restructuring will receive severance 
from their ex-employer, and that severance will be funded by the BCFRT. The Advisory 
Board felt it was fair that all workers who lose their jobs as a result of FRA restructuring be 
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treated the same. Because the Steelworkers' (previously IW A) contract mandates that 
employees affected by a permanent logging camp closure receive severance of 10 regular 
day's pay per year of service, plus 10Ilihs of a regular day's pay per completed month of 
service, that standard was used. The detailed calculation and discussion appears in the Forest 
Worker Mitigation Guidelines. and can be found on the BCFRT website. 

As of September 30, 2006. the BCFRT had provided funding for the severance of 716 
workers, for a total cost to the BCFRT of $36, 130,668. The average severance per employee 
to date is significantly higher than originally projected ($50,462 as opposed to an estimate of 
$39,828), The average is likely high because a disproportionate amount of the workers that 
have already been severed worked for the licensees on the coast, and they tended to be crews 
with above average seniority. Also, to date it appears the total number of employees to be 
severed, especially in the interior, will be lower than projected. Therefore, it appears there 
wi ll be sufficient funds in the BCFRT to deal with employee mitigation according to the 
Guidelines. Further, it appears there may be sufficient surplus, when added to the likely 
surplus in the Administration Account, to cover most of the likely shortfall in the Contractor 
Mitigation Account. The rest may have to be covered by drawing on some of the 
$10,000,000 reserve. ~ TJ-,:l I'} I""f W , 

""""" 'J ~ 
Looking Ahead 

The fourth quarter of 2006 will likely include the following activity: 

I. Notification wi ll be received on the few FRPs that will be implemented on coastal 
and interior licensees for which the BCFRT has not yet received documentation. 

2. The disputes involving the revised Teal Jones coastal FRP may be resolved, and 
compensation can start to be offered to the affected contractors and their employees. 

3. Contractor Mitigation payments will continue to be made to replaceable contractors 
who lose some or all of their contracts as a result of those FRPs. 

4. Severance payments will continue to be made to forest workers for some of the above 
licensees, and some of their replaceable contractors. 

5. The BCFRT Trustee will continue to meet with licensee and contractor industry 
associations and organized labour, as well as with individual licensees, contractors, 
worker groups and their advisors on an as needed basis, to ensure that the mitigation 
process progresses as smoothly, quickly and efficiently as possible. 

Eric van Soeren 
Trustee 
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July 12, 2006 

Doug Konkin 
Deputy Minister of Forests and Range 
Ministry of Forests and Range 
3rd Floor, 1520 Blanshard Street 
P.O. Box 9525 Stn Pray Govt 
Victoria, BC V8W 9C3 
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Dear Doug Konkin, (1 ~ l.\Ll\. 01' 0"\ .l\<eO·-o ,,~ti' 
Re: The BC Forestry Revitalization Trust - 2006 Second Quarter Report [}J' ~~ 

Enclosed for your information is a copy of The Be Forestry Revitalization Trust's 2006 Second i'f~. L \ . 

Quarter Report. (}y,:fr7 (is/'' 

Thank you for your continued support and involvement in the Trust to date. Please feel free to 
contact me if you would like to discuss anything in the report, or The Be Forestry Revitalization 
Trust in general. 

Yours truly, 

.L ///~",--L~ 
Eric van Soeren 
Trustee 

end 

Eric van Soeren. Trustee 
6705 London Drive 
Della, a.c. V4K 4W7 
www.bcfrt.com 
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Phone: 604-940-0850 
Cell: 
Fax: 604-940-0858 

Email: eric@vansoeren.net 
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Be Forestry Revitalization Trust 

Report of the Trustee as of June 30, 2006 

General 

In March 2003 the province of British Columbia established the Be Forestry Revitalization 
Trust (BCFRT) and funded it with $75,000,000. The mandate of the BCFRT is to provide 
mitigation to forest workers and replaceable contractors that are negatively impacted by 
timber reallocations resulting from the Forestry Revitalization Act (FRA). 

In April 2004 the province appointed Eric van Soeren as Trustee. Shortly after that he 
appointed a seven member Advisory Board, as required by the Trust Deed. That Board 
developed draft Forest Worker Mitigation Guidelines and Contractor Mitigation Guidelines. 
In order to develop an estimate of the cost of those guidelines, the Trustee polled all the 
major licensees that were to lose some of their allowable annual cut. They were asked to 
provide their best estimate of the effect of the timber reallocation on their workers, their 
contractors, and their contractors' workers. The Trustee received a 100% response rate from 
Coastal li censees, and a 90% response rate from the Interior licensees. The main reason for 
the lower response in the Interior was the lack of a response from New Skeena, which was 
involved in bankruptcy proceeding~. 

Utilizing the best estimates of industry, seniority estimates obtained from the IW A pension 
plan, seniority estimates obtained from contractor industry associations, and the proposed 
guidelines, the Trustee arrived at an estimated cost of delivering [he proposed guidelines. 
Based on that estimate, the Trustee estimated that the BCFRT required approximately 
$50,000,000 more than what was available in [he BCFRT accounts, plus what the BCFRT 
was likely to earn in interest while holding mitigation funds in trust. 

The Trustee and the Advisory Board approached the province to attempt to obtain sufficient 
extra funds to allow the draft mitigation guidelines to be finalized. As of March 31, 2005. 
the province had agreed to the request for additional funds, and had received approval from 
the legislature to provide those funds to the BCFRT. 

Based on the commitment from the province for the additional funds, the Contractor 
Mitigation Guidelines and the Forest Worker Mitigation Guidelines were finalized by the 
BCFRT Advisory Board. The Guidelines, as well as extensive supporting documentation, 
have been posted on the BCFRT website. 

In early April 2005 the BCFRT received a $40,000,000 cash injection. The outstanding 
$10,000,000 in committed funds has not yet been advanced, and will be held by the province 
until the need for the additional funds is confirmed. 

Eric van Socren, Trustee 
6705 London Drive 
Delta, S.c. V4K 4W7 
www.bcfrt.com 

Phone: 604-940-0850 
Cell: 
Fax: 604-940-0858 

Email: eric@vansoeren.net 
FNR-2013-00252 
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Account Balances 

As of June 30. 2006, the market value of the BCFRT accounts and distribution to 
beneficiaries was as follows: 

Account Balances 

Administration Account 
Contractor Mitigation Account 
Forest Worker Mitigation Account 
Funds held in reserve by Ministry of Forests and Range 

. Total market value of BCFRT accounts 

Distributions to Beneficiaries to date 

Contractor Mitigation 
Forest Worker Mitigation 

Total Distributions to Beneficiaries 

Total available funds plus distributions 

Administration Account 

$4,655,249 
$29,028,152 
$35,781 ,000 
$10,000,000 ... 4~­
$79,464,401 

$21,674,352 
$30,397,566 
$52,071,918 

$131,536,319 

When the BCFRT was created, $5,000,000 was allocated to administration. To date, most of 
the administralion expenses of the BCFRT have been covered by the interest earned on the 
Administration Account balance, so the initial principal has been reduced by approximately 
$345,000. It appears likely that a significant portion of the Administration Account will be 
able to be transferred to one of the Mitigation Accounts at a later date, and on an as needed 
basis. 

Contractor Mitigation Account 

The principle being used for contractor mitigation is that contractors who lose their 
replaceable contracts as a result of Forestry Revitalization Act (FRA) restructuring will 
receive mitigation that approximate::; what the contract might reasonably have been worth at 
the time it was reduced or eliminated. Generally, this will be based on a per cubic metre 
value , but (;ontracls that were calculated based on some other measure will be treated 
accordingly. A detailed description of the calculation to be used is contained in the 
Contractor Mitigation Guidelines. These Guidelines are posted on the BCFRT website. 

As of June 30, 2006. Forestry Revitalization Proposals (FRPs) have been presented for 89% 
of the reallocated volume in the Interior, and 98% of the reallocated volume on the Coast. 
Not all of those FRPs have been implemented, and the affected contractors have rejected one. 
The licensee invo lved has not yet indicated how it intends to proceed. 
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Also as of June 30, 2006, $21,674,352 had been paid in contractor mitigation related to 96 
affected contracts. Discussions are underway with numerous other replaceable contractors 
whose contracts have been or may be reduced or eliminated. Therefore, many more 
contractor mitigation payments will likely be made throughout the balance of 2006. At 
present it appears over 270 contracts will be reduced or eliminated as a result of the Forestry 
Revitali zation Act timber reallocation. 

Several coastal contractors and a group of interior contractors have suggested that the 
Contractor Mitigation Guidelines do not fairly compensate them for the value of their lost 
contracts. The Advisory Board has reviewed the claims that had been made. To date, the 
view of the majority of the Advisory Board is that the contractors have not been able to 
substantiate their claims that the formula or the cap used in the Contractor Mitigation 
Guidelines is unfair. 

While the Trustee and the Advisory Board remain open to considering special cases, no 
change to the previously approved Contractor Mitigation Guidelines has been made with 
respect to calculating the value of lost contract volume. However, the Advisory Board has 
accepted the proposition that in some rare cases it may be necessary to compensate 
replaceable contractors for stranded assets. Discussions are underway with two contractors 
whose camps have been made redundant because of their loss of fibre appurtenant to the 
camp. In addition, there have now been two cases where replaceable hauling contractors 
were able to demonstrate that in their area, recent anns length purchases and sales of hauling 
contracts had been at a rate slightly higher than what the mitigation formula generated. In 
those two cases, slightly higher compensation payments were made than would have been 
made based strictly on the fonnula. However, this increased payment was contemplated in 
the Contractor Mitigation Guidelines. 

As of June 30, 2006, contractor compensation payments, plus revised estimates based on 
applications to that date, appear to be approximately 13.9%, or $8.9 million, above the 
originally projected amounts. It appears redundant equipment payments may be higher than 
projected. Also, a higher than projected proportion of replaceable contractors appear to be 
leaving the industry, and there will likely be some cost to the BCFRT related to stranded 
assets. Also, two licensees were able to geL Ministerial Exemptions to allow them to 
eliminate more replaceable contractors than the original cap on replaceable contract 
eliminations would have allowed. It is too early to tell if these events will become a strain on 
the available funds. Early indications are that employee severances may be lower than 
originally projected. If that happens, surplus funds from the Forest Worker Mitigation 
Account may be moved to the Contractor Mitigation Account. 

Forest Worker Mitigation Account 

The principle being used for forest worker mitigation is that workers who are severed by a 
Licensee or Replaceable Contractor because of FRA restructuring will receive severance 
from their ex-employer, and that severam;e will be funded by the BCFRT. The Advisory 
Board felt it was fair that all workers who lose their jobs as a result of FRA restructuring be 
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treated the same. Because the Steelworkers' (previously IWA) contract mandates that 
employees affected by a permanent logging camp closure receive severance of 10 regular 
day's pay per year of service, plus 101l2thS of a regular day's pay per completed month of 
service, that standard was used. The detailed calculation and discussion appears in the Forest 
Worker Mitigation Guidelines. and can be found on the BCFRT website. 

As of June 30, 2006, the BCFRT had provided funding for the severance of 613 workers, for 
a total cost to the BeFRT of $30,397,566. The average severance per employee to date is 
significantly higher than originally projected ($50,056 as opposed to an estimate of $39,828). 
However, the average is likely high because a disproportionate amount of the workers that 
have already been severed worked for the licensees on the coast, and they tended to be crews 
with above average seniori ty. Also, to date it appears the total number of employees to be 
severed, especially in the interior, will be lower than projected. Therefore, it appears there 
will be sufficient funds in the BCFRT to deal with employee mitigation according to the 
Guidelines. Further, it appears there may be sufficient surplus, when added to the likely 
surplus in Administration Account, to cover most of the likely shortfall in the Contractor 
Mitigation Account. The rest will likely have to be covered by drawing on some of the 
$10,000,000 reserve. 

Looking Ahead 

The third quarter of 2006 will likely include the following activity: 

I. Forestry Revitalization Proposals (FRPs) will be implemented for the balance of the 
outstanding coastal and interior licensees, as the last date to submit an FRP is July 31, 
2006. 

2. The disputes involving the revised Teal Jones coastal FRP may be resolved, and 
compensation can start to be offered to the affected contractors and their employees. 

3. Contractor Mitigation payments will continue to be made to replaceable contractors 
who lose some or all of their contracts as a result of those FRPs. 

4. Severance payments will continue to be made to forest workers for some of the above 
licensees, and some of their replaceable contractors. 

5. The BCFRT Trustee will continue to meet with licensee and contractor industry 
associations and organized labour, as well as with individual licensees, contractors, 
worker groups and their advisors on an as needed basis, to ensure that the mitigation 
process progresses as smoothly, quickly and efficiently as possible. 

Eric van Socren 
Trustee 
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Deputy MinJ ste Forests and Range 
Ministry of rests and Range 
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(oria, BC Y8W 9C3 , 

Dear Doug Konkin, 

Re: The BC Forestry Revitalization Trust - 2006 First Quarter Report 

Enclosed fo r your information is a copy of The Be Forestry Revitalization Trust's 2006 First 
Quarter Report. 

Thank you for your continued support and involvement in the Trust to date . Please feel free to 
contact me if you would like to discuss anyth ing in the report, or The Be Forestry Revitali zation 
Trust in general. 

Yours trul y, .. 

Eric van Saeren 
Trustee 

end. 

Eric van Soeren, Trustee 
6705 London Drive 
Del ta, B.C. V4K 4W7 
www.bcfrl. com 

Phone: 604-940-0850 
Cell: 
Fax: 604-940-0858 
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BC Forestry Revitalization Trust 

Report of the Trustee as of March 31, 2006 

General 

In March 2003 the province of British Columbia established the BC Forestry Revitali zation 
Trust (BCFRT) and funded it wi th $75,000,000. The mandate of the BCFRT is to provide 
mi tigation to forest workers and replaceable (;ontractors that are negatively impat.:ted by 
timber reallocations resulting from the Forestry Revitalization Act (FRA). 

In Apri! 2004 the province appoin ted Eric van Saeren as Trustee. Shortly after that he 
appointed a seven member Advisory Board, as required by the Trust Deed. That Board 
developed draft Forest Worker Mi tigation Guidelines and Contractor Mitigation Guidelines. 
In order to develop an estimate of the cost of those guidelines, [he Trustee polled all the 
major licensees that were to lose some of their allowable annual cut. They were asked to 
provide their bes t estimate of the effect of the timber reallocation on their workers. their 
contractors, and their contractors' workers. The Trustee received a 100% response rate from 
Coastal licensees, and a 90% response rale from the Interior licensees. The main reason for 
the lower response in the Interior was the lack ofa response from New Skeena, which was 
involved in bankruptcy proceedings. 

Utilizing the best estimates of industry, seniority estimates obtained from the IWA pension 
plan, seniority es timates obtained from contractor industry associations, and the proposed 
guidelines, the Trustee arrived at an estimated cost of delivering the proposed gu idelines. 
Based on that es timate, the Trustee esti mated th at the BCFRT required approximately 
$50,000,000 more than what was available in the BCFRT accounts, plus what the BCFRT 
was likely to earn in interest while holding miti gation funds in trust. 

The Trustee and the Advisory Board approached the provi nce LO attempt to obtain sufficient 
extra funds to allow the draft mitigation guidelines to be finali zed. As of March 3J, 2005, 
the province had agreed to the request for additional funds, and had received approval from 
the legislature to provide those funds to the BCPRT. 

Based on the commitment from the province fo r the additio nal funds, the Contractor 
Mitigation Guide lines and the Forest Worker Mitigation Guidelines were finalized by the 
BCFRT Advisory Board. The Guidelines, as well as extensive supporting documentation, 
have been posted on the BCFRT websi te. 

In eady April 200S the BCFRT received a $40,000,000 cash injection. T he outstanding 
$10,000,000 in committed funds has not yet been advanced, and will be held by the province 
until the need for the additional funds is confirmed. 

Eric van Soeren, Trustee 
6705 London Drive 
Della, S.c. V4K 4W7 
www.bcfrt.com 

Phone: 604-940-0850 
Cell: 
Fax: 604-940-0858 

Emai l: eric@vansoeren.net FNR-2013-00252 
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Account Balances 

As of March 31. 2006, the market value of the BCFRT accounts and distribution to 
beneficiaries was as foll ows: 

Account Balances 

Administration Account 
Contractor Mitigation Account 
Forest Worker Mitigation Accou nt 
Funds held in reserve by Ministry of Forests and Range 

Total market value of BCFRT accounts 

Distributions to Beneficiaries to date 

Contractor Mitigation 
Forest Worker Mitigation 

Total Distributions to Beneficiaries 

Total available funds plus distributions 

Administration Account 

$4,740,066 
$33, I 03,858 
$37,766,359 
$10,000,000 
$85,610,283 

$ 17,318,275 
$28,088,309 
$45,406,584 

$131,016,867 

When the BCFRT was created, $5.000,000 was allocated to administration. To date, 
administration expenses of the BCFRT have been sligh tl y more than the interest earned by 
the Administration Account, so the initial principal has been reduced by approximately 
$260,000. While expenses may increase as the BCFRT becomes more active, it appears 
likely {hal a significant portion of the Administration Account will be able to be transferred 
to one of the Mitigation Accounts at a later date, and on an as needed basis. 

Contractor Mitigation Account 

The principle being used for cOntractor mitigation is thal conLractors who lose their 
replaceable contracts as a resull of Forestry Revitalization Act (FRA) restructuring will 
receive mitigation that approximates what the contract might reasonably have been worth at 
the time it was reduced or eliminated. Generally, this will be based on a per cubic metre 
value, but contracts that were calculated based on some other measure will be treated 
accordingly. A detailed description of the calculation to be used is contained in the 
Contractor Mitigation Guidelines. These Guidelines are posted on the BCFRT website . 

As of March 3 1,2006, Forestry Revital ization Proposals (FRPs) have been presented for 
72% of the reallocated volume in the Interior, and 97% of the reallocated vo lume on the 
Coast. Not all of those FRPs have been implemented, and at leasl one is being disputed by 
(he affected contractors. 
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Also as of March 31, 2006, $ I 7,318,275 had been paid in contractor mitigation related to 63 
affected contracts. Discussions are underway with numerous other replaceable contractors 
whose contracts have been or may be reduced or eliminated. Therefore. many more 
contractor mitigation payments will likely be made throughout the balance of 2006. At 
present it appears over 250 contracts will be reduced or eliminated as a result of the Forestry 
Revitalization Act timber reallocation. 

Several coastal contractors and a group of inlerior contractors have suggested that the 
Contractor Mitigation Guidelines do not fairly compensate them for the value of their lost 
contracts. The Advisory Board has rev iewed the claims that had been made before the 
November Advisory Board meeting. 

To date, the view of the majority of the Advisory Board is that the contractors have not been 
able to substan tiate their claims that the formula or the cap used in the Contractor Mitigation 
Guidelines is unfair. While the Trustee and the Advisory Board remain open to considering 
special cases, no change to the previously approved Contractor Mitigation Guidelines has 
been made with respect to calculating the value of lost contract volume, and no breach of the 
cap on mitigation has been approved to date. However, the Advisory Board has accepted the 
proposition that in some rare cases it may be necessary to compensate replaceable contractors 
for stranded assets. Discussions are underway with two contractors whose camps have been 
made redundant because of their loss of fibre appurtenant to the camp .. 

As of March 31, 2006. contractor compensation payments, plus revised estimates based on 
applications to that date, appear to be approximately 8% above the originally projected 
amounts. It appears redundant equipment payments may be higher than projected. Also, a 
higher than projected proportion of replaceable contractors appear to be leaving the industry, 
and there wllllikely be some cost to the BCFRT related to stranded assets. Also. two 
licensees were able to get Ministerial Exemptions to allow them to eliminate more 
replaceable contractors than the original cap on replaceable contract eliminations would have 
allowed. It is too early to tell if these events will become a strain on the available funds. 
Early indications are that employee severances may be lower than Originally projected. If 
that happens, surplus funds from the Forest Worker Mitigation Account may be moved to the 
Contractor Mitigation Account. 

Forest Worker Mitigation Account 

The pnnciple being used for forest worker mitigation is that workers who are severed by a 
Licensee or Replaceable Contractor because of FRA restructuring will receive severance 
from their ex-employer, and that severance will be funded by the BCFRT. The Advisory 
Board felt it was fair that all workers who lose their jobs as a result of FRA restructuring be 
treated the same. Because the Steelworkers' (previous ly IWA) contract mandates that 
employees affected by a permanent logging camp closure receive severance of 10 regular 
day 's pay per year of service, plus lOll t lls of a regu lar day's pay per completed month of 
serVIce, that standard was used. The detai led calculation and discussion appears in the Forest 
Worker Mitigation Guidelines, and can be found on the BCFRT website. 
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As of March 31, 2006, 555 workers have received severance funded by the BCFRT, for a 
tOlal cost to the BCFRT of $28,088,309. The average severance per employee to date is 
significantly higher than originally projected ($50,174 as opposed to an estimate of $39,828). 
However, the average is li kely high because a disproportionate amount of the workers that 
have already been severed worked for the licensees on the coast, and they tended to be crews 
with above average seniority. Also, to date it appears the total number of employees to be 
severed, especially in the in terior, will be lower than projected. Therefore, for now it appears 
there will be sufficient funds in the BCFRT to deal with employee mitigation according to 
the Guidelines. Further, it appears there may be sufficient reserve to cover a possible 
shortfall in the Contractor Mitigation Account 

Looking Ahead 

The second quarter of 2006 wil l likely include the following activity: 

I. Forestry Revitalization Proposals (FRPs) will be implemented for most of the 
outstanding coastal and in terior licensees. 

2. The disputes involving the Cascadia Forestry Revitalization Proposals may be 
resolved, and compensation can SIan to be offered to the affected contraclors and 
their employees. 

3. Contractor Mitigation payments will continue to be made to rep laceable contractors 
who lose some or all of their contracts as a result of those FRPs. 

4. Severance payments will continue to be made to forest workers for some of the above 
licensees, and some of their replaceable contractors. 

5. The BCFRT Trustee will continue to meet with licensee and contractor industry 
associations and organized labour, as well as with individual licensees, contractors, 
worker groups and their advisors on an as needed bas is, to ensure that the mitigation 
process progresses as smooth ly, quickly and efficienlly as possible. 

Eric van Soeren 
Trustee 
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BC Forestry Revitalization Trust 

October 15. 2005 

Doug Konkin 
Deputy Minister of Forests and Range 
Ministry of Forests and Range 
3r<1 Floor, 1520 Blanshard Street 
P.O. Box 9525 Stn Prov Govt 
Victoria, BC V8W 9C3 

Dear Doug Konkin, 

Re: The BC Forestry Revitalization Trust - 2005 Third Quarter Report 

Enclosed fo r you r information is a copy of The Be Forestry Revitalization Trust's 2005 Third 
Quarter Report. 

Thank yOll for your continued support and involvement in the Trust to date. Please feel free to 
contact me if you would like to discuss anything in the report. or The Be Forestry Revitalization 
Trust in general. 

Yours truly, 

~d/k~~~ 
Eric van Soeren 
Trustee 

eocl. 

Eric van Soeren, Trustee 
6705 London Drive 
Delta, B.C. V4K4W7 
www.bcfrt.com 

MINISTRY OF FORESTS, DMO 
RECEIVED 

DMRL# -.!l!.. Z z5 
OCT 1 9 2005 

DUE DATE: 
DORAFT REPLY DREPLY DIRECT 
DFNA DFYI DFILE . ___ -=..;,:::c..-_.....! 

Phone: 604-940-0850 
Cell
Fax: 604-940-0858 

Email: eric@vansoeren.nef 
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Be Forestry Revitalization Trust 

Report of the Trustee as of September 30, 2005 

General 

In March 2003 the province of British Columbia established the Be Forestry Revitalization 
Trust (BCFRT) and funded it with $75,000,000, The mandate of the BCFRT is to provide 
mitigation to forest worker~ and replaceable contractors that are negatively impacted by 
timber reallocations resulting from the Forestry Revitalization Act. 

In April 2004 the province appointed Eric van SoereD as Trustee. Shortly after that he 
appointed a seven member Advisory Board, as required by the Trust Deed. That Board 
developed draft forest worker and contractor mitigation guidelines. In order to develop an 
estimate of the cost of those guidelines, the Trustee polled all the major licensees that were to 
lose some of their allowable annual cut. They were asked to provide their best estimate of 
the effect of the timber reallocation on their workers, their contractors, and their contractors' 
workers. The Trustee received a 100% response rate from Coastal licensees, and a 90% 
response rate from the Interior licensees. The main reason for the lower response in the 
Interior was the lack of a response from New Skeena, which was involved in bankruptcy 
proceedings. 

Utilizing the best estimates of industry, seniority estimates obtained from the IW A pension 
plan, seniority estimates obtained from contractor industry associations, and the proposed 
gu idelines, the Trustee arrived at an es timated t:ost of delivering the propost:d guidelines. 
Based on that estimate, the Trustee estimated that the BCFRT required approximately 
$50,000,000 more than what was available in the BCFRT accounts, plus what the BCFRT 
was likely to earn in interest while holding mitigation funds in trust. 

The Trustee and the Advisory Board approached the province to attempt to get sufficient 
extra funds to allow the draft mitigation guidelines to be finalized. As of March 3 1, 2005, 
the province had agreed to the request for additional funds, and had received approval from 
the legislature to provide those funds to the BCFRT. 

Based on the commitment from the province for the additional funds, the Contractor 
Mitigation Guidelines and the Forest Worker Mitigation Guidelines were finalized by the 
BCFRT Advisory Board. The Guidelines, as well as ex tensive supporting documentation, 
have been posted on the BCrnT website. 

In early April 2005 the BCFRT received a $40,000,000 cash injection. The outstanding 
$10,000,000 in committed funds has not yet been advanced, and will be held by the province 
until the need for the additional funds is confinned. 

Eric van Soeren, Trustee 
6705 London Drive 
Delta, a.c. V4K 4W7 
www.bcfrLcom 

Phone: 604-940-0850 
Cell: 
Fax: 604-940-0858 

Email: eric@vansQcrcn.net 
FNR-2013-00252 
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Account Balances 

As of September 30. 2005 the market value of the BCFRT accounts and distribution to 
beneficiaries was as follows: 

Account Balances 

Administration Account 
Contractor Mitigation Account 
Forest Worker Mitigation Account 
Funds held in reserve by Ministry of Forests and Range 

Total value of BCFRT accounts 

Distributions to Beneficiaries to date 

Contractor Mitigation 
Forest Worker Mitigation 

Total Distributions to Beneficiaries 

Total available funds plus distributions 

Administration Account 

$4,843,356 
$44,728,597 
$44,472,480 
$10,000,000 

$104,044,433 

$5,087,748 
$20,723,327 
$25,811,075 

$129,855,508 

When the BCFRT was created. $5,000,000 was allocated to administration. To date, 
administration expenses of the BCFRT have been slightly more than the interest earned by 
the Administration Account. so the initial principal has been reduced by less than $160.000. 
While expenses will increase as the BCFRT becomes more acti ve, it appears likely that a 
portion of the Administration Account will be able to be transferred to one of the Mitigation 
Accounts at a later date, and on an as needed basis. 

Contractor Mitigation Account 

The principle being used for contractor mitigation is that contractors who lose their 
replaceable contracts as a result of Forestry Revitalization Act (FRA) restructuring wi ll 
receive mitigation that approximates what the l:ontral:l might reasonably have been worth at 
the time it was reduced or eliminated. Generally, this will be based on a per cubic metre 
value. but contracts that were calculated based on some other measure will be treated 
accordingly. A detailed description of the calculation to be used is contained in the 
Contractor Mitigation Guidelines. These Guidelines are posted on the BCFRT website. 

As of September 30, 2005, Forestry Revitalization Proposals (FRPs) have been presented and 
in some cases implemented for some or all of the licenses of Abitibi Consolidated, Canadian 
Forest Products, Cascadia Forest Products, International Forest Products. Pope and Talbot. 
Northwest Specialty Wood Products. Tembec Industries, West Fraser, Western Forest 
Products. and Weyerhaeuser. 
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Also as of September 30, 2005, $5,087,748 had been paid in contractor mitigation related to 
22 affected contractors. Discussions are underway with numerous other replaceable 
contractors whose contracts have been or may be reduced or eliminated by the above FRPs. 
Therefore, numerous contractor mitigation payments will likely be made throughout the 
fourth quarter of2005. 

One coastal contractor and a group of interior contractors have suggested that the Contractor 
Mitigation Guidelines do not fairly compensate them for the value of their lost contracts. To 
date, they have not been able to substantiate their claims by demonstrating that similar 
contracts have sold for more than the cap imposed by the Contractor Mitigation Guidelines. 

Contractor compensation payments and applications to date appear to be close to the 
projected amounts with respect to loss of contract volume. However, it appears redundant 
equipment payments may be higher than projected. Also, two licensees were able to get 
Ministerial Exemptions to allow them to eliminate more replaceable contractors than the 
original cap on contract eliminations would have allowcd. It is too early to tell if these 
events will become a strain on the avai lable funds. 

Forest Worker Mitigation Account 

The principle being used for forest worker mitigation is that workers who are severed 
because of FRA restructuring will receive severance from their ex-employer, and that 
severance will be funded by the BCFRT. The Advisory Board felt it was fair that all workers 
who lose their jobs as a result of FRA restructuring be treated the same. Because the 
Steelworkers (previously rw A) contract mandates that employees affected by a permanent 
logging camp closure receive severance of 10 regular days pay per year of service, plus 
1011 i hs of a regular day's pay per completed month of service, that standard was used. The 
detailed calculation and discussion appears in the Forest Worker Mitigation Guidelines, and 
can be found on the BCFR T website. 

As of September 30,2005,404 workers have received severance funded by the BCFRT, for a 
total cost to the BCFRT of $20,723,327. The average severance per employee to date is 
significantly higher than originally projected ($51,295 as opposed to an estimate of $39.828). 
However, the average is likely high because a disproportionate amount of the workers that 
have already been severed worked for the licensees on the coast, and they tended to be crews 
with above average seniority. Also, to dale it appears the 101a.l number of employees to be 
severed, especially in the interior, will be lower than projected. Therefore, for now it appears 
there will be suffic ient funds in the BCFRT to deal with employee mitigation according to 
the Guidelines. 
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Looking Ahead 

During the fourth quarter of 2005 I expect the following activity: 

1. Forestry Revitalization Proposals (FRPs) will be implemented for more of the coastal 
and interior licensees. 

2. Contractor Mitigation payments will be made to replaceable contractors who lose 
some or all of their contracts as a result of those FRPs. 

3. Severance payments will be made to forest workers for some of the above licensees, 
and some of their replaceable contractors. 

4. The BCFRT Trustee will continue to meet with licensee and contractor industry 
associations and organized labour, as well as with individual licensees, contractors 
and worker groups on an as needed basis, to cnsure that the mitigation process 
progresses as smoothly, quickly and efficiently as possible. 

5. The Advisory Board will meet to discuss requests by replaceable contractors to 
breach the cap on how much they can be paid for loss of their replaceable volume. 

Eric van Soeren 
Trustee 
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July 15,2005 

Doug Konkin , Deputy Minister of Forests and Range 
Ministry of Forests and Range 
3rd Floor, 1520 Blanshard Streel 
P.O. Box 9525 Stn Proy GOyt 
Victoria, BC V8W 9C3 

Dear Doug Konkin, 

Re: The Be Forestry Revitalization Trust - 2005 Second Quarter Report 

Enclosed for your information is a copy of The Be Forestry Revitalization Trust's 2005 Second 
Quarter Report. 

Thank you for your continued support and involvement in the Trust to date. Please feel free to 
contact me if you would like to di scuss anything in the report, or The Be Forestry Revi tali zation 
Trust in general. 

Yours trul y, 

Eric van Soeren 
Trustee 

encl . 

Eric van Soeren, Trustee 
6705 London Drive 
Delta, B.C. V4K 4W7 
www.bcfrt .com 
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Be Forestry Revitalization Trust 

Report of the Trustee as of June 30, 2005 

General 

In March 2003 the province of British Columbia established the Be Forestry Revitalization 
Trust (BCFRT) and funded it with $75,000,000. The mandate of the BCFRT is to provide 
mitigation to fore~t workers and replaceable conlractor~ that are negatively impacted hy 
timber reallocations resulting from the Forestry Revitali zation Act. 

In Apri l 2004 the province appointed Eric van Seeren as Trustee. Shortly after that he 
appointed a seven member Advisory Board, as required by the Trust Deed. That Board 
developed draft forest worker and contractor mitigation guidelines. In order to develop an 
estimate of the cost of those guidelines, the Trustee polled all the major licensees that were to 
lose some of their allowable annual cut. They were asked to provide their best estimate of 
the effect of the timber reallocation on their workers, their contractors, and their contractors' 
workers. The Trustee received a 100% response ratc from Coastallieensccs, and a 90% 
response rate from the Interior licensees. The main reason for the lower response in the 
Interior was the lack of a response from New Skeen a, which is involved in bankruptcy 
proceedings. 

Utilizing the best estimates of industry, seniority estimates obtained from the IWA pension 
plan, seniority estimates obtained from contractor industry associations, and the proposed 
guidelines, the Trustee arrived at an estimated cost of delivering the proposed guidelines. 
Based on that estimate, the Trustee estimated that the BCFRT required approximately 
$50,000,000 more than what was available in the BCFRT accounts, plus what the BCFRT 
was likely to earn in interest while holding mitigation funds in trust. 

The Trustee and the Advisory Board approached the province to attempt to get sufficient 
extm funds to allow the draft mitigation guidelines to be finalized. As of March 31, 2005, 
the province had agreed to the request for additional funds, and had received approval from 
the legislature to provide those funds to the BCFRT. 

Based on the commitment from the province for the additional funds, the Contractor 
Mitigation Guidelines and the Forest Worker Mitigation Guidelines were finalized by the 
BCFRT Advisory Board. The Guidelines, as well as extensive supporting documentation, 
have been posted on the BCFRT website. 

In early April the BCFRT received a $40,000,000 cash injection. The outstanding 
$10,000,000 in committed funds has not yet been advanced, and will be held by the province 
until the need for the additional funds is confirmed. 

Eric van Soercn , Trustee 
6705 London Drive 
Detta, B.C. V4K 4W7 
www.bcfrt.com 

Phone: 604-940-0850 
Cell: 
Fax: 604-940-0858 

Emai l: eric@vansocren.net 
FNR-2013-00252 
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Account Balances 

As of June 30, 2005 the market value of the BCFRT accounts and distribution to 
beneficiaries was as follows: 

Account Balances 

Administration Account 
Contractor Mitigation Account 
Forest Worker Mitigation Account 
Funds held in reserve by Ministry of Forests and Range 

Total value of BCFRT accounts 

Distributions to Beneficiaries to date 

Contractor Mitigation 
Forest Worker Mi tigation 

Total Distributions to Beneficiaries 

Total available funds plus distributions 

Administration Account 

$4,900,234 
$48,725,271 
$49,966,680 
$10,000,000 

$113,592,185 

$767,969 
$15,004,919 
$15,772,888 

$129,365,073 

When the BCFRT was created, $5,000,000 was allocated to administration. To date, 
administration expenses of the BCFRT havc been slightly more than the interest earned by 
the Administration Account, so the initial principal has been reduced by less than $100,000. 
While expenses will increase as the BCFRT becomes more active, it appears likely that a 
portion of the Administration Account wi ll be able to be transferred to one of the Mitigation 
Accounts at a later date, and on an as needed basis. 

Contractor Mitigation Account 

The principle being used for contractor mitigation is that contractors who lose their 
replaceable contracts as a result of Forestry Revitalization Act (FRA) restructuring will 
rece ive mitigation that approximates what the contract might reasonably have been worth at 
the time it was reduced or eliminated. Generally, this will be based on a per cubic metre 
value, but contracts that were calculated based on some other measure will be treated 
accordingly. A detailed description of the calculation to be used is contained in the 
Contractor Mitigation Guidelines. These Guidelines are posted on the BCFRT website . 

As of June 30, 2005, Forestry Revitalization Proposals(FRPs) have been presented and in 
some cases implemented for some or all of the licenses of Abitibi Consolidated, Interfor, 
Pope and Talbot, Northwest Specialty Wood Products, Tembec Industries, West Fraser, 
Western Forest Products, Weyerhaeuser. 
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Also as of June 30, 2005, $767,969 had been paid in contractor mitigation related to 3 
affected contractors. Discussions are underway with numerous other replaceable contractors 
whose contracts have been or may be reduced or eliminated by the above FRPs. Therefore, 
numerous contractor mitigation payments will likely be made throughout the third quarter of 
2005. 

Forest Worker Mitigation Account 

The principle being used for fores t worker mitigation is that workers who are severed 
because of FRA restructuring will receive severance from their ex-employer, and that 
severance will be funded by the BCFRT. The Advisory Board felt it was fair that all workers 
who lose their jobs as a resu!! of FRA restructuring be treated the same. Because the 
Steelworkers (previously rw A) contract mandates what employees that are affected by a 
permanent logging camp closure receive severance of J 0 regular days pay per year of 
service, plus IOllths of a regular day' s pay per completed momh of service, that standard 
was used. The detailed calculation and discussion appears in the Forest Worker Mitigation 
Guidelines, and can be found on the BCFRT website. 

As of June 30, 2005, 297 workers have received severance fu nded by the BCFRT, for a total 
cost to the BCFRT of $ 15.004.9 19. 

Looking Ahead 

During the third quarter of 2005 I expect the following activity: 

l. Forestry Revitalization Proposals (FRPs) will be implemented for many of the coastal 
and interior licensees. 

2. Contractor Mitigation payments will be made to replaceable contractors who lose 
some or all of their contracts as a result of those FRPs. 

3. Severance payments will be made to forest workers for the above li censees, and some 
of their replaceable contractors. 

4. The BCFRT Trustee will continue to meet with licensee and contractor industry 
associations and organized labour, as well as with individual licensees, contractors 
and worker groups on an as needed basis, to ensure that the mitigation process 
progresses as smoothly, quickly and efficiently as possible. 

Eric van Seeren 
Trustee 
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BC Forestry Revitalization Trust 

ApejJ I I, 2005 

Doug Kankin, 0 uty Minister of Forests 
MinistryofF sts 
yd Floor, 1 0 Blanshard Street 
P.O. Bo 525 Stn Pray Govt 

a, BC V8W 9C3 

Dear Doug Konkin, 

Re: The BC Forestry Revitalization Trust - 2005 First Quarter Report 

Enclosed for your infonnation is a copy of The Be Forestry Revitali zation Trust's 2005 First 
Quarter Report. 

Thank you for your continued support and involvement in the Trust to date. Please fee l free to 
contact me if you would like to discuss anything in the report, or The Be Forestry Revitalization 
Trust in general. 

Yours truly, 

b//.---I~ 
Eric van Socrcn 
Tntslce 

encl. 

Eric van Soeren, Trustee 
6705 London Drive 
Delta, B.c. V4K 4W7 
www.bcfrt.com 

~ ~ ~ tJ.dPJ·1 ~~ i1) 

DMR Ui 6 4 zz.8-. 

Phone: 604-940-0850 
Cell: 
Fax: 604·940·0858 

Email: eric@vansoeren.net 
FNR-2013-00252 
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Be Forestry Revitalization Trust 

Report of the Trustee as of March 31, 2005 

General 

In March 2003 the province of British Columbia established the Be Forestry Revitalization 
Trust (BCFRT) and funded it wi th $75,000,000. The mandate of the BCFRT is to provide 
mitigation to forest workers and replaceable contractors that are negatively impacted by 
timber reallocations resulting from the Forestry Revitalization Act. 

In April 2004 the province appointed Eric van Soeren as Trustee. Shortly after that he 
appointed a seven member Advisory Board, as required by the Trust Deed. That Board 
developed draft forest worker and contractor mitigation guidelines. In order to develop an 
estimate of the cost of those guidelines, the Trustee polled all the major licensees that were to 
lose some of their allowable annual cut. They were asked to provide their best estimate of 
the effect of the timber reallocation on their workers, their contractors, and their contractors' 
workers. The Trustee received a 100% response rate from Coastal licensees, and a 90% 
response rate from the Interior licensees. The main reason for the lower response in the 
Interior was the lack of a response from New Skeena, which is involved in bankruptcy 
proceedings. 

Utilizing the best estimates of industry, seniority estimates obtained from the lW A pension 
plan, seniority estimates obtained from contractor industry associations, and the proposed 
guidelines, the Trustee arrived at an estimated cost of delivering the proposed guidelines. 
Based on that estimate, the Trustee estimated that the BCFRT required approximately 
$50,000,000 more than what was available in the BCFRT accounts, plus what the BCFRT 
was like ly to earn in interest while holding mitigation funds in trust. 

The Trustee and the Advisory Board approached the province to attempt to get sufficient 
extra funds to a1low the draft mitigation guidelines to be finalized. As of March 31,2005. 
the province had agreed to the request [or additional funds, and had received approval from 
the legislature to provide those funds to the BCFRT. 

Based on the commitment from the province for the additional funds, the Contractor 
Mitigation Guidelines and the Forest Worker Mitigation Guidelines were finalized by the 
BCFRT Advisory Board. The Guidelines, as well as extensive supporting documentation, 
have been posted on the BCFRT website. 

In early April the BCFRT received a $40,000,000 cash injection. The outstanding 
$10,000,000 in committed funds has not yet been advanced, and will be held by the province 
until the need for the addit ional funds is confinned. 

Eric van Soeren, Trustee 
6705 London Drive 
Delta, S.c. V4K 4W7 
www.bcfrt.com 

Phone: 604-940-0850 
Cell: 
Fax: 604-940-0858 

Email: eric@vansoercn.net 
FNR-2013-00252 
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Account Balances 

As of March 31, 2005 the market value of the BCFRT accounts was as fo llows: 

Account Balances 

Administration Account 
Contractor Mitigation Account 
Forcst Worker Mitigation Account 

Total value of BCFRT accounts 

Distributions to Beneficiaries to date 

Contractor Mit igation 
Forest Worker Mitigation 

Total Distributions to Beneficiaries 

Total available funds plus distributions 

Administration Account 

$4,927,286 
$24,184,626 
$49,533,052 
$78,644,964 

Ni l 
Nil 
Nil 

$78,242,987 

When the BCFRT was created, $5,000,000 was allocated to administration. To date, 
administration expenses of the BCFRT have been sl ightly more than the interest earned by 
the Administration Account, so the initial principal has been reduced by less than $75,000. 
While expenses will increase as the BCFRT becomes more active, it appears likely that a 
portion of the Administration Account wi ll be able to be transferred to one of the Mitigation 
Accounts at a later date, and on an as needed basis. 

Contractor Mitigation Account 

The principle being used for contractor mitigation is that contractors who lose their 
replaceable contracts as a result of Forestry Revitalization Act (FRA) restmcturing will 
receive mitigation that approx imates what the contract might reasonably have been worth at 
the time it was reduced or diminated. Generally, this will be based on a per cubic metn: 
value, but contracts that were calculated based on some other measure wi ll be treated 
accordingly. A detailed description of the calculation to be used is contained in the 
Contractor Mitigation Guidelines. 

As of March 31, 2005, no contractor mitigation amounts had been paid. However, the 
Forestry Revitalization Plan for Abitibi Consolidated Inc. has been implemented, and 
discuss ions are underway with several of the replaceable contractors whose contracts have 
been reduced or eliminated . Several other licensees have presented Forestry Revitalization 
Proposals to their contractors, and those proposals are like ly to be Implemented early in the 
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second quarter of2005. The first contractor mitigation payments are therefore expected to be 
made early in the second quarter of2005. 

Forest Worker Mitigation Account 

The principle being used for forest worker mitigation is that workers who are severed 
because ofFRA restructuring wi ll receive severance funded by the BCFRT. The Advisory 
Board felt it was fair that all workers who lose their jobs as a result of FRA restructuring be 
treated the same. Because the Steelworkers (previously TWA) contract mandates what 
employees that are affected by a permanent log~ing camp closure receive severance of 10 
regular days pay per year of serv ice, plus 1011 i I of a regular day's pay per completed month 
of service, that standard was used. The detailed calculation and discussion appears in the 
Forest Worker Mitigation Guidelines. 

As of March 31,2005, no forest worker mitigation amounts had been paid. However, on 
April 4, 2005 the BCFRT authorized the payment of severa nee to 147 ex-employees of the 
Weyerhaeuser Canada Sproat Lake company crew. 

Looking Ahead 

During the second quarter of2005 I expect the following activity: 

1. Forestry Revitalization Proposals (FRPs) will be implemented for Tembec Industries 
Inc., the Weyerhaeuser Canada Interior operations, the Weyerhaeuser Coastal TFL 44 
fibre basket, and several other licensees that have not yet issued FRPs, but appear to 
be close. 

2. Contractor Mitigation payments will be made to replaceable contractors who lose 
some or all of their contracts with the above licensees. 

3. Severance payments will be made to forest workers for the above li censees, and some 
of their replaceable contractors . 

4. The BCFRT Trustec will continue to meet with licensee and contractor industry 
associations , as well as with individual liccnsees and contractors on an as needed 
basis, to ensure that the mitigation process progresses as smoothly, quickly and 
efficiently as possible. 

Eric van Soeren 
Trustee 
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Be Forestry Revitalization Trust 

Replaceable Contractor Mitigation Guidelines 

Employee Mitigation Guidelines 

Retiring within 2 years of Effective Severance Date 

Trust Deed 

Tab I 

Tab 2 

Tab 3 

Tab 4 

z~-zo/ 
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Be Forestry Revitalization Trust 

December 13 , 2005 

Doug Konkin 
Deputy Minister of For s and Range 
Ministry of Forests Cl Range 
3M Floor, 1520 anshard Street 
P.O. Box 9 Stn Pray Govt 
Victori C V8W 9C3 

Dear Doug Konkin , 

- - ---- .. _------_._---,--, 
MI Ni ;3TH '( OF FORESTS. DMO 

i RICCEIVED 
i DMRL# __ gZ_L2-I)-=-_ 
I JAN 1 7 20fl6 
, 

I DUE DAE, ________ ~== 
! ODRAFT REPLY ~EPLY DIRECT 
! DFNA 0 FVI FILE -------- ------._._- ---=---' 

Re: The Be Forestry Revitalization Trust - 200S Fourth Quarter Report 

Enclosed for your information is a copy of The Be Forestry Revitalization Trust's 2005 Fourth 
Quarter Report. 

Thank you for your con tinued support and involvement in the Trust to date. Please feel free to 
contact me if you would like to di scuss anything in the report, or The Be Forestry Revitalization 
Trust in general. 

Yours truly , 

,L /i#v!>_ ~'--
Eric van Soercn 
Trustee 

ene!. 

Eric van Socren, Trustee 
6705 London Drive 
Delta, S.c. V4K 4W7 
www.bcfrLcom 

Phone: 604-940-0850 
Cell: 
Fax: 604-940-0858 

Email : eric@vansoeren.nel 
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Be Forestry Revitalization Trust 

Report of the Trustee as of December 31, 2005 

General 

In March 2003 the province of Bri tish Columbia es tablished the Be Forestry Revitalization 
Trust (BCFRT) and funded it wi th $75,000,000. The mandate of the BCFRT is to provide 
mi tigation to fores t workers and replaceable contractors that are negati vely impacted by 
ti mber realloca tions resulting from the Forestry Revi talization Act (FRA). 

In April 2004 the province appointed Eric van Soeren as Trustee. Shortly after that he 
appointed a seven member Advisory Board, as required by Lhe Trust Deed. That Board 
developed draft Forest Worker Mi tigation Guideli nes and Contractor Mitigation Guidelines. 
In order to develop an estimate of the cost of (hose guidelines, the Trustee polled all the 
major Ilcensees that were to lose some of their allowable ann ual cut. They were asked to 
provide their bes t estimate of the effect of the timber reallocation on their workers, their 
contraccors, and their con tractors' workers. The Trustee received a 100% response rate from 
Coastal licensees, and a 90% response rate from the Interior licensees. The main reason for 
the lower response in the Interior was the lack of a response from New Skeena, which was 
involved in bankruptcy proceedi ngs. 

Ut ilizing the best estimates of industry, seniority estimates obtained from the IW A pension 
plan, senionty estimates obtained from contractor industry assoc iations, and the proposed 
guidelines , the Trus tee arrived at an estimated cost of delivering the proposed guidelines. 
Based on that estimate, the Trustee estimated that the BCFRT requi red approximately 
$50,000,000 more than what was available in the BCFRT accounts, plus what the BCFRT 
was li kely to earn in interest whi le holding mitigation fu nds in trust. 

The Trustee and the Advisory Board approached the province to attempt to obtain sufficient 
extra funds to allow the draft mitigation guidelines to be fi nalized. As of March 3 l , 2005, 
the province had agreed to the request for additional funds, and had received approval from 
the legIslatu re CO provide those fu nds to the BCFRT. 

Based on the commitment from the province fo r the additional funds, the Contractor 
Mitigation Guidelines and the Forest Worker Mitigation Guidelines were fi nalized by the 
BCFRT Advisory Board. The Guidelines, as well as extensive supporting documentation, 
have been pos ted on the BCFRT website . 

In earl y April 2005 the BCFRT received a $40,000,000 cash injection. The outstanding 
$10,000,000 in commiued funds has not yet been advanced, and will be held by the province 
until the need fo r the additional funds is confirmed. 

Eric van Soeren, Trustee 
6705 London Drive 
Delta. B.C. V4K 4W7 
www.bcfrt.com 

Phone: 604-940-0H5U 
Cell : 
F", 604-940-0858 

Emai!: eric@vansoercn.nct FNR-2013-00252 
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Account Balances 

As of December 31, 2005 the market value of the BCFRT accounts and distribution to 
beneficiaries was as follows : 

Account Balances 

Administration Account 
Contractor Mitigation Account 
Forest Worker Mitigation Account 
Funds held in reserve by Ministry of Forests and Range 

Total market value of BCFRT accounts 

Distributions to Beneficiaries to date 

Contractor Mitigation 
Forest Worker Mitigation 

Total Distributions to Beneficiaries 

Total available funds plus distributions 

Administration Account 

$4,797,445 
$42,961,691 
$42,025,077 
$10,000,000 
$99,784,213 

$6,922,676 
$23,500,888 
$30,423,564 

$130,207,777 

When (he BCFRT was created, $5,000,000 was allocated 1.0 administration. To date, 
administration expenses of the BCFRT have been slightly more than the interest earned by 
the Admmistrat ion Account, so the initial principal has been reduced by just over $200,000. 
While expenses will increase as the BCFRT becomes more active, it appears likely that a 
significant portion of the Administration Account will be able to be transferred to one of the 
Mitigation Accounts at a later date, and on an as needed basis. 

Contractor Mitigation Account 

The principle being used for contractor mitigation is that contractors who lose their 
replaceable contracts as a result of Forestry Revitali za ti on Act (FRA ) restructuring will 
receive mitigation that approximates what the contract might reasonably have been worth at 
(he time i( was reduced or el iminated. Generally, this wi ll he hased on a per cubic metre 
value, but contracts that were calculated based on some other measure wi ll be treated 
accordingly. A detai led description of the calculation to be used is contained in the 
Contractor Mitigation Guidelines. These Guideli nes are posted on the BCFRT website. 

As of December 31, 2005, Forestry Revitalization Proposals (FRPs) have been presented for 
56% of the reallocated volume in the Interior, and 97% of the reallocated volume on the 
Coast. Not all of those FRPs have been implemented, and at least one is being di sputed by 
the affected contractors. 
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Also as of December 31,2005, $6,922,676 had been paid in contractor mitigation related to 
30 affected contractors. Discussions are underway with numerous other replaceab le 
contractors whose contracts have been or may be reduced or eliminated. Therefore, 
numerous con tractor mitigation payments will likely be made throughout 2006. 

Several coastal contractors and a group of interior contractors have suggested that the 
Contractor Mitigation Guidelines do not fa irly compensate them for the value of their Jost 
contracts. The Advisory Board has reviewed the claims that had been made before the 
November Advisory Board meeling. 

To date, the vIew of the majori ty of the Advisory Board is that the contractors have not been 
able to substantiate lheir claims that the formula or the cap used in the Contractor Mitigation 
Guidelines is unfair. While the Trustee and the Advisory Board remain open to consideri ng 
special cases, no change to the previously approved Contractor Mitigation Guidelines has 
been made with respect to calculating the value of lost contract volume, and no breach of the 
cap on mitigation has been approved to date. However, the Advisory Board has accepted the 
proposition that in some rare cases it may be necessary to compensate replaceab le contractors 
for stranded assets. 

As of December 31, 2005, contractor compensation payments, plus revised estimates based 
on app lications to that date, appear to he approximately 7% above the originally projected 
amounts. It appears redundan t equipment payments may be higher than projected. A higher 
than projected proportion of replaceable contractors appear to be leaving the industry, and 
there willlike!y be some cost to the BCFRT related (0 stranded assets . Also, two licensees 
were able to get Ministerial Exemptions to allow them to el iminate more replaceable 
contractors than the original cap on replaceable conlract eliminations would have allowed. It 
is too early to tell if these events wi ll become a strain on the ava ilable funds. Early 
indications are that employee severances may be lower than originall y projected. If that 
happens, surplus funds from the Forest Worker Mitigation Account may be moved to the 
Contractor Mitigation Account. 

Forest Worker Mitigation Account 

The principle being used for forest worker mitigation is that workers who are severed by a 
Licensee or Replaceable Contractor because of FRA reslrucru ring wil l receive severance 
from their ex-employer, and that severance wil l be funded by the BCFRT. The Advisory 
Board felt it was fair that all workers who lose their jobs as a result of FRA restructuring be 
treated the same. Because Ihe Steelworkers' (previously IWA) contract mandates that 
employees affected by a permanenllogging camp closure receive severance of 10 regular 
days pay per year of service, plus iOllths of a regular day's pay per completed month of 
service, that standard was used. The detailed calculation and disc ussion appears in the Forest 
Worker Mitigation Guidelines, and can be fOllnd on the BCFRT webs ite. 

As of December 31,2005,462 workers have received severance funded by the BCFRT, for a 
total cost to the BCFRT of $23,500,888. The average severance per employee to date is 
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significantly higher than originally projected ($50,868 as opposed (0 an estimate of $39,828). 
However, the average is likely high because a disproportionate amount of the workers that 
have already been severed worked for the licensees on the coast, and they tended to be crews 
with above average seniority. Also, to date it appears the [Otal number of employees to be 
severed, especially in the interior, will be lower than projected. Therefore, for now it appears 
there will be sufficient funds in the BCFRT to deal with employee mitigation according to 
the Guidelines. Further, it appears there may be sufficient reserve to cover a possible 
shortfall in the Contractor Mitigation Account 

Looking Ahead 

The first quarter of 2006 will likely include the fo llowing activity: 

I . Forestry Revitalization Proposals (FRPs) will be implemented for more of the coastal 
and interior licensees. 

2. The disputes involving two Forestry Revitalization Proposals will be resolved. 

3. Contractor Mitigation payments will be made to replaceable contractors who lose 
some or all of their contractS as a result of those FRPs. 

4. Severance payments will be made to forest workers for some of the above licensees, 
and some of their replaceable contractors. 

5. The BCFRT Trustee will continue to meet with licensee and contractor industry 
associations and organized labour, as well as with individual licensees, contractors, 
worker groups and their advisors on an as needed basis, to ensure that the mitigation 
process progresses as smooth ly, quickly and efficiently as possible. 

Eric van Soeren 
Trustee 
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Minister of Forests 

ORDER # 3(2) 23·5 

.(Order made under section 3 of the Forestry Revitalization Act, S.B.C. 2003, c.17, and 
section 33.2(2) of the Timber Harvesting Contract and Subcontract Regulation, B.C. Reg. 22/96) 

I, the Honourable Michael de Jong, Minister of Forests, hereby order that 

Definitions 

1. In this Order, 

a. • Act" means the Forestry Revitafization Act, and 

b. words and phrases have the same meaning as in the Act. 

Forest licences, tree farm licences, and timber sale licences 

2. For the purposes of section 3 (2) of the Act, the reduction in the allowable annual cut 
attributed to a forest licence, a tree farm licence, or a timber sale licence listed in 
Column 2 of the Schedule is as set out in Column 3 of that Schedule opposite that 
licence. 

3. For the purposes of section 3 (5)(c) and section 3 (5.1) of the Act, the date the 
reduction in allowable annual cut attributed to the licence listed in Column 2 of the 
Schedule occurs, is December 31. 2005. 

Replaceable Contracts 

4. Under the authority of section 33.2 (2) of the Timber Harvesting Contract and 
Subcontract Regulation, the last date for making a forestry revitalization proposal in 
respect of the licences listed in Column 2 of Schedule is April 30, 2006. 

This Order signed on the fo day of J 't¥'I .... 1. ~r. in Victoria, by: 

@I~ 
Ou. M\~'~ .......:=::::; 

The Honourable Micha~1 de Jong, Minisler of Forests 
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SCHEDULE TO MINISTER'S ORDER # 3(2) 23· 5 

Column 1 Column 2 Column 3 

Lieensee Licence Reduction in 
Number Allowable Annual 

Cut 
(cubic metres) 

TIMBERWEST GROUP 

Licensee referred to in the TFL46 30000 
Schedule to the Forestry 
Revitalization Act is TFL Forest Ltd. 
and the licensee at date of Order is 
Teal Jones Forest Ltd. 

Page 2 of2 
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Minister of Forests 

ORDER ~ 3(2) 15-2 

(Order made under section 3 of the Forestry Revitalization Act, S.B.C. 2003, c.17) 

I, the Honourable Michael de Jong. Minister of Forests. hereby order that 

Minister of Forests Order # 3(2) 15-1 issued on the 21 st day of December, 2004 is hereby 
repealed. 

This Order signed on the "day of J:z.v. . 
~ 0."-

• 2001. in Victoria, by: 

Page 1 of 1 

FNR-2013-00252 
Page 202



Be Forestry Revitalization Trnst 

January 17,2005 G 

Doug Konkin 
Deputy Minis r afForests 
Ministry of orests 
3" Floor, 520 Blanshard Street 
PO Bo 525, Stn Proy GOyt 
Vieta a, Be 
V8 9C3 

ear Doug Konkin: 

Re: Request for additional funding for the BC Forestry Revitalization Trust (BCFRT) 

In March 2003 the province of British Columbia established the BCFRT and funded it with 
$75,000,000. The mandate of the BCFRT is to provide mitigation to workers and 
replaceable contractors that are negatively impacted by timber reallocations resulting from 
the Forestry Revitalization Act. 

In April 2004 I was appointed as Trustee. Shortly after that I appointed an Advisory Board. 
That Board has developed draft worker and contractor mitigation guidelines. In order to 
develop an estimate of the cost of those guidelines, I polled the major licensees that were to 
lose some of their allowable annual cut. They were all asked to provide their best estimate of 
the effect of the timber reallocation on their workers, their contractors, and their contractors' 
workers. I received a 100% response rate from Coastal licensees, and a 90% response rate in 
the Interior. The main reason for the lower response in the Interior was the lack of a 
response from New Skeena, which is involved in bankruptcy proceedings. 

Utilizing the best estimates of industry, seniority estimates obtained from the IW A pension 
plan, seniority estimates obtained from contractor industry associations, and the proposed 
guidelines, I arrived at an estimated cost of delivering the proposed guidelines. That estimate 
is what drives the request for an additional $50,000,000. 

You have informed me that cabinet is concerned that the request for an additional 
$50,000,000 injection into the BCFRT may not be the last request for additional funds, and 
has requested assurance that the BCFRT will fulfill its mandate using no more than the 
additional funds, if provided. 

I believe that the estimates received were the best estimates of industry at the time they were 
given, and included all foreseeable reductions or cancellations of replaceable contracts, and 

Eric van Soeren, Trustee 
6705 London Drive 
Delta, B.c. V4K 4W7 
www.bcfrt.com 

Phone: 604-940-0850 
Cell:
Fax: 604-940-0858 

Email: eric~vansoeren .net 
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all foreseeable employee severances. Nothing has come to my attention to suggest that the 
extra $50,000,000 will be insufficient. In fact, it now appears employee severance in the 
Interior may be less than projected by the licensees, because displaced contractors will 
redirect their efforts to harvesting beetle kill, and may therefore retain their crews. 

As Forestry Revitalization Plans are finalized, and Funding Agreements begin to be 
developed with beneficiaries of the BCFRT, I win monitor any variances between projected 
and actual costs of mitigation. If any material discrepancy begins to develop that point to 
going over the new budget, I will convene an Advisory Board meeting to consider adjusting 
the mitigation guidelines so as to avoid going over budget. 

In a conference call on January 14, 2005 with a quorum of Advisory Board members, a 
motion was proposed, seconded and passed unanimously in which the BCFRT Advisory 
Board agreed to limit itself to working with the existing funds, plus the additional 
$50,000,000. I am therefore confident that in the unlikely event that mitigation costs appear 
to be growing beyond the available funds, the guidelines will be changed by the Board to suit 
the remaining available funds. 

Yours truly, 

Eric van Soeren 
Trustee 

cc BCFR T Advisory Board 
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BC Forestry Revitalization Trnst 

March 1, 2005 ~ 

Doug Konkin, Dep Minist~t'y-' 
Ministry efFore 
3rd Floor, 152 lanshard Street 
P.O. Box 9 5 Stn Proy Govt 
Victoria, C V8W 9C3 

Dca oug, 

fC) [i © Ii D \W [i to' 
tru Ministry Qf Forests L.!:U 

MAR 09 2005 

Deputy Minister's Office 
Executive 

Re: The BC Forestry Revitalization Trust - 2004 Financial Statements 

Enclosed for your infonnation is a copy of the Be Forestry Revitalization Trust's Financial 
Statements as at December 31, 2004. 

Please feel free to contact me if you would like to discuss anything in the report, or the Be 
Forestry Revitalization Trust in general. 

Yours truly, 

L/'~~J~ 
Eric van Secren 
Trustee 

enc!. 

Eric van Soeren, Trustee 
6705 London Drive 
Delta, B.C. V4K 4W7 
www.bcfit.com 

---._--- -
M INISmy OF FORESTS-DMC' 

R .. CEIVED 
DMRL# .. _33653 

MAR 09 2005 

. DUE OAT/:: : 
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Be Forestry Revitalization Trust 

Report ofthe Trustee 

In March 2003 the province of British Columbia established the Be Forestry Revitalization 
Trust (BCFRT) and funded it with $75,000,000. The mandate of the BCFRT is to provide 
mitigation to forest workers and replaceable contractors that are negatively impacted by 
timber reallocations resulting from the Forestry Revitalization Act. 

In April 2004 the province appointed Eric van Soeren as Trustee. Shortly after that he 
appointed a seven member Advisory Board, as required by the Trust Deed. Advisory Board 
membership as or year-end was as follows: 

Peter Affleck, Board Member representing the Council of Forest Industries 
Jim Girvan, Board Member representing the Truck Loggers Association 
Monty Meames, Board Member representing the United Steelworkers of 

America - IW A Council 
Tim Menning, Board Member representing the Interior Logging 

Association, the Central Interior Loggers Association and the North 
West Logging Association 

Julian Paine, Board Member representing the Ministry of Forests 
Darrel Wong, Board Member representing the United Steelworkers of 

America - IW A Council 
Berni Zimmerman, Board Member representing the Coast Forest and 

Lumber Association 

The Advisory Board has developed draft forest worker and contractor mitigation guidelines. 
In order to develop an estimate of the cost of those guidelines, the Trustee polled all the 
major licensees that were to lose some of their allowable annual cut. They were asked to 
provide their best estimate of the effect of the timber reallocation on their workers, their 
contractors, and their contractors' workers. The Trustee received a 100% response rate from 
Coastal licensees, and a 90% response rate in the Interior. The main reason for the lower 
response in the Interior was the lack of a response from New Skeena, which is involved in 
bankruptcy proceedings. 

Utilizing the best estimates of industry, seniority estimates obtained from the IW A pension 
plan, seniority estimates obtained from contractor industry associations, and the proposed 
guidelines, the Trustee arrived at an estimated cost of delivering the proposed guidelines. 
Based on that estimate, the Trustee estimates that the BCFRT requires approximately 
$50,000,000 more than what was available in the BCFRT accounts as of December 31, 2004, 
plus what the BCFRT is likely earn in interest while holding mitigation funds in trust. 

The Trustee and the Advisory Board approached the province to attempt to get sufficient 
extra funds to allow the draft mitigation guidelines to be finalized. As of December 31, 
2004, the province was considering the request for additional funds. If the funds were not 
available, it would not be possible to deliver on the draft guidelines. Given the strongly held 
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- views of the majority of the Advisory Board that anything less than the draft guidelines 

would not be equitable to displaced forest workers and replaceable contractors, this would be 
a serious blow to the BCFRT. 

-
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On the other hand, were the province to support the request for additional funds, the draft 
guidelines could immediately he finalized, and the BCFRT would be ready to start providing 
mitigation payments, based on those guidelines. 

On January 21, 2005 the Premier made a public conunitment to ask the Be Legislature to 
approve the required extra $50,000,000. On February 22, 2005 the legislature approved the 
request. Therefore, the draft guidelines have been finalized, and the Trustee believes there 
are sufficient funds in the BCFRT to begin making Mitigation payments based on the 
Contractor and Worker Mitigation Guidelines. 

Administration Account 

When the BCFRT was created, $5,000,000 was allocated to administration. To date, 
administration expenses of the BCFRT have been close to the interest earned by the 
Administration Account, so the initial principal is ahnost intact. While expenses will 
increase as the BCFR T becomes more active, it appears likely that a portion of the 
Administration Account will be able to be transferred to one of the Mitigation Accounts at a 
later date, and on an as needed basis. 

Contractor Mitigation Account 

The principle being used for contractor mitigation is that contractors who lose their 
replaceable contracts as a result of Forestry Revitalization Act (FRA) timber reallocation will 
receive mitigation that approximates what the contract might reasonably have been worth at 
the time it was reduced or eliminated. Generally, this will be based on a per cubic metre 
value, but contracts that were calculated based on some other measure will be treated 
accordingly. A detailed description of the calculation to be used is in the Contractor 
Mitigation Guidelines, which can be found by following the links to Contractor Mitigation 
Guidelines on the BCFRT website at www.bcfrt.com. 

As of December 31, 2004, no contractor mitigation amounts had been paid. This is partially 
because the Contractor Mitigation Guidelines were still in draft fonn, as discussed above, 
and partially because no Forestry Revitalization Plans have been finalized to date. 

Forest Worker Mitigation Account 

The principle being used for forest worker mitigation is that workers who are severed 
because of FRA timber reallocation will receive severance paid to them by their employer, 
but funded by the BCFRT. The Advisory Board felt it was fair that all workers who lose 
their jobs as a result of FRA timber reallocation be treated the same. Because the 
Steelworkers (previously IWA) contract mandates what employees that are affected by a 
pennanent logging camp closure receive severance of 10 regular days pay per year of 
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service, plus 1011 i hs of a regular day's pay per completed month of service, that standard 
was used. The detailed calculation and discussion appears in the Forest Worker Mitigation 
Guidelines, which can be found by following the links to Forest Worker Mitigation 
Guidelines on the BCFRT website at www.bcfrt.com. 

As of December 31 , 2004, no forest worker mitigation amounts had been paid. TIlls is 
partially because the Forest Worker Mitigation Guidelines were still in draft form. as 
discussed above, and partially because no Forestry Revitalization Plans have been finalized 
to date. 

Looking Ahead 

Subsequent to year-end, the Ministry of Forests issued the required Section 3 timber 
reallocation orders Wlder the Forestry Revitalization Act (FRA) to the major licensees 
affected by the FRA. These identify the amount of volume to be lost by tenure, and the 
timing of that loss. Also subsequent to year-end, as discussed above, the provincial 
government agreed to provide the BCFRT with the required extra $50,000,000. Therefore, 
Forestry Revitalization Plans are likely to be completed early in 2005, and worker and 
contractor Mitigation payments will commence, possibly as early as March 2005. 
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THE BC FORESTRY REVITALIZATION TRUST 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2004 

SCHROEDER & ASSOC IATES. Cl, .. lered Accountants 
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Exhibit A 

To the Trustee 
The Be Forestry Revitalization Trust 

AUDITORS' REPORT 

We have audited the statement of financial position of The Be Forestry Revitalization Trust as at 
December 3 1, 2004, and the statements of receipts and expenditures and net assets for the year 
then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Trustee. OUf responsibility is 
to express an opinion on these financial statements. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. 
Those standards require that we plan and perfonn an audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, 
on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An 
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by the 
Trustee, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. 

In our opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of the Trust as at December 3 1, 2004 and its receipts and expenditures for the year then 
ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles. 

Vancouver, B.C . 
February 14, 2005 

OUNTANTS 
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Exh ibit B 
THE BC FORESTRY REVITALIZATION TRUST 

• 
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2004 

ASSETS 2004 '" 2003 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash - note 6 $ 15,665 $ 3,845 
Marketable securities - at cost - Schedule 1 

, 
63,714,874 76,406,286 

Interest receivable 611,848 253.929 

64,342,387 76,664,060 

INVESTMENTS, at cost - Schedule 2 13,840,567 

TOTAL ASSETS $ 78,182,-954 $ 76.664,060 

LIABILITIES 

CURRENT LIABILITY 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ :34,765 $ 6.718 , 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 34':765 6,718 .. 
Xi 

FUND BALANCES 

NET ASSETS 
Administration Fund - Schedule 3 4,945,448 5,000,000 
Contractor Miti gation Fund - Schedule 3 ;;:1 24,026,'U3 48,112,786 
Forest Worker Mitigation Fund - Schedule 3 49,1,76,318 23,544.556 

TOTAL NET ASSETS 78,148,189 76,657,342 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $ 78,182,954 $ 76.664,060 

APPROVED BY THE TRUSTEE 

_..&£""",-,,4=' ~<L~""'~'-"'<"'="""-'-_ Trustee 

• 

The accompanying summary of significant accounting policics and notes are an in tegral pan of these financial statements. 

SCHROEDER & ASSOCIATES, Chart.red Acconnt.:l"~ 
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THE BC FORESTRY REVITALIZATION TRUST 

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 , 2004 

EXCESS OF RECEIPTS OVER EXPENDITURES 

NON-OPERATING TRANSACTIONS 
Settlement of Trust 
Disbursements to beneficiaries 

NET ASSETS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 

NET ASSETS AT END OF YEAR 

$ 

:., 

" 

$ 

Exhibit C 

1!!!!! 
, ' 

{ 490,847 

::>, 

.~ 

78,148,189' 

The accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and notes are an integral part of these financial statements 

SCHROEDER & ASSOC tATES. Cl,artem:i Ac<:ouman!s 

2003 

S 1.657.342 

75,000,000 

75,000.000 

$ 76,657.342 
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Exhibit D 
THE BC FORESTRY REVIT ALIZA nON TRUST 

STATEMENT OF RECEIPTS AND EXPENDITURES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2004 

Administration Contractor Forest Worker -2004 .• ( 2003 
Fund Mitigation Fund 

. I' .. , 

Mitigation Fund ~ ,_~,,~ Total 
... ", .'f , INTEREST RECEIPTS - note 4(b) $ 163,798 $ 481,867 $ 1,063,532 ' $ 1,709,11'7 ' $ 1,700.386 

I 

EXPENDrTURES - note 4(e) +' 
", 

Investment advisor fees 15,776 15776', , - , '" 33 ,948 
Admimstration fees 25 ,633 ~?,633 , • Advisory board meeting costs 3,676 9, 3,676 
Audit fees 7,800 r 7,800 6,280 
Bank charges and interest 600 600 
Consulting 4,911 4,911 
GST expense 13,862 ' , 13,862 2,816 
Legal fees 20,356 t l~f1 20,356 
Office 536 "536 , . 
Travel and entertainment 1,640 1,640 

r Trustee fees 123,560 123,560 

I 
218,350 218,350 43,044 

~ 

I EXCESS OF RECEIPTS OVER EXPENDITURES S (54,552) $ 481,867 S 1,063,532 $ 1;490,847 $ 1.657.342 
'L ' "~I 

" 
, 

! 

I 

I 

I. The accompanying summary of significant account ing pol icies and notes are an integral pan o f these fin ancial Slll1cments. 
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THE BC FORESTRY REVITALIZATION TRUST 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 , 2004 

I. PURPOSE OF THE TRUST 

Exhibit E 

The Be Forestry Revitalization Trust (the "Trust") was established by Deed of Trust dated March 17.2003 (the 
"Trust Dced") . Pursuant to Bill 28-2003, the Forestry Revitalization Act, the Ministry of Forests of the Province 
of Briti sh Columbia made a payment of $75,000,000 to settle the Trust (the "First Payment"). On February 22 , 
2005, the Government of the Provmce of British Columbia passed legislation to make an additional contribution 
of $50,000,000 to the Trust (the "Second Payment"), to increase the funds available for distribution to 
$125,000,000. The funds are to be used to mitigate adverse financia l impacts suffered by cerlalll workers and 
replaceable contractors as a result of restructuring of the fo restry sector and harvesting operations within Brit ish 
Columbia, arising out of reductions under the Forestry Revitalization Act of harvesting rights available to 
licensees under the Forest Act. 

2. BENEFICIARIES OF THE TRUST 

The beneficiaries of the Trust are: 

(a) certain workers (unemployed forestry workers and retraining forestry workers as defined in subparagraph 
2.02(2)(a) and (b) of the Trust Deed); and 

(b) certain contractors (as defined in subparagraph 2.02(2)(c) of the Trust Deed) who hold a replaceable 
contract or a replaceable subcontract within the meaning of the Timber Harvesting COlltract alld 
Subcontract Regulation of the Forest Act. 

3. DURATION O F THE TRUST 

Subject to a possible extension of up to two years the Trust will termmate on the earlier of: 

(a) March 31, 2008; and 

(b) any datc on which thcrc is no rcmaining Trust property. 

4. SIGNI FICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

(a) Fund Accounting 

The BC Forestry Revitalization Trust employs fund accounting, using the accrual method of accounting for 
transactions. The Trust's assets are subject to the restrictions contained in the Trust Deed and arc to be used 
only for the specified purposes. The Trust comprises the fo llowing funds: 

(i) Admmistration Fund 

In accordance with the Trust Deed, $5 mill ion of the Fi rst Payment was allocated to the Administration 
Fund to meet administration expenses for the duration of the Trust. 

Pursuant to recommendations by the Advisory Board, the Trustee may transfer funds from time to li me 
from the Administration Fund to the other two funds to the extent that the transferred amounts are in 
excess of anticipated administrative expenses of the Trust. Any such transfers cannot be reversed. 

SCIl RO EDER & ASSOCIATES. Ch~rlercd Accoumams 
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THE BC FORESTRY REYITALIZA TlON TRUST 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 , 2004 

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, co"I'd 

(ii) Contractor Mitigation Fund 

Exhibit E 

In accordance with the Trust Deed, $23 million of the First Payment was allocated 10 the Contractor 
Mitigation Fund. 

This fund is to be used to provide mitigation to certain replaceable contractors for reductIOns in their 
contract volumes resulting from the reduction in the harvesting rights of certain bcenst:es under the 
Forestry Revitalization Act; 

Pursuant to recommendations by the Advisory Board, the Trustee may transfer funds from ti me to time 
between the Contractor Mitigation Fund and the Forest Worker Mitigation Fund. 

(iii) Forest Worker Mitigation Fund 

In accordance with the Trust Deed, $47 million of the First Payment was allocated 10 Ihe Forest Worker 
Mitigation Fund. 

This fund is to be used to provide mitigation to certain forestry workers who ceased to be employed by 
certam licensees or contractors as a result of reductions in the harvesting rights of certain licensees 
under the Forestry Revitalization Act. 

Pursuant to recommendations by the Advisory Board, the Trustee may transfer funds from time to time 
between the Contractor Mitigation Fund and the Forest Worker Mitigation Fund. 

(b) Revenue Recognition and Allocation 

Investment lllcome wil l be recorded as received or receivable, if the amount to be received can be reasonably 
estimated and collection is reasonably assured. 

All income earned in respect of funds held in a mitigation fund sha ll be Income of that mitigation fund and 
fonn part of the capital of that fund. 

All income earned in any fiscal year in respect of funds held in the Administration Fund (net of any 
applicable taxes) will first be used to pay administrative expenses for the fiscal year. The remainder, if any, 
shall be added to the other two funds on a pro~rata basis as defined in the Trust Deed. 

(c) Expenditures Allocation 

In accordance with the Trust Deed, all expenditures are to be paid out of the Administration Fund. 

(d) Use of Assumptions and Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements, in confonnity with Canadian generally accepted accounting 
principles, requires the Trustee to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the 
financial statements and accompanying disclosures. Although these estimates are based on the Trustee's 
knowledge of current events and actions the Trust may undertake in the future, actual resu lts may differ 
from the estimate!>. 

SCllRO EDER & A.s.sOCIAT[S, Chancred A"",ountanlS 
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THE BC FORESTRY REVITALIZATION TRUST 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004 

5. STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

Exhibit E 

These financial statements do not include a statement of cash flows as the infonnation is readily avtlilablc from 
the financia l statements, and would not provide additional useful infonnation. 

6. CASH 
, , 

Administration Contractor Forest Worker 2004 
Fund Mitigation Fund Mitigation Fund "'" Total 

Cash $ 3,986 $ 11,339 $ 340 $ 15,665 

7. INCOME TAXES 

$ 

2003 
Tota l 

3,845 

On the basis of verba l discussions with officials of the Canada Revenue Agency (the "CRA "), the Trustee is of 
the opinion that the Trust is either a non-profit organization for income tax purposes or a public body performing 
a function of govcrnment. Under either definition, the Trust's income would not be subject to income taxes. 

8. GOODS AND SERVICES TAXES 

The Trustee has reccived advice from the CRA that the Trust will not be able to recover any Input Tax Credits. 

9. FAIR VALUE AND CREDIT RISK 

The carrying value of investments and liabilities reflected in the balance sheet approximate thcir respective fair 
values. The Trust does not have a significant concentration of credit risk. 

10. COMMITMENTS 

In accordance with the Trust deed, all funds must be disbursed to beneficiaries by March 31, 2008 in accordance 
with the purpose of the Trust and the guidelines prcpared by the Trustee and approved by the Advi sory Board. 
Any amounts remaining at that time are to be transferred to a person, organization or association whose 
objectives are compatible with the distribution objectives of the Trust. However, no amounts may be transferred 
to the Government of the Province of British Columbia. 

I I. SUBSEQUENT EVENT 

On February 22, 2005, the Government of the Province of British Columbia passed legi slation to make an 
additional contribution of $50,000,000 to the Trust (the "Second Payment") to increase funds available for 
di stribution to $125,000,000. Thc Second Payment was approvcd pursuant to a rcquest by thc Trustee and the 
Advisory Board. 

SCHROEDER & ASSOC IATES, Ch3ncred Accountants 
FNR-2013-00252 
Page 218



--
THE Be FORESTRY REVITALIZATION TRUST 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004 

II. SUBSEQUENT EVENT, cont'd 

Exhibit E 

During the prior year, the Trustee and Advisory Board developed draft Forest Worker Mitigation Guidelines and 
draft Contractor Mitigation Guidelines. Based on those draft guidelines the Trustee made preliminary 
calculations of the expected amounts required to make mitigation payments to eligible workers and replaceable 
contractors in accordance with the purpose of the Trust. These calculations were based on certain assumptions 
and on infonnation and estimates provided by affected licensees and contractors. 

There is a significant dCb'TCe of uncertainty as to the number of potential beneHciaries of the Trust, and the total 
amount of mitigation for which they will be eligible based on the draft guidelines. In both the best and worst 
case scenarios, the estimates of amounts required to provide mitigation exceeded the funds available in the Trust 
prior to the Second Payment. The Trustee and the Advisory Board informed the Government of the Province of 
British Columbia of the requirement for additional funds to make the expected distributions to beneficiaries in 
accordance with the draft mitigation guidelines. 

The Trustee and the Advisory Board are satisfied that the funds of $125,000,000 available subsequent to thc 
receipt of the Second Payment will permit the Trust to fulfill its expected obligations under the draft mitigation 
guidelines. 

SCHROEDER & ASSOC IATES. Chanered AccountanlS 
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Government of Canada Treasury Bill 
Face Value 58,1 60,000 
Due January 15, 2004 

Government of Canada Treasury Bill 
Face Value $10,097 ,000 
Due February 12, 2004 

Anglo American PLe 
Face Value 57,500,000 
Discount Note - Due February 2, 2004 

Government of Canada Treasury Bill 
Face Value $12,868,000 
Due Februat)' 26, 2004 

Province of Ontario Treasury Bill 
Face Va lue S 1 0 , 175,000 
Due February 19, 2004 

GE Fundmg Co. 
Face Value $7,633,000 
Discount Note - Due March 12, 2004 

Bank of Nova Scotia 
Face Value SI 0,235,000 
Bankers Acceptance - Due March 23 , 2004 

THE BC FORESTRY REVITALIZATION TRUST 

SCHEDULE OF MARKETABLE SECURITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004 

Administration Contractor Forest Worker 
Fund Mitigation Fund Mitigation Fund 

$ $ $ 

The accompanying summary ofsignificalll accounting policies and notes are an integr:ll p:lrt of these financial statements. 

SCl t ROEDER &: ASSOCIATES. C".".~d AccOIl u"m 

Schedule I 

2004 
Total 

lV 

'4.-.~, 

2003 
Total 

8,089,824 

10,000, 170 

7,441 ,800 

12,777,667 

10,107,437 

7,632,108 

10, 168,063 
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GovemmentofCanada Treasury Bill 
Face Value $10,250,000 
Due March 25, 2004 

Franchise Trust 2004-1 
Discount NOle 
Face Yalue $65,000 
Due January 5, 2005 

ClBC BA 
Face Value £270,000 
Due March 1,2005 

RES Government of Canada 
Face Value S2,000,000 
Due June 1, 2005 

Government of Canada Treasury Bill 
Face Value $5,000,000 
Due February 24, 2005 

Government of Canada Treasury Bill 
Face Value $3,057,000 
Due March 10, 2005 

THE BC FORESTRY REVITALIZATION TRUST 

SCHEDULE OF MARKETABLE SECURITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004 

Administration 
Fund 

Contractor 
Mitigation Fund 

Forest Worker 
Mitigation Fund . 

" 

'ij> 

64,691 

268 ,311 

1,951,316 

4,916,860 

3,022,575 

The accompanying SUfnl11Jry of significant accounting policies and nOles are an in tegral part of these financial statements. 

SCIIRO EOER & ASSOC IA r[S, ' h.n .... d Accoom.IlU 

Schedule 1 

209~ . 
Total 

" 
~ 

j;, . 

. 64,691 
:' ".jj 

268,311 
:.;, 

1,951,316 

<If 

4>916:~66 
" .• -"; 

3,022,575 

, 

2003 
Total 

66,217,069 

10,189,217 
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, carried forward 

Government of Canada Treasury Bill , Face Value $5,1 02,000 
Due April 2 1, 2005 

Government of Canada Treasury Bi ll 
Face Value 564 1,000 
Due July 14,2005 

Bons du Tresor du Quebec Treasury Bill , Face Value S 1 ,000,000 

I f 

Due January 21 ,2005 

, 
cmc BA I 

Face Value $5,000,000 
Due May 18, 2005 

I 
Farm Credit Corporation 

I r 
Medium Term Note 
Face Value $764,000 

I I Due June 15,2005 

! • 
Citigroup Finance CDA Inc. MTN 

I Face Value $454,000 
Due June 20, 2005 

T HE BC FORESTRY REVITALIZATION TRUST 

SC HEDULE OF MARKETABLE SECURITIES 

FOR TirE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004 

Administration Contractor Forest Worker 
Fund Mitigation Fund Mitigation Fund 

2,284,318 7,939,435 

5,044,654 

631 ,868 

991,294 

4,88 1,360 

779,788 

460 ,899 

, The accompanying summary of sig nifi cant accounting policies and notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

SCIIKOEI}EK & ASSOC tA TES. Cloonr .... d ACCOUn1'~I' 

;'i' 

,,""" ~ ~p: 

~. 

~.~ 

" , 

Schedule 1 

2004 
Total 

'$ 
lo:i~3~75~ 

631,868 

;';t ~ 
991",294" 

.!~ 

, 

4,881~60,~ 

~ 

"", 
77?,788 

460,899 

2003 
Total 

76,406,286 
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crae DeposIt Note 
Face Value $2,014,000 
Due August 22, 2005 

Government of Canada Treasury Bills 
Face Value S3,500,000 

THE BC fORESTRY REVIT ALIZA T10N TRUST 

SCHEDULE OF MARKET ABLE SECURITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 ,2004 

Administration Contractor Forest Worker 
Fund Mitigation Fund Mitigation Fund 

2,284,318 20,729,298 

2,140,115 

Schedule 1 

t004 . ( i: 
Total ,III¢ -- ' 

f' 
':23,013,616 

'II' , 
2,140,115 

Due February 24, 2005 3,444,493 3,444,493 " 
Ij~ r%!" 

Government of Canada Treasury Bills 
Face Value £3,313,000 
Due March 24, 2005 

Government of Canada Treasury Bills 
Face Value $2,589,000 
Due Apri121, 2005 

Government of Canada Treasury Bills 
Face Value $3,000,000 
Due July 14,2005 

Government of Canada Treasury Bill 
Face Value $1,8 10,000 
Due September 8, 2005 

The accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and notes arc an integral part of these financ ial statements. 

SC IlROEOI:: R & ASSOC I .... T .:S, ('h.ntrW Acmuntams 

3,252,273 

2,559,232 

2,924,358 

1 ,761 ,934 

~25~r 
j"..\ ,,,,,, , 

::v;.Vj" 
2;55~;232 

4" 2 ,924,358 

1,761,934 

2003 
Total 

76,406,286 
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Government of Canada Treasury Bills 
Face Value 53,528,000 
Due February 10,2005 

Government of Canada Treasury Bills 
Face Value $1,722,000 
Due October 6, 2005 

Citigroup Finance CDA Inc. MTN 
Face Value $1,770,000 
Due January 11, 2005 

CitGroup Funding Company Discount Notc 
Face Value $ 1,971,000 
Due January 18, 2005 

Akan Inc. Discount Notc 
Face Value $1,303,000 
Due January 31, 2005 

ePN Government of Canada 
Face Value SI ,784,386 
Due March \5 , 2005 

THE BC FORESTRY REVITALIZATION TRUST 

SCHEDULE OF MARKETABLE SECURITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2004 

Administration Contractor Forest Worker 
Fund Mitigation Fund Mitigation Fund 

2,284,318 22,869,413 13,942,290 

3,499,077 

1,678,223 

1,788,912 

1,966,486 

1,300,055 

1,762,640 

The accompanying summary of sign ificant ac<:our. ling policies and notes are an integral par! of these financial statements. 

SCHROEI) ER & ASSOC IA TES. Chan~",d ACCOln'['RIS 

Schedule 1 

)004 
j Total 

39,09~;p2 1.~ljr " 
,,t-:,t2 
f""­
W' l"~( 

_3,499,077 

1· 
M; 

't 

1,678,223 

1,18tJ,9lt 
'7t;t{ 

'" .:i:';; 
1,?~6,48~~ 

,,!?, ;,!!(, 

1,300,055 

1,762,640 

2003 
Total 

76,406,286 

FNR-2013-00252 
Page 224



, 

, 
, 
• 

, , 

I 
, r 
I 
i I. 
i , , 
! , 

! 
! f 
P 
I ' 
i • 

carried f on vard 

Fann Credit Corp Canada 
Mid Tenn Note 
Face Value $1 ,100,000 
Due May 15,2005 

RES Government of Canada 
Face Value $2,100,000 
Due June 1, 2005 

CIBC Bankers Acceptance 
Face Value $2,562,000 
Due June 2, 2005 

Fann Credit Canada 
Face Value $1 ,395,000 
Due August 15, 2005 

RES Government of Canada 
Face Value SI ,605 ,000 
Due September 1, 2005 

RES Ontario Hydro 
Face Value $1,728,000 
Due November 3, 2005 

THE BC FORESTRY REVITALIZATION TRUST 

SCHEDULE OF MARKETABLE SECURITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 , 2004 

Administration 
Fund 

2,284,318 

Contractor 
Mitigation Fund 

22,869,413 

Forest Worker 
Mitigation Fund 

25 ,9J7,683 

1,104,914 

2,048 ,955 

2,499,088 

1,418,130 

1,55 7,834 

1,679,861 

The accompanying summary of signifi cant accoun ting policies and notes are an integral part o f these fin 3ncial statements. 

SCII RO EOER & ASSOC IA TE5. (h . Mered Accountanrs 

, 
" 

~ '~:';I 

,,/ , 
y; 

L 

Schedule 1 

2004 
Total 

51,091,.414 

, ,. 
2,048;955 

f~ ';.) 'f; ~1 

c 

2~499,088 ., 
i .-

1,418,130 

1,557,834 

1,679,861 

2003 
Total 

76,406,286 
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Province of Briti sh Columbia 
Mid Tenn Note Euro 
Face Value $2,275 ,000 
Due December 1, 2005 

Reallocation 

MARKETABLE SECURITIES 

THE BC FORESTRY REVITALIZATION TRUST 

SCHEDULE OF MARKETABLE SECURITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBE R 31, 2004 

Admmistration Contractor Forest Worker 
Fund Mitigation Fund Mitigation Fund 

2,284,318 22,869,413 36,246,465 

2,314,678 

(26,604) 55,073 (28,469) 

$ 2,257,714 $ 22.924,486 $ 38,532,674 

The accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and notes are an integral part of these financ ial statements. 

SCHRO EDER & ASSOC IATF.S. Charl.red Acemln ... n" 

Schedule 1 

, 
iI 2004 , 2003 
. 1fotal I Total 
~i' 'r" 

f, 1} ~G; 
." 61,10Q,I%. I 76,406,286 

f;, 

~~i; 
. :;1; .' 
~ ', 2;114167r ' 

'>f.-

I 

$ ._ 63,71~,874 I $ 76,406,286 
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Schedule 2 
THE BC FORESTRY REVITALIZA nON TRUST 

SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDE D DECEMBER 31, 2004 

Admm istration Contractor Forest Worker 2004 j 2003 
Fund Mitigation Fund Mitigation Fund ~ fF ~Jrotal . . Total 

, ~ lll' .. .," . 
CPN Province of Ontario 
Face Value 52,800,000 
Due June 2, 2006 $ 2,637,323 $ $ $ 2,637,323 .~ $ , 
TD Bank 

if~ MTN FixedIFLTG C.112005 
Face Value £953,000 

i:\:;f 

Due April 14, 20 10 974,584 t . ,974,584 

CPN Province of Ontario , , 
Face Value 55,437,000 ~'rJih">f , 

I Due June 2, 2006 5,114,455 /iii' 5114455 . -- , , 

RES Government of Canada 
Face Value $5,546,000 
Due December 1, 2006 5, 114,205 5,114,205 

r 
I. INVESTMENTS $ 2,637.323 $ 974,584 $ 10,228.660 $ 13.840,567 $ 

;; .~ . v, 

I. 

The accompanying summary of significam accounting po!icies and notes arc an integral pan of these financi al statements. 

S(: it ROf:moR & ASSOCIAT£S, Ch~"crcd ACCOlml>OI S 
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Balance, beginning of year 

Settlement of trust 

Excess of receipts over expenditures 

Balance, end of year 

THE BC FORESTRY REVITALIZATION TRUST 

SCHEDULE OF FUNDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 , 2004 

Administration Contractor Forest Worker 
Fund Mitigation Fund Mitigation Fund 

$ 5,000,000 S 23,544,556 $ 48, 11 2,786 

(54,552) 481,867 1,063,532 

$ 4,945,448 $ 24,026,423 $ 49,176.318 

The accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and notes are an integral part of these fi nancial statements. 

SCHROE I) ER & ASSOC tA TES. Ch. rtered A<cO"~ I3 "'S 

Schedule 3 

2004'" 2003 
I'i 

-
Total' Total 

~" ~;'~~l" 
$ ~17M57,342 $ 

fi !1i ~ 75,000,000 
~, .}- ' 

I 1,490;847 1.657,342 

$ 
1f."f,4 

_78,148,189." $ 76,657.342 
1-. :xi ,',,' 
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The Forestry RevitallzatloD Trust 
Meftingwlth Mlnister Mlchael.de Jong 

11:"5 am Friday Novemberl2,2004 
740 - 999 Canada l'lact, Vancouver 

Aceuda 

1. Current allocation of Trust Funds: 

a. Total now at S77.7OO,OOO 

2. Advisory Board had now been compleleci and had four meetings. Consists of: 

•• Peter Affleck Interior licensees 
b. Jim Girvan TlA 
c. Monty Meames Steelworkers 
d. Tim Menning Interior contractors 
e. Julian Paine MoF 
f. Darrel Wong Steelworkers 
g. Berni Zimmerman Coastal licensees 

The BCFRT Advisory Board has approved Employee and Contractor Mitigation 
Guidelines, subject to the BCFRT being able to source the additional funds. 

3. Presentation and discussion of Contractor Mitigation Guidelines. 

a. Concept is fair market value 

4. Presentation and discussion of Worker Mitigation Guidelines. 

a. Concept is severance. 

S. Presentation and discussion of results of survey of all affected licensees. 

a. Estimated Contractor Impact 
b. Estimated Worker Impact 
c. Summary Shll!lI!t 

6. Additional requirements for the BCFRT. 

7. Presentation and diWlSsion of Ike legal opinion from Blair Dwyer. 

8. Discussion of now to deal with shortfall 

a. Could come from $200 MM industry compensation (Embracing a new vision) 
h. Could come from FlA 
c. Could come from temporary stumpage surcharge 
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BC Forestry RevitaJizatiod Trusr ' 
Repllceable Contrlctor MlOgltlon Guidelines 

Guidelines for major licensees and contractors witb respect to tbe loss 
of some or all of replaceable contracts as a direct result of 

Forestry Revitalization Act Timber Reallocation: 

The Province specifically denies any legal obligation to provide compensation to Contractors affected 
by the Forestry Revitalization Act (FRA) timber reallocation provisions. However, the Province has 
created the Be Forestry Revitalization Trust (BCFRT) as a matter of policy to consider the potential of 
providing redress for certain claims of Contractors with replaceable contracts that are directly impacted 
by the FRA. This policy approach does not extend beyond the BCFRT and does not limit or affect the 
position that the Province has taken, or may take, in COW1 or any other legal proceeding. or any 
position that it may take in 3S$essing the impacts of future government decisions on logging 
Contractors. 

The BCFRT is a discretionary trust. No specific person has any right or entitlement to receive any 
funds from the BCFRT unless and until the BCFRT Trustee decides to make a payment to that specific 
person. Compliance with the guidelines does not guarantee receipt of any payment from the BCFRT. 
The guidelines are issued to assist applicants. However) the Trustee reserves the right to consider other 
factors not mentioned in the guidelines. Those other factors may include the amount of funds available 
for distribution_ 

1. Application: 

These guidelines are intended to apply to all Contractors who hold or held a replaceable contract as 
defmed in the Timber Harvesting Contract and Subcontract Regulation and who lose some or all of 
their replaceable contractual rights as a result of timber rea110cations resulting from the FRA. 

The BCFRT will accept claims for redress received from negatively impacted contractors until 
March 31, 2008, as those impacts are confirmed through the timber reallocation process. Only 
replaceable contracts will be considered for mitigation. The BCFRT will not accept applications for 
mitigation related to non~rcpl.aceablc:: contracts. 

The following outlines the process: 

Step 1. 

Step 2. 

Licensees directly affected by theFRA must use Part 5.1 of the Timber Harvesting 
Contract and Subcontract Regulation to define what contractors will be affected by 
the taking of timber harvesting rights and the extent to which those contractors will 
be affected. The process is clearly explained in a document prepared by navis & 
Company which is available by following the links on the BCFRT website at 
www.bcfrt.com. 

The Trustee of the BCFRT will address the Contractor's claim for mitigation in 
accordance with these guidelines and in consultation with the Contractor and the 
Licensee. 

DeFRT Contr~ctor Mltlgat!on Guidelines - Drart 6 _ November 10, 2004 FNR-2013-00252 
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Step 3. 

Step 4. 

Step 5. 

Step 6. 

BC Forestry RevltalizatioD Trust 
Replaceable C(lntnctor Mitigation Guidelines 

The Contractor must respond promptly to requests for information from the BCFRT, 
must allow representatives of the BCFRT reasonable access to sites and equipment 
which the Contractor claims have been impacted by the PRA, and must allow 
BCFRT representatives access to (and the right to review and audit) records and 
source documents maintained by the Contractor to the extent that those documents 
pertain to the facts surrounding the claim of impaot submitted by the Contractor. 

The Contractor must provide detailed information relating to employees, if any, that 
must be severed as a result of the FRA timber reallocation. 

The Contractor must disclose any replaceable sub·eontracts that be has that are 
related to the impacted replaceable contract. 

The Licensee must confirm the contract information and the reasonableness of 
Contractor claims of inj ury or loss. In addition the Licensee must obtain a release 
from the Contractor regarding the Licensee's obligations to the replaceable 
Contractor. A sample form of release is attached to these Guidelines. 

2, Defmitions: 

2.1 Averllge Contract Rate means the amOunt calculated by dividing the total contract 
billings by the total production vohnne for the Baseline Period, expressed as dollars per 
standard output unit of measure for that contract. 

2.2 BaseliDe Period means the portion ofthe calendar year prior to the Date of Impact, plus 
the previous two full calendar years, 

2.3 Contractor means a replaceable contractor as defined in the Timber Harvesting 
Contract and Subcontract Regulation. 

2.4 CODtribution to Profit means that portion of the Average Contract Rate assumed to 
remain after the Contractor pays all direct costs associated with the delivery of a 
standard unit of work under the contract. For the purposes of these Guidelines, the 
Contribution to Profit is: 

2.4.1 10% for a replaceable full phase contract, and 

2.4.2 7% for a replaceable single phase falling, bucking. skidding. yaniing, grading, 
road building, hauling or booming contract. 

2.5 Date of Impact means the date on which the Contractor was materially affected by a 
volumo reallocation resulting from the FRA. 

2.6 EconOmic Multiple means the multiple of the annual net cash flow available from the 
contract used by business evaluators to estimate the economic value of a contract. The 

BCFRT Contractor Mitigation Guidelines - Draft 6 _ November 10, 2004 2 FNR-2013-00252 
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• BC Forestry Revitalization Trusr 
Replaceable Contractor MItigation Guidelines 

Economic Multiple is adjusted to reflect perceived business risk. The fOllowing 
Economic Multiples will apply in the calculation of the [mpacl Payment: 

2.6.1 With respect to a replaceable full phase contract, 4 years, and 

2.6.2 With respect to a replaceable single phase contract, 3 years. 

2.7 Eligible Impact means the amount a contract has been reduced, expressed in the units 
used in the contract, such as cubic metres of wood harvested or handled, or kilometers 
of road built or maintained, 

2,8 Aggregate Impact Payment means the aggregate of all Impact Payments made by the 
BCFRT in respect of a single Contractor. 

2.9 Impact Payment means the amount which the BCFRT agrees to pay to a Contractor 
after applying these Guidelines to the Contractor with respect to the direct impact 
caused by the FRA on each of the following: 

2.9.1 Replaceable full phase contrac1S, 

2.9.2 Replaceable single phase contracts. 

2.9.3 Mitigation associated with the disposal of redundant equipment. 

2.10 Impacted Volume means: 

2.10.1 With respect to a timber harvesting contract, the reduction in the Nominal Work 
Volume available under the contract, as notified in writing by the licensee, 
expressed in cubic meters. 

2.10.2 With respect to a road construction contract, the reduction in Nominal Work. 
Volume, expressed in kilometers. 

2.10.3 With respect to work performed under an hourly contract, the reduction in 
Nominal Work Volume expressed in hoW'S of work. This reduction must be 
reasonably proportional to the AAe reduction experienced by the licensee for 
whom the work is done. either directly or indirectly. 

2.11 Nominal Work Volume means the work volume available under a contract 
immediately prior to the Date of impact. 

3. Key Principles: 

3.1 An Impact Payment is made in the discretion of the Trustee and is not a right set out in 
legislation. Each Impact Payment will be confinned in a separate Mitigation Agreement 
between the Contractor and the BCFRT. The Mitigation Agreement will contain 
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-., 
BC Forestry RevltalizatloD Trust 

Replacnblc Contractor MttlCatiotl. Guidelines 

clauses that limit the Contractor' s right to commence any other proceedings or pursue 
any other legal remedies that may exist as a result of the FRA timber reallocation. 

3.2 The BCFRT will consider making an Impact Payment in respect of the direct impact of 
the FRA on each of the following: 

3.2.1 Replaceable full phase timber hruvesting contracts, 

3.2.2 Replaceable single phase timber harvesting contracts. including contracts for the 
construction and/or maintenance of logging roads, and 

3.2.3 Redundant equipment that is disposed of in an arms length transaction. 

3.3 The BCFRT will not make any Impact Payment Wlder this Framework with respect to 
indirect or consequential impacts of the FRA timber reallocation. 

3.4 As a general principle, the date of valuation fj)r all impacts will be the Date ofhnpact 

3.5 An Impact Payment is separate from any "adjusnnent assistance" available under other 
provincial or federal/provincial arrangements and no Impact Payment is available for 
any claims that have been dealt with under those arrangements. In addition, no 
adjustment assistance is payable under those arrangements for claims in respect of 
which an Impact Payment was made under this Framework. 

3.6 The BCFRT will not make any Impact Payment with respect to any impact that the 
BeFRT reaaonably conside" to be a nonna! business risk of the Contractor. 

3.6.1 No Impact Payment will be paid with respect to chattel and immovable assets 
employed in the deli very of a non-replaceable timber harvesting contract. 

3.7 An Impact Payment is available only with respect to demonstrated impacts directly 
attributable to the FRA timber reallocation. In order to pursue the process outlined in 
these Guidelines, a Contractor must confinn and provide, in a form satisfactory to the 
BCFRT, written details of the extent to which the FRA timber reallocation was the 
direct cause of a reduction in a replaceable contract. In most cases, this will require 
production of at least a copy of the accepted Forestry Revitalization Proposal and may 
require the production of other relevant documents. 

3.8 Where subcontractors are used that hold replaceable contracts a:s defmed in the Timber 
Harvesting Contract and Subcontract Regulation, the Contractor will be responsible for 
identifying each subcontractor, and allocating among all subcontractors their appropriate 
share of the proposed Impact Payment. No lmpact Payments will be made to the lead 
Contractor until agreement is made on payments to all replaceable subcontractors. 

3.9 The Contractor and sub-contractor must identify which of their employees should 
receive severance, and must confinn this list with the BCFRT and, if appropriate, the 

BCFRT Contractor Mitigation GuideUDe, - Draft 6 - November 10, 2004 4 FNR-2013-00252 
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- BC Forestry Revitalization Trull 
Replaceable CoDtuc:tor Mitigation GuidtlifiH 

employee's union. Severance payments will not be subtracted from the Impact 
Payment. Severance payments are to be made by the employer. The employer may 
claim mitigation in respect of severance payments under the separate procedure set out 
in the Employee Mitigation Guidelines. 

3.10 As described in the Employee Mitigation Guidelines, if employers pay severance to 
employees and receive mitigation for that severance from the BeFRT. neither they nor 
any affiliated company can rehire those employees for 6 months in the same or similar 
capacity and wage unl~& there is a material change in circumstances, such as access to 
significantly more fibre subsequent to the severance, or because another employee quits, 
dies or retires subsequent to the severance being paid, and that employee needs to be 
replaced. lfthe employer does rehire a severed employee, and the above conditions do 
not apply, the employer who paid the severance will be required to reimburse the 
BCFRT for the entire severance paid to the employee with BCFRT funds. 

3.11 Contractors and subcontractors may receive mitigation payments even though they find 
alternate work: and therefore do not have to sever any employees. 

4_ Impact Assessmen t: 

Genera!: 

4.1 Each Impact Payment is subj eet to a test of market and economic reasonableness 
applied by the BCFRT, This test takes various factors into account, including 
'"reasonable expectations" in the ordinary oourse of business, actual contract terms, 
Forest Act provisions, and nonna! business risks. Subject to the application of that test 
of market and economic reasonableness, however, Contractor mitigation will be 
calculated as shown in the following section. 

Impacts on Work Volumes: 

4.2 The Impact Payment respecting impacts on work volumes will be calculated as: 

· The Impacted Volume, multiplied by 

- The Average Contract Rate, multiplied by 

• The Contribution to Profit, multiplied by 

• The Economic Multiple. 

4.2.1 The Impact Payment payable and the calculations set out in Article 4.2 are 
subject to the following maximum caps: 
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Be Forestry Revitalization Trusr 
Replaceable Contractor Mitigation Guidelines 

4.2.1.1 With respect to full phase timber harvesting contracts on the 
Coast, as defined by the Ministry of Forests, $16.00 per cubic 
meter of Eligible Impact. 

4.2.1 .2 With respect to full phase timber harvesting contracts in the 
Interior, as defined by the Ministry of Forests, $10.00 per cubic 
meter of Eligible Impact. 

4.2.1.3 With respect to single phase falling and bucking contracts, $\.50 
per cubic meter of Eligible Impact. 

4.2.1.4 With respect to single-phase road building contracts, $30,000 per 
kilometer of Eligible Impact. 

Redundant Assets General: 

4.3 The onus is on the Contractor to demonstrate to the BCFRT's satisfaction that an asset 
is redundant, and that the redundancy was caused directly by work volume reductions 
resulting from the FRA Timber Reallocation. 

Impacts on Chattel Assets : 

4.4 The BeFRT will not provide mitigation for moveable redundant equipment that is 
retained by the Contractor. 

4.5 When a Contractor can demonstrate the equipment was made redundant because of 
work reduction caused by the FRA, and the Contractor sells that equipment and does not 
replace it with similar equipment, the BCFRT will provide mitigation to the contractor 
equal to 25% of the gross selling price of the redundant equipment to an arms length 
purchaser. 

4.5.1 In order to receive mitigation for redundant equipment as described above, the 
equipment must be sold within 6 months of the later of the Date of Impact or the 
signing of the Mitigation Agreement between the Contractor and the Trustee. In 
the event that market conditions are such that equipment cannot be sold within 6 
months, an extension of no more than 6 months may be granted if it can be 
demonstrated that the equipment is actively for sale and is not in use in other 
operations. This could be substantiated by having the cquipm<nt on display in a 
used equipment lot, or scheduled for sale at an auction. 

Impacts on Immovable Assets: 

4.6 The BCFRT will not provide mitigation for immoveable redundant assets that belong to 
the Contractor. 
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Be Forestry RevitalizatioD Truit" 
Replaceable Contractor Mitigation Guidelines 

5. Aggregate Impact Payment 

5.1 Where the BCFRT and the Contractor agree on an lmpact Payment with respect to any 
discrete claim of impact, the BCFRT may document and payout such claim. 

5.2 Subject to Article 3.5, the early payment of an Impact Payment may be made without 
limiting the Contractor's ability to continue with negotiations with respect to other 
claimed impacts. (For example, the BCFR T may payout an agreed settlement with 
respect to a replaceable contract or sub-contract. while claims for other replaceable 
contracts with the same Contractor or redundant assets remain under negotiation.) 

5.3 The Contractor may request that the BCFRT process an interim payment respecting the 
Aggregate Impact Payment. 

5.3.1 In cases of financial distress, the Contractor may request an interim payment at 
any time after the provision ofinfonnation required under Article 1. 

5.3.2 The request for an interim payment must include a statement from the Contractor 
confirming the Contractor has applied commercial diligence in the presentation of 
all information to the BCFRT, and believes the information provided represents a 
complete and accurate representation of the facts surrounding the impact of the 
FRA timber reallocation on the Contractor. 

5.3.3 An interim payment will be treated as an advance. As Impact Payments are 
confirmed they will be applied ftrst toward repayment of the interim payment. 

5.3.3 .1 Once Impact Payments at least equal to the interim payment have 
been confirmed, all future bnpact Payments, or portions of1mpact 
Payments, will be paid to the Contractor. 

5.3.3.2 Should the actual Aggregate Impact Payment due the Contractor be 
less than the interim payment received by the Contractor, an 
overpayment situation shall exist and the Contractor will be liable 
for the repayment of any such overpayment. 

5.3.3.3 The Contractor will be required to undertake to repay any 
overpayment within 10 business days of notice from the BCFRT 
that such an overpayment exists. Should the overpayment not be 
repaid by the Contractor within 10 days of notice, the amount 
owing will bear interest from the tenth day at the rate prescribed in 
the Court Order Interest Act. 

6. In the event that a replaceable contractor can demonstrate a serious inequity resulting from the 
application of these guidelines, the Trustee may consider his arguments and suggest to the BCFRT 
AdviSOry Board that a modified payment be made. 
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BC Forestry Revitalization Trust .... 
Employtt Mitigation Gulddlus 

GuideHnes for major licensees and contractors with respect to 
severance of employees as a direct result of Forestry Revitalization 

Act Timber Reallocation: 

P. HI/24 

The Province specifically denies any legal obligation to provide compensation to 
workers affected by the Forestry Revitalization Act Timber Reallocation provisions. 
However, the Province has created the Be Foresny Revitalization Trust (BCFRT) as 
a matter of poli(;y to consider I among other things. the potential of providing 
mitigation for certain claims of forest workers employed by licensees or contractors 
with replaceable contracts that are directly impacted by the Forestry Revitalizatitm 
Act. This policy approach does not extend beyond the BCFRT and does not limit or 
affect the position that the Province has taken. or may take, in coon or any otha-legaJ 
proceeding, or any position that it may take in assessing the impacts of future 
government decisions on forest workers. 

The BCFRT is & discretionary trust No specifiC person has any right or entitlement to 
receive any funds from the BCFRT unless and until the Trustee decides to make a 
payment to that specific person. Compliance with the guidelines does not guarantee 
receipt of any payment from the BCFRT. The guidelines are issued to assist 
applicants. However, the Trustee reserves the right to consider other factors not 
mentioned in the guidelines. Those other factors may include the amount of funds 
available for distribution. 

The intention of these guidelines is to enable each of the major licensees and 
replaceable contractors that have to seYer staff as a result of timber reallocation 
pursuant to the Be Forestry Revitalization Act (FRA) to detennine the amount of 
mitigation payments that may be c:overed by the BCl~ T. 

On~ the Ministry of Forests and the major licensees affected by the FRA have agreed 
upon the areas to be relinquished by the major licensees, the major licensees will go 
through a process with their contractors to detennme which contractors and or 
company crews will be affected by the timber reallocation. It will then be up to the 
licensees and contractors to determine which l ifany, of their employees will need to 
be severed as a result of the decrease in available work. Licensees and contractors 
will need 10 be guided by existing contractual obligations when deciding which, if 
any, employees will be severed, 

The employer, either the licensee or the contractor as appropriate. will be responsible 
to conclude any negotiations regarding employee severance with their employees 
and/or the employees' union. No contract buy-out payments will be made to 
contractors until any of the contractor's employees that will be severed have been 
identified. However, the BCFRT will not fund any severance payments unless and 
until the employee is actually severed. Further, the severance has to be as a direct 
result of the 1095 of access to fibre caused by the 20% take-back mandated by the 
Forestry Revitalization Act. 
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Employee Mldgatlon Guidelines . 

P.1l/24 

The fonowing guidelines will apply to employee severance miligated by the BCFRT: 

Note: In the context of these guidelines, an affiliate is any corporation or busincss 
entity controlling. controlled by or under common control with the contractor or 
licensee. The effective date of severance is the date the employer ceased to use the 
services of the severed employee as a direct result of the Forestry Revitalization A.ct 
timber reallocation. A potentially eligible employee is a forestry worker as defined in 
the BCFRT Trust Deed. A copy of the Trust Deed Cim be viewed at www.bcfrt.com. 

1. The number of employees severed by either a. replaceable contractor or a 
major licensee should be consistent with industry averages as determined by 
PricewaterhouseCoapers in its studies afthe Be Forest Sector. This suggests 
that in the logging and forestry $ector, including: hourly, contract, and salaried 
employees, the Trustee would expect a maximum of approximately 0.5 
employee positions lost per thousand cubic metres oflost logging opportunity 
on the Coas~ and 0.3 employee positions lost per thousand cubic metres of 
lost logging opportunity in the interior. 

2. In most cases the number of severed employees will be less than the 
maximums noted above because there is no overall allowable annual cut 
(AAC) reduction, and the affected contractors may find replacement contracts. 
In the case of company crews, the licensee will be expected to try to find 
alternate employment for displaced forestry workers within other company 
operations. Where a contractor has more than one operation, the contractor 
will be expected to try to find alternate employment for displaced forestry 
workers within affiliated operations. 

3. Mitigation payments win be determined as follows: 

• . On the Coast and in the Interior, 10 days of regular day's pay for each 
full year of continuous servicc, plus 10/12 of a regular day's pay for 
each additional completed month of continuous service, with 
continuous service ending on the effel!tive dale of severance. 

b. A regular day's pay for the purposes of severance should be calculated 
using the method used on the Coast to determine payment made to the 
employee on the Statutory Holiday closest to thc time of severance. 

c. In the case of employees that are approaching retirement age, either as 
defined by their contract or as a result of company policy, the BCFRT 
will mitigate the lesser of severance as calculated above, or an amount 
equal to the amounl the employee would have eamed if they continued 
to be employed from the effective dat.e of severance to their retirement. 
In the absence of evidence to the contrary, it will be assumed that the 
employee would retire on their 65th birthday. 

1. Thc annual amount the employee would have expected to cam 
between the effective date of seVerance and their retirement 
will be assumed to be the average of their gross wages as 
reponed on their T -4 slips for 200 1 and 2002, plus the net value 
of the lost pension benefits caused by the loss of employment 
This amount will then be proritted over the number of days 
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between the effective date of severance and the date they would 
have retired ifthey had not been severed. 

n. The calculation in 3. (c) (i) will only be perfonned if: 
1. The severance is not cllused by a pennanent closure of 

the operation; and 
2. The employee in question is within 2 years of 

retirement. In the absence of evidence to the contrary, it 
will be asswned that the employee is within 2 years of 
retirement on their 63f{1 birthday. 

4. In order for the BCFRT to mitigate severanCf! payments, workers :receiving 
severance must have been employed full time by a major licensee or 
contractor in the harvesting side of the forest industry in British Columbia on 
March 31, 2003, or been on temporary lay~off, but worked full time for a 
portion of the previous year, and still have been on the seniority list on March 
31, 2003. Employers seeking mitigation will have to demonstrate to the 
satisfaction of the Trustee an ongoing, long-term attachment to the employee 
being severed. The Trustee win cOIWder increasing the recognized years of 
service in special cases where an employee has a longer-term attachment to 
the industry than to the current employer but, because of the closure or 
downsizing of other operation(s), lost their previous job(s), and did not receive 
severance pay for that job loss. In either case:, the employee must lose or have 
already lost their jobs as a result of the Forestry Revitalization Act timber 
reallocation. 

5. Severance that cannot be directly linked to Forestry Revitalization Act timber 
reallocation win not be mitigated by the BCFRT. 

6. There need not be a permanent closure of the entire operation for the BCFRT 
to mitigate severance payments. 

7. If employees obtain re-employment with their previous employer at an 
alternate location, or with an affiliate of their previous employer, within 6 
months of the effective date of severance from their previous position. and 
continue to work in a similar capacity, severance would not be mitigated by 
the BCFRT. However, mitigation may be available in respect of workers who 
are moved by their employer to an Illternate IDeation or to an affiliate and work 
at a significantly lower wage. The amount of the mitigation wil i be based on 
the actual loss to the worker as a result of the Forestry Revitalization Act 
timber reallocation. It will be negotiated between the Trustee, the employer, 
the worker and, if applicable, the worker's union. 

8. Mitigation payments may be available for workers who are moved by their 
employer to an alternate location or to an affiliate as a result of the Forestry 
Revitalization Act timber reallocation within 6 months of the effective date of 
severance from their previous position, and subsequently lose their jobs as a 
result of their lower seniority through no fault of their own, within three years 
of the date of transfer. Except in extenuating circumstances, mitigation in 
respect of transferred employees will be reduced by 3% per month of 
employment that the transferred worker receives after the date of transfer. 
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Actual mitigation will be negotiated between the Trustee, the employer, the 
worker and. if applicable. the worker's union. 

P . 13/24 

9. In order for the BCFRT to mitigate any specific severance payment. the 
employer must actually sever the employee in question. The severed 
employee cannot be rehired by the same employer or an affiliate to work in the 
same or similar capacity, at the: same or similar wage, within 6 months of the 
effective date of severance, unless there is a material change in circumstance 
for me employer. Such a material change could be a contractor receiving 
access to significantly mOle fibre, or the contractor or licensee needing to 
replace someone who died, quit or retired suhsequent to the worker in question 
receiving severance. 

10. If the BCFRT mitigates a severance payment in respect of an employee who is 
re-employed by the contractor or licensee or an affiliate within six months 
from the effective date of severance. the contractor or licensee will be required 
to refund the full mitigation payment to the BCFRT, unless there is a material 
change in circumstances for the employer, as set out in Section 9. This 
restriction is required to discourage the payment of severance for what may be 
a nonnal seasonallay·off. 

11. In the case of a reduction of an operation, se .. -erance need not be offered only 
to the employees with the lowest seniority. Rather, the company, the 
employees andlor the union can negotiate to determine which employees will 
receive severance payments. 

12. If the result of these negotiations is that more semol employees receive 
severance payments, and those payments are higher than if junior employees 
had been severed, the higher severance payments will still be eligible for 
mitigation in accordance with paragraph 3 based on years of service of the 
employees who are actually severed. 

13. Senior employees that could have relied on their seniority to retain their jobs, 
but chose to receive voluntary severance so that more junior employees can 
retain their jobs, will be expected to give up their preferential hiring rights and 
sign a release in the form attached to these guidelines. Junior employees that 
had no choice about whether or not they would be severed will still have to 
sign a release, but will not have to give up any preferential hiring rights they 
may have. 

14. Owner operators that receive contract buy.-out payments will not be eligible 
for severance payments as well. However, if an owner operator has worked 
ex.clusively for one employer for a number of years, and if an appropriately 
calculated severance payment would provide better mitigation than a contra.c:t 
buy-out, then the contractor may choose to receive severance instead of a 
contract buy-out. 
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Sample Employee release fonn: 

Employer letterhead 

Date; ----

I, • hereby accept the (voluntary) severance pay offered to me 
and in exchange (voluntarily) terminate my employment with (the 

P.14/24 

company) effective (the effective dale of st.verance, which is the dale the 
employer ceased to use the services of the severed employee as a direct result of the 
Forestry Revilaiization ACllimber real/ocation.) . I further acknowledge that 1 am 
accepting this (voluntary) payment in full and final6Dtisfaction of any claims, 
statutory or otherwise, that may arise out of my emp~oyment and the termination of 
employment after the signing of this agreement. 

I acknowledge that I cannot be re-employed by the company or an affiliate of the 
company in the same or similar capacity and at the same or similar compensation for 
a period of 6 months from the effective date of severance unless either: 

1. I rerum 100% of the severance payment to the company, so that the company 
can retum the severance payment to the Be ForestIy Revitalization Trust; or 

2. There is a material change in circumstance for the company. Such a material 
change could be the company receiving access to significantly more fibre, or 
the company needing to replace someone who died. quit or retired subsequent 
to my receipt of this severance pay. 

Plus the following sentence ijrhis is a volumary severance. A voluntary severance is 
one ill which the employee being severed could have relied on his or her seniority to 
retain their job. but chose to receive severance and allow a more junior person. to 
rf!.tain their job. 

I acknowledge that by accepting this payment I relinquish any rights I may have for 
preferential hiring by the company. 

Signed:===== 
Employee signature 

Note: Severance will be considered to be vo/unJary if accepted by an employee that 
could have relied on their senlon'ty 10 remain employed in the case of a partial 
reduction of an operalion, bUl chose instead 10 receive severance in order 10 allow a 
person with less seniority to retain their job. 
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Moving Estimate of 8CFRT Costs 

Summillry ShMt 

FcI~ is my c:urr81'l1 beSt estimate of Mitig.ation OOSls based on the Guidelines epprovecr by the flCFRT Advisory Boord. 
The eslitNites are bued on information gathered from (I variety of lOurces, inclUding: 

experience with Itle Copt SU61alnabilify TrlJ$t 
Eltimaters provide" by most of the arfeccecs licens88S 

Pricewaterhour;eCoopers Foresllndustry reports 
Discussions with BCFRT Advisory Board members 

Contractor mltlgallon: 

Inl'erlor 
Coast harvesting 
Coo,, road building 
Coast Subtotal 
Equipment sell ing (t)6ts 
Total contractor mitigation 

Hoth: 

$27.138,947 
$4,000,000 

$30,676.221 

$31,138,&47 
$2,000,000 

The OOncepl of a SIS1m3 cap was 8CCOpted on the Coast, and a $101m3 cap in the Interior 
appurs 10 be aCC9plSble bt&ed on information gathered about aelLlal third party sates. 
The Coast road building number 8S3Umcs to,aCOm3 hl!uvested per km of reed bu~t by replaceable contractors 
Thoro is roail:coneo to no p3YI"I'II.nts fOf f'M!undlM equipment. built is defansitlle 
given !he fact (here Is no actual MC reduction. and the curren! high leYoi of activity in Ihe 
industry suggesls redundant equIpment could be $OId ;1 a r83Sonable price. 

Worker Mltigatlon: 

Interior 
Coa.I 
Total Worker MltIgOUOn 

Lic.ensM 
estimat. 

$24,702,570 
$45,673,337 
$70,375.907 

LieenS98 estimates of seniOrity were USecl in Ul& inlerlor. I)lJt IWA averages were used on the Coast as they 
w&re thOughl to mofe likely to be accurate. The average IWA acINe worker in Local 2171 (mostly 
logging) was 13.8 years. A separabt SU!V8y of 7 coastal conraclOrs represenllng , 12 workers 
that will be displaced had 8n average of 1 3.7 yealS seniority. On the other hand. e)q)8ri."ce with the Coast 
Sustainabgity Trust nad average seniority of 7.7 years, and a survey of 20 Interior con!ractors SU9Q8Sts an 
average of only 6.5 yeers seniority. 
Ongoing work Is oeing done Ie ImpfOIe the rel!ability of these estimates. but the numbel's arc not e.xp«tCted to 
change mud'! unlil the eaual Forestry RevilBlization Proposa" ate developed. 

Admlnl.tratlon: 

The BCFRT actucMly calls for administration 10 cost $5,000,000. Howevet. if we can use 
the model sugg_tllCl aoeve. the lola\ of ttuallle. admInIstration. legal, alJdlt, Independent 
oontraclor3 • and Advisory Board 1lXpen&8S should be able to be kepI to thl& amounl 

Total 

Not.a: 
The main potential weaknesses witn the above estlmat& ara: 
The _timate for Mniority may be low. which would Increas. oosts· fow pr~bllity. Based on experience wilh 

the Coast SUSlair.abllity Trust it is mara liJteIy that seniority IStirNIt1lS af. high. co costs may come down. 
T/Io number of employees to be s8'lercd may be wrong. Wilh the current ,tele of the industry, this Is tn06t likely to 

reduce cosl$. betauM severance numbers are more likely 10 go down tMn up. However, if theft Is a downturn 
before Ihe 20% taka back runs through the systern. SlIVer\1Int8 could go up • biggest unknQl/lo'n. 

ConncStntfal 11/1112004 

$el,a1!,11t 

$70,375,907 

'2,000,000 

'131,1'1,076 
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Movir.g Esllmalo aI BCFRT MI6p llon Co,'a 

Interior 

L1cen .. , t of lOA I m3 .wrlg. 'of tOltml IoUoMm3 .ollHtmS 
.J11o;atecl to t1ump to allaclllI4 to al lOCIt,d to "'at .... 
"'pllceabll mill ,on company 001 

contrlctl contrad ,.pft.cullil ..... c.urf.ntly 

=" ; onlrecti .lIoc. t.d 

AblUCII eo.-.,ollclolecl lr.c , 
AJnft'Ot'tl'l LlJI'T'ber Co, LI~, 29.634 
Apollo ForesJ ProduC!i 2,930 S22,27 I.'" 
BHFP, NowTlmb8r Baron FP 16,508 $ 53.00 6,420 
Canfor Corporation 607,407 S2"' ,5O 583."" 
Camer LurntJ.r 6,629 523.85 8,828 
DlXlkllI)' Lumber Lid, '.297 
Faa_ed co.operatl\les ",952 S29.M 15,700 
Gorman BIOS. l umber Llc!. 5,62'" $27.00 1,4(16 
Lakeland M~lllId, 12,457 $24.20 
liOn~ lid . 46,972 $28,00 
lP Englt\eured Wood PfOCluclS 56.339 $25,00 11,339 
N_Shena 
"we 5 T.lbot Ltd, 104,220 $28 .93 86,379 ' ,700 
RlvorsIde F~t P~uet, 193,982 527 ,57 190,000 
SjOCAl'l For,st Pro~ucta 521,31B $2A.50 292m 
Slvar1 Lak, l.Utt'Iber Co. Ltd, '" Teel Ceder Pro<1J ~ hl lld, 37,1182 $30,00 10,096 
ToI!'I'obec: Indus!l1es Inc, 93,000 $24.00 98,310 
llwt Pa!I ~mber Company 3B.193 $20.50 3B,I93 
To!kO Indultr'~ LId. 123,3"00 $26.00 t23.2SS 
Wildwood gf Can.de U"';IId 278,720 $29.32 138,682 
WtJ$. Fraset ,,,"ber Co, lId, 522,500 533,17 33$.'" 
WeycrhaeuRl" Caneda 123,530 $21!1.12 98,470 

AdJu,ted w.lghted All $1m3 ("ell()te) $2"'.69 Crlllc'" sum 
Tolil reponed to cS.le 2, 1106 ,561 2,014,000 8,700 59,366 
T oIlIllIIke bo;'" 
Perclnt reported It) dale 57,4% • 1.2% 0,2"10 1.2'1' • 
Contractor MI~gallon (buyout only) nO,17e ,U I 

Cout 

Can'ot COfporltlon 231 ,1 30 511.701 75,734 
WeDtern Forest ProdUCts 4&4,320 $43.07 192,5n S,;J1 9 
Husby Forflll PrClducts 6,109 $29.05 
Inlorfor 34f!1,OtO S62,99 231,028 
Teel Cedar Products 51,1&0 $40,00 110.957 
1"tmblrWe.1 Group 10,000 $ 30.22 20.000 3.207 
W.yerha .......... Canadfl 584,200 ISO,DO 303 .... "o,s94 

~UI1!ld Welghled A~ $lmJ (,ee 1lO1e) $39.89 '""'" ",,, 
TOI8I rapot1eOtO oale 1.700.9"'8 78,70T 91. ,096 122,220 
Tollt lake DeC'" 
Pen:enl reported 10 dole 60,4"/0 2,B"" 12.5% 4.3% 
Contradot Mitigation (buyout only) assuming only repiacoabh" f.tId using CST formula S27,13U'" 

Tot" . stlnm.d eontradol' mitigation ;"1 "7,115.119 

Nat •• : 

Total .of 
Ioatml 

015 for 11!13,125 m3 
29,634 
4,HI6 

22,928 
1,190.441 

13,257 

'.'" 30,652 
7,030 

12.457 
46,972 
73.878 

015 for 337,612 ml 
'1MI,2gg 
383,1162 
813,614 

", 
48,078 

189,310 
76.3/1.5 

246,:19:1 
417,402 
6.57,934 
222,000 

4,888,626 
4,888,626 
5,409,363 

90,4% 

365.571 No contrecror co,l, yet 
61!15,21G 

6,109 
579,038 
188,137 

33,207 
978,694 

2,615,'72 
2.815,972 
2,815,972 

100.0% 

ConltaClor Mllllla~on (~ut only) Is a'4l1ab1e only 10 repl.JcllIbie toflll'actn. and II tlaS1113 on tI'Ie Contractor Miliganon Gu(dellnes, 
Cele\Aalion 01 cost is tlasecl on caps d $1&lm3 on the coast $101mJ in ItlIIlnlerlor, S30.OOOIkm for road" and $1.50 1m3 for fatling, 
The .lfju'l~ welghteO fI'IfII'8gfl itleorpOf41H lite cep, .a the I"l'l8xlmum collllr'lCludid I, $40 on the coast end 525 In !he lnlarlor 
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MowInO &~nl.lt" 01 BCFRT MllJgd(ll1 co.~ 

Esu.rnaled Worker Im~ 

Number of .-- Nu .... b .. of ....... rag. 
COIIlrKWr s.nlotlft 01 Cemplny '-nlorlb' of 
.mp~ .. c.onllKlOl Im~""," """ .. ,,, 
'llPIeud 10 .mploylll •• ,.dId to ImPi¢w_ 
ItIIWlttad ._'" bo..,.... ,~"'Ia 

1I ....... "d bl •• vend 

0 0 
0 0 
0 ., 0 ••• 

Abitibi Consoj~llod I,.". 
Ah$Wa1th LumblT Co. LId. 
Apollo FotI51 Products 
BHFP NOW Tl'noer Beron FP 
Canftll' COll)QI1I~on " 10.0 7S ," 
Clm.r LurntJer 
O~kIIy lumber Ltd 
FldenllId eo.."I!vU 
GQI'rIIItI8fac. LUlTlblrLIIi. 
La~Md Milll Lid. 
Lignum (Now r:u...rIIOI FP MIIric.eI'ng Lid.) 
LP En;inOorod Wood Prgd"r;It 
N.".S.1lB 
Pogo I Talbat LId . 
RlvI,,1cl1 Fgr.al PIQd~ 
SIQc; .. n Fore .. PradUClS 
Slulrt Lilla LumtMlr Co. Lid. 
TI.;II C.r Prod~S lid , 
T,mbec tndullltlltG t/le. 
ThfI PI, ~ ComP'n'f 
Tolko Il'I6oJettit. lid. 
W.'dv!ood OfClll'lldl Li1'l'lllod 
Wesl F ... sor r.mber Co. Lid. 
Wovemotl.lMl' C.nld~ 

0 
0 
7 
0 
0 

• 0 
0 

" 50 

" 0 

• 
" • 
" 
'" 23 

0 
0 

10.0 , 
0 
0 

20.0 , 
0 , 

11.2 " ,.0 " 10.0 IS 01. 
0 

10.0 
10.0 " 12.5 , 
12.0 " 
12.6 20 
19,8 " 

Repartedwcniclr510 ~ ny.l.d 401 17a 
W8lg~ledAYC/llOI'MloIlfY 12.2: 
Exuapogltd worII:en: 10 til U\l8Ied .lIuumino l'8DOI'I8d HYe/81'1C1 1$ I8me " ~nrllPQ1ed 
AYI/3Oll nllfTlbei' Of 0Jbk: mel,., 01 itl51 Me par lnilrior nvered 8fTIl)layee 

C~M 

canlor COrporaIior1 
WII""" FoI1l" Prodlltla 105 ••• " Hu'by Foresl Produets , •• , 
Inlerfaf us 11 .5 " T 0111 C.d.r Prodvets " 17.9 50 
TlmbeM'NI GI'Q'JII • , 
Wsyerhaeunr c.n.~a '" 20.' ". 

,,, 

14.4 
15.0 

20.0 
, 2.IS 
12.0 

" 18.0 

,',3 
6,152 

'.' ,. 
11.1 "., 
12.0 
2M 

Tot • 
nllmt.rof 
mplo)'IH 
ellpKtMlto 
blH",r.cl 

'" o • o 6HFP " ;d 10, but no wort. in 4 yn; 
lSI 01, COmpInY MnlOTIIy 

• • • • • • , 

" 1{7 

aD oIs compllny seniority 

• • 
" • .. 

o No " ... &I1Il'IOIlet;"'all' ~1 

'" " 
50' 

12 .• ." 
o No ..... lf1Inc:e lIS~ml"" yet , .. , 

'" " , 
'" 

Re~1Id .. O!'o;lrs 10 lie ,,,,, .. lid seo otOO 960 
We\QhIBd A"'/lQ1 senlortty 13.3 17.4 1!1.a 
Nalt: A'4/1Ig1 IWA lOcal 2171 ",n!on1Y IS 13.e VUI"I , TIIII Is ~U lymore aeonr. and .... ' De US«! 135 
~lIItld -u.s La be q ... 11IId _ Irog "'POf1Id __ t. .. me 8S u,repOrSd I. IOJ 
A\4I11GO rwmtlerol cubic metres a/lOCI AN:; Pli coe.1 te~.".ed ernpIl»" 2,553 

WtightOd IVlregl uniority br" BC WOtllII¥: 
Adjulled IYef~ seniority lor In BC war\llrs: 
U.I~ 10 dll'll pay for IIItCh)INr a/ MNlco 
Ind Ir. ftlIIootoing ,.,.ragl dililywilg ... : 300 

'.(.1 
13.3 

30' 
'20.5a5.~75 SU.7D2,570 ,2UIS,aeS 

'41,4118.387 S45,en,317 '58.063,742 

$112,073,11:1 '70,375,1101 $1',to3,4a7 

Severance per employel $35,13' ~9,B33 

Nolo: ThI.~ /I .. m~_.lIra likely tgoo ~Igh. nil'. will 1~1y bIo f_.Wfltr.c:1o< 
eml)loy"! .--s boca"" alllrm.II wor1o; ..... 1 ~ found. AIIo, IN- _1orI1'I' numbers '1'0 iImIy too ~h. 
ThoCo"IS"IIaina~ityTNSt onIyf*id In;w"r;agl 01 "6,I20pll'~ Ev... goin; hom 7 10 lCd. 
should only boosllhal average 10 abOUI 523,000. 

'49,167 

Noat IIQjy total II bQ,d Dn Slool dl)' fOI' b4Ch ItHt Cout.nd Ihelnllrlor. or $70,376,801 

11 /'"2004 Pagel FNR-2013-00252 
Page 244



Major possible cost change scenarios 

Fallowing are a varlety of possible ways in which the total ml1lgallon C4Jsls may 
end up being more or less than projected by the major licensees. 

Scenario Description 

1 Licensee estimate of employee severance on the COast (1103 people) Is too high. If 
thaI number is dropped 10 800, the savings would be: 

2 licensee estimate of employee severance in the Interiar (664 people) is too high by 
approximately 50%. If that number is dropped to 350, the savings would be: 

3 

4 

5 

Seniority Is as experienced by the Coast Sustainab~1ty Trust (7. 7 years, but highly 
unlikely based on discussions wHh numerous oompanies and associations) 

Seniority Is as estimated by the lioonsees on the Coast instead of being the same 8S 
the Steelworkers Loca11-2171 average. 

SeniOrity ends up averaging 10 years instead of the curently projec1ed 14.1 years 

Cost Reduction Cost Ina-ease 

$12,553,337 

$11,673,218 

$40,812,887 

$4,112,727 

$17,372,158 
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MINISTRY OF FORESTS 
Deputy Minister's Office 

PO Box 9525 STN PROV GOVT 
3,d Floor, 1520 Blanshard Street 

Victoria, British Columbia 
Tel: (250) 356-5012 
Fax: (250) 953-3687 

This fax conuins confidential in f<.>rmalion intended for the named ~ipicnt($) only. The following information is prolC\:\OO by law, and any olher 
di stribution, copying, or disc losures is strictly prohibited. If you have rtteived this fax in error, please notify this office immediately via telephone 
and destroy the transmission received. Your co-operation is greatly appredated. 

For: Name: Doug Kouki" 

Office: C/ o DM to tlte Premier's Office 

Telephone: 6-2206 

Facsimile: 6-7258 

From: 
o Doug KOllkill------------------Deputy Millister ph. 356-5012 
o Maureen Yelovatz ---------- Manager, Executive Operations & Planning ph. 356-5766 
X Alldrea de Lestard-----------Sellior Executive Secretary ph. 356-5012 
o Janice Alexander------------ Supervisor, Administrative Services ph. 387-2277 
o Pam Rut --ReceptiOl.ist ph. 387-4809 

Date: 

Subject: 

January 14, 
2005 

Special Illstructiolls: 

Page 1 of: 14 

Doug. as requested. Apologies it took so long. A"drea 

OOCUMHHJ 

Operator: 
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The Forestry Revitalization Trust 
Meeting with Minister Mlchv.el de JODg 

11 :45 am Friday November12, 2004 
740 - 999 Canada Place, Vancouver 

Agenda 

1. Current allocation of Trust Funds: 

a. Total now at S77 ,700,000 

2. Advisory Board had now been completed and had four meetings. Consists of: 

a. Peter Affleck 
h. Jim Girvan 
c. Monty Meames 
d. Tim Menning 
e. Julian Paine 
f. Darrel Wong 
g. Berni Zinunennan 

Interior licensees 
TLA 
Steelworkers 
Interior contractors 
MoF 
Steelworkm 
Coastal licensees 

The BCFRT Advisory Board has approved Employee and Contractor Mitigation 
Guidelines, subject to the BCFRT being able to source the additional funds . 

3. Presentation and discussion ofContraclor Mitigation Guidelines. 

a. Concept is fair market value 

4. Presentation and discussion of Worker Mitigation Guidelines. 

a. Concept is severance. 

S. Presentation and discussion of results of survey of all affected licensees. 

a. Estimated Contractor Impact 
b. Estimated Worker Impact 
c. Summary Sheet 

6. Additional requirements for the BCFRT. 

7. Presentation and discussion of the legal opinion trom Blair Dwyer. 

8. Discussion of how to deal with shortfall 

a. Could come from $200 ~ industry compensation (Embracing a new vision) 
b. Could come from FIA 
c. Could come from temporary stumpage surcharge 
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BC Forestry Revitalization Trust' ...... 
Replaceable Contractor Mitigation Guidelines 

Guidelines for major licensees and contractors with respect to the loss 
of some or all of replaceable contracts as a direct result of 

Forestry Revitalization Act Timber Reallocation: 

The Province specifically denies any legal obligation to provide compensation to Contractors affected 
by the Forestry Revitalization Act (FRA) timber reallocation provisions. However, the Province has 
created the BC Forestry Revitalization Trust (BCFRT) as a matter of policy to consider the potential of 
providing redress for certain claims of Contractors with replaceable contracts that are directly impacted 
by the FRA. This policy approach does not extend beyond the BCFRT and does not limit or affect the 
position that the Province has taken, or may take, in court or any other legal proceeding, or any 
position that it may take in assessing the impacts of future government decisions on logging 
Contractors. 

The BCFRT is a discretionary trust. No specific person has any right or entitlement to receive any 
funds from the BCFRT unless and until the BCFRT Trustee decides to make a payment to that specific 
person. Compliance with the guidelines does not guarantee receipt of any payment from the BCFRT. 
The guidelines are issued to assist applicants. However, the Trustee reserves the right to consider other 
factors not mentioned in the guidelines. Those other factors may include the amount of funds available 
for distribution. 

1. Application: 

These guidelines are intended to apply to all Contractors who hold or held a replaceable contract as 
defined in the Timber Harvesting Contract and Subcontract Regulation and who lose some or all of 
their replaceable contractual rights as a result of timber reallocations resulting from the FRA. 

The BCFRT will accept claims for redress received from negatively impacted contractors until 
March 31, 2008, as those impacts are confirmed through the timber reallocation process. Only 
replaceable contracts will be considered for mitigation. The BCFRT will not accept applications for 
mitigation related to non-replaceable contracts. 

The following outlines the process: 

Step 1. 

Step 2. 

Licensees directly affected by the FRA must use Part 5.1 of the Timber Harvesting 
Contract and Subcontract Regulation to define what contractors will be affected by 
the taking of timber harvesting rights and the extent to which those contractors will 
be affected. The process is clearly explained in a document prepared by Davis & 
Company which is available by following the links on the BCFRT website at 
www.bcfrt.com. 

The Trustee of the BCFRT will address the Contractor's claim for mitigation in 
accordance with these guidelines and in consultation with the Contractor and the 
Licensee. 
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Step 3. 

Step 4. 

Step 5. 

Step 6. 

BC Forestry Revitalization Trust" .... 
Replaceable Contractor Mitigation Guidelines 

The Contractor must respond promptly to requests for information from the BCFRT, 
must allow representatives of the BCFRT reasonable access to sites and equipment 
which the Contractor claims have been impacted by the FRA. and must allow 
BCFRT representatives access to (and the right to review and audit) records and 
source documents maintained by the Contractor to the extent that those documents 
pertain to the facts surrounding the claim of impact submitted by the Contractor. 

The Contractor must provide detailed infonnation relating to employees, if any, that 
must be severed as a result of the FRA timber reallocation. 

The Contractor must disclose any replaceable sub-contracts that he has that are 
related to the impacted replaceable contract. 

The Licensee must confinn the contract infonnation and the reasonableness of 
Contractor claims of injury or loss. In addition the Licensee must obtain a release 
from the Contractor regarding the Licensee's obligations to the replaceable 
Contractor. A sample fOmI of release is attached to these Guidelines. 

2. Definitions: 

2.1 Average Contract Rate means the amount calculated by dividing the total contract 
billings by the total production volume for the Baseline Period, expressed as dollars per 
standard output unit of measure for that contract. 

2.2 Baseline Period means the portion of the calendar year prior to the Date of Impact, plus 
the previous two full calendar years. 

2.3 Contractor means a replaceable contractor as defined in the Timber Harvesting 
Contract and Subcontract Regulation. 

2.4 Contribution to Profit means that portion of the Average Contract Rate assumed to 
remain after the Contractor pays all direct costs associated with the delivery of a 
standard unit of work under the contract. For the purposes of these Guidelines, the 
Contribution to Profit is: 

2.4.1 10% for a replaceable full phase contract, and 

2.4.2 7% for a replaceable single phase falling, bucking, skidding, yarding, grading, 
road bui Iding, hauling or booming contract. 

2.5 Date of Impact means the date on which the Contractor was materially affected by a 
volume reallocation resulting from the FRA. 

2.6 Economic Multiple means the multiplc of the annual net cash flow availablc from the 
contract used by business evaluators to estimate the economic value of a contract. The 
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BC Forestry Revitalization Trust ~ .., 
Replaceable Contractor Mitigation Guidelines 

Economic Multiple is adjusted to reflect perceived business risk. The following 
Economic Multiples will apply in the calculation of the Impact Payment: 

2.6.1 With respect to a replaceable full phase contract, 4 years, and 

2.6.2 With respect to a replaceable single phase contract, 3 years. 

2.7 Eligible Impact means the amount a contract has been reduced, expressed in the units 
used in the contract, such as cubic metres of wood harvested or handled, or kilometers 
of road built or maintained. 

2.8 Aggregate Impact Payment means the aggregate of all Impact Payments made by the 
BCFRT in respect ofa single Contractor. 

2.9 Impact Payment means the amount which the BCFRT agrees to pay to a Contractor 
after applying these Guidelines to the Contractor with respect to the direct impact 
caused by the FRA on each of the following: 

2.9.1 Replaceable full phase contracts, 

2.9.2 Replaceable single phase contracts, 

2.9.3 Mitigation associated with the disposal ofredundant equipment. 

2.10 Impacted Volume means: 

2.10.1 With respect to a timber harvesting contract, the reduction in the Nominal Work 
Volume available under the contract, as notified in writing by the licensee, 
expressed in cubic meters. 

2.10.2 With respect to a road construction contract, the reduction in Nominal Work 
Volume, expressed in kilometers. 

2.10.3 With respect to work perfonned under an hourly contract, the reduction in 
Nominal Work Volume expressed in hours of work. This reduction must be 
reasonably proportional to the AAe reduction experienced by the licensee for 
whom the work is done, either directly or indirectly. 

2.11 Nominal Work Volume means the work volume available under a contract 
immediately prior to the Date of Impact. 

3. Key Principles: 

3.1 An Impact Payment is made in thc discrction of the Trustec and is not a right set out in 
legislation. Each Impact Payment will be confirmed in a separate Mitigation Agreement 
between the Contractor and the BCFRT. The Mitigation Agreement will contain 
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BC Forestry Revitalization Trust ' 
Replaceable Contractor Mitigation Guidelines 

clauses that limit the Contractor's right to commence any other proceedings or pursue 
any other legal remedies that may exist as a result of the FRA timber reallocation. 

3.2 The BCFRT will consider making an Impact Payment in respect of the direct impact of 
the FRA on each of the following: 

3.2.1 Replaceable full phase timber harvesting contracts, 

3.2.2 Replaceable single phase timber harvesting contracts, including contracts for the 
construction and/or maintenance of logging roads, and 

3.2.3 Redundant equipment that is disposed. of in an arms length transaction. 

3.3 The BCFRT will not make any Impact Payment und.er this Framework with respect to 
indirect or consequential impacts of the FRA timber reallocation. 

3.4 As a general principle, the date of valuation fi)r all impacts will be the Date of Impact. 

3.5 An Impact Payment is separate from any "adjustment assistance" available under other 
provincial or federal/provincial arrangements and no Impact Payment is available for 
any claims that have been dealt with under those arrangements. In addition, no 
adjustment assistance is payable under those arrangements for claims in respect of 
which an Impact Payment was made under this Framework. 

3.6 The BCFRT will not make any Impact Paymt:~nt with respect to any impact that the 
BCFRT reasonably considers to be a normal business risk of the Contractor. 

3.6.1 No Impact Payment will be paid with respect to chattel and immovable assets 
employed in the delivery of a non-replaceable timber harvesting contract. 

3.7 An Impact Payment is available only with respect to demonstrated impacts directly 
attributable to the FRA timber reallocation. In order to pursue the process outlined in 
these Guidelines. a Contractor must confirm and provide, in a fonn satisfactory to the 
BCFRT, written details of the extent to which the FRA timber reallocation was the 
direct cause of a reduction in a replaceable co.ntract. In most cases, this will require 
production of at least a copy of the accepted Forestry Revitalization Proposal and may 
require the production of other relevant documents. 

3.8 Where subcontractors are used that hold replaceable contracts as defined in the Timber 
Harvesting Contract and Subcontract Regulation, the Contractor will be responsible for 
identifying each subcontractor, and allocating among all subcontractors their appropriate 
share of the proposed Impact Payment. No Impact Payments will be made to the lead 
Contractor until agreement is made on payments to all replaceable subcontractors. 

3.9 The Contractor and sub-contractor must identify which of their employees should 
receive severance, and must confinn this list with the BCFRT and, if appropriate. the 
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BC Forestry Revitalization Trust 

Replaceable Contractor Mitigation Guidelines 

employee's union. Severance payments will not be subtracted from the Impact 
Payment. Severance payments are to be made by the employer. The employer may 
claim mitigation in respect of severance payments under the separate procedure set out 
in the Employee Mitigation Guidelines. 

3.10 As described in the Employee Mitigation Guidelines, if employers pay severance to 
employees and receive mitigation for that severance from the BCFRT, neither they nor 
any affiliated company can rehire those employees for 6 months in the same or similar 
capacity and wage unless there is 3 material change in circumstances, such as access to 
significantly more fibre subsequent to the severance, or because another employee quits, 
dies or retires subsequent to the severance being paid, and that employee needs to be 
replaced. If the employer does rehire a severed employee, and the above conditions do 
not apply, the employer who paid the severance will be required to reimburse the 
BCFRT for the entire severance paid to the employee with BCFRT funds. 

3.11 Contractors and subcontractors may receive mitigation payments even though they find 
alternate work and therefore do not have to sever any employees. 

4. Impact Assessmen t: 

General: 

4.1 Each Impact Payment is subject to a test of market and economic reasonableness 
applied by the BCFRT, This test takes various factors into account, including 
"reasonable expectations" in the ordinary course of business, actual contract terms, 
Forest Act provisions, and normal business risks. Subject to the application of that test 
of market and economic reasonableness, however, Contractor mitigation will be 
calculated as shown in the following section. 

Impacts on Work Volumes: 

4.2 The Impact Payment respecting impacts on work volumes will be calculated as: 

The Impacted Volume, multiplied by 

The Average Contract Rate, multiplied by 

- The Contribution to Profit, multiplied by 

- The Economic Multiple. 

4.2.1 The Impact Payment payable and the calculations set out in Article 4.2 are 
subject to the following maximum caps: 
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BC Forestry Revitalization Trust 

Replaceable Contractor Mitigation Guidelines 

4.2. 1.1 

4.2.1.2 

With respect to full phase timber harvesting contracts on the 
Coast, as defined by the Ministry afForests, $16.00 per cubic 
meter of Eligible Impact. 

With respect to full phase timber harvesting contracts in the 
Interior, as defined by the Ministry of Forests, $10.00 per cubic 
meter of Eligible Impact. 

4.2.1.3 With respect to single phase falling and bucking contracts, $1.50 
per cubic meter of Eligible Impact. 

4.2.1.4 With respect to single-phase road building contracts, $30,000 per 
kilometer of Eligible Impact. 

Redundant Assets - General: 

4.3 The onus is on the Contractor to demonstrate to the BCFRT's satisfaction that an asset 
is redundant, and that the redundancy was caused directly by work volume reductions 
resulting from the FRA Timber Reallocation. 

Impacts on Chattel Assets: 

4.4 The BCFRT will not provide mitigation for moveable redundant equipment that is 
retained by the Contractor. 

4.5 When a Contractor can demonstrate the equipment was made redundant because of 
work reduction caused by the FRA, and the Contractor sells that equipment and does not 
replace it with similar equipment, the BCFRT will provide mitigation to the contractor 
equal to 25% of the gross selling price of the redundant equipment to an arms length 
purchaser. 

4.5.1 In order to receive mitigation for redundant equipment as described above, the 
equipment must be sold within 6 months of the later of the Date of Impact or the 
signing of the Mitigation Agreement between the Contractor and the Trustee. In 
the event that market conditions are such that equipment cannot be sold within 6 
months, an extension of no more than 6 months may be granted if it can be 
demonstrated that the equipment is actively for sale and is not in use in other 
operations. This could be substantiated by having the equipment on display in a 
used equipment lot, or scheduled for sale at an auction. 

Impacts on Immovable Assets: 

4.6 The BCFRT will not provide mitigation for immoveable redundant assets that belong to 
the Contractor. 
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BC Forestry Revitalization Trust 

Replaceable Contractor Mitigation Guidelines 

5. Aggregate Impact Payment 

5.1 Where the BCFRT and the Contractor agree on an Impact Payment with respect to any 
discrete claim of impact, the BCFRT may document and payout such claim. 

5.2 Subject to Article 3.5, the early payment of an Impact Payment may be made without 
limiting the Contractor's ability to continue with negotiations with respect to other 
claimed impacts. (For example, the BCFRT may payout an agreed settlement with 
respect to a replaceable contract or sub-contmct, while claims for other replaceable 
contracts with the same Contractor or redundant assets remain under negotiation.) 

5.3 The Contractor may request that the BCFRT process an interim payment respecting the 
Aggregate Impact Pa}111ent. 

5.3.1 In cases of financial distress, the Contractor may request an interim payment at 
any time after the provision of infonnation required under Article I. 

5.3.2 The request for an interim payment must include a statement from the Contractor 
confirming the Contractor has applied commercial diligence in the presentation of 
all information to the BCFRT, and believes the information provided represents a 
complete and accurate representation of the facts surrounding the impact of the 
FRA timber reallocation on the Contractor. 

5.3.3 An interim payment will be treated as an advance. As Impact Payments are 
confirmed they will be applied first toward repayment of the interim payment. 

5.3.3.1 Once Impact Payments at least equal to the interim payment have 
been confirmed, all future Impact Payments, or portions ofImpact 
Payments, will be paid to the Contractor. 

5.3.3.2 Should the actual Aggregate Impact Payment due the Contractor be 
less than the interim payment received by the Contractor, an 
overpayment situation shall exist and the Contractor will be liable 
for the repayment of any such overpayment. 

5.3.3.3 The Contractor will be required to undertake to repay any 
overpayment within 10 business days of notice from the BCFRT 
that such an overpa}111ent exists. Should the overpayment not be 
repaid by the Contractor within 10 days of notice, the amount 
owing will bear interest from the tenth day at the rate prescribed in 
the Court Order Interest Act. 

6. In the event that a replaceable contractor can demonstrate a serious inequity resulting from the 
application ofthcsc guidelines, the Trustee may consider his arguments and suggest to the BCFRT 
Advisory Board that a modified payment be made. 
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BC Forestry Revitalization Trust 
Employee Mitigation Guidelines 

Guidelines for major licensees and contractors with respect to 
severance of employees as a direct result of Forestry Revitalization 

Act Timber Reallocation: 

The Province specifically denies any legal obligation to provide compensation to 
workers affected by the Forestry Revitalization Act Timber Reallocation provisions. 
However, the Province has created the BC Forestry Revitalization Trust (BCFRT) as 
a matter of policy to consider, among other things, the potential of providing 
mitigation for certain claims of forest workers employed by licensees or contractors 
with replaceable contracts that are directly impacted by the Forestry Revitalization 
Act. This policy approach does not extend beyond the BCFRT and does not limit or 
affect the position that the Province has taken, or may take, in court or any other legal 
proceeding, or any position that it may take in assessing the impacts offuture 
government decisions on forest workers. 

The BCFRT is a discretionary trust. No specific person has any right or entitlement to 
receive any funds from the BCFRT unless and until the Trustee decides to make a 
payment to that specific person. Compliance with the guidelines does not guarantee 
receipt of any payment from the BCFRT. The guidelines are issued to assist 
applicants. However, the Trustee reserves the right to consider other factors not 
mentioned in the guidelines. Those other factors may include the amount of funds 
available for distribution. 

The intention of these guidelines is to enable each of the major licensees and 
replaceable contractors that have to sever staff as a result of timber reallocation 
pursuant to the BC Forestry Revitalization Act (FRA) to determine the amount of 
mitigation payments that may be covered by the BCFRT. 

Once the Ministry afForests and the major licensees affected by the FRA have agreed 
upon the areas to be relinquished by the major licensees, the major licensees will go 
through a process with their contractors to determine which contractors and or 
company crews will be affected by the timber reallocation. It will then be up to the 
licensees and contractors to determine which, if any, of their employees will need to 
be severed as a result of the decrease in available work. Licensees and contractors 
will need to be guided by existing contractual obligations when deciding which, if 
any, employees will be severed. 

The employer, either the licensee or the contractor as appropriate, will be responsible 
to conclude any negotiations regarding employee severance with their employees 
andlor the employees' union. No contract buy-out payments will be made to 
contractors until any of the contractor's employees that will be severed have been 
identified. However, the BCFRT will not fund any severance payments unless and 
until the employee is actually severed. Further, the severance has to be as a direct 
result of the loss of access to fibre caused by the 20% take-back mandated by the 
Forestry Revitalization Act. 
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BC Forestry Revitalization Trust 
Employee Mltilation Guidelines 

The following guidelines will apply to employee severance mitigated by the BCFRT: 

Note: In the context of these guidelines. an anmate is any corporation or business 
entity controlling. controlled by or under common control with the contractor or 
licensee. The effective date of severance is the date the employer ceased to use the 
services of the severed employee as a direct result of the Forestry Revitalization Act 
timber reallocation. A potentially eligible employee is a forestry worker as defined in 
the BCFRT Trust Deed. A copy of the Trust Deed can be viewed at www.bcfrt.com. 

I . The number of employees severed by either a replaceable contractor or a 
major licensee should be consistent with industry averages as determined by 
PricewaterhouseCoopers in its studies of the BC Forest Sector. Thi s suggests 
that in the logging and forestry sector, including hourly, contract, and salaried 
employees, the Trustee would expect a maximum of approximately 0.5 
employee positions lost per thousand cubic metres oflost logging opportunity 
on the Coast, and 0.3 employee positions lost per thousand cubic metres of 
lost logging opportunity in the interior. 

2. In most cases the number of severed employees will be less than the 
maximums noted above because there is no overall allowable annual cut 
(AAC) reduction, and the affected contractors may find replacement contracts. 
In the case of company crews, the licensee will be expected to try to find 
alternate employment for displaced forestry workers within other company 
operations. Where a contractor has more than one operation, the contractor 
will be expected to try to find alternate employment for displaced forestry 
workers within affiliated operations. 

3. Mitigation payments will be determined as follows: 

a. On the Coast and in the Interior, 10 days of regular day's pay for each 
full year of continuous service. plus 10/ 12 ofa regular day's pay for 
each additional completed month of continuous service, with 
continuous service ending on the effective date of severance. 

b. A regular day's pay for the purposes of severance should be calculated 
using the method used on the Coast to determine payment made to the 
employee on the Statutory Holiday closest to the time of severance. 

c. In the case of employees that are approaching retirement age, either as 
defined by their contract or as a result of company policy, the BCFRT 
will mitigate the lesser of severance as calculated above, or an amount 
equal to the amount the employee would have earned if they continued 
to be employed from the effective date of severance to their retirement. 
In the absence of evidence to the contrary, it will be assumed that the 
employee would retire on their 65111 birthday. 

1. The annual amount the employee would have expected to earn 
between the effective date of severance and their retirement 
will be assumed to be the average of their gross wages as 
reported on theirT-4 slips for 2001 and 2002, plus the net value 
of the lost pension benefits caused by the Joss of employment. 
This amount will then be prorated over the number of days 
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BC Forestry Revitalization Trust 
Employee Mitigation Guidelines 

between the effective date of severance and the date they would 
have retired if they had not been severed. 

11. The calculation in 3. (c) (i) will onJy be performed if: 
1. The severance is not caused by a permanent closure of 

the operation; and 
2. The employee in question is within 2 years of 

retirement. In the absence of evidence to the contrary, it 
will be assumed that the employee is within 2 years of 
retirement on their 63'" birthday. 

4. In order for the BCFRT to mitigate severance payments, workers receiving 
severance must have been employed full time by a major licensee or 
contractor in the harvesting side ofthe forest industty in British Columbia on 
March 31, 2003, or been on temporary lay~off. but worked full time for a 
portion of the previous year, and still have been on the seniority list on March 
31, 2003 . Employers seeking mitigation will have to demonstrate to the 
satisfaction of the Trustee an ongoing, long-term attachment to the employee 
being severed. The Trustee will consider increasing the recognized years of 
service in special cases where an employee has a longer-term attachment to 
the industry than to the current employer but, because of the closure or 
downsizing of other operation(s). lost their previous job(s), and did not receive 
severance pay for that job loss. In either case, the employee must lose or have 
already lost their jobs as a result of the Forestry Revitalization Act timber 
reallocation. 

5. Severance that cannot be directly linked to Forestry Revitalization Act timber 
reallocation will not be mitigated by the BCFRT. 

6. There need not be a pennanent closure of the entire operation for the BCFRT 
to mitigate severance payments. 

7. If employees obtain re-employment with their previous employer at an 
alternate location, or with an affiliate of their previous employer, within 6 
months of the effective date of severance from their previous position, and 
continue to work in a similar capacity, severance would not be mitigated by 
the BCFRT. However, mitigation may be available in respect of workers who 
are moved by their employer to an alternate location or to an affiliate and work 
at a significantly lower wage. The amount of the mitigation will be based on 
the actual loss to the worker as a result of the Forestry Revitalization Act 
timber reallocation. It will be negotiated between the Trustee, the employer, 
the worker and, if applicable, the worker'S union. 

8. Mitigation payments may be available for workers who are moved by their 
employer to an alternate location orto an affiliate as a result of the Forestry 
Revitalization Act timber reallocation within 6 months of the effective date of 
severance from their previous position, and subsequently lose their jobs as a 
result of their lower seniority through no fault of their own, within three years 
of the date of transfer. Except in extenuating circumstances, mitigation in 
respect of transferred employees will be reduced by 3% per month of 
employment that the transferred worker receives after the date of transfer. 
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Actual mitigation will be negotiated between the Trustee, the employer, the 
worker and, if applicable, the worker's union. 

9. In order for the BCFRT to mitigate any specific severance payment, the 
employer must actually sever the employee in question. The severed 
employee cannot be rehired by the same employer or an affiliate to work in the 
same or similar capacity, at the same or similar wage, within 6 months of the 
effective date of severance, unless there is a material change in circumstance 
for the employer. Such a material change could be a contractor receiving 
access to significantly more fibre, or the contractor or licensee needing to 
replace someone who died, quit or retired subsequent to the worker in question 
receiving severance. 

10. If the BCFRT mitigates a severance payment in respect of an employee who is 
re-employed by the contractor or licensee or an affiliate within six months 
from the effective date of severance, the contractor or licensee will be required 
to refund the full mitigation payment to the BCFRT, unless there is a material 
change in circumstances for the employer, as set out in Section 9. This 
restriction is required to discourage the payment of severance for what may be 
a nonnal seasonal lay-off. 

II. In the case of a reduction of an operation, severance need not be offered only 
to the employees with the lowest seniority. Rather, the company, the 
employees andlor the union can negotiate to detennine which employees will 
receive severance payments. 

12. If the result of these negotiations is that more senior employees receive 
severance payments, and those payments are higber than if junior employees 
bad been severed, the higher severance payments will still be eligible for 
mitigation in accordance with paragraph 3 based on years of service of the 
employees who are actually severed. 

13. Senior employees that could have relied on their seniority to retain their jobs, 
but chose to receive voluntary severance so that more junior employees can 
retain their jobs, will be expected to give up their preferential hiring rights and 
sign a release in the form attached to these guidelines. Junior employees that 
had no choice about whether or not they would be severed wiU still have to 
sign a release, but will not have to give up any preferential hiring rights they 
may have. 

14. Owner operators that receive contract buy-out payments will not be eligible 
for severance payments as well. However, if an owner operator has worked 
exclusively for one employer for a number of years, and if an appropriately 
calculated severance payment would provide better mitigation than a contract 
buy-out, then the contractor may choose to receive severance instead of a 
contract buy-out. 
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BC Forestry Revitalization Trust 
Employee MItigation Guidelines 

Sample Employee release form: 

Employer letterhead 

Date: 

I, , hereby accept the (voluntary) severance pay offered to me 
and in exchange (voluntarily) terminate my employment with (the 
company) effective (the effective date o.fseverance. which is the date the 
employer ceased to use the services of the severed employee as a direct result of the 
Forestry Revitalization Act timber reallocation.). I further acknowledge that I am 
accepting this (voluntary) payment in full and final satisfaction of any claims, 
statutory or otherwise, that may arise out of my employment and the termination of 
employment after the signing of this agreement. 

I acknowledge that I catulot be re-employed by the company or an affiliate of the 
company in the sante or similar capacity and at the same or similar compensation for 
a period of 6 months from the effective date of severance unless either: 

1. I return 100% of the severance payment to the company, so that the company 
can return the severance payment to the Be Forestry Revitalization Trust; or 

2. There is a material change in circumstance for the company. Such a material 
change could be the company receiving access to significantly more fibre, or 
the company needing to replace someone who died, quit or retired subsequent 
to my receipt of this severance pay. 

Plus the following sentence iflhis is a voluntary severance. A voluntary severance is 
one in which the employee being severed could have relied on his or her seniority to 
retain their job, but chose to receive severance and allow a more junior person to 
retain their job. 

I acknowledge that by accepting this payment I relinquish any rights I may have for 
preferential hiring by the company. 

Signed:~-,;cc--:-:~-: 
Employee signature 

Note: Severance will be considered to be voluntary!f accepted by an employee that 
could have relied on their seniority to remain employed in the case of a partial 
reduction of an operation, but chose instead 10 receive severance in order to aI/ow a 
person with less seniority to retain their job. 
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Moving Estimate of BCFRT Costs 

Summary Sheet 

FOllOWing is my current best estimate of Mltigation costs based on the Guidelines approved by the BCFRT Advisory Board. 
The estimates are based on informatiOn gathered from a variety of sources, including; 

Experience with the Coast SustainabUity Trust 
Estimates provided by most of the affected licensees 

PricewaterhouseCoopers Forest Industry reports 
Discussions with BCFRT Advisory Board members 

Contractor mitigation: 

Interior 
Coast harvesting 
Coast road building 
Coast Subtotal 
Equipment selling costs 

Total contractOf mitigation 

Notes: 

$27,138,947 
$4,000,000 

$30,676,221 

$31 ,138,947 
$2,000,000 

The concept ofa $1 61m3 cap was accepted on the Coast, and a $101m3 cap In the Interior 
appears to be acceptable based on information gathered about actuallhl'd party sales. 
The Coast road building number assumes 10,OOOm3 harvested per km of road built by replaceable contractors 
There is resistance to no paymoots for redundant equipment, but it is defensible 
givoo the fact there is no actual Me reduction, and the current high level of activity in the 
industry suggests redundant equipment could be sold at a reasonable price. 

Worker Mitigation: 

Interior 
Coast 

Total Worker Mitigation 

Notes; 

Licensee 
estimates 

$24,702,570 
$45,673,337 
$70,375,907 

Licensee estimates of seniority were used in the interior, butlWA averages were used on the Coast as they 
were thought to more likely to be accurate. The average tWA active worker in local 2171 (moslly 
logging) was 13.8 years. A separate survey of 7 coastal contractors representing 112 workers 

that will be displaced had an average of 13.7 years seniority. On the other hand, experience with the Coast 
Suslainability Trust had average seniority of 7.7 years, and a survey of 20 interior contractors suggests an 
average of only 6.5 years seniority. 
Ongoing work is being done to improve the reliability of these estimates, but the numbers are not expected to 
change much until the actual Foresby Revitalization Proposals are developed. 

Administration: 

The BCFRT actually calls fO( administratlon to cost $5,000,000. However, if we can use 
the model suggested above, the total of trustee, administration, legal, audit, independent 
contractors, and Advisory Board expenses should be able to be kepi to this amount. 

Total 

Notes: 
The main potential weaknesses with the above estimate are: 

The estimate for seniority may be low, which would Increase costs - low probability. Based on experience with 
the Coast Sustainabnity Trust it is more likely that seniority estimates are high, so costs may come down. 

The number of employees to be severed may be wrong. With the current state of the industry, this is most likely to 
reduce costs, because severance numbers are more likely to go down than up. However, if there is a downturn 
befCfe the 20% take back runs through the system, severance could go up - biggest unknown. 

Confidential 11/11/2004 

Expected 
Costs 

$63,815,169 

$70,315,907 

$2,000,000 

$136,191,016 
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Interior 

Llcenl" "oflolt m3 
allocated to 
replaceable 

contraetl 

Abitibj Consolidated Inc. 
Ainsworth Lurrber CD. Ltd. 
Apollo Forest Products 2,930 
BHFP, Nownmber Baron FP 16,508 
Canfor corporation 607,407 
Carrier lumber 6.629 
Dunkley l umber Ltd. 
Federated CCHlperatill1l5 14,952 
Gorman Bros. lumber ltd. 5,624 
lakeland Mills ltd. 12,457 
l ignlXl'lltd. 46,972 
lP Engineered Wood Products 56,339 
New Skeena 
Pope & Talbot ltd. 104,220 
RivCfSlde Forest Products 193,982 
Slocan Forest Producb 521,316 
Stuart lake lumber CD. ltd, 
Teal Cedar Products Ltd, 37.982 
Ternbac Industries Inc. 93.000 
The Pas lurrber Company 38,193 
Telko Industri es Ltd. 123,300 
WeidWood of Canada Umited 278,720 
West FraS8f nmber Co. Ltd. 522,500 
Weyerhaeuser Canada 123,530 

Adjusted Weighted All $1m3 (see note) 
Total reponed to date 2,806.56 1 
Total take back 
Percent reported to date 57.4". 
Contracto( Mitigation (buyout only) 

Cont 

Canlor Corpol'ation 231,130 
Western f orest Products 484.320 
Husby Forest Products 6,109 
Intenor 348,010 
Teal Cedar Products 57,180 
nmbetWest Group 10.000 
Weyert1aeuser Canada 564.200 

Adjusted WeJllhted All $1m3 (see note) 
Total reported to date 1,700,949 
Total take back 

Moving Estimate of BCFRT Mitigation Costs 

Eltimllted Conlrutor ImJNjel 

Avtnl," 
Itump to 

mill 
contract 

~" 

$22.27 
$53.00 
$24.50 
$23.65 

$29.88 
$27.00 
$24.20 
$28.00 
$25.00 

$28.93 
$27.57 
$24.50 

$30.00 
$24.00 
$20.50 
$26.00 
$29.32 
$33.77 
$28.12 

$24.69 

$43.07 
$29.05 
$62.99 
$40,00 
$30.22 
$50.00 

$39.89 

, of 1011 m3 
aliOCillled 10 

non 
replaenble 

conlnletl 

1.256 
6,420 

583.034 
6,628 

15,700 
1.406 

86,379 
190,000 
292,298 

495 

96,310 
38,193 

123,295 
1]8,682 
335.434 
98,470 

2,014,000 

41 .2% 

58,707 

20.000 

78.707 

, of tOSI m3 "of loll m3 
allocated 10 that are 

company "01 
,,~ currently 

allocated 

29,634 

2,297 

17,339 

a700 

10,096 

checksum 
8,700 59,366 

0.2% 1.2% 

75,734 
192,577 

231,028 
110,957 

303,800 

$30,878,221 

8,319 

3,207 
110,694 

check !lum 
914,096 122,220 

Percent reported to date 60.4% 2.8% 32.5% 4.3% 
$21,138,947 Contractor Mitigation (buyout ()Illy) assuming only replaceable, and using CST formula 

Total e.tllmlted o;ontntetor mltlgiltlon COlt $51,1115,189 

Not •• : 

Togi "of 
10lt m3 

oIs lor 183,125 m3 
29,634 
4.186 

22,928 
1,190,441 

13,257 
2,297 

30.652 
7.030 

12,457 
46,972 
73,678 

oIs for 337,612 m3 
199,299 
383.982 
813,614 

495 
48,078 

189,310 
76,385 

246,595 
417,402 
857,934 
222,000 

4,888.626 
4,888,626 
5,409.363 

90.4% 

365,571 No contractor costs yet 
685,216 

6,109 
579.038 
168,137 
33,207 

978.694 

2.815,972 
2,815,972 
2,815,972 

100.0% 

Contractor Mitigation (buyout only) is available only to replaceable contractors, and is based on \he Contractor Mitillation Guidel ines. 
Calculation of cost is based on caps of $161m3 on the coast, $101m3 in the interior, $JO,OOO/km for roads, and $1 .50 1m3 for faJling. 
The adjusted weigh ted average incorporates the cap, 50 the maximum cost included is $40 on the coast and $25 In lt1e interiO( 

Confldentlal 1111112004 
FNR-2013-00252 
Page 267



Moving Estimate of BCFRT Mitigation Costs 

E.Ilm" t.d Work.r Imp;ilct 

Interior NumbMof Av.r"gt Numbee' of A .... r"g. Totll 
Contr.elM Seniority of Company S.nlorlty of number of 
.mploY"" lOonlralOlOr employe" lOompany emploY"" 
upec;t.d to employn. txpededlO .mploy._ expec;ttd to 

L1c;en," bt,_red tllpectedlO bt .. v.red .xpec;!ed 10 be .. ",red 
be .", ... ed be .ever&d 

Abitibi Consolidated Inc. 
Ainsworth lumber Co. LId. 
Apollo Forest ProdIJcts 
BHFP Nownmbaraaron FP 
Canfor Corporatiol1 

0 0 

~, 

o 
0 0 o 
0 0.0 0 0.0 o BHFP said 10. but no work in 4 yn; 

" 10.0 
Carner lumber 0 

750/5 
0 

15 t oIs company seniority 
o 

Dunkley l......-.ber ltd. 
Federa\ed Co-operallves 
Gorman Bros. lumber Ltd. 
lakeland MUs ltd. 
l ignum (Now River5lde FP Mart<letlng lid .) 
LP El'l\lineered Wood Producls 
NewSkeena 

0 
7 
0 
0 

• 0 
0 

" SO 

10.0 

200 

11 .2 
15.0 

0 , 
0 
0 
2 
0 
0 

" " 

15.0 

14.4 
159 

o 
• o 
o 
6 
o 

" 67 

no respOnse, but assume zero 
Pope & Telbot Ltd. 
Riverside Fares! Products 
Siocan Forest Products 
Stuart lake Lumber Co. Ltd. 
Teal Cedar Products Ltd. 
Tembec tndustries Inc. 

" 0 
10.0 15015 

0 
80 oIs company seniority 
o 

The Pas Lumber Company 
Tolko Induslties lid. 
Weldwood of Canada Limited 
West Fraser Timber Co. Ltd. 
Weyemaeuser Canada 

6 

" 6 

" 
'" 23 

10.0 
10.0 " 12.5 2 
12.0 " 
12.5 20 
19.6 " 

Reponed YIOrkers to be severed 401 178 
Weighted AveragE! &af1lorily 12.2 
Extrapolated workers to be severed assuming reported severaflCe I. same as unreported 
Average nll'l1ber 01 C\Jbic metres 01 lost MC per interior severed emplo)oee 

C03.I 

Canfar Corporation 
Western Forest Products "5 4.' 79 
Husby Forest Products 2 4.0 2 
interior '" 11 .5 " Teat Ced¥ Products " 17.9 50 
Timb41rWest Group 0 2 
Weyerhaouser Canada 230 20.0 '" 

20.0 
12.5 
12.0 

5.2 
t8.0 

13.3 

8,152 

4.' 
40 

\ 1.6 
23.5 
12.0 
25.0 

6 

" 6 
40 
o No severance estimales yet 

'" 33 

565 
12.4 
664 

o No severance as~males yet 
244 

4 
232 

" 2 
400 

Reported worker!> to be severed 560 400 960 
Weighted Average IWniorily 13.3 174 15.0 
Nota: Average tWA local 2171 s.eniorily is 13.8 years. This Is ~kely more accurate Bnd win be used 138 
Eldrapotated WOI1<.ers to be severed 8$$l.Iming reported sevaraflCe is 5Ilme as unreported 1,103 
Average numbef of cubic melre$ of tost AAC per COlIS! ....... ered e"",,~ 2,553 

Total workers I" Be expected to be severed 1,761 

W eighted Bverage seniority for aH BC workers: 
Adjusted averag<o seniority for <II BC workers: 
Using 10 days pay for each year of HlVice 
and the IoIlo<wing average daily wages: 2SO JOO 

14.1 
133 

350 

Projecled 5evtIfaflCa I"te rior 

Projected SeveraflCe Coast 

Total pro}tcted lever. nee 

$20,565,415 $24,102,510 $26,819,665 

$41.496.387 $45,873,331 $58,063,742 

$82,013.8&2 $70,375,901 $".903,407 

Sewrance per employee $35,134 $39,633 

Note: The above numbers are ijke ly too high. There wil t likely be fewarcontractor 
employee severances because a~ermala work wi ll b4I found. At50. the SI!f1iority numb41rs are ~krlly too high. 
The Coast Suslainabilily Trust only paid Bf1 average of $16,120 per emplO'r'lla. Even going from 7 to 10 days 
should ontyboost that average to about $23,000. 

$49.187 

hlost likely totaL II boIosed on $3001 day for bo1h the Cont and the interlot. or $70,315,907 
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Major possible cost change scenarios 

Foilowing are a variety of possible ways in wh ich the total mitigation costs may 
end up being more or less than projected by the major Licensees. 

Scenario Description 

1 Licensee estimate of employee severance on the Coast (1103 people) is too high. If 
that number is dropped to 800. the savings would be: 

2 

3 

4 

5 

Licensee estimate of employee severance in the interior (664 people) is too high by 
approximately 50%. If that number is dropped to 350, the savings would be: 

Seniority is as experienced by the Coast Sustainability Trust (7.7 years, but highly 
unlikely based on discussions with numerous companies and associations) 

Seniority Is as estimated by the Licensees on the Coast instead of being the same as 
the Steelworkers Local 1-2171 average. 

Seniority ends up averaging 10 years instead of the curently projected 14.1 years 

Cost Reduction Cost Increase 

$12,553,337 

! 
$11,673,216 , 

$40,612,667 

$4,112,727 

$17,372,156 
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The Forestry Revitalization Trust 
Meeting witt! Minister Michael de Jong 

11 :45 am Friday Novembtr12, 2004 
740 - 999 C:mada Place, Vancouver 

Agenda 

1. Current allocation of Trust Funds: 

a. Total now at $71 ,700 ,000 

2. Advisory Board had now been completed and had four meetings. Consists of: 

•• Peter Affleck Interior licensees 
b. Jim GilVan TLA 
c. Monty Mearnes Steelworkers 
d. Tim Merming Interior contractors 
e. Julian Paine MoF 
!. Darrel Wong Steelworkers 

•• Berni Zinunerman Coastal licensees 

The BCFRT Advisory Board has approved Employee and Contractor MitigatIOn 
Guidelines, subject to the BCFRT being able to source the additional funds . 

3. Presentation and discussion of Contractor Mitigation Guidelines. 

a. Concept is fair market value 

4. Presentation and discussion of Worker ~itigation Guidelines. 

a. Concept is severa!\ce. 

S. Presentation and discussion of results of survey of all affected licensees. 

11. Estimated Contractor Impact 
b. Estimated Worker Impact 
c. Summary Sbeet 

6. Additional requirements for the BCFRT. 

7. Presentation and discussion of tile legal opinion from Blair Dwyer. 

8. Discussion of how to deal with shortfall 

a. Could come from $200 MM industry compensation (Embracing a new vision) 
b. Could come from FIA 
c. Could come from temporary stuntpage surcharge 

NOV 12 2004 12:49 604 G60 2457 PAGE. 01 
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BC Forestry Revitalization Trust 
Replaceable Contractor Mitigation Guidelines 

Guidelines for major licensees and contractors with respect to the loss 
of some or all of replaceable contracts as a direct result of 

Forestry Revitalization Act Timber Reallocation: 

The Province specifically denies any legal obligation to provide compensation to Contractors affected 
by the Forestry Revitalization Act (FRA) timber reallocation provisions. However, the Province has 
created the BC Forestry Revitalization Trust (BCFRT) as a matter of policy to consider the potential of 
providing redress for certain claims of Contractors with replaceable contracts that are directly impacted 
by the FRA. This policy approach does not extend beyond the BCFRT and does not limit or affect the 
position that the Province has taken, or may take, in court or any other legal proceeding, or any 
pOSition that it may take in assessing the impacts offuture govenunent decisions on logging 
Contractors. 

The BCFRT is a discretionary trust. No specific person has any right or entitlement to receive any 
funds from the BCFRT unless and until the BCFRT Trustee decides to make a payment to that specific 
person. Compliance with the guidelincs docs not guarantee receipt of any payment from the BCFRT. 
The guidelines are issued to assist applicants. However, the Trustee reserves the right to consider other 
factors not mentioned in the guidelines. Those other fa~tors may include the amount of funds available 
for distribution. 

1. Application: 

These guidelines are intended to apply to all Contractors who hold or held a replaceable contract as 
defined in the Timber Harvesting Contract and Subcontract Regulation and who lose some or all of 
their replaceable contractual rights as a result of timber reallocations resulting from the FRA. 

The BCFRT will accept claims for rcdress received from ncgatively impacted contractors until 
March 31, 2008, as those impacts are confinned through the timber reallocation process. Only 
replaceable contracts will be considered for mitigation. The BCFRT will not accept applications for 
mitigation related to non~replaceable contracts. 

The following outlines the process: 

Slep 1. 

Step 2. 

Licensees directly affected by the FRA must use Part 5.1 of the Timber Harvesting 
Contract and Subcontract Regulation to define what contractors will be affected by 
the taking of timber harvesting rights and the extent to which those contractors will 
be affected. The process is clearly explained in a document prepared by Davis & 
Company which is available by following the links on the BCFRT website at 
www.bcfrt.com. 

The Trustee of the BCFRT will address the Contractor's claim for mitigation in 
accordance with these guidelines and in consultation with the Contractor and the 
Licensee. 

BCFRT Contractor Mitigation Guidelines - Draft 6 - November 10, 2004 
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Step 3. 

Step 4. 

Step 5. 

Step 6. 

BC Forestry Revitalization Trust 
Replaceable Contractor Mitigation Guidelines 

The Contractor must respond promptly to requests for information from the BCFRT, 
must allow representatives of the BCFRT reasonable access to sites and equipment 
which the Contractor claims have been impacted by lbe FRA, and must allow 
BCFRT representatives access to (and the right to review and audit) records and 
source documents maintained by the Contractor to the extent that those documents 
pertain to the facts surrounding tile claim of impact submitted by the Contractor. 

The Contractor must provide detailed infonnation relating to employees, if any, that 
must be severed as a result of the FRA timber reallocation. 

The Contractor must disclose any replaceable sub-contracts that he has that arc 
related to the impacted replaceable contract. 

The Licensee must confirm the contract information and the reasonableness of 
Contractor claims of injury or loss. In addition the Licensee must obtain a release 
from the Contractor regarding the Lict;nsee's obligations to the replaceable 
Contractor. A sample fOml of release is attached to these Guidelines. 

2. Definitions: 

2.1 Average Contract Rate means the amount calculated by dividing the total contract 
billings by the total production volume for the Baseline Period, expressed as dollars per 
standard output unit of measure for that contract. 

2.2 Baseline Period means the portion of the calendar year prior to the Date of Impact, plus 
the previous two full calendar years. 

2.3 Contractor means a replaceable contr~ctor as defined in the Timber Harvesting 
Contract and Subcontract Regulation. 

2.4 Contribution to Profit means that portion of the Average Contract Rate assumed to 
remain after the Contractor pays all direct costs associated with the delivery of a 
standard unit of work under the contract. For the purposes of these Guidelines, the 
Contribution to Profit is: 

2.4.1 10% for a replaceable full phase contract, and 

2.4.2 7% for a replaceable single phase falling, bucking, skidding, yarding, grading, 
road building. hauling or booming contract. 

'. 

2.5 Date of Impact means the date on which the Contractor was materially affected by a 
volume reallocation resulting from the FRA. 

2.6 Economic Multiple means the multiple of the annual net cash flow available from the 
contract used by business evaluators to estimate the economic value of a contract. The 

BCFRT Contractor MUigation Guidelines - Drart 6 - November 10, 2004 
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BC Forestry Revitalization Trust 
Replaceable Contractor Mitigation Guidelines 

Economic Multiple is adjusted to reflect perceived busincss risk. The following 
Economic Multiples will apply in the calculation of the [mpact Payment 

2.6.1 With respect to a replaceable full phase contract, 4 years, and 

2.6.2 With respect to a replaceable single phase contract, 3 years. 

2.7 Eligible Impact means the amount a contract has been reduced, expressed in the units 
used. in the contract, such as cubic metres of wood harvested or handled, or kilometers 
of road built or maintained. 

2.8 Aggregate Impact Payment means the aggregate of all Impact Payments made by the 
BCFRT in respect of a single Contractor. 

2.9 Impact Payment means the amount which the BCFRT agrees to pay to a Contractor 
after applying these Guidelines to the Contractor with respect to the direct impact 
caused by the FRA on each of the following: 

2.9.1 Replaceable full phase contracts, 

2,9.2 Replaceable single phase contracts, 

2.9.3 Mitigation associated with the disposal of redundant equipment. 

2.10 Impacted Volume means: 

2.10.1 With respect to a timber harvesting contract, the reduction in the Nominal Work 
Volume available under,the contra~t, as notified in writing by the licensee, 
expressed in cubic meters. 

2.10.2 With respect to a road construction contract, the reduction in Nominal Work 
Volume, expressed in kilometers. : 

2.10.3 With respect to work performed under an hourly contract, the reduction in 
Nominal Work Volume expressed in hours of work. This reduction must be 
reasonably proportional to the AAC reduction experienced by the licensee for 
whom the work is done, either directly or indirectly. 

2.11 NomJnal Work Volume means the work volume available under a contract 
immediately prior to the Date oflmp~~t. 

3. Key Principles: 

3.1 An Impact Payment is made in the discretion of the Trustee and is not a right set out in 
legislation. Each [mpact Payment will be confinned in a separate Mitigation Agreement 
between the Contractor and the BCFRT. The Mitigation Agreement will contain 

-' 
BCFRT Contractor Mitig:l.tion Guidelines _ Draft 6 - November 10, 2004 3 
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BC Forestry Revitalization Trust 

Replaceable Contractor Mltigation Guidcliou 

clauses that limit the Contractor's right to commence any other proceedings or pursue 
any other legal remedies that may exist as a result of the FRA timber reallocation. 

3.2 The BCFRT will consider making an Impact Payment in respect of the direct impact of 
the FRA on each of the following: 

3.2.1 Replaceable full phase timber harvesting contracts, 

3.2.2 Replaceable single phase timber harvesting contracts, including contracts for the 
construction and/or maintenance'oflogging roads, and 

3.2.3 Redundant equipment that is disposed of in an arms length transaction. 

3.3 The BCFRT will not make any Impact Payment under this Framework with respect to 
indirect or consequential impacts of the FRA timber reallocation. 

3.4 As a general principle, the date of valuation for all impacts will be the Date of Impact. 

3.5 An hnpact Payment is separate from any "adjustment assistance" available under other 
provincial or federal/provincial arrangements and no Impact Payment is available for 
any claims that have been dealt with under those arrangements. In addition, no 
adjustment assistance is payable under those arrangements for claims in respect of 
which an Impact Payment was made under this Framework. 

3.6 The BCFRT will not make any Impact Payment with respect to any impact that the 
BCFRT reasonably considers to be anonnal business risk of the Contractor. 

3.6.1 No Impact Payment will be paid with respect to chattel and immovable assets 
employed in thc delivery of a non-replaceable timber harvesting contract 

3.7 An Impact Payment is available only with respect to demonstrated impacts directly 
attributable to the FRA timber reallocation. In order to pursue the process outlined in 
these Guidelines, a Contractor must confinn and provide, in a fonn satisfactory to the 
BCFRT, written details of the extent to which the FRA timber reallocation was the 
direct cause of a reduction in a replaceable contract In most cases, this will require 
production of at least a copy of the accepted Forestry Revitalization Proposal and may 
require the production of other relevant documents. 

3.8 Where subcontractors are used that hold replaceable contracts as defined in the Timber 
Hruvesting Contract and Subq>ntract Regulation, the Contractor will be responsible for 
identifying each subcontractor, and allocatirig among all subcontractors their appropriate 
share of the proposed Impact Payment. No Impact Payments will be made to the lead 
Contractor until agreement is made on payments to all replaceable subcontractors. 

3.9 The Contractor and sub"contractor must iden tify which of their employees should 
receive severance, and must confirm this list with the BCFRT and, if appropriate, the 

BCFRT Contractor Mitigation Guidelines - Draft 6 - November 10, 2004 
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Be Forestry Revitalization Trust 
Replaceable Contractor Mitigation Guidelines 

employee's union. Severance payments will not be subtracted from the Impact 
Payment. Severance payments are to be made by the employer. The employer may 
claim mitigation in respect of severance payments under the separate procedure set out 
in the Employee Mitigation Guidelines . 

3.10 As described in the Employee Mitigation Guidelines, if employers pay severance to 
employees and receive mitigation for that -severance from the BCFRT, neither they nor 
any affiliated company can rehire those employees for 6 months m the same or similar 
capacity and wage unless there is a material change in circumstances, such as access to 
significantly more fibre subsequent to the severance, or because another employee quits, 
dies or retires subsequent to the severance being paid, and that employee needs to be 
replaced . If the employer does rehire a severed employee, and the above conditions do 
not apply, the employer who paid the severance will be required to reimburse the 
BCFRT for the entire severance paid to the employee with BCFRT funds . 

3.11 Contractors and subcontractors may receive mitigation payments even though they find 
alternate work and therefore do not have to sever any employees . 

4. Impact Assessment: 

General: 

4.1 Each Impact Payment is subject to a test of market and economic reasonableness 
applied by the BCFRT, This test takes various factors into account, including 
"reasonable expectations" in the ordinary course of business. actual contract terms, 
Forest Act provisions, and normal business risks . Subject to the application of that test 
of market and economic reasonableness, however, Contractor mitigation will be 
calculated as shown in the following s~ction . 

Impacts on Work Volumes: 

4.2 The Impact Payment respecting impacts on work volumes will be calculated as : 

- The Impacted Volume, multiplied by 

- The Average Contract Rate, multiplied by 

The Contribution to Profit, multiplied by 

- The Economic Multiple. 

4.2.1 The Impact Payment payable and the calculations set out in Article 4.2 are 
subj ect to the following maximum caps: 

.~ 
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4.2.1.1 

4.2.1.2 

With respect to full phase timber harvesting contracts on the 
Coast, as defined by the Ministry afForests, $16.00 per cubic 
meter ofEligiblc Impact. 

With respect to full phase timber harv~ting contracts in the 
[nterior, as defined by the Ministry of Forests, $10.00 per cubic 
meter of Eligible Impact 

4.2.1.3 With respect to single phase falling and bucking contracts, $1.50 
per cubic meter of Eligible Impact. 

4.2.1.4 With respect to single-phase road building contracts, $30,000 per 
kilometer of Eligible Impact. 

Redundant Assets - General: 

4.3 The onus is on the Contractor [0 demonstrate to the BCFRT's satisfaction that an asset 
is redundant, and that the redundancy was caused directly by work volume reductions 
resulting from the FRA Timber Reallocation. 

Impacts on Chattel Assets: 

4.4 The BCFRT will not provide mitigation for moveable redundant equipment that is 
retained by the Contractor. 

4.5 When a Contractor can demonstrate the equipment was made redundant becausc of 
work reduction caused by the FRA, and the Contractor sells that equipment and does not 
replace it with similar equipment, the BCFRT will provide mitigation to the contractor 
equal to 25% of the gross selling price,ofthe redundant equipment to an anTIS length 
purchaser. 

4.5.1 In order to receive mitigation f()r redl.Uldant equipment as described above, the 
equipment must be sold within 6 months of the later of the Date of Impact or the 
signing of the Mitigation Agreement between the Contractor and the Trustee. In 
the event that market conditions are such that equipment cannot be sold within 6 
months, an extension of no more than 6 months may be granted ifit can be 
demonstrated that the equipment is actively for sale and is not in use in other 
operations. This could be substantiated by having the equipment on display in a 
used equipment lot, or scheduled for sale at an auction. 

Impacts on hnmovable Assets : 

4.6 The BCFRT win not provide mitigation for immoveable redundant assets that belong to 
the Contractor. 
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Repla<:eable Contra<:tor Mitigation Guidelines 

5. Aggregate Impact Payment 

5.1 Where the BCFRT and the Contractor agree on an Impact Payment with respect to any 
discrete claim of impact, the BCFRT may document and payout such claim. 

5.2 Subject to Article 3.5, the early payment of an Impact Payment may be made without 
limiting the Contractor's ability to continue· with negotiations with respect to other 
claimed impacts. (For example, the BCFRr may payout an agreed settlement with 
respect to a replaceable contract or sub-contract, while claims for other replaceable 
contracts with the same Contractor or redundant assets remain under negotiation.) 

5.3 The Contractor may request that the BCFRT process an interim payment respecting the 
Aggregate Impact Payment. 

5.3.1 In cases of financial distress, the Contractor may request an interim payment at 
any time after the provision ofinfonnation required under Article 1. 

5.3.2 The request for an interim payrri.~nt must include a statement from the Contractor 
confirming the Contractor has appiied' commercial diligence in the presentation of 
all information to the BCFRT, and believes the information provided represents a 
complete and accurate representation of the fads' surrounding the impact of the 
FRA timber reallocation on the Contractor. 

5.3.3 An interim payment will be treated as an advance. As Impact Payments are 
confirmed they will be applied first toward repayment of the interim payment. 

5.3.3.1 Once Impact Payments at least equal to the interim payment have 
been confirmed, all future Impact Payments, or portions of Impact 
Payments, will be, paid to the Contractor. 

5.3.3.2 Should the actual Aggregate IlnP.act Payment due the Contractor be 
less than the interim payment received by the Contractor, an 
overpayment situation shall exist and the Contractor will be liable 
for the repayment 0 '( any such overpayment. 

5.3.3,3 The Contractor will be required to undertake to repay any 
overpayment within 10 business days of notice from the BCFRT 
that such an overpayment exists. Should the overpayment not be 
repaid by the Contractor within 10 days of notice, the amount 
owing will bear interest from the tenth day at the rate prescribed in 
the Court Order Interest Act. 

6. In the event that a replaceable contractor can demonstrate a serious inequity resulting from the 
application of these guidelines, the Trustee may consider his arguments and suggest to the BCFRT 
Advisory Board that a modified payment be made. 

-' 
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Guidelines for major licensees and contractors with respect to 
severance of employees as a direct result of Forestry Revitalization 

Act Timber Reallocation: 

The Province specifically denies any legal obligation to provide compensation to 
workers affected by the Forestry Reviralization Act Timber Reallocation provisions. 
However, the Province has created the BC Forestry Revitalization Trust (BCFRT) as 
a matter of policy to consider, among other things, the potential of providing 
mitigation for certain claims of fo rest workers employed by licensees or contractors 
with replaceable contracts that are directly impacted by the Forestry Revitalization 
Act. This policy approach does not extend beyond the. BCFRT and does not limit or 
affect the position that the Province has taken, or may take, in court or any other legal 
proceeding, or any position that it may take in assessing the impacts of future 
government decisions on forest workers. 

The BCFRT is a discretionary trust. No specific person has any right or entitlement to 
receive any funds from the BCFRT unless and until the T rustee decides to make a 
payment to that specific person. Compliance with the guidelines does not guarantee 
receipt of any payment from the BCFRT. The.guidelines are issued to assist 
applicants. However, the Trustee reserves the right to consider other fac tors not 
mentioned in the guidelines. Those other factors may Include the amount of funds 
available for distn'bution. .. 

The intention of these guidelines is to enable each of the major licensees and 
replaceable contractors that have to sever staff as a result of timber reallocation 
pursuant to the Be Forestry Revitalization Act (FRA) to determine the amount of 
mitigation payments that may be covered by the BCFRT. 

Once the Ministry of Forests and the majoT licensees affected by the FRA have agreed 
upon the areas to be relinquished by the major licensees, the major licensees will go 
through a process with their contractors to ~etermine which contractors and or 
company crews will be affected by the .tim~;' reallocation. It will then be up to the 
licensees and contractors to determine which, if any, of th,eir employees will need to 
be severed as a result of the decrease in available work. I.icensecs nnd contractors 
will need to be guided by existing contractual obligations when deciding which, if 
any, employees will be seVered. 

The employer, either the licensee or the contractor as appropriate, will be responsible 
to conclude any negotiations regarding employee severance with their employees 
and/or the employees' union. No (;ontract buy-out payments will be made to 
contractors until any of the contractor's employees that will be severed have been 
identifled. However, the BCFRT will not fund any severance payments unless and 
until the employee is actually severed. Further, the severance has to be as a direct 
result of the loss of access to fibre caused by the 20% take-back mandated by the 
Forestry Revitalization Act. 

BeFRT Employee Mitigalion GuldeUnes _ Draft 7 _ Oc.tober 19, 2004 
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The following guidelines will apply to employee severance mitigated by the BCFRT: 

~ote: In the context of these guidelines, an affiliate is any corporation or business 
entity controlling, controlled by or under common control with the contractor or 
licensee. The effective date of severance is the date the employer ceased to use the 
selVices of the severed employee a5 a direct result of the Forestry Revitalizarion Act 
timber reallocation . A potentially eligible employee is a forestry worker as defined in 
thc BCFRT Trust Deed. A copy of the Trust Deed can be viewed at www.bcfrt.com. 

I. The number of employees severed by either a replaceable contractor or a 
major licensee should be consistent with industry averages as detennined by 
PricewaterholiseCoopers in its studies of the Be Forest Sector. This suggests 
that in the logging and forestry sector, including hourly, contract, and salaried 
employees, the Trustee would expect a maximum of approximately 0.5 
employee positions lost per thousand cubic metres ofIost logging opportunity 
on the Coast, and 0.3 employee positions lost per thousand cubic metres of 
lost logging opportunity in the interior. 

2. In most cases the number of severed employees will be less than the 
maximums noted above because there is no overall allowable annual cut 
(AAC) reduction, and the affected contra!;lOrS may fmd replacement contracts. 
In the case of company crews, the licensee will be expected to try to find 
alternate employment for displaced forestry workers within other company 
operations. Where a contractor has more than one operation, the contractor 
will be expected to try to find alternate employment for displaced forestry 
workers within affiliated operations. 

3, Mitigation payments will be detennined as follows: 

NOV 12 2004 12: 55 

a. On the Coast and in the Interior, 10 days of regular day's pay for each 
full ycar of continuous service, plus 10112 of a regular day's pay for 
each additional completed month of continuous service, with 
continuous service ending on the effective dale of severance, 

b, A regular day's pay for the purposes of severance should be calculated 
using the method used on the Coast to detennine payment made to the 
employee on the Statutory Holiday closest to the time of severance. 

c. In the case of employees that are approaching retirement age, either as 
defined by their contract or itS a result of company policy, the BCFRT 
will mitigate the lesser of severance as calculated above, or an amount 
equal to the amount the employee would have earned if they continued 
to be employed from the effective date of severance to their retirement 
In the absence of evidence to the contrary, il will be assumed that the 
employee would retire on their 65111 birthday. 

\, The annual amount the employee would have expected to earn 
between the effective date of severance and their retirement 
will be assumed to be the average of their gross wages as 
reported on their T -4 slips for 2001 and 2002, plus the net value 
of the lost pension benefits caused by the loss of employment. 
This amount will then be prorated over the number of days 
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between the effective date of severance and the date they would 
have retired if they had not been seven:d. 

ll. The calculation in 3. (c) (i) will only be perfonned if: 
I . The severance is not caused by a permanent closure of 

the operation; and 
2. The employee in question is within 2 years of 

retirement. In the absence of evidence to the contrary, it 
will be assumed that the employee is within 2 years of 
retirement on their 63 rd birthday. 

4. In order for the BCFRT to mitigate severance payments, workers receiving 
severance must have been employed full time by a major licensee or 
contractor in the harvesting side of the forest industry in British Columbia on 
March 31, 2003, or been on temporary lay-off, but worked full time for a 
portion of the previous year, and still have been on the seniority list on March 
J 1,2003. Employers seeking mitigation will have to demonstrate to the 
satisfaction of the Trustee an ongoing,long-tenn attachment to the employee 
being severed. The Trustee will consider increasing the recognized years of 
service in special cases where an employee has a longer-term attachment to 
the industry than to the current employer but, because of the closure or 
downsizing of other operation(s), lost their previous job(s), and did not receive 
severance pay for that job loss . In either case, the employee must lose or have 
already lost their jobs as a result ofthe Forestry Reviu;llization Act timber 
reallocation. 

5. Severance that cannot be directly linked to Forestry Revitalization Act timber 
reallocation will not be mitigated by the BCFRT. 

6. There need not be a permanent closure of the entire operation for the BCfRT 
to mitigate severance payments. 

7. If employees obtain re-employment with their previous employer at an 
alternate location, or with an affiliate of their previous employer, within 6 
months of the effective date of severance from their previous position, and 
continue to work in a similar capacity, severance would not be mitigated by 
the BCFRT. However, mitigation may be available in respect of workers who 
are moved by their employer to an alternate location or to an affiliate and work 
at a significantly lower wage. The amount of the mitigation will be based on 
the actual Joss to the worker as a result of the Forestry Revitalization Act 
timber reallocation. It will be negotiated between the Trustee, the employer, 
the worker and, if applicable, the worker's union. 

8. Mitigation payments may be available for workers who are moved by their 
employer to an alternate location or to an affiliate as a result of the Forestry 
Revitalization Act timber reallocation within 6 months of the effective date of 
severance from their previous position, and subsequently lose their jobs as a 
result of their lower seniority through no fault of their own, within three years 
of the date of transfer. Except in extenuating circumstances, mitjgation in 
respect of transferred employees will be reduced by 3% per month of 
employment that the transferred worker receives after the date of transfer. 
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Actual mitigation will be negotiated between the Trustee, the employer, the 
worker and, if applicable, the worker's union. 

9. In order for the BCFRT to mitigate any specific severance payment, the 
employer must actually sever the employee in question. The severed 
employee carmot be rehired by the same employer or an affiliate to work in the 
same or similar capacity, at the same Of similar wage, within 6 months of the 
effective date of severance, unless there is a material change in circumstance 
for the employer. Such a material change could be a contractor receiving 
access to significantly more fibre, Of the contractor or licensee needing to 
replace someone who died, quit or retired subsequent to the worker in question 
receiving severance. 

10. If the BCFRT mitigates a severance payment in respect of an employee who is 
re-employed by the contractor or licensee or an affiliate within six months 
from the effective date of severance, the contractor or licensee will be required 
to refund the full mitigation payment to the BCFRT, unless there is a material 
change in circumstances for the cmployer, as set out in Section 9. This 
restriction is requircJ to discourage the payment of severance for whal may be 
a normal seasonal lay-off. 

11. In the case of a reduction of an operation, severance need not be offered only 
to the employees with the lowest seniority. Rather, the company, the 
employees andlor the union can negotiate to detennine which employees will 
receive severance payments. 

12. If the result of these negotiations is that more senior employees receive 
severance payments, and those payments are higher than if junior employees 
had been severed, the higher severance payments will still be eligible for 
mitigation in accordance with paragraph 3 based on years of service of the 
employees who ate actually severed. 

13. Senior employees that could have relied on their seniority to retain their jobs, 
but chose to receive voluntary severance so that mote junior employees can 
retain their jobs, will be expected to give up their preferential hiring nghts and 
sign a release in the fOim attached to these guidelines . Junior employees that 
had no choice about whether or not they would be severed wilt stH! have to 
sign a release, but will not have to give up any preferential hiring rights they 
may have. 

14. Owner operators that receive contract buy-out payments will not be eligible 
for severance payments as well. However, ifan owner operator has worked 
exclusively for one employer for a number of Years, and if an appropriately 
calculated severance payment would provide better mitigation than a contract 
buy-out, then the contractor may choose to receive severance instead of a 
contract buy-out. 
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Sample Employee release form: 

Employer letterbead 

Dale: _____ _ 

1. ' hereby accept the (voluntary) severance pay offered to me 
and in exchange (voluntarily) terminate my employment with (the 
company) effective (the effective date of severance, which is the date the 
employer ceased to use the services olthe severed employee as a direct result of the 
Forestry Revitalization Act timber reallocation.). I further acknowledge that I am 
accepting this (voluntary) payment in full and final satisfaction of any claims, 
statutory or otherwise, that may arise out of my employment and the tennination of 
employment after the signing of this agreement. 

I acknowledge that I cannot be re·employed by the company or an affiliate of the 
company in the same or similar capacity and at the same or similar compensation for 
a period of 6 months from the effective dale of severance unless either: 

I . I return 100% of the severance payment to the company, so that the company 
can return the severance payment to the Be Forestry Revitalization Trust; or 

2. There is a material change in circumstance for the company. Such a material 
change could be the company receiving access to significantly more fibre. or 
the company needing to replace someone who died. quit or retired subsequent 
to my receipt of this severance pay. 

Plus the folloWing sentence if th is is a voluntary severance. A voluntary severance is 
one in which the employee being severed could have relied 011 "is or her seniority to 
retain their job, but chose to receive severance and allow a more junior persoll to 
retain their job. 

I acknowledge that by accepting this payment I relinquish any rights J may have for 
preferential hiring by the company. 

Signed: 
E'=m=pl;-:o'-yee~sC"ign=ature 

Note: Severance will be considered 10 be voluntary if accepted by an employee thai 
could have relied on their seniority to remain employed in the case 0/ a partial 
reduction 01 all operation, but chose instead to receive severance in order to aUow a 
persoll with less sel/iority to retain their job. 
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Moving Ectlmilt' of BCFRT Costs 

SummiUY Sheet 

FolloWing is my CUl'l'ent best estimate of Mitigation CQSts based on the Guidernes approved by the eCFRT Advisory Board. 
The estimates are based on information gatnercd from a variety 01 sources, Induding: 

Eltp8(ience with the Coast Sustainahility Trust 
Estimates provil:led by most of the affected licensees 

PricewaterhouseCoope!'S FOI'est Industry reportS 
Oiscusslotls with BCFRT AdVisory Board members 

Contractor mltig.tion: 

InterlOl' 
Coast harvesting 
Coast road building 
Coast Subtotal 
Equipment selling costs 
Total cont/acto!' mitigation 

Noles: 

$27,1:38,947 
$4,000,000 

$30,676,221 

$31,138,947 
$2,000,000 

The concept 01 a $181m3 cap was accepted on Ihe Coast. and a $1 0fm3 cap In the Interior 
appears to be acceptable based on information gathered abOut aCNal third party sales. 
The Coast road buUdlng number assumes 10,OOQmJ harvested per kin of road bUill by replaceable contractors 
There is resistance 10 no payments for redundant equipment , tlUt Ills defensible 
given the fact there is no actual MC reduction, and the Clment high tevel 01 activity in the 
industly suggests redundant equipment oould be sold at a reasonable price. 

Worker Mitigation : 

Interior 
Coast 

Total Worker Mitigation 

Notes : 

Ucensee 
estimates 

$24,702,570 

545,673,331 
$70,375,901 

Licel"lSee estimates of seniority were used in the interim, but IWA averages were usee! on the Coast as they 
were thought to mOfe likely to be accurate. The average IWA active worker In Local 2171 (mostly 
logging) was 13.8 years. A separa:e survey 01 7 coastal contractors representing 112 workers 
that will be displaced had en averaga of 13.1 years seniority. On the olher hanel. experience w ith the Coas! 
5ustalnability Trust had average senIOrity of 7.7 years, and a survey of 20 interior contraclors suggests an 
average 01 only 6.5 years seniority. 
Ongoing worX is being /Jone to improve the reliability of these estimales, but the numbels are not expected to 
Chan~ much unlit the acwal Forestry Revita lization Proposals are developed. 

Admlniltratlcm: 

The BCFRT actua!ly calls for edmi"istr"tion to COSI $5,000,000 However, il we can use 
lIle model suggested above. the 10181 01 trustee, administration, tegat, audit, independent 
contractors, and Advisory Board expenses Should be able to be kepi to thi. amount. 

Total 

NQ4es: 
The main potential weaknesses wilh the aboVe estimate are: 
The esllmatelor 5erMority may be low, which would incre,ue costs - low protlab~ity. Bas8(l on elCpe1'ieoce wilh 

the Coast Sustainability Trust it is mOle likely that seniority estimates al e high, so costs may come down. 
The numl:ler of employees to be severed may be wrong. With the current state 01 the industry, this is most likely to 

reduce costs, because severance numbers are more likely b go down than up. However, if there is a downturn 
belore the 20% take back runs thrOugh the system, severarce could go up · biggest unlu'lown. 

Contlctenllal 11112/2004 

Expected 
Costs 

$83,815,189 

$70,315,907 

$2,000,000 

$136,191 ,078 
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IfIbl rlor 

Abl~bi ConiOlldat«1lnc. 
A1nlwol1h lumbet Co. Ltd. 
Apollo Fore51 ProcI<ICIS 
8 HFP, Now nmb&- Baron FP 
Canfor CorporaSon 
Cer(oer Lumber 
Dunkley Lumber Ltd. 
Fede!"llted Co-operatlves 
Gorman Bros. Ll.I"I1ber Ltd. 
l akel.rd Mill, Lid 
Ugnl.lrnltd. 
LP Engine&ri!d WOO(! Products 
New Ske_ 
Pope. & TtlbolllCl 
Ftl ...... id. Forest Pmductl 
Sloe ... Foresl PrOduC1. 
Sluert Uikel.umber CO. ltd. 
Teal Cedar Prooucts lid. 
Tembec IndustrieS !rot. 
The Pu lomber Company 
ToI'«l ln®slOH Ltd. 
Wektwood 01 CI"Sda Lin'ited 
West F!Mer TImber CO. Ltel, 
W~eu5tr Canada 

, 

III of toalm3 
, 1I0C1l1ed to 
,.pl:a~abt. 

COnlrlletl 

2,9lO 
16.SOB 

607.401 
6.629 

14.952 
5,624 

12.457 
46.972 
56.339 

104.220 
193,981 
521,316 

31 .9112 
93,000 
38,193 

123,300 
278.120 
522,500 
t23.53O 

Mjuste!l Wei{;lted Av 5Im1 (58a r.ote) 
Tela! reported 10 dale 2.808.561 
Tot .. l lilke baC~ 
Percent leported to date 
Contrlctor Mitigation (buyoul only) 

COUI 

CanlOf Corporation 
Weslern Forest PtiXIuc;t, 

Husby Fore" PrOIM::15 
'nterlOf 
Teal Cedar PIOduc;tt 
nmbefWest GIOUp 
Wey1lf~"u$"" C..-..d;o 

231 ,130 
484.320 

6,109 
346,010 

57,160 
10,000 

564.200 

Adjusted We;ohled Av $1m3 (see nota) 
Total reportl!<i k:I date 1 ,700,~9 

Totll teke tJ.clI 

Moving Eslimele of BCFRT Mitigatiotl COl ta 
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MoYing Esrimato or BCFRT Mtiga~OI1 Costs 

ettimlted Wortler Impact 

Intenor NlImto..ol A" .. age Humbtrol ....... nlge Total 
Conpctor Seniority 01 Comll&ny SeniorIty of nLimbe. of 
.",ployees CO"fnctOf • ..,pl~U complny employees 
Ixpected to ImployeM upe<;lecllo elllploy.es ''''11..:110 to 
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b e nven><i bl severed 
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" 10.0 
Carrier lumbe< 0 

75 015 
0 

151 oJr company 5eniotiIV 
o 

Dunkley Lumber Ltd 
fede,.-dled CO~P8fiI~""1 
Gormlln Bros. Lumber ltd 
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7 10.0 
0 
0 , " .0 
0 
0 

" 11 .2 

'" 15.0 
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Major possible cost change &cenarlos 

Following are a variety of possible ways in which the total mitigation costs may 
end up being more or less than projected by the major Licensees. 

Scenario Description Cost Reduction Cost Increase 

2 

3 

4 

5 

Licensee estimate of employee severance on the Coast (1103 people) is too high If 
Ina! number is dropped to BOO. the savings would be: 

licensee estimate of employee severance in the Interior (664 people) is too high by 
approximately 50%. If that number is dropped to 350. the savings would be: 

Seniority is as experienced by the Coast Sustainability Trust (7.7 years, but highly 
unlikely based on discussions with numerous companies and associations) 

Seniority is as estimated by the Licensees on the Coast instead of being the same as 
the Steelworkers Local 1-2171 average. 

Seniority ends up averaging 10 years instead of the curently projected 14,1 years 
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· FORESTRY REVITALIZATION ACT 

FORESTRY REVITALIZATION ACT 
SBC 2003, c. 17 

Page I of 14 

Consolidated to October 21 , 2004 
- -

Ilast amendmentS: 2004 Bill 651 
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FORESTRY REVITALIZATION ACT Page 2 of 14 

Definitions 

1 (1)lnthisAct: 

"group of licences" means 2 or more licences that 

(a) are listed in an item of the Schedule under a group name 
assigned to them in Column 1 of that item, and 

(b) are each identified by licence number in Column 2 of that item; 

"licence" means a licence that is replaceable under the Forest Act and 
ISa 

(a) forest licence, 

(b) tree farm licence, or 

(e) timber sale licence; 

"timber licence" means a timber licence 

(a) that describes an area of Crown land that is not in a tree [ann 
licence area, and 

(b) is held by a person who is the holder ofa licence in a group of 
licences; 

"ungrouped licence" means a licence that is 

(a) mentioned in an item of the Schedule separately from other 
licences, and 

(b) identified by licence number in Column 2 of that item 

but does not include a licence in a group of licences. 

(2) Words and expressions used in this Act but not defined in subsection 
(1) or in a regulation under section 13 (2) (a) have the same meanings 
as in the Forest Act. 

Harvesting rights reduced for timber licences 
and certain replaceable licences 

... 1.1 For thl;: purposes of sections 2 (3) and 3 (3), "allowable annual cut" 
in relation to a tree fann licence in a group of licences means the 
allowable annual cut available to its holder .... 

Harvesting rights reduced for timber licences 
and certain replaceable licences 

2 (1) The allowable annual cut of an ungrouped licence identified in an 
item of the Schedule is reduced by the amount specified in Column 3 
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of that item. 

(2) Each area of Crown land described in a timber licence is reduced by 
20%. 

(3) The total of the allowable annual cuts of the licences in a group of 
licences listed in an item of the Schedule is reduced by the amount 
specified in Column 3 of that item opposite the group name, assigned 
in Column I, under which the licences are listed. 

Minister's orders 
3 (1) "By one or more orders in writing,. the minister 

(a) must attribute a reduction in area under section 2 (2) in equal or 
unequal portions, specified in the order, to one or more of the 
timber licences held by a licensee that is the holder of one or 
more licences in a group oflicences, and 

(b) for a timber licence to which all or a part of the reduction 
referred to in paragraph (a) is attributed, may provide that the 
reduction is to be accomplished by means of 

(i) one reduction, or 

(ii) a series of reduct ions occurring on different dates 
specified in an order. 

... (1.1) By one or more orders in writing, the minister must specify, for each 
of the timber licences referred to in subsection (1), the part of the area 
of Crown land described in the timber licence that 

(a) remains after 

(i) the reduction made by section 2 (2), and 

(ii) the attribution under subsection (1), or 

(b) is deleted from the timber licence as a result of the reduction and 
attribution." 

(2) "'By one or more orders in writing," the minister 

(a) must attribute a reduction of allowable annual cut under section 
2 (3) in equal or unequal portions, specified in the order, to one 
or more of the licences in a group of licences, and 

(b) for a licence to which all or a part of the reduction referred to in 
paragraph (a) is attributed, may provide that the reduction is to 
be accomplished by means of 

(i) one reduction, or 

(ii) a series of reductions occurring on different dates 
specified in an order. 
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FORESTR Y REVITALIZATION ACT Page 4 of 14 

tj) I he allQWal)le annual cm 01 a Ilcence lO which tile Ilumster attnoutes 
all or part ofa reduction made under section 2 (3) is reduced by the 
amount attributed by the order to that licence. 

.. (4) By one or more orders in writing. the minister may specify, for each 
tree fann licence in a group oflicences. the area of Crown land in the 
tree fann licence area that 

(a) remains after the reduction made by subsection (3), or 

(b) is deleted from the tree [ann licence area as a result of the 
reduction .... 

.. (5) A minister's order under this section 

(a) may be made or amended on any date in the 3 years after March 
31,2003, 

(b) may differ for different timber, places or transactions or for 
different licences or timber licences, and 

(c) may specify a date for subsection (5 .1) that is subsequent to the 
date the order is made .• 

.. (5.1)On 

(a) the date when a minister's order under this section IS made, If no 
subsequent date is speci fied for this subsection under subsection 
(5) (c), or 

(b) the subsequent date, ifone is specified for this subsection under 
subsection (5) (c), 

the minister's order 

(c) is deemed to have come into force on March 31, 2003, and 

(d) is retroactive to the extent necessary to give it effect on and after 
March 31, 2003." 

(6) Written notice of an order under this section must be delivered to the 
holder of a 

(a) licence, or 

(b) limber licence 

that is affected by the order. 

Provision of information 

4 (1) The minister, by written notice, may require the holder of an 
ungrouped licence, a timber licence or a licence in a group of li cences, 
at the holder's expense, to provide infollTIation that the minister 
considers necessary for the purposes of the orders referred to in 
section 3. 

, "' ~ • • • 1 ,. .. ,. " .. ., 
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FORESTRY REVIT AUZA TION ACT Page 5 of 14 

\.l} f\.t me nme ano III me roml ana manner reqUirea oy me mlnlSler, me 
holder of an ungrouped licence, a timber licence or a licence in a 
group of licences must provide the required information to the 
minister. 

(3) A holder of an ungrouped licence, a timber licence or a licence in a 
group of licences who contravenes subsection (2) commits an offence. 

Deemed amendments to affected timber 
licences and other licences 

5 (1) An ungrouped licence referred to in section 2 (1) is deemed amended 
to reflect the reduction under section 2 (I). 

(2) A timber licence referred to in section 2 (2) is deemed amended .. to 
reflect the minister's orders under section 3 (1) and (1.1)." 

(3) A licence referred to in section 2 (3) is deemed amended ... to reflect 
the minister's orders under section 3 (2) and (4)." 

Compensation 
6 (1) Each holder of an ungrouped licence is entitled to compensation from 

the government for a reduction under section 2 (I) of the allowable 
annual cut of the ungrouped licence, in an amount equal to the value, 
for the unexpired portion of the term of the licence, of the harvesting 
rights taken by means of the reduction. 

(2) Each holder of a timber licence is entitled to compensation from the 
government in respect of the part, ifany, of a reduction in the area of 
Crown land described in the timber licence that is made under section 
2 (2) and that is attributed under section 3 (I) to that licence in an 
amount equal to the value of the harvesting rights taken by means of 
the reduction. 

(3) Each holder of a licence in a group of licences is entitled to 
compensation from the government in respect of the part, if any, of a 
reduction of the allowable annual cut of the licence that is made under 
section 2 (3) and that is attributed under section 3 (2) to that licence, 
in an amount equal to the value, for the unexpired portion of the term 
of the licence, of the harvesting rights taken by means of the 
reduction. 

(4) In addition to the compensation to which the holder of an ungrouped 
licence, a timber licence or a licence in a group oflicences is entitled 
under subsection (1), (2) or (3), the holder is entitled to compensation 
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FORESTRY REVITALIZATION ACT 

from the govenunent in an amount equal to the value, detennined 
under the regu lations, of improvements made to Crown land that 

(a) are, or have been, authorized by the government, 

(b) are not improvements to which section 174 of the Forest 
Practices Code of British Columbia Act applies, and 

(e) are not, or have not been, paid for by the government under the 
Forest Act or the former Act as defined in the Forest Act. 

Page 6 of 14 

(5) An entitlement to compensation under this section vests in the holder 
to which it applies on March 31 , 2003. 

(6) A dispute between the minister and the holder of an ungrouped 
licence, a timber licence or a licence in a group of licences as to the 
amount of the compensation to which the holder is entitled under this 
section must be submitted to arbitration under the Commercial 
Arbitration Act. 

(7) Repealed. [2004-36-131] 

Limit on compensation 

7 (I) In this section, "compensation" includes damages. 

(2) The compensation to which the holder of an un grouped licence. of a 
timber licence or of a licence in a group of licences, is entitled under 
section 6 is limited to the amount of compensation detennined in 
relation to that licence under this Act. 

(3) No action lies, and an action or other proceeding must not be brought 
or continued, against the govenunent for compensation 

(a) arising out of this Act, 

(b) because of any of the things specified in or under this Act, or 

(c) because of any of the things specified in or under this Act in 
combination with any or all of the other things specified in or 
under this Act, 

in an amount that exceeds the amount limited under subsection (2). 

(4) The Expropriation Act does not apply to a reduction under section 2 
or 3 of this Act or to anything done by or under a minister's order 
referred to in section 3 of this Act. 

Act to be given effect 

8 (1) This Act must be applied to and must be given effect in every action 
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FORESTRY REVITALIZATION ACT Page 7 of 14 

or other proceeding whether commenced before, on or after 
March 31, 2003. 

(2) This Act must not be construed as lacking effect, whether retroactive 
or otherwise, in relation to any matter because it makes no specific 
reference to that matter. 

Appropriation for compensation 
9 In the 2002-2003 fiscal year of the government, the minister is 

authorized to pay not more than $200 million out of the consolidated 
revenue fund for the purpose of providing compensation to which 
holders of un grouped licences, of timber licences or oflicences in a 
group of licences are entitled under section 6. 

BC ~~orestry Revitalization Trust 

10 (1) In this section, "BC Forestry Revitalization Trust" refers to the 
trust 

(a) that has been created under that name by the deed of trust, dated 
for reference as of March 17,2003, between Her Majesty the 
Queen in Right of the Province of British Columbia, as 
represented by the minister, and the Bank of Nova Scotia Trust 
Company, the initial trustee, which deed of trust sets out the 
tenns and conditions of the BC Forestry Revitalization Trust, 
and 

(b) the purpose of which, under Part 2 of the deed of trust, is to 
mitigate adverse financial impacts suffered by any eligible 
person, as described in the deed of trust, as a result of 
restructuring of the forestry sector and forestry operations within 
British Columbia, arising out of reductions undcr the Forestry 
Revitalization Act of harvesting rights available to licensees 
under the Forest Act. 

(2) A true copy of the BC Forestry Revitalization Trust must be kept on 
file, and made available for public inspection without charge, in each 
regional office of the ministry. 

(3) For the purposes of section 24 of the Perpetuity Act, the BC Forestry 
Revitalization Trust is a trust for a specific noncharitable purpose that 
creates no enforceable equitable interest in a specific person. 

(4) In the 2002-2003 fiscal year of the govenunent, the minister must pay 
$75 million out of the consolidated revenue fund to the Be Forestry 
Revitalization Trust. 
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Balanced Budget and Millisterial Accountability Act 

11 For the purposes of sections 5 (1) and 6 (1) of the Balanced Budget 
and Ministerial Accountability Act in relation to the Minister of 
Forests for the 2002-2003 fi scal year, the estimated amount under 
section 6 (1) of that Act is the sum of the amounts appropriated 

(a) for the operating expenses for which that minister is responsible 
in the main estimates for that fiscal year, and 

(b) under sections 9 and 10 (4) of this Act. 

Clarification of scheduled items 

12 The Lieutenant Governor in Council, by regulation, may amend the 
Schedule to correct, as necessary, the names of li censees itemized in 
Column 1 and the licence numbers itemized in Column 2. 

Regulations 

13 (1) The Lieutenant Governor in Counci l may make regulations referred to 
in section 41 of the interpretation Act. 

(2) Without limiting subsection (I), the Lieutenant Governor in Counc il 
may make regulations 

(a) defining a word or expression not otherwise defined in this Act, 
and 

(b) for the purposes of section 6, prescribing respecting value, 
including but not limited to 

(i) detemlining value and defining the components that 
comprise val ue, 

(ii) prescribing methods of evaluation for use in detennining 
value, 

(iii) prescribing factors to be taken into account in an 
evaluation, 

(iv) defining the role of evaluators in a detennination of value 
and prescribing qualifications for evaluators that are 
prerequisite to their participation in the detennination of 
value, and 

(v) prescribing requirements for the selection of arbitrators . 

(3) A regulation made under this Act may 

(a) be made applicable generally or to a specific person, entity, thing 
or transaction, or class o f persons, entities, things or transactions, 

(b) for the purpose of the regulation, define classes of timber licence 
holders and of licence holders, other persons or entities, 
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FORESTRY REVITALIZATION ACT 

(c) for the purpose of the regulation, define classes of th ings or 
transactions, and 

Page 9 of 14 

(d) provide di fferently for different persons, entities, things or 
transactions, or for different classes of persons, entities, things or 
transactions. 

(4) In making a regulation under this Act, the Lieutenant Governor in 
Council may 

(a) delegate a matter to a person, and 

(b) confer a discretion on a person. 

(5) Regulations under this section may be made retroactive to 
March 31 , 2003 or to a later date the Lieutenant Governor in Counci l 
may specify by regulation and a regulation made retroactive in 
accordance with this subsection is deemed to have come into force on 
the date specified in the regulation. 

Schedule 

DI 
Column 1 1 CO.lumn 2 Column 3 

Allowable 
Licence Annual Cut 

Item Licensees Number (cubic metres) 
F===================~:F===~F==~~I 

[J]IAbitibi-Consolidated Company of Canada II AI5385 II 1831251 

~IIAinsworth Lumber Co. Ltd. II AI8700 II 296341 

CIJIApolio Forest Products Ltd. AI8156 II 41861 

01Buffalo Head Forest Products Ltd. AI6884 II 22 9281 

OJICANFOR GROUP II I 5560121 

DICanadian Forest Products Ltd. AI9208 " I 

DICanadian Forest Products Ltd. AI9213 " I 

D ICanadian Forest Products Ltd. AI9223 " 
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IInternational Forest Products Limited 
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I International Forest Products Limited 
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IInternational Forest Products Limited 
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[RFP Timber Ltd. 

I Riverside Forest Products Limited 

IRiverside Forest Products Limited 

IRiverside Forest Products Limited 

I Riverside Forest Products Limited 

[Repealed. [2004-36-134[ 

[SLOCAN GROUP 

ISlocan Forest Products Ltd. 

ISlocan Forest Products Ltd. 
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ITackama Forest Products Ltd. 

IPlateau Forest Products Ltd. 

IS locan Forest Products Ltd. 

I Slocan Forest Products Ltd. 

8 I Slocan Forest Products Ltd. 

I Slocan Forest Products Ltd. 

OISlocan Forest Products Ltd. 

DISlocan Forest Products Ltd. 

0 1 Slocan Forest Products Ltd. 

[J2]STUART LAKE LUMBER Co. LTD. 

[JD[TEAL CEDAR PRO DUCTS GROUP 

OITeal Cedar Products Ltd. 

OITeal Cedar Products Ltd. 
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OITembec Industries Inc. 

OITembec Industries Inc. 

O ITembec Industries Inc. 

O ITembec Industries Inc. 
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D[TFL Forest Ltd. 

OITFL Forest Ltd. 
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ITOLKO GROUP 

[Tolko Industries Ltd. 

[Tolko Industries Ltd. 

ITolko Industri es Ltd. 
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[Babine Timber Limited 
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[Weldwood of Canada Limited 
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1. Introductions 

Be Forestry Revitalization Trust 
Advisory Board Meeting 

10:30 am, September 8, 2004 
Truck Loggers Association Boardroom 

725 - 815 West Hastings Street, Vancouver 
Agenda 

2. Discussion with Doug Konkin, Deputy Minister of Forests, regarding the outcome 
of the BCFRT request of the Minister of Forests that more funds be made 
available. 

3. Trustee report on Trust Activities to date: 

a. Investing and Accounting for Trust Funds 
b. Meetings held to date 
c. Research done to date 
d. Most recent estimates of cost of Mitigation 
e. Review of Sensitivity Analysis. 

4. Discussion of draft Employee Mitigation Guidelines. 

5. Discussion of draft Contractor Mitigation Guidelines. 

6. Other business 

7. Time and place for next meeting 
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Konkin, Doug FOR:EX 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 

Cc: 
Subject: 

Coruractor Mlljaa~on 

Guideli .. , 

Doug, 

Eric van Soeren [eric@vansoeren.net] 
Wednesday, September 01 , 2004 11 :58 AM 
Affleck, Peter FORIN; Girvan, Jim FORIN; Monty Mearnes; Tim Menning; Paine, Julian C 
FOREX; Darrel Wong; Berni Zimmermann 
Konkin, Doug FOREX 
BCFRT Guidelines and Advisory Board Meeting reminder 

Peter, Jim, Monly, Tim, Julian, Darrel, Berni and 

This is a reminder of our next BCFRT Advisory Board 
meeting at 10:30 on September 8,2004 at the TLA 
office al 725 - 815 West Hastings Street in Vancouver. 
The meeting will start with Doug Konkin telling us 
what the Ministry of Forests can do to help us with 
our cash crunch. I then want to get into a discussion 
of the guidelines we need to establish for workers and 
contractors. I will also provide you with the most 
recent estimates of the probable cost of the proposed 
mitigation. 

Attached are draft employee and contractor mitigation 
guidelines. They are loosely based on the Coast 
Sustainability Trust, the Nisga'a Final Agreement 
settlement of contractor claims, discussions with each 
of you, the specific affects of the Forestry 
Revitalization Act, and financial constraints faced by 
the BCFRT. 

Please feel free to contact me before the meeting if 
you want to discuss anything in the draft guidelines. 

Regards , 

Eric 

Eric van Soeren 
phone: 604-940-0850 
fax: 604-940-0858 
email: eric@vansoeren.net 
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Guidelines for major licensees and contractors with respect to loss of 
replaceable contracts as a direct result of 

Forestry Revitalization Act Timber Reallocation: 

The Province specifically denies any legal obligation to provide compensation to Contractors 
affected by the Forestry Revitalization Act timber reallocation provisions. However, the 
Province has created the BC Forestry Revitalization Trust as a matter of policy to consider 
the potential of providing redress for certain claims of Contractors with replaceable contracts 
tbat are directly impacted by the Forestry Revitalization Act. This policy approach does not 
extend beyond the BC Forestry Revitalization Trust and does not limit or affect tbe position 
tbat the Province has taken, or may take, in court or any other legal proceeding, or any 
position that it may take in assessing the impacts of future government decisions on logging 
Contractors. 

1. Application: 

These guidelines are intended to apply to all Contractors engaged by licensees through 
replaceable contracts who claim redress with respect to impacts that arise directly from timber 
reallocations resulting from the Forestry Revitalization Act (FRA). 

The BC Forestry Revitalization Trust (BCFRT) will accept claims for redress received from 
impacted contractors on an ongoing basis, as those impacts are confimled through the timber 
reallocation process. Only replaceable contracts will be considered for mitigation. The BCFRT 
will not accept applications for mitigation related to non-replaceable contracts. 

The following outlines the process: 

Step I. 

Step 2. 

Step 3. 

Step 4. 

Before the BCFRT can become involved in mitigation to Contractors, the 
Ministry of Forests and the major licensees affected by the FRA must agree on 
the areas to be relinquished by the major licensees, and 

The licensees and the Contractors must finalize which of the Contractors will be 
affected by the timber reallocation. This can be a time consuming and 
complicated process. It is clearly explained in a document prepared by Davis & 
Company, and is available by following the links on the BCFRT website at 
www.bcfrt.com. 

The Contractor and the Trustee of the BCFRT will resolve the Contractor's claim 
for redress of impact in accordance with these Guidelines. 

The Contractor will provide detailed information regarding the nature of impacts 
and losses experienced, the measures used to mitigate those impacts, and any 
other costs associated with the impact of the FRA for which it is seeking redress. 
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Step 5. 

Step 6. 

Step 7. 

.'~ 

The Contractor will respond promptly to requests for additional or supplemental 
information from the Province, and will allow representatives of the BCFRT 
reasonable access to sites and equipment which the Contractor claims have been 
impacted by the FRA and, access to and the right to review and audit , records and 
source documents maintained by the Contractor to the extent that those 
documents pertain to the facts surrounding the claim of impact submitted by the 
Contractor. 

The Contractor will provide detailed infonnation relating to employees, if any. 
that must be severed as a result of the FRA timber reallocation. 

The Licensee will confirm the contract information, the reasonableness of 
Contractor claims of injury or loss, and will obtain a release from the Contractor 
regarding the Licensee's obligations to the replaceable Contractor. 

2. Definitions: 

2.1 Actual Work Volume means the average actual produ.ction achieved under a 
replaceable contract during the Baseline Period, expressed in the standard output 
unit of measure for that contract: 

2.1.1 With respect to a replaceable full phase timber harvesting contract, should 
the Actual Work Volume exceed the Nominal Work Volume, the Nominal 
Work Volume shall apply. 

2.1.2 Where the Nominal Work Volume has changed during the Baseline Period, 
the weighted average Nominal Work Volume for lhe Baseline Period will be 
used in all calculations. 

2.1.3 Where a Contractor has a mix of rep laceable and non replaceable contracts 
with the same Licensee, the total amount of work done on both types of 
contracts during the Baseline Period will be considered, and the Actual Work 
Volume used for purposes of calculating mitigation will be the based on the 
nominal ratio between the replaceable and non replaceable contracts. 

2.2 Available Work Volume means tbe Nominal Work Volume minus the Impacted 
Volume. 

2.2.1 Where the Actual Work Volume exceeds the Nominal Work Volume, the 
Available Work Volume wi ll be calculated by multiplying the difference 
(Nominal Work Volume minus the Impacted Volume) by a fraction having 
as its numerator, the Average Work Volume, and as its denominator, the 
Nominal Work Volume. 

2.3 Average Contract Rate means the amount calculated by dividing the total contract 
billings by the total production volume for the Baseline Period, expressed as dollars 
per standard output unit of measure for that contract. 
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2.4 Baseline Period means: 

2.4.1 With respect to the calculation of Actual Work Volume for a replaceable 
contract, the portion of the calendar year prior to the Date of Impact, plus the 
previous seven fuJI calendar years. 

2.4.2 With respect to the calculation of the Average Contract Rate for a 
replaceable contract, the portion of the calendar year prior to the Date of 
Impact, plus the previous two full calendar years. 

2.4.3 With respect to any calculation pertaining to a contract where the period of 
time the contractor has held the contract is less than the Baseline Period, the 
lesser of the period of time from the origin of the contract to the Date of 
Impact, or the period of time from the acquisition of the contract by the 
contractor to the Date of Impact, shall be used as the Baseline Period. 

2.5 Contractor means a contractor as defined in section 152 of the Forest Act. 

2.6 Contribution to Profit means that portion of the Average Contract Rate remaining 
after the Contractor pays all direct costs associated with the delivery of a standard 
unit of work under the contract. For the purposes of this Framework, the 
Contribution to Profit is: 

2.6.1 10% for a replaceable full phase contract, 

2.6.2 7% for a replaceable single phase falling, bucking, grading, hauling or 
booming contract, and 

2.6.3 10% for all other replaceable single phase contracts. 

2.7 Date of Impact means the effect ive date of the notice of impact to the Contractor. 

2.8 Economic Multiple means the multiple of the annual net cash flow available from 
the contract used by business evaluators to estimate the economic value of a 
contract. The Economic Multiple is adjusted to reflect perceived business risk. The 
following Economic Multiples will apply in the calculation of the Impact Payment: 

2.8.1 With respect to a replaceable full phase contract, 4 years, and 

2.8.2 With respect to a replaceable single phase contract, 3 years. 

2.9 Eligible Volume Impact means that portion of the Impacted Volume that is el igible 
for inclusion in the calculation of an Impact Payment being the difference calculated 
as the Actual Work Volume minus Available Work Volume, providing that 
difference is a positive number. No El igible Volume Impact arises where the 
Eligible Volume Impact is a negative number or zero, as the Contractor remains able 
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to achieve the historic level of work (the Actual Work Volume), despite a reduction 
in the Nominal Work Volume. Illustrative examples of this principle are contained 
in Appendix A to these Guidelines. 

2.10 Aggregate Impact Payment means the aggregate of the Impact Payments which the 
BCFRT and a Contractor have agreed is payable to that Contractor. 

2.11 Impact Payment means the amount which the BCFRT and a Contractor have 
agreed is payable to that Contractor under these Guidelines with respect to the direct 
impact caused by the FRA on each of the following items held by the Contractor: 

2.11.1 Replaceable full phase timber harvesting contracts, 

2.11.2 Replaceable single phase timber harvesting contracts, 

2.11.3 Immovable assets of the Contractor, which are owned or financed under a 
lease that is treated as a capital item for financial reporting purposes, and 

2.12 Impacted Volume means: 

2.12.1 With respect to a timber harvesting contract, the reduction 10 the Nominal 
Work Volume available under the contract, as notified in writing by the 
licensee, expressed in cubic meters. 

2.12.2 With respect to a road construction contract: 

2.12.2.1 Where the licensee provides specific notice in writing as to a 
reduction in the Nominal Work Volume available under the 
contract, that reduction, expressed in kilometers, shall apply, 
and 

2.12.2.2 Where no specific notice as to a reduction in the Nominal 
Work Volume is provided by the licensee, the Impacted 
Volume will be calculated as the Nominal Work Volume 
multiplied by the fraction having as its numerator the AAC 
reduction experienced by the licensee as a result of the FRA 
Timber Reallocation , and as its denominator, the total AAC 
of the licensee, prior to the FRA Timber Reallocation, 
expressed in kilometers. 

2.12.2.3 Where a Contractor holds contracts eligible under both 
articles 2.12.2.1 and 2.12.2.2, the contract eligible under 
article 2.12.2.1 will be excluded from the calculation under 
article 2.12.2.2. 

2.13 Nominal Work Volume means the work volume available under a contract 
immediately prior to the Date of Impact. 
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3. Key Principles: 

3.1 Settlement discussions will only proceed after a Contractor, who claims redress for 
an impact under the FRA Timber Reallocation, has agreed to the principles and 
processes set out in these Guidelines. 

3.2 An Impact Payment is based in policy and is not a right set out in legislation. Each 
Impact Payment and Aggregate Impact Payment, agreed to under these Guidelines 
will be confirmed in a separate Mitigation Agreement between the Contractor and 
the BCFRT. The settlement agreement will contain clauses that limit the 
Contractor's right to commence any other proceedings or pursue any other legal 
remedies that may exist as a result of the FRA Timber reallocation. 

3.3 An Impact Payment may be provided in respect of the direct impact of the FRA on 
each of the following: 

3.3 .1 Replaceable full phase timber harvesting contracts, 

3.3.2 Replaceable single phase timber harvesting contracts, including contracts for 
the construction andlor maintenance of logging roads, 

3.3.3 Immovable assets of the Contractor, which are owned or financed under a 
lease that is treated as a capital item for financial reporting purposes, and 

3.4 An Impact Payment is not payable under this Framework with respect to indirect or 
consequential impacts of the FRA timber reallocation. 

3.5 As a general principle, the date of valuation for all impacts will be the Date of 
Impact. 

3.6 An Impact Payment is separate from any "adjustment assistance" available under 
other provincial or federaVprovincial arrangements and no Impact Payment is 
available for any claims that have been dealt with under those arrangements. In 
addition, no adjustment assistance is payable under those arrangements for claims in 
respect of which an Impact Payment was made under this Framework. 

3.7 No Impact Payment will be paid with respect to any impact that the BCFRT 
reasonably considers to be a nonnal business risk of the Contractor. 

3.7.1 No Impact Payment wi ll be paid with respect to chatte l and immovable 
assets employed in the delivery of a non-replaceable timber harvesting 
contract. 

3 .8 An Impact Payment is available only with respect to demonstrated impacts directly 
attributable to the FRA timber reallocation. In order to pursue the process outlined 
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in these Guidelines a Contractor must confinn and provide, in a fonn satisfactory to 
the Province, written details of the following: 

3.8.1 The extent to which the FRA timber reallocation was the direct cause of a 
reduction in a replaceable contract; 

3.8.2 The extent to which the Impacted Volume resulted in a loss of actual work 
opportunity (in other words, evidence that the impacted Contractor had 
active capacity to fu lly use the contract amount); and 

3.8.3 The extent to which the loss of actual work opportunity resulted in direct 
financial impact to the Contractor's operation. 

3.9 An Impact Payment wi ll only be available after completion of all Ministry of Forests 
mitigation processes designed to moderate impact through the substitution of 
replacement work volume. 

3.10 The Contractor is obligated to mitigate the impact of the FRT timber reallocation on 
its business operations through all means reasonably available to it. 

3.10.1 The Contractor must demonstrate that it discharged its duty to take all 
reasonable steps to mitigate the loss, before and after the effective date of the 
FRT timber reallocation, including during and after the transition period. 
This includes specificall y, bona fide efforts to achieve similar contracting 
opportunities related to the reallocated timber. 

3.10.2 No Impact Payment wil l be paid with respect to any losses that the 
Contractor cannot demonstrate to the Province's satisfaction it has made 
efforts to mitigate. 

3.11 Where subcontractors are used. the Contractor will be responsible fo r identi fy ing 
that subcontractor, and allocating them their appropriate share of the calculated 
Impact Payment. No Impact Payments will be made to the lead Contractor until 
agreement is made on payments to sub-contractors. 

3. t 2 Both the Contractor and sub-contractor are responsible for identifying their 
employees that should receive severance. Severance will not be subtracted from the 
Impact Payment. Severance will be paid by the employer, and the employer will be 
reimbursed by the BCFRT. 

3. 13 Contractors and sub-contractors may receive mitigation payments even though they 
find alternate work and therefore do not have to sever any employees. If they sever 
employees and cause the ex-employees to receive severance paid by the BCFRT, 
neither they nor any affiliated company can rehi re those employees fo r 12 months. 
If they do, the employer who paid the severance will be required to reimburse the 
BCFRT for the entire severance paid to the employee with BCFRT funds. 
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4. Impact Assessment: 

General: 

4.1 The estimate of each Impact Payment is subject to a test of market and economic 
reasonableness, taking into consideration "reasonable expectations" in the ordinary 
course of business, actual contract terms, Forest Act provisions, and nonnal business 
risks. 

Impacts on Work Volumes: 

4.2 The Impact Payment respecting impacts on work volumes will be calculated as: 

The Actual Work Volume, minus 

The Available Work Volume, with that difference being the Eligible Volume 
Impact. 

To the extent the Eligible Volume Impact is a positive number, the Impact Payment 
will be calculated as: 

The Eligible Volume Impact, mUltiplied by 

The Average Contract Rate, multiplied by 

The Contribution to Profit, multiplied by 

The Economic MUltiple. 

4.2.1 The Impact Payment payable and the calculations set out in Article 4.2 are 
subject to the following maximum caps: 

4.2.1.1 

4.2 . 1.2 

4.2.1.3 

4.2.1.4 

Redundant Assets - General: 

With respect to full phase timber harvesting contracts on the 
Coast, as defined by the Ministry of Forests, $16.00 per cubic 
meter of Eligible Volume Impact. 

With respect to full phase timber harvesting contracts in the 
Interior, as defined by the Ministry of Forests, $10.00 per 
cubic meter of Eligible Volume Impact. 

With respect to single phase falling and bucking contracts, 
$1.50 per cubic meter of Eligible Volume Impact. 

With respect to single-phase road building contracts, $30,000 
per kilometer of road building opportunity lost. 
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4.3 The onus is on the Contractor to demonstrate to the BCFRT's satisfaction that an 
asset is redundant, and that the redundancy was caused directly by work volume 
reductions resulting from the FRA Timber Reallocation. 

4.4 To the extent practicable, in situat ions where redundant immovable assets remain in 
the possession of the Contractor during the period after the Date of Impact, the 
Contractor has an obligation to maintain redundant immovable assets in use in other 
areas of the Contractor's operations, or try to find alternative uses for the assets. 

4.4.1 The [mpact Payment, otherwise payable with respect to a redundant 
immovable asset, will be reduced by the revenue generated (net of costs), or 
revenue that ought to have been generated, from the assets during such 
transition periods. 

4.5 The Province will pay the cost of any valuation or appraisal required to support the 
calculation of the bnpact Payment. 

Impacts on Chattel Assets: 

4.6 The FRA caused a reallocation of timber harvesting rights, but no reduction in 
allowable annual cut. In most parts of the province the harvesting side of the torest 
industry is very active. It appears that the FRA has not caused any reduction in the 
value of harvesting equipment and, province wide, there is little or no redundant 
equipment. Any contractors that lose replaceable contracts, cannot find alternate 
contracts, and therefore choose to sell their logging or road building equipment, 
should be able to sell their redundant equipment into a buoyant market and therefore 
not suffer financia lly on the sale of equipment. Therefore; 

4.6.1 The BCFRT will not provide any mitigation for normal moveable redundant 
equipment. 

Impacts on Immovable Assets: 

4.7 Where an immovable asset, such as a camp or other permanent fixture. is located in 
an area where 100% of the volume available to the contractor has been eliminated as 
a result of a FRA timber reallocation, that immovable asset will be considered to be 
impacted. 

4.7.1 Where an immovable asset is located near, but not in, an area lost to the 
contractor as a result of the FRA timber reallocation, that camp or fixture 
will not be considered impacted. Any change in the utility of the camp or 
fixture resulting from the change in AAC occurring as part of the Final 
Settlement will be considered to be a nonnal business risk . 
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4.8 Where an immovable asset has been impacted, and the contractor chooses to receive 
mitigation for that impact, it will be transferred in its current state to the province at 
the date of payment of the Mitigation amount. 

4.8.1 The BCFRT will provide mitigation for the immovable asset granted to the 
province by the Contractor at its estimated economic value, immediately 
prior to the FRA Timber Reallocation, without considering the impact that 
the pending FRA Timber Reallocation might have on the market existing at 
that time. 

4.8.1.1 

4.8.1.2 

4.8.1.3 

4.8.1.4 

4.8.1.5 

If the BCFRT and the Contractor are unable to agree as to the 
market value of the asset, each will select an 
evaluator/appraiser, independent of their intercl'>tl'>. for the 
purpose of confirming an estimate of economic value. 

The two evaluators will each submit an estimate of value. 
Providing the two estimates of value do not differ by more 
than 10%, the average will be accepted as the economic 
value. 

It the two evaluations differ by more than 10%, the two 
evaluators will select a third evaluator, acceptable to and 
independent of both parties, whose opinion of value will be 
binding on the parties. 

Evaluators will consider in their estimate of the economic 
value the viability of the camp or fixture as a result of its 
location with respect to future work potential (prior to the 
FRA Timber Reallocation). The expected useful life of the 
camp or fixture may be reduced, as a normal business risk, as 
a result of limited work potential in the area. 

In the absence of a demonstrated arm's length market value 
for the asset, the economic value will be estimated as the 
present value of the income stream the asset could reasonably 
generate over its remaining useful Ii fe. 

4.9 The Contractor has the right to remove all mobile or chattel assets from the site 
providing that can be done without creating new environmental or physical hazards 
on the site, and without creating damage to the camp or fixture that would impact the 
ongoing intended use of that asset. 

4.10 Environmental or physical hazards existing on the site as at the date of impact are 
the responsibility of the Contractor, to the extent liability is set out in legislation. 
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4.10.1 Where the Province has reason to believe a hazard might exist on the site. 

the Province shall inspect the site for the purpose of confirming the extent of 
such hazard. 

4.10.2 Where a hazard is identified, the cost of remediation wi ll be estimated by the 
Province and the Aggregate Impact Payment, otherwise due the Contractor, 
will be reduced by the estimated cost of remediation. 

4.10.3 The estimated cost of remediation will be held in a segregated account 
pending completion of the work to the satisfaction of the Province. 

4.10.4 The Contractor has the right to complete the remediation work, at which 
point the funds held in the segregated account will be released to the 
contractor. 

5. The negotiation of the Aggregate Impact Payment is considered to be incremental. 

5.1 Where the BCFRT and the Contractor agree on an Impact Payment with respect to 
any discrete claim of impact, the BCFRT will document and payout such claim. 

5.2 Subject to Article 3.5, the early payment ofan Impact Payment may be made 
without limiting the Contractor's ri ght or ability to continue with negotiations with 
respect to other claimed impacts. (For example, the BCFRT may payout an agreed 
settlement with respect to a replaceable contract or sub-contract, while claims for 
other rep laceable contracts with the same Contractor or redundant Immovable assets 
remain under negotiation.) 

5.3 The Contractor may request the BCFRT process an interim payment respecting the 
Aggregate Impact Payment. 

5.3.1 The Contractor may request an interim payment at any time after the provision 
of information required under Article I, Step 2. 

5.3.2 The request for an interim payment must include a statement from the 
Contractor confirming the Contractor has applied commercial diligence in the 
presentation of all information to the BCFRT with respect to this Agreement, 
and believes the information provided represents a complete and accurate 
representation of the facts surrounding the impact of the FRA timber 
reallocation on the Contractor. 

5.3.3 

5.3.4 The BCFRT will use its best efforts to expedite the interim payment, to ensure 
the payment is transmitted to the Contractor within 10 business days of receipt 
and acceptance of its requisition. 

5.3.5 As Impact Payments are confi rmed they will be applied first to the repayment 
of the interim payment . 
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5.3.5.1 

5.3.5.2 

5.3.5.3 

-

Once the interim payment has been repaid, all future Impact 
Payments, or portions of Impact Payments, will be paid to the 
Contractor. 

The Contractor will be required to confirm that should the 
actual Aggregate Impact Payment due the Contractor be less 
than the interim payment received by the Contractor, an 
overpayment situation shall exist and the Contractor wi ll be 
liable tor the repayment of any such overpayment. 

The Contractor will be required to undertake to repay any 
overpayment wi thin 10 business days of notice from the 
BCFRT that such an overpayment exists. Should the 
overpayment not be repaid by the Contractor within 10 days of 
notice, the amount owing wi ll bear interest from the tenth day at 
the rate prescribed in the Court Order Interest Act. 

6. In the event that a replaceable phase contractor can demonstrate a serious inequity resulting 
from the application of these guidelines, the Trustee may consider his arguments and suggest 
to the Advisory Board that a modified payment be made. 
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Appendix A to 
Guidelines for major licensees and contractors with respect to loss of 

replaceable contracts as a direct result of 
Forestry Revitalization Act Timber Reallocation 

Illustrative Examples 

Example 1: Contractor has a 10Dk cu m replaceable contract, but historically cut BSk 
cu m. Contract work volume was reduced 40k cu m as an impact of a Final 
Agreement. 

Prior to Date of Impact After Date of Impact 

Work not 
completed due 
to market 
conditions 15k 

Nominal Work Volume 100k 

Actual Work Volume 8Sk 

H .'" " .- " ill W>N 

Available Work Volume 60k 

Contractor's ability to work at 
historic levels is impaired by 
the reduction in contract work 
volume. 
Impact Amount is based on the 
Eligible Volume Impact. not the 
Impacted Volume 
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Example 2: Contractor has a 100k cu m replaceable contract, but historically cut only 
70k cu m. Contract work volume was reduced 25k cu m as an impact of a Final 
Agreement. 

Prior to Date of Impact After Date of Impact 

/ 
not 

pleted due 
Wor!< 
com 
to m 
cond 

arket 
itions 30k 

C> 
C 
·0 
~ 
~ 

~ 

.'!I 
~ 
E 
8 
~ 

~ 
~~ 
Q) .;:: 

~~ 
• • 0> .!:: 
0-" . . ~ 
> 0 

"'''' 

Nominal Work Volume 100k 

Available Work Volume 75k 

Actual Work Volume 70k 
... . • .....• .. .... . 

Available Work Volume 
exceeds Actual Work 
Volume. 
Eligible Volume Impact is 
negative. 

There is no impact as the 
contractor can still complete 
the historic level of work within 
the reduced work levels in the 
contract. The Eligible Volume 
Impact is negative, hence there 
is no Impact Payment. 

~ 

"' ~N •• 13 E 
o ~ 
0._ 
E 0 -> 

- -

k"- .... 
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Be Forestry Revitalization Trust_ 
Employee Mitigation Guidelines 

Guidelines for major licensees aDd contractors with respect to 
severance of employees as a direct result of Forestry Revitalization 

Act Timber Reallocation: 

T he Province specifically denies aoy legal obligation to provide compensation to 
workers affected by the Forestry Revitalization Act Timber Reallocation 
provisions. However, the Province has created the BC Forestry Revitalization 
Trust as a matter of policy to consider, among other things, the potentia l of 
providing redress for certain claims of forest workers employed by licensees or 
contractors with replaceable contracts tbat are directly impacted by the Forestry 
Revitalization Act This policy approach does not extend beyond the BC 
Forestry Revitalization Trust and does not limit or affect the position that the 
Province has taken, or may take, in court or any other legal proceeding, or any 
position that it may take in assessing tbe impacts of future government decisions 
on forest workers_ 

The intention of these guidelines is to enable each of the major licensees and 
replaceable contracto rs that have to sever staff as a result of timber reallocation 
pursuant to the Be Forestry Revitalization Act (FRA) to determine the amount of 
mit igation payments that will be covered by the Be Forestry Revitalization Trust 
(BCFRT). 

Once the Ministry of Forests and the major licensees affected by the FRA have agreed 
upon the areas to be relinquished by the major licensees, the major licensees wi ll go 
through a process with their contractors to determine which contractors and or 
company crews will be affected by the timber reallocation. It will then be up to the 
licensees and contractors to detennine which, if any, of their employees will need to 
be severed as a result of the decrease in available work. 

The employer, either the licensee or the contractor as appropriate, will be responsible 
to conclude any negotiations regarding employee severance with their employees 
and/or the employees ' union. No contract buy-out payments will be made to 
contractors until any of the contractor's employees that wi ll be severed have been 
identified. However, actual severance payments will not be made unless and until the 
employee is actually severed. 

The following guidelines will apply to employee severance: 

1. The number of employees severed by either a replaceable contractor or a 
major licensee should be consistent with industry averages as determined by 
PricewaterhouseCoopers in its studies of the BC Forest Sector. This suggests 
that in the logging and forestry sector, including hourl y, contract, and salaried 
employees, we would expect a maximum of approximately 0.5 employee 
positions lost per thousand cubic metres of lost logging opportunity on the 
Coast, and 0.3 employee positions lost per thousand cubic metres of lost 
logging opportunity in the interior. 

2. In most cases the number of severed employees wi ll be less than the 
maximums noted above because there is no overall allowable annual cut 
(AAC) reduction, and the affected contractors may find rep lacement contracts. 
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.' , Be Forestry Revitalization Trust 
........... Employee Mitigation Guidelines 

,,~ 

In the case of company crews, the licensee wi ll be expected to try to find 
alternate employment for displaced forestry workers within other company 
operations. 

3. The IW A Master Agreement will guide the amount of severance offered to 
employees by their employers. Therefore severance payments will be 
determined as follows: 

a. On the Coast and in the Interior, to days of regular day's pay for each 
full year of continuous setvice, plus 7112 of a regular day's pay for 
each additional fu ll month of con tinuous service. 

b. A regular day's pay for the purposes of severance on the Coast should 
be calculated using the method used to determine payment made to the 
employee on the Statutory Holiday closest to the time of severance. 

c. A regular day's pay for the purposes of severance in the Interior should 
be calculated as being based on an eight hour shift equivalent. 

4. In order to receive severance payments, workers must have been employed 
full time in the harvesting side forest industry in British Columbia as defined 
by the Trust Deed on March 31, 2002, or been on temporary lay-off, but 
worked full time for a portion of the previous year, and still have been on the 
seniority list on March 31, 2002. Further, they must lose or have already lost 
their jobs as a result of the Forestry Revitali zation Act timber reallocation. 

5. Severance that cannot be directly linked to Forestry Revitalization Act Timber 
reallocation wi ll not be covered by the BCFRT. 

6. Severance can be offered and paid for by the BCFRT even though there is not 
a pennanent closure of the operation. 

7. If employees have been moved by their employer to an alternate location or to 
an affil iated company, severance would not be funded by the BCFRT. 

8. In order to receive severance funded by the BCFRT, the employee must 
actually be severed, and cannot be rehired by the same employer or an 
affiliated company within one year.ln this context, an affi li ate is any 
corporation or business entity controlling, controlled by or under common 
control with the contractor. 

9. If an employee who receives severance funded by the BCFRT is re-employed 
by the contractor or an affi liated company within one year, the contractor that 
made the severance payment will be required to refund the fu ll severance 
payment to the BCFRT. This restriction is required to discourage the payment 
of severance for what may be a normal seasonal lay-off. 

10. Employees that have partially mitigated their loss by finding alternate 
employment may still be eligible to receive severance. 

11. In the case of a partial closure of an operation, severance need not be offered 
only to the employees with the lowest seniority. Rather, the company, the 

BCFRT Emptoyee Mitie:ation Guidelines - Draft - September I , 2004 2 

FNR-2013-00252 
Page 329



Be Forestry Revitalization Trust 
• Employee Mitigation Guidelines _ 

union andlor the non-union employees can negotiate to detennine which 
employees will receive severance payments. 

12. If the result of these negotiations is that more senior employees receive 
severance payments, and those payments are higher than if junior employees 
were severed, the BCFR T wil1 pay the increased severance, up to the IW A 
Master Agreement standard. 

13. Employees that receive volWltary severance will be expected to give up their 
preferential hiring rights and sign a release in the fonn attached to these 
guidelines. 

14. Owner operators that receive contract buy-out payments will not be eligible 
for severance payments as well. However, if an owner operator has worked 
exclusively for one employer for a number or years, and if an appropriately 
calculated severance payment would provide better mitigation than a contract 
buy-out. then the contractor may choose to receive severance instead of a 
contract buy-out. 
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Be Forestry Revitalization Tru!ll.. 
• Employee Mitigation Guidelines • 

Sample Employee release fonn: 

Employer letterhead 

Date: _____ _ 

I, • hereby accept the voluntary severance pay offered to me 
and in exchange voluntarily tenninate my employment with (the 
company). I further acknowledge that I am accepting this voluntary payment in full 
and final satisfaction of any claims, statutory or otherwise, arising out cfrny 
employment and the termination of employment. 

I acknowledge that I cannot be re-employed by the company or an affiliate of the 
company for a period of one year unless I return 100% of the severance payment to 
the company, so that the company can return the severance payment to the Be 
Forestry Revitalization Trust. 

Plus one of the following paragraphs: 

I have read the agreement between I. W. A. Canada, Local _ and the Company 
dated and acknowledge that by accepting this payment I relinquish all 
rights under the preferential hiring provisions of the IW A Master Agreement. 

Or, if no agreement has been made with the IW A, 

I acknowledge that by accepting this payment [ relinquish all rights I may have under 
the preferential hiring provisions of the IW A Master Agreement. 

Or, in the case of a non-union compally, 

I acknowledge that by accepting this payment I relinquish any rights I may have for 
preferential hiring by the company. 

Signed:~~_-,--_ 
Employee signature 
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• de Lestard, Andrea FOR: EX 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 

de Lestard, Andrea FOR EX 
Tuesday, June 22, 2004 1 :09 PM 
Foster, Doug F1N:EX 

• 
Cc: 
Subject: 

Alexander, Janice E FOREX; Ransom, lisa F1N:EX; Mazure, John C FIN:EX 
FW: 80115 FW: Q&As related to Forest Revitalization and Infastructure Trust 

Importance: High 

Doug, Doug Konkin reviewed this and made a couple of minor changes and I am now sending this on to you (see your 
request to Doug of June 14th -way down - in the emaillist.). We hope that this will suffice for what you were asking for, 
Doug, If you have any questions, please call me. Doug K. is away now until Friday. 

Thanks . 

Andrea for Doug Konkin 
356-5012 

---Original Message-
From: de Lestard, Andrea FOR:EX 
Sent: Tuesday, JlSle 22, 200411:11 AM 
To: Paine, Julian C FOR:EX: Alexander, Janice E FOR:EX 
Subject: RE: 80115 FW: Q&As related to Forest Re'iitaization aoo Infastructure Trust 
Importance: High 

The Deputy has approved the attached with minor changes as highlighted below. 

-Original Message---
From: Paine, Julian C FOR:EX 
Sent: Tuesday, June 22, 2004 10:19 AM 
To: Alexander, Janice E FOR:EX; de Lestard, Andrea FOR:EX 
Subject: RE: 80115 FW: Q&As related to Forest Re'iitallzation and Infastructure Trust 

a -What was the impact of the $200 million Ministry of Forests liabi1ity, related the Forest Revitalization Act, that has 
been paid out? 

A - There was no impact on the 03104 Public Accounts from the $200 million appropriated under the Forestry 
Revitalization Act since no payments have yet been made. The amount represents the best estimate of compensation 
payable to forest licensees for the timber harvesting rights and improvements taken back by the Crown for reallocation 
to new tenure holders. It is expected that as the reallocalion process proceeds to its conclusion in March 2006, 
licensees will begin to apply for compensation . The first payments are likely to be made in 2005. 

a -What happened to the $75 million placed in the Be Forestry Revitalization Trust money by the Minister of Forests 
in 2002l03? How has the trust money been spent? 

A - The Forestry Revitalization Act also established the Trust to mitigate the impacts of tenure reallocation on 
forestry contractors and workers. A permanent Trustee was apPOinted in March 2004. No benefits have been paid 
from the Trust to date because the reallocation process has yet to result in any worker layoffs or loss of contracts by 
forestry contractors. It is expected that beginning in 2005, as the first of the transfers of harvesting rights occurs, 
impacted workers and contractors will begin to apply for assistance from the Trust. The Trust can make payments 
through the end of March, 2008 at which time it will be collapsed with any remaining funds distributed to beneficiaries. 

Julian C. Paine 
Executive Director 
Tenure and Revenue 
(250) 356-5109 

-Original Message---
From: Alexander, Janice E FOR:EX 
Sent: Tuesday, June 22, 2004 8:45 AM 
To: Paine, Julian C FOR:EX 
Cc: de lestard, Andrea FOR:EX: Hall, Donna L FOR;EX 
Subject: RE: 60115 FW: Q&As related to Forest Revitalization and InfastruCltJre Trust 
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Importance: High • Hi Julian - Doug is so we need this info in the next couple of hours please so 
he can review before he leaves. Thanks very much. 

-----Original Message----
From: de Lestard, Andrea FOR:EX 
Sent: Monday. June 14. 2004 2:12 PM 
To: Paine, Julian C FOR:EX; Konkin. Doug FOR:EX 
Cc: Alexander, Janice E FOR:EX 
Subject: 60115 FW: Q&As related to Forest Revitalization and Infastructure Trust 
Importance: High 

Doug I Julian, I'm asking Janice to SF this request for a week prior to the due date of June 29th. We'll need to 
have this in for Doug's review by June 22nd to ensure we have enough time to edit the material prior to having 
to send it over to Doug Foster. 

Please review the questions and do whatever preparation is necessary, Julian. Thanks. 

Janice, please SF for June 22nd. Thanks. 

-Original Message-
From: Ransom, Usa FIN:EX 
Sent: Monday, June 14, 2004 1:08 PM 
To: Anderson, Lisa FOR:E)(; de Lestard, Andrea FOR:EX 
Subject: FW: Q&As related to Forest Revitalization and Infastructure Trust 

Hi Lisa/Andrea, 
Doug Foster send this directly to Doug K. Please note deadline of June 29th for release of Public Accounts 
and request for briefing material prior to then. 

- ---<>rlglnal Message---.. 
From: Foster, Doug FIN:EX 
Sent: Monday, June 14, 2004 11:58 AM 
To: Paine, Julian C FOR:EX; Kookin, Doug FOR:EX 
Cc: Ransom, Usa AN:EX; Mazure, John C AN:EX 
Subject: FW: Q&As related to Forest Revftalizatlon and Infastruc.ture Trust 

here are a couple of Os the OCG has asked us to do in prep for the release of the PAs for 03/04 on June 29 (i 
think). 

yes, these liabilities were 02/03 transactions, but what they want is a status report for each. 

can you send me something simple? 

----..()riginal Message-----
From: Bames, Melina AN:EX 
Sent: June 14, 2004 10:57 AM 
To: Foster, Doug AN :EX 
Cc::: Reuther, Barbara E AN :EX 
SUbject: Q&As related to Forest Revitalization and Jnfastructure Trust 

Doug, 

Per your conversation with Barb Reuther this morning. Here are the two questions that need some 
explanation. 

Q - What was the impact of the $200 million Ministry of Forests liability, related the Forest Revitalization Act, 
that has been paid out? 
The answer should state why no monies have been spent yet. 

Q - What happened to the $75 million Forest Infastructure Trust money that the Minister of Forests issued in 
2002l03? How has the trust money been spent? 
The answer should state why no monies have been spent yet. 

Thanks for your help 
Melina 
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• Melina Barnes 
Financial Reporting and Advisory Services 
Ministry of Finance 
ph: 250-387-9238 
fax: 250-356-8388 
email: Melina.Barnes@gems7.gov.bc.ca 

• 
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• MRL: 79994 MINISTER CSS JO'AIHE 
OONTAcr: Julian Paine 
typed: ()II06I07 Date reviled: 04I06I07 02:16 nUl 

File: 2200-20rrRT 

JUN 10 200If 
Eric van Socren 
Trustee, DC Forestry Revitalization Trust 
6705 London Drive 
Delta, British Columbia 
V4K4W7 

Dear Eric van Soenm: 

• 

According to Section 5.01 of tho Deed ofTrust, it falls to mo to provido you with tho namo of 
a nomin .. to servo as ODO of seven members oflho Advisory Board of the BC Forestry 
Revitalization Trust. 

I am pleased to nominate Mr. Julian Paine. Executive Director, Tenure and ReVCDUC, Ministry 
of Forests for membership on tho Advisory Board. I am confident thsI thobreadlh of his 
experienco in tho public service, most recontly .. leader of tho tenure roa11ocation process, 
makes Mr. Paino a good choice for this rolo. 

I look forward to tho successfUl operation of tho Trust as wo all do our best to mitigate tho 
unavoidsblo impacts oftonure roa11ocatiOD 00 forestry workers and CODtlaCtors. I trust thsI 
Mr. Paine's nomination will meet with your approval. 

Yours truly, 

'1lIJGINAL SIGNEDfi .. 
~GIONIIN 
~m.;~ 

~ Michael do long 
, Minister 

Cc: DougKonkin 
Deputy Minister 

Bob Friesen 
Aasistsnt Deputy Minister 
Tenure and Rovoouo 
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r!~!W)~H 
~BIA 

'ArlO 1_ 
Sec Attached Distribution List 

Dear Sir: 

It is my pleasure to advise you that the Province of British Columbia bas appointed 
Mr. Eric van Soeren to the office ofTrustee: of the Foreatry Revitalization Trust effective 
Malob 31, 2004. 

It is critically important, J believe, for the succc:sa of government's Foreatry Revitalization 
initiative that the Trustee and the Trust Advisory Board wolk diligently to assist wortc.rS and 
contractors affected by the teri.ure reallocation proceas. A rapid and effective reaponse to 
those impacted will go along way towards ensuring that the benefits of policy reform can be 
rea1ized while mitigating the financial impacts of those whose employment is affected as. 
result. 

J look forward to wolking with you as we continue to move shead in implementing the 
needed policy changes to ensure that the British Columbia forest sector remailUl the backbone 
of our resource economy. I know I can rely on you to usist Eric in his new responsibilities. 

Yours truly, 

~~?::'0 
Minister 

pc: Doug Konkin, Deputy Minister 
Ministry of Forests 

Eric van Socren 
Trustee, BC Foreatry Revita1ization Trost 

IIInlolry 01 
F_ 

01Il0001 ... 
Minister 

'.<><ali",. 
Parliament Buildings 
VICtOria BC vav 1)U 

rage 1 of2 
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Distribution List 

John Allan, President & CEO, Council of Forest Industries 

Jim Hackett, Manager, Interior Lumber Manufacturer's Association 

Brian Zak, President, Coast Forest and Lwnber Association 

Jim Girvan. Executive Director, Truck Logger's Association 

Roy Nagel, Manager, Central Interior Logging Association 

Wayne Lintott. Manager, Interior Logging Association 

Bill Sauer, Manager, North West Loggers Association 

Dave Haggard, President, Industrial, Wood and Allied Wolkers 

• 
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I't'llg~s for Log:76709 • • .-- ---- - - -=, ~~~~""--"-"----

Mr. DouOKonkin 
Deputy Minister 
Ministry of Forests 
FO 80-.:9525, 8tn ?roll Go ... 't 
Vie!DIilI, Be V8'N 9C3 

Re: Be Forestry Revitalization Tr.Jsl 
Tl'I,;s!ee ~ir.tmcnl 

Det!: Sir; 

12(1O-IOOOWc:uP.:I'Idol. SI. 
Va/lC'Ol);'U, Drili$h Cohmlbill 
Cam.~ V6E 21'-'1 

Tdc;morw (604) 891-1Z37 
F~~ (6C4) 6.!'2-M4 ! 
.!l-.\b.d: ~t!:L'? e~ll_'Ye. 
Websit~ . 

I!.lqI: -.'~\\"W.ctll.or&( IC " 

"IV (6. i) 
682-8641 .. \J S] 

16 Ja,.'llJ81)'. 2004 

F\l ~t',e to fhe Ml~ister's ~er 0: DecCI'r,!x:r ~~l"_ 2roJ :I1. ::casl Fores: <lo-ld l..um:,er Associat:oo WOIJld 
like to ,l.1l9gesI tNit Ertc Vl!n Soeren c:o;.Jld be consi;!vnJd Iar.,.. .. pci$itlcn dTruslee of the 8C forMtry 
Re ... ilalizGtlon Tru5t FIJIld. 

Mr. van Soe:'en Cll~:iy ~erves as Trustee of die Coast SustaJ:-.ability Trust (CST) and ha:s ume4 the 
:91Opuct lind GO(IfiOenoe of ~ t"IO$Ie ~ imr<:lived In that diffGllI tH0C8SS. He~:r; brought an 
approach th8I i$ \'iewed es ba!.anced 2nd expealefU kl c!~ rasdvo. 

We WOl.lld also like to offer up me experience of our mcmbcts inside the CST process to f1 .... i.w ttl. 
guiding ptinc;:ip\es and tefmS of J!f.ereoce for tile new ReviUJtiza!ion Trust program. Pleasa iildvise 
acconl irl9!Y when the CFLA CM offer up suiIabie represetlW.Wes. 

Thank pu. 
v OI,l ' ti T J ' , '. 

J. Brian 201<, 
Pres;::!en! 

ec: l&ll Ool'l&y, Deputy M:nist9r 
CC: Mil'lfictar M. d& Joog 

;1MF.L# - ---

file:lIC:\ TEMP\CLIFFtmp9 .html 
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'(!lag!,s fOF Log:76709 • • 

, .. _-----
Donison. Sonia ~QR!~ -- ---- - --- -
From: Chantal Stark [Stark@CFLAOf.l 

Sent: Friday, January 1-6, 20()< 4:03 PM 

To: Konkin. DoL", FOR:EX: Doney, lee SDl:EX: ooJong-. LI'lIR U..ss:EX 

Subject; FW: 

Cand:date fOr Be Forestry RcWlaliZ.ation Trus.! from eRA -letter :::tad'ICd. 

Thanks , 
8 Zo~ 

file :IIC:ITEMPICLIFFtmp9.html 
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• 

December 16. 2003 

Mr. Doug Konk in 
Deputy Jl.1 lnlster 
Ministry of forests 

ONTERFOR) 

P.O. Box 9525, Stn P t OV G.OVl: 
V ictoria. B.C. 
VSW9C3 

RE: APPOINTMENT OF A TRUSTEE FOR THE 
S,C. FORESTRY REVlTAUZATlON TRUST 

Dear DotIg , 

Further to' the Minister'.s letter of December 151."', Intortor v.-ould like to 
propose Eric van Soeren as a candidate for the position of Trustee for the 
B.C. Forestry RevilarlZalion Truit. 

In our view Ene is an ideal candidate. He is cucrently serving in a simili:lr 
capacity as Trustee of the Coast Sustainability Trust and, as such, has an 
intimate knowtedge of the Industry's issues and the challenges associated 
with transition . In our view. he has conduc!~ the affa irs of tho Coast 
Sustainability Trust in a fair and balanc:cd manner onc has the confidence or 
the parties to' that process. 

It you have any questions regarding this recommendation please contact me 
/6D4-Sfj9-688' : or John H~mjrtQ (604-689-5829) who served 0 11 the advisory 
committee to m& CoaSt Sustaina:>ility T rusl and can proviOe direct insight into 
Eric's success in managing that Pr(l(eSS. 

,n~IY. 

, , /7/' 

DKOljb 

. 1 ~1 !'5T f-' ''' Of " '::.:;:1;:51"3, DMU 
RECE ~ VED 

OMF.L# 

DEC 1 2 2003 

I ntemotiOnOl fOc'es1 Products Umited 
P.O. 3-~:x AOll.4. 1055 DU~,$!null $treeT, VC"hCO'.J.'I!#. B.C .. COt"lOdO V7X n47 ~6C6) 65:9-6800 Fox (6Q.!:) 68S-C3 13 
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• W-04 
LAWSON LUNDELL 

BARRISTERS AND SOLICITORS 

(D) Ii @ IJ 0 W Ii '1JI l..I\l Mlnlltrv of F. rut. l!:!J 
AUe 162004 
W:\1o 

TlNUAI AND REVENUE 
o " 

925 West Georgia Street 

Vancouver, British Columblo --_ .. _-- ---. 

August 13, 2004 

DELIVERED 

Ministry of Forests 
Tenure and Revenue Department 
3rd Floor 
1520 Blanshard Street 
Victoria, British Columbia 
V8W3C8 

Attention: Mr. Julian Paine 

Dear"Sirs and Mesdames: 

Forestry Revillzlization Act· Tenure Take Back Negotiatio~ 
, 

CanodQ VOC 312 

Tel.,phone 6cw.685.5.(56 

Focslmile 604,669)620 

WW'W.lowsonlundoll.<.:om 

Direct Line: (604) 631·9171 
Direct Fax: (604) 694·2920 

wmeverettOJawsonlundell .com 

We are asSisting Canadian Forest Products Ltd. ("Canfor") (0 prepare certain materials for an 
upcoming meeting with representatives from the Ministry afForests relating to the above noted 
matter. It is our understanding that this meeting is currently set to take p1ace at the beginning of 
September 2004. To our knowledge, the Ministry of Forests is not represented by counsel with 
respect to the tenure take back negotiations and so we have sent this letter to you directly. 

In order to provide Canfor with the factual information it requires to prepare for its meeting. we 
write to request that certain data be provided by the Ministryof Forests. Specifically. we write 
to request a listing of all dispositions of tenures ("agreements") for which approval of the 
Ministeri. required under section 54 (2) of the Forest Act, R.S.B.C. 1996. c.157, or comparable 
sections of earlier versions of the Act. 

We do not require information for ·non-arms length transfers. transfers as between wholly owned 
subsidiaries. transfers where the tenure remains in the same name, or transfers made rperely in 
the event of a name change under the Companies Act or equivalent legislation. 

For all relevant transfers from 1980 to the present (or to the extent that the data allows it), we 
request the following information: 

• the type of transfer (to affirm that it is an arms length transaction), 
• the name of the transferee, 
• the name of the transferor, 

VANCOUVER ... CA L GARY '" YELLOWKNIFE 

00246.59529.SJG.2484829.1 
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Page 2 • • 
• the region{s) and TSA(s) in which the tenure is located, 
• the amount of AAC received by the transferee (the amount net of any callbacks), and, 
• the transaction date. 

It is OUT unde~tanding that the above infonnation could be derived by compiling a list of 
changes made to the Ministry of Forest's public lists of licences and quota holders throughout 
the relevant time period. However, given the time frame set for the upcoming negotiations, and 
the very cumbersome nature of compiling such a list, we would request that the Ministry.of 
Forests provide this data to us directly in either electronic or hard copy format. 

Pursuant to an agreement between Canfor and the Ministry of Forests, Canfor will keep the data 
confidential. It will be used by its representatives and advisors only in relation to Canfor's 
preparations for the upcoming tenure take back negotiations, and will (upon request) be returned 
to the Ministry of Forests or destroyed once the tenure take back matter has been concluded. 

I would appreciate it you or someone on your staff could contact me or Sara Gregory (an 
associate at Lawson Lundell (604 631-6785» to discuss this request for data. We would 
appreciate your prompt attention to this matter. 

Yours very truly, 

LAWSON LUNDELL 

~~ 
William M. Everett, Q.C. 

WMEJtls 

00246,59529.SJG.2484l12i.1 
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FULLER PE~LJ(AN ICNEI L 

> .": . • "" , 

FULLERPE'ARLMAN, McNEIL ' 
" ,,', ' " . " " ,'" ,' " 

BARRISTERS "' " . ' " ,, ' 
Exchange Building, Suite 103 - 1216 Broad street ' Telephone: 
Victorta, Brnlsh Columbia Facsimile: 
V8W 2A5 E-mail: 

Our Ref. 256CW(a) - -

DATE: " .. , 

TOTAL PAGES ONCLUDING 
TRANSMITTAL SHEET)- -, ' 

PLEASE DELIVER TO: 

, .. ",. ' "''' (-, 

FACSIMILE'1l!ANsMISSION 

, March 24, 2003 
, ,', . ,: . , " " ': 

• ~OOl/006 

(250) 388 - 4550 
(250) 388 - 7133 
ppea~man@tpm1aw,ca 

" 

Juflan Paine and Bruce Mc_ 

FROM: 

Victoria. BC 387-7065 

PAUL J. PEARLMAN, Q.C, 
, " :t, ~ 

IF YOU DO NOT RECEIVE ANY OF THESE PAGESPROPERLY;'PLEASE CALLlORI AT (250) 388-
4550 AS SOON AS POSSIBLE. ", .. ,", - "' , 

. . , . : ' " 
" ' , ,' 

"~" " ~' " ' \'>" , < !\',:.-""; 

THE INFORMAilON· CONTAlNED " IN ' THis I ~CstMIi.E - MEssAGE MAY BE SUBJECT TO 
SOUCITOR/CUENT CONFIDENTIALITY, INiENDEbc 9NiY FOR THE USE OF THE INDIVIDUAL OR 
EN~TY NAMED ABOVE, IF THE READER OF THIS MESSAGE IS NOT THE INTENDED RECIPIENT, 
OR THE EMPLOYEE OR AGENT RESPONSIBLE TO DElIVER TO THE INTENDED RECIPIENT, YOU 
ARE HEREBY NOllRED THAT ANY DISSEMINATION. DlSlRlBUTION OR COPYING OF THIS 
COMMUNICAllON IS STRICllY PROHIBITED. JF YOU HAVE RECEIVED THIS COMMUNICATION 
IN ERROR. PlEASE 'MMEDIATElY NOTIFY US BY TELEPHQNE AND RETURN THE OR/GINAL 
MESSAGE TO US AT THE ABOVE AbDRESS YlA''!l€GUt.t\R-MAIL THANK YOU. 

'.', 

, ~'~ , ,: . ,, ' " ' 

, " 

2560.p<a)\OOOl 

~'" " ' ~ "' " ,..' '" 
.. :'"':"-- ,:-. ' .',' ,-, ' - . . " , , . ' (,' :, t;~r ;·~ , ·,,", .' . . , .. " 

'. " 

, , 

~I " ,;. , 

, '; . .' , ' .- ., " , 

, ",' 

, ' . " ." 

, .' 
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Barry. Jill FOR:EX 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

• 
Andrea.deLestard@gems5.gov.bc.ca 
Wednesday, May 11, 2005 3:37 PM 
Central File Room, FOR HBS P FOR:EX 
JILL New File Open Request 

FINANCE & MANAGEMENT SERVICES BRANCH - OPEN NEW FILE REQUEST 

SUBMITTED BY: IDIR\adelesta 
DATE: 11/5/2005 

please process the following OPEN NEW FILE REQUEST: 

Request Type: 
Paper 

Owner Location: 
DMO 

File Number: 
200-20/BCFRT 

Free Text Title: 
BC Forestry Revitalization Trust 

Media Type: 
Paper File 

Keywords: 

Open Date: 
2003/03/17 

Office of CPR?: 
Yes 

IS this an executive file?: 
Yes, Deputy Minister 

Do you need a copy of this file sent to you?: 
Yes 

Specia l Security Standards: 
Executive only please 

Charge File Out to: 
&&chargeName% 

User E-mail Address: 
Andrea.deLestard@gems5.gov . bc.ca 

• 

Please note that the above e -mail address has not been validated - exercise caution when 
replying . 

This email was generated by the OPEN NEW FILE REQUEST form found on the Finance & 
Management Services Branch web site 
(http: // icw.for.gov.bc . ca / hbs / pirls/rmc/ forms / openfile.htm) 
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